
BOROUGH OF BARROW-IN-FURNESS

LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE

Meeting: Tuesday, 20th October, 2020 at 9.30 am.

A G E N D A

VIRTUAL MEETING - Link to view Live Stream via You Tube 

This meeting will be a virtual meeting and therefore will not take place in physical location 
following guidelines set out in Section 78 of the Coronavirus Act 2020.

Note: The Council will be live streaming the meeting to the Barrow Borough Council YouTube 
Channel which can be viewed live via the link below.

The whole of the meeting will be recorded, except where there are confidential or exempt 
items.

To view the meeting online click this link

PART ONE 

1.  Appointment of Chairman for 2020-2021  

2.  Apologies for Absence/Attendance of Substitute Members  

3.  Urgent Items

To note any items which the Chairman considers to be of an urgent 
nature.

4.  Delegations

To receive notice from Members who may wish to move any delegated 
matter non-delegated and which will be decided by a majority of 
Members present and voting at the meeting

5.  Admission of Public and Press

To consider whether the public and press should be excluded from 
the meeting during consideration of any of the items on the agenda.

6.  Declarations of Interest

To receive declarations by Members and/or co-optees of interests in 
respect of items on this Agenda. 

Members are reminded that, in accordance with the revised Code of 
Conduct, they are required to declare any disclosable pecuniary 
interests or other registrable interests which have not already been 

https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCBYFa9sjxuGwCW5BQwu9mlw/live


declared in the Council’s Register of Interests.  (It is a criminal 
offence not to declare a disclosable pecuniary interest either in the 
Register or at the meeting).

Members may however, also decide, in the interests of clarity and 
transparency, to declare at this point in the meeting, any such 
disclosable pecuniary interests which they have already declared in 
the Register,  as well as any other registrable or other interests.  

7.  Confirmation of Minutes

To confirm the Minutes of the meeting held on 5th December, 2019.

5 - 6

8.  Public Participation

Any member of the public who wishes to ask a question, make 
representations or present a deputation or petition at this meeting 
should apply to do so by no later than 5pm two working days before 
the meeting. Information on how to make the application can be 
obtained by viewing the Council’s website www.barrowbc.gov.uk or 
by contacting the Licensing Team at commercial@barrowbc.gov.uk or 
by telephone on 01229 876545.
 
(1) Questions and Representations

To receive any questions or representations which have been 
received from members of the public

 
(2) Deputations and Petitions

To receive any deputations or petitions which have been 
received from members of the public.

FOR DECISION 

(D) 9.  Application to vary a Premises Licence - Manhattans, 
45-53 Cavendish Street, Barrow-in-Furness  

To consider the application to vary the Premises Licence.

7 - 126

(D) 10.  Application to vary a Premises Licence - Hollywood Rock Cafe, 
45-53 Cavendish Street, Barrow-in-Furness  

To consider the application to vary the Premises Licence.

127 - 238

(D) 11.  Application to vary a Premises Licence - Broadway Sports Bar, 
45-53 Cavendish Street, Barrow-in-Furness  

To consider the application to vary the Premises Licence.

239 - 336

http://www.barrowbc.gov.uk/
mailto:commercial@barrowbc.gov.uk


NOTE (D) – Delegated
(R) – For Referral to Council

Membership of Committee

Councillors Callister (Chairman)
Hall
Seward (Vice-Chair)

For queries regarding this agenda, please contact:

Sharron Rushton
Democratic Services Officer
01229 876321
srushton@barrowbc.gov.uk

Published: Monday 12th October, 2020



This page is intentionally left blank



LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE

Meeting: Thursday 5th December, 2019
at 2.30 p.m. (Drawing Room)

PRESENT:- Councillors Callister, Hall and Seward.

Officers Present:- Graham Barker (Public Protection Manager), Katherine Benson 
(Licensing Officer), Ivor Churcher (Commercial Team Leader), Debbie Storr 
(Principal Legal Officer) and Sharron Rushton (Democratic Services Officer).

Others Present:- Sergeant Travis (Cumbria Constabulary)

6 – Minutes

The Minutes of the Licensing Sub-Committee held on 4th June, 2019 were taken as 
read and confirmed.

7 – The Local Government Act 1972 as amended by the Local Government 
(Access to Information) Act 1985 and Access to Information (Variation) 
Order 2006

Discussion arising hereon it was

RESOLVED:- That under Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 1972 the 
public and press be excluded from the meeting for the following item of business on 
the grounds that it involved the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in 
Paragraph 2 (Minute No. 8) of Part One of Schedule 12A of the said Act.

8 – Application for a Personal Licence

The Licensing Officer submitted a report concerning an application for a Personal 
Licence made under Section 117 of the Licensing Act 2003.  She submitted 
information which had been drawn to her attention concerning the applicant.

The Licensing Officer informed the Sub-Committee that the Disclosure Certificate 
had a relevant offence as listed under Schedule 4 of the Act and that the Police 
Authority had issued an Objection Notice concerning the application.

A copy of the application together with a copy of the Disclosure Certificate and the 
Notice of Objection had been appended to the report.

The Applicant attended the meeting, addressed the Sub-Committee and answered 
Members’ questions.  Sergeant Travis, a representative from the Police Authority 
had also addressed the Sub-Committee and answered Member’s questions.

Page 5

Agenda Item 7



All parties with the exception of Councillors, Debbie Storr (Principal Legal 
Officer) and Sharron Rushton (Democratic Services Officer) withdrew and 
were readmitted to the meeting following the Sub-Committee’s deliberations.

RESOLVED:- That the Sub-Committee refused the application for a Personal 
Licence.

The meeting closed at 3.04 pm.

Page 6

Agenda Item 7



PART ONE
Barrow Borough Council 
Licensing Sub-Committee

20th October 2020
Application to vary a Premises Licence

 
Report from:  Senior Licensing Officer
Report Author: Katherine Benson 
Wards:  Hindpool

1.0 Summary and Conclusions 

1.1 This report sets out details of an application to vary a premises licence under 
section 34(1) of the Licensing Act 2003 for Manhattans, 45-53 Cavendish Street, 
Barrow in Furness, Cumbria, LA14 1QD. The applicant is Zelina Jones.

1.2 The application is the subject of six valid representations therefore a hearing is 
required.  

1.3 The applicant and the party making the representations have been notified of the 
hearing in accordance with the Licensing Act 2003 (Hearings) Regulations 2005 
and Licensing Act 2003 (Hearings) (Amendment) Regulations 2005 “the 
Regulations”. Information to accompany the notice of hearing was provided to the 
applicant and the party making representations in accordance with “the 
Regulations”.

1.4 Appendix 1 to this report provides details of this application.

2.0 Recommendation 
2.1       It is recommended that Licensing Sub-Committee:- 
2.2 Determine whether the application, in accordance with the Guide to Licensing 

Sub-Committee Hearings Procedure, to vary the licence should be granted, with 
or without changes/conditions, or refused, based on the information in this report 
and as presented at the hearing.

3.0 Background and Proposals 
Background

3.1 The supply of alcohol, provision of regulated entertainment, and sale of late night 
refreshment are licensable activities under s.1 Licensing Act 2003 (“the Act”). 
Authorisation from the Council, in its role as the licensing authority, is required in 
order to carry on any of these activities at premises within the Borough.

Page 7

Agenda Item 9



3.2 The Licensing Act 2003 provides a clear focus on the promotion of four statutory 
objectives which must be addressed when licensing functions are undertaken. 
The licensing objectives are:

 The prevention of crime and disorder;
 Public safety;
 The prevention of public nuisance; and
 The protection of children from harm.

Each objective is of equal importance. There are no other statutory licensing 
objectives, so that the promotion of the four objectives is a paramount 
consideration at all times.

3.3 Under s. 34(1) an application to vary a premises licence must be made to the 
relevant Licensing Authority subject to ss.54 and 55 (form of application and fees 
to accompany an application). Barrow Borough Council is the licensing authority 
for the Borough of Barrow-in-Furness.

3.4 Where a premises licence holder wishes to amend the licence, the 2003 Act in 
most cases permits an application to vary to be made rather than requiring a new 
application for a premises licence.

3.5 Under the scheme of delegation adopted by the Council, the Licensing Sub-
Committee (“the Sub-Committee”) is responsible for the exercise of many of the 
functions of the licensing authority, including determination of premises licence 
applications where representations have been received.

3.6 The Health Protection (Coronavirus, Restrictions)(No.2) 
(England)(Amendment)(No.5) Regulations 2020 4A(1) currently require licensed 
premises to close between 22.00 and 05.00. If this application is granted, the new 
opening hours will not take effect until the Regulations have been 
amended/removed.

3.7 Although the Licensing Act 2003 contains no statutory definition of a nightclub, 
Manhattans is a nightclub used for vertical drinking and dancing purposes. The 
Health Protection (Coronavirus, Restrictions)(No.2)(England) Regulations 2020 
Schedule 2, 1 currently mandate nightclubs to remain closed, however a 
business may re-open provided it is repurposed for customers to remain seated. 
They must still remain closed between 22.00 and 05.00. At the time of writing, 
Manhattans has not re-opened in any capacity to the public.

The Application

3.8 On 10th August 2020, under s.34(1) of the Act, an application was made to the 
Licensing Authority by Zelina Jones, in relation to premises Manhattans, 45-53 
Cavendish Street, Barrow in Furness, Cumbria, LA14 1QD to vary their premises 
licence. 

3.9 The applicant is seeking:

 To vary their hours for supply of alcohol, recorded music, performances of 
dance to add an extra hour Friday and Saturday.

Page 8

Agenda Item 9



 Opening hours are therefore also being updated, with some seasonal 
variations.

3.10 A copy of their existing licence is attached at Appendix 2. Tabulated below 
summarises the variation requested and the existing provisions.

3.11 In accordance with s.17(5) the Applicant advertised the application within the 
prescribed period however the content was incorrect so it was republished on 4th 
September. This extended the consultation date to 23rd September 2020. A 
notice has been displayed on the premises about the application to vary the 
licence.

3.12 Additionally notice of application has been given by the Applicant through service 
of a copy of the application to the specified responsible authorities (this obligation 
is fulfilled by officers where the application was given electronically, sent on 10th 
August 2020), satisfying s 17(6) of the Act. 

3.13 Failure to comply with these requirements would render an application invalid.  

3.14 Promotion of Licensing Objectives 
The applicant provides details on Page 16 of their variation application of the 
steps they intend to take to meet the four licensing objectives. These steps would 
in turn, where applicable, be made into conditions to be attached to the premises 
licence, if the variation application is granted.

Licensable 
activity:

Variation requested: Existing licensable activity 
hours:

Supply of 
Alcohol (on the 
premises only)

Friday – Saturday 
4am – 5am

Monday – Sunday 
11am – 4am

Recorded music Friday – Saturday 
4am – 5am

Monday – Sunday 
11am – 4am

Performances of 
dance

Friday – Saturday 
4am – 5am

Monday – Sunday 
11am – 4am

Opening Hours 
of the Premises

Friday – Saturday 
4am – 5am 
New Years Eve – 24 hours
Boxing Night 4am – 5am
Bank holiday Sunday 
4am – 5am

Monday – Sunday 
11am – 4am

Page 9

Agenda Item 9



3.15 Members can only lawfully consider the matters which are being requested as 
part of the variation application. It is not within the Licensing Sub-Committees 
remit to consider their current licence permissions.

3.16 Representations 

3.17 Section 18(3) of the Act states that where relevant representations are made, the 
authority must hold a hearing to consider them, unless the authority, the applicant 
and each person who has made representations agree that a hearing is 
unnecessary.

3.18 The Licensing Authority has received relevant representations and therefore has 
given notice of the hearing to the Applicant and those persons who have made 
relevant representations (as defined by s. 18(6)) as required by Sch 2 and 
regulation 6 Licensing Act 2003 (Hearings) Regulations 2005.

3.19 The Council has consulted with the following responsible authorities:-  

 Licensing Authority (Barrow Borough Council*) (s.13(4)(g))
 The Local Planning Authority (s.13(4)(d))
 Environmental Protection Team (s.13(4)(e))
 Chief Officer of Police (s.13(4)(a))
 Health and Safety Officer (s.13(4)(c))
 Divisional Officer, Cumbria Fire and Rescue (s.13(4)(b))
 Trading Standards (s.13(4)(f)(ii))
 Public Health (s.13(4)(e))
 Safeguarding and Review, Child Protection (s.13(4)(f)(i)); and
 Home Office Immigration Enforcement (The Immigration Act 2016 

made the Secretary of State a responsible authority in respect of 
premises licensed to sell alcohol)

*A licensing authority must carry out its function under the act with a view to 
promoting the licensing objectives and its licensing statement (s.4).

3.20 Representations from responsible authorities

3.21 On 1st September 2020 Cumbria Police made a representation objecting to the 
grant of the variation application. A copy of the full representation is at Appendix 
3. The content of the representation is summarised below:

Concerns raised Licensing objective(s)
Number of crimes in/around the location Prevention of crime and disorder

Serious offences committed in/around 
the location

Prevention of crime and disorder
Public safety

Ability for police to respond to incidents Public safety
Prevention of crime and disorder

There have been no other representations from Responsible Authorities.

Page 10

Agenda Item 9



3.22 Representations from other parties

3.23 There have been 5 representations from other parties, which are summarised 
below.

Appendix Name/organisation Concerns raised Licensing 
objective(s)

4 Mr Simon Crompton – The 
Lounge Group

- Violent incidents
- Alcohol 

intoxication – 
after 1:30am

- Alcohol related 
problems in the 
area

Public safety

Prevention of 
crime and 
disorder

5 Mr Brian White – on behalf 
of Coastal Cars/taxi trade

- Visible disorder
- Alcohol related 

social, domestic 
and violence

- Amount of 
incidents 
unreported and 
unseen

- Rise in noise
- Drink and drugs
- Extended hours 

could leave the 
public stranded 
in town

Prevention of 
crime and 
disorder

Public safety

Prevention of 
public 
nuisance

6 Mr Martyn Bell – taxi driver - Lack of 
infrastructure to 
take people 
home

- Increased risk of 
noise and 
disturbance

- Pressure on the 
police

Public safety

Prevention of 
public 
nuisance

Prevention of 
crime and 
disorder

7 Mr Jonathan Harrison – 
Street Angel

- Difficulties in 
policing the 
situations on 
Cavendish Street

Prevention of 
crime and 
disorder

Public safety

Page 11

Agenda Item 9



8 BBCR - Increased 
pressure on 
policing

- Encourage late 
night drinking 
and drunken 
behaviour 

- Effect on the 
surrounding area

- Public order 
issues

Prevention of 
crime and 
disorder

Public safety

Prevention of 
public 
nuisance

3.24 For members information, below summarises nearby licensed premises and their 
licensable hours for supply of alcohol on the premises. Please note that although 
premises are licensed to supply alcohol until a certain time, they may choose not 
to remain open until this time. Some licences also have seasonal variations, for 
example to supply alcohol for a longer period on bank holidays, at Christmas etc.

Name of Premises Licensable hours for supply of alcohol
Theatre Bar, Cavendish Street 10:00 – 04:00 Monday - Sunday
Barrow Labour Club, Cavendish Street 10:00 – 01:00 Monday - Sunday
Mexicana’s, Cavendish Street 11:00 – 03:00 Monday - Sunday
Wrapport, Cavendish Street 08:00 – 03:00 Monday - Sunday
Hollywood, Cavendish Street 11:00 – 03:00 Monday - Sunday
Broadway, Cavendish Street 11:00 – 02:00 Sunday – Wednesday

11:00 – 03:00 Thursday – Saturday
Cross Keys, William Street 09:00 – 04:00 Monday - Sunday
The Lounge and Cloud 9, Dalkeith 
Street

10:00 – 04:00 Monday - Sunday

Tailors, Dalton Road 09:00 – 00:30 Sunday – Wednesday
09:00 – 03:00 Thursday – Saturday 

The Townhouse, Dalton Road 08:00 – 03:00 Monday - Sunday
Barrow Arms, Cavendish Street 11:00 – 02:00 Sunday

10:30 – 02:00 Monday – Thursday
10:30 - 03:00 Friday - Saturday

Salvana’s, Cavendish Street 12:00 – 00:00 Monday – Saturday
12:00 – 23:30 Sunday

Barrow Indian Cuisine, Cavendish 
Street

17:00 – 00:00 Monday - Sunday

Izgara Restaurant, Cavendish Street 11:00 – 23:00 Monday - Sunday
Barrow Fiesta, Cavendish Street 10:00 – 23:00 Monday – Saturday

12:00 – 22:30 Sunday

Page 12

Agenda Item 9



3.25 Borough of Barrow in Furness, Statement of Licensing Policy 2015

3.26 Applications

3.27 The Statement of Licensing Policy makes clear to applicants and persons who 
have made representations the considerations that will be taken into account 
when determining applications. It is also intended to guide the Sub-Committee 
when considering licensing applications; however, the Sub-Committee may 
depart from either the Statement of Licensing Policy or the statutory guidance 
where the circumstances of the application justify it and if there are good reasons 
for doing so.  Full reasons must be given and Sub-Committees should be aware 
that such departures could give rise to an appeal or judicial review.

When considering applications, the Licensing Authority will have regard to: 

• The Licensing Act and licensing objectives 

• Government guidance issued under Section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003

• Any supporting regulations 

• The Statement of Licensing Policy

7.4 When considering applications where representations have been made, the 
Licensing Authority will seek to balance those factors against its duty to promote 
the four licensing objectives and the rights of residents to peace and quiet. 

3.28 The Licensing Objectives 

3.29 The Sub-Committee must ensure that all licensing decisions have a direct 
relationship to the promotion of one or more of the licensing objectives. Every 
application should be considered on its merits, and there must not be a 'blanket 
policy' to the extent that it is applied so rigidly that an exercise of discretion in 
each individual case is precluded. Applications must be considered with regard to 
the principles of fair process and the Human Rights Act.

3.30 National Guidance

3.31 Revised guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003.

Section 2 – The Licensing Objectives is attached at Appendix 9.
Section 8 – Applications for Premises Licences is attached at Appendix 10.
Section 9 – Determining applications is attached at Appendix 11.

3.32 The provisions of chapter 10 (Appendix 12) of the statutory guidance highlight 
that only precise, appropriate and proportionate conditions, which promote one or 
more of the licensing objectives, should be attached to the licence or certificate. 
The Sub-Committee should only impose such conditions as are necessary to 
promote the licensing objectives arising out of the consideration of the 
representations received, and should avoid straying into undisputed areas. 

Page 13

Agenda Item 9



Conditions duplicating other statutory provisions are not considered to be 
appropriate.

3.33 Determination of application for premises licence

3.34 When the Licensing Authority receives an application for a premises licence 
made in accordance with s.34 and it is satisfied that the applicant has complied 
with the requirements imposed under s.17(5) the Licensing Authority must grant 
the licence in accordance with the application subject only to:-

a) Such conditions as are consistent with the operating schedule accompanying the 
application; and

b) Any conditions which must, under ss. 19, 20, 21 be included in the licence 
(mandatory conditions).

3.35 The application must be determined having regard to any relevant 
representations made take such of the steps mentioned below as it considers 
necessary for the promotion of the licensing objectives.

3.36 The steps are:

a) To grant the licence subject to:-

(i) Conditions which are consistent with the Operating 
Schedule, modified to such extent as the Licensing 
Authority considers necessary for the promotion of the 
licensing objectives

(ii) Any applicable mandatory conditions

b) Refuse to grant the premises licence.

3.37 Options

The options available to members are:

1. Grant the application to vary the licence for Manhattans as applied for;

2. Grant the application to vary the licence for Manhattans, with additional 
conditions and/or changes as deemed appropriate, taking into account 
Chapter 10 of the statutory guidance ‘Conditions attached to premises 
licences and club premises certificates’ (Appendix 12);

3. Refuse the application to vary the licence.

4.0 Consultation 
4.1 This is a legislation led process; details of the statutory consultation are detailed 

above.

Page 14

Agenda Item 9



5.0 Alternative Options 
5.1 The requirements of the legislation place restrictions around the options available 

to the Licensing Sub-Committee. The options available are detailed above.

6.0 Contribution to Council Plan Priorities 
6.1 The effective implementation of the Licensing Act 2003 will contribute to an 

improved environment for local residents and other stakeholders. 

7.0 Implications 
7.1 Financial, Resources and Procurement 
7.2 There are no direct financial implications associated with this report, subject to 

the risks set out at paragraph 7.10. 
This application is being processed as part of normal duties and therefore the 
work associated with it is contained within the departmental budget.

7.3 Legal
7.4 The sub-committee must determine the application, taking into account relevant 

representations, the Licensing Act 2003, the regulations made thereunder 
statutory guidance and the Council’s own licensing policy.

7.5 The application meets the requirements of The Licensing Act 2003.

7.6 Human Rights

7.7 The Human Rights 1998 (HRA) requires public bodies to ensure everything they 
do is compatible with Convention Rights and makes it unlawful for a public 
authority to act incompatibly with those Rights. Article 6 (A6) of the European 
Convention on Human Rights (ECHR) is the right to a fair trial. The key elements 
of this include: 

 The right to a fair hearing; 
 The right to a public hearing;
 The right to a hearing before an independent and impartial tribunal;
 The right to a hearing within a reasonable time. 1

7.8 When hearing an application, the proceedings of a non-judicial body such as the 
Licensing Sub Committee, as opposed to an actual Court, need not meet the full 
requirements of A6 where there is a right of appeal from the Licensing Sub 
Committee to a Court that does meet the full A6 standards and can consider all 
aspects of the case (even if that does not include a full re-hearing of the facts). 

7.9 While it is good practice to make a hearing before the Licensing Sub Committee 
as A6 compliant as possible, it will not be a breach of the HRA if it is not. Further, 
the hearing of all applications is subject to the principles of Natural Justice and 
the requirement for decisions to be ‘Wednesbury reasonable’.

Page 15

Agenda Item 9



7.10 Risks 

7.11 An appeal against a decision of the Sub-Committee or a Judicial Review of the 
application process may present financial risks to the Council with regard to any 
award of costs against it.

Any party to an application (that being an applicant or someone who made a 
representation has a right of appeal to the Magistrates Court.

8.0 Equality and Diversity
The arrangements for the Licensing Hearings seek to ensure that all applicants 
and other interested parties receive a fair hearing and that the process is 
accessible to all groups within the community. 

Contact Officers 
Katherine Benson kbenson@barrowbc.gov.uk 

Appendices Attached to this Report 
Appendix No. Name of Appendix 
1 Application to vary a premises licence under the Licensing Act 2003

2 Existing Premises Licence for Manhattans

3 Representation from Cumbria Police

4 Representation from Simon Crompton

5 Representation from Brian White

6 Representation from Martyn Bell

7 Representation from Jonathan Harrison

8 Representation from BBCR

9 Revised guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 
2003 – Licensing Objectives

10 Revised guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 
2003 – Applications for premises licences

11 Revised guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 
2003 – Determining applications 

12 Revised guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 
2003 – Conditions attached to premises licences and club premises 
certificates

Page 16

Agenda Item 9

mailto:kbenson@barrowbc.gov.uk


Background Documents Available
Name of Background 
document 

Where it is available 

1 Revised Guidance issued 
under section 182 of the 
Licensing Act 2003

2 Licensing Act 2003

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/explanatory-
memorandum-revised-guidance-issued-under-s-182-of-
licensing-act-2003

https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2003/17/contents 

 

Page 17

Agenda Item 9

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/explanatory-memorandum-revised-guidance-issued-under-s-182-of-licensing-act-2003
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/explanatory-memorandum-revised-guidance-issued-under-s-182-of-licensing-act-2003
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/explanatory-memorandum-revised-guidance-issued-under-s-182-of-licensing-act-2003
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2003/17/contents


This page is intentionally left blank



��������	
���������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������	���������

������������������������������������������������ �����!���������������"������#�������������$%%&�� '#(�)(�*(�+�,-(��.##./012�01),*3�,0.1)��0*),��4567�5�879��5:�;<�:=�>�67�9���5?>5��5?@�:=5�<A�@?;85�;7:5>�?:�:=5�5;@�76�:=5�67�9B��C6�D7A�?�5�879��5:�;<�:=�>�67�9�ED�=?;@���5?>5�F��:5��5<�E�D��;�E�78G�8?��:?�>B��C;�?���8?>5>�5;>A�5�:=?:�D7A��?;>F5�>�?�5��;>�@5�:=5�E7H5>�?;@�F��::5;��;�E�?8G��;GB��I>5�?@@�:�7;?��>=55:>��6�;585>>?�DB���J7A�9?D�F�>=�:7�G55��?�87�D�76�:=5�879��5:5@�67�9�67��D7A���587�@>B��CK�LMNCO��PQOMR����������S�����������!����������������"�T����� ������ �����!���������������"����������&U��V�����#�������������$%%&�V��������!�����"����S�"����'���W�S������'�!���������������!S���XN��YZ��'���W�[�'�!�����+��������X7>:?��?@@�5>>�76���59�>5>�7�K��6�;7;5K�7�@;?;85�>A�\5D�9?���565�5;85�7��@5>8���:�7;�]�Ô �__�OR�
̀a�bZ�c�dMOeCR̂�R_fMM_��X7>:�:7F;�4�ffQg�CO�hIfOMRR� X7>:87@5� N�	̀�	ie��_5�5�=7;5�;A9E5��?:���59�>5>�j�6�?;Dk� ��������O7;a@795>:�8��?:5?E�5�\?�A5�76���59�>5>� lZ
K���B����'���$�[�����������"��������e?D:�95�87;:?8:��:5�5�=7;5�;A9E5�� �
bmY	nmY
��Ma9?���?@@�5>>�j7�:�7;?�k� L5��;?��
o9>;B879�cA��5;:��7>:?��?@@�5>>��6�@�665�5;:�6�79���59�>5>�?@@�5>>� YY�gMR_�R̂QfM�fQ�e�X7>:�:7F;�4�ffQg�CO�hIfOMRR� X7>:87@5� N�	̀�ZIe���

Page 19

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 1



��������	
�������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������

���������������������������������������������������� �!���"���������#�$�������!����"�$���%%����������!���������&��'���������(����������� �)���*%�!��+�%��,� "���#����#������ �!���"��$�������!����������%%���'� ������������-�����-���(��(����(����(������� � � � � � � �
�������� �!���"���������#�$�������!����"�$���%%�����!��������!�����"���!���#�����!��%��"�������!�."����$�'�/�����������.��#�!���!����	0����� (��� ���������� �)�����12�32�4235�62�6�2718��92����:2��7��92�;�;�324�<��������/�����������.��#�!���!������0��

�*%�������������#�$�������!� ���#�,��!��"���=+�������,����������������>�����#��������!#��"�����,���������!���!����,�+���������������"��!�,&����>�����#��������!#?� ��������

Page 20

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 1



��������	
�������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������

������������������������� ������ ��!"#���$��$%" �����$ �"&�$%��'����$�()�*!%�+,���-��".�.%�!%�.",�+�-�� ,-/�!$�$"�!%�()���&�$%� ������!�$�"(�$"�0��1�� � ,!!�  &,�2����34�5�3��36������������������7����8���5��5������������3���9:� ���������5�����;������������������������<��=����1 �>�&�$�!?�()�1� @�&�����(�-"A��=� �-=�&��# �>�&�$�!?�()�1� @�&�����(�-"A�B=� �!=��(+""�� �"�$�()��0�($ �>�&�$�!?�()�1� @�&�����(�-"A�C=� �+=�-"A�()�"��.�� $��()��($��$��(#�($�>�&�$�!?�()�1� @�&�����(�-"A�D=� ��=���0��#, �!�>�&�$�!?�()�1� @�&�����(�-"A�E=� �&=� ��!"�+�+�#, �!�>�&�$�!?�()�1� @�&�����(�-"A�F=� �)=����&"�#�(!� �"&�+�(!��>�&�$�!?�()�1� @�&�����(�-"A�G=� �%=��(1$%�()�"&��� �#�����+� !���$�"(�$"�$%�$�&����()�.�$%�(�>�=@�>&=�"��>)=��>�&�$�!?�()�1� @�&�����(�-"A�H=� ��� � �� � �� � ���34�5�3��36�������������6��5�7����>�&�$�!?�()�1� @�&�����(�-"A�I=�� ������<�36���3�3��>�&�$�!?�()�1� @�&�����(�-"A�J=� �K������5�5��37������L3M�5�NO�P����Q��

Page 21

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 1



��������	
�������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������

���������������������������������������������������������� ����������������������������� ������������������������������!����"���������� ������������������������������� #������� �$�������� �%�� ����� &������ '���� �(��� ������ ��������������)����������������������������������������������*�������������� ������+��� ������ ������������ ���������������� ���������������������)����������������������������������������������������,�������������� ������+���� ������ ������������ ������&��� ������ ������-�����������������.�����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������/������������������������������������
�������������� ��������� ������ ������������ ���������� ������ ������������ �������

Page 22

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 1



��������	
�������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������

����������������������������������������������������������������� ���������� ��!�������"�"�������#�������������������������������!����$�����������#����������������������������%���� &������� �'�������� �(��� ������ ������ ����� �)��� ������ ������*��������+��"�������������������������������������������������������������� ������,��� ������ ������������ ���������������� �������������������������+����������"�������� ��!�������"�"��������������������������������-�������������� ������,���� ������ ������������ ��������� ������ ������.�������������������/���������������������������������������"�������� ��!�������"�"����������""���������������������������������������������������"�0����������������������������������������
�������������� ���������� ������ ������������ ���������� ������ ������������ �������

Page 23

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 1



��������	
�������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������

���������������������������������������������������������������������������������� ������������ ���!��������������������������������������"��������#��� ������ $����!�%��� ������ ������������ ������&��� ������ ������������������������������������ �������������������������������������������������������������������� ������'��������� ������������ ������&!��� ������ ������(�������������������)��'!�����������������������!����������� �������������������������������  ����������������!���������������!�������������!���� �*����������������������������������������
�������������� ������$��� ������ ������������ ���������� ������ ������������ ���������� ������ ������������ ������� �

Page 24

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 1



��������	
���������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
���������

�������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������� ������ ��!���������������������������������"������������������������!� �#�����������"���������������������������$����� %����� �&������ ����� ������ '���� � �� � �(�� ������ ������)��������*��+��� ����������� ������������������������������,�������������� ������-��� ������ ������������ ���������������� ������������������������*���������+��!���������������������������������������������������������.�������������� ������- ��� ������ ������������ ������'��� ������ ������/������������������0��� ��������������������� �����������+��!������������������������������������++��������������� �������������� ����������� ����+�1���������������������������������������
�������������� ���������� ������ ������������ ���������� ������ ������������ �������

Page 25

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 1



��������	
�������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������

���������������������������������������������������������������������� ������������ ��������� ��������������!�������������������������������"����#�����������!����������������������������$����� %������� �&�������� �'��� ������ (������ )���� �*��� ������ ������+����������� �����������������������������������������������,�������������� ������-��� ������ ������������ ���������������� ������������������������������������ ���������� ��������� ���������������������������������������.�������������� ������-���� ������ ������������ ������(��� ������ ������/�������������������0��������������������������������������� ���������� ��������� �����������������  ��������������������������������������������������� �1����������������������������������������
�������������� ���������� ������ ������������ ���������� ������ ������������ �������

Page 26

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 1



��������	
�������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������

�������������������������������������������������������������������������� ������������������ ������������������!�������������������������������"����#�����������!����������������������������$����� %������� �&�������� �'��� ������ ������� (���� �)��� 		*����$*���+��������,�� �����������������������������������������������-�������������� ������.��� 		*����$*��������� ����������		*����$*����������������������,���������� ���������������� �������������������������������������������/��01��21���131��$�4&5�(&6%07�0%74.�		*���#��-*��������� ������.���� 		*����$*��������� ���������� 		*����-*���0�������������������*��������������������������������������� ���������������� ���������������������  ��������������������������������������������������� �8����������������������������������������
��(�09�4&:%'�2��50'�2��		*���;�-*��������� ���������� 		*����-*��������� ���������� 		*����$*��������� �������

Page 27

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 1



��������	
���������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������	����������

������������������������������������������������ ��!��!��!����"����#!��$�!�%&� '())�*+�,�����������������*�-�,)���(�����������.*���������/�*+�0�,)���*(�-� ��!��!��!����"����#!��$�!�1&���� 2��$$��� �3"��$$��� �4��� ������ 5����6� 7$�6� �8$�� 		9����19����)���:(;��.�*+���*�()��+�� ��!��!��!����"����#!��$�!�<&������������� ������="!� 		9����19��������� ������>!��		9����19���?*�*���@�������)�;��(�*(��������*+�,����������������� ��!��!��!����"����#!��$�!�A&�BC>�DC�E��CFC��1�G3HE�73I2B��B2�G=�		9���J��<9��������� ������=6"�� 		9����19��������� ������5��� 		9����<9���K����*�������*(�(�:�L��'+��@�.�(�*���*��.��*+�,��(�������*+�,������������������*��(����*�*(���*��*+���)(�*��(��*+���).������*+�)�*M�,)���)(�*� ��!��!��!����"����#!��$�!�
&�7�BN�G3O24�D��HB4�D��		9���P�<9��������� ���������� 		9����<9��������� �������"�� 		9����19��������� �������

Page 28

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 1



��������	
���������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������		���������

��������������������������������������������������������� !��� ������ �"#$%&$�&�&$'(�$%&�#�)�%*(�+��,$(,��,$&�*-�&$%.,�%/#,�01� 2�,$(,�*�3,�$�&,(.���#�/%�/4�#5,�#'�,�/4�,%#,�#$�%),%#�'/-�6����7,���/3�&�%*�������8$'� "#$�#� 9�%�(5� :����������������������;�������������������<����������=����>�����������;�+��,$(,��,$&�*-�&$%.,�%/#,�?1�� @%&//�(� �A/%� ������ ������ B-#&//�(� ������� ������ C/#5� �D-,� ������ ������E��������F���<�������������������+��,$(,��,$&�*-�&$%.,�%/#,�G1������������� ������H,&������� ������������ ������D5-�� ������ ������I����������������F����������������������������������������������������������������������� !��� ������ ��+��,$(,��,$&�*-�&$%.,�%/#,�J1������������� ������9��� ������ ������������ ������"$#� ������ ������K����������������L��:�������<���������<���������������������������������������������������������������������������������� !��� ������ ��������������������������������������������<������������!�������������+��,$(,��,$&�*-�&$%.,�%/#,�
1������������� ������"-%� ������ ������������ �������

Page 29

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 1



��������	
���������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������	����������

������������������������������������������������� ��!��"��"��"��� #����$"��%�"�&'� (�))�����*�+,���+��+��)����������������������-��*).����/++���+��+0�/++���+��1+���2�*)������.-�!��"��"��"��� #����$"��%�"�3'���� ���%%��� �4#��%%��� �5��� ������ 6����7� 8%�7� �9%�� ������ ������:)������,���0������/���)�������!��"��"��"��� #����$"��%�"�;'������������� ������<#"� ������ ������������ ������="�������� ������>�����?����+�)�,����+����+������*�+,���+��+��)���������������������!��"��"��"��� #����$"��%�"�@'������������� ������<7#�� ������ ������������ ������6��� ������ ������A+�����/�/��������B��(�����?+0������/��+�0�������*���������+������*�+,���+��+��)�����������������������/��������������C��+���+���)����/��������.+)0���+������)���C�*)����)����!��"��"��"��� #����$"��%�"�
'������������� ���������� ������ ������������ �������#�� ������ ������������ �������

Page 30

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 1



��������	
���������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������	����������

���������������������������������������������� ��!��!��!����"����#!��$�!�%&� '(���)�*�+�����������������,*���-���.+�/�)(�.�0���*�+*�)(�1�� ��!��!��!����"����#!��$�!�2&���� 3���4!���!���!�� �355��4!���!���!�� �6��� ������ 7����4� 8$�4� �9$�� 		:����;:���)�)*��.��+*�+�.���<�-(�)(�.+���-�)�*�+����������������� ��!��!��!����"����#!��$�!�=&�>?@�A?�B��?C?��;�D3EB�83FG>H�>GHDI�		:���J��K:��������� ������I"!� 		:����;:��������� ������@!��		:����;:��������� ������I4"�� 		:����;:���L�.M+)�.N�-N�)(/(.O+P��'�*-*�����(.)*.N�)���+*�)�*��-*/(+*+���-�)�*�+������������������)�N(��*-*.)�)(/*+�)��)��+*��(+)*N�(.�)�*�����/.��.�)�*��*�)Q���*�+*��(+)� ��!��!��!����"����#!��$�!�
&�8�>R�D3SG6�A��E>6�A��		:���T�K:��������� ������7��� 		:����K:��������� ���������� 		:����K:��������� �������"�� 		:����;:��������� �������R�
�����
U�*�+*��(O��(O�)��.���N��)�*.)*-)�(./*.)��-�+*-<(�*+Q���)(<()(*+Q��)�*-�*.)*-)�(./*.)��-�/�))*-+��.�(���-��)��)�*��+*����)�*��-*/(+*+�)��)�/���O(<*�-(+*�)����.�*-.�(.�-*+�*�)����#4����!�� ��!��!��!����"����#!��$�!�	�&:����������

Page 31

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 1



��������	
���������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������	����������

������������������������������������������� !��!�!�"#�� !���$� %#�&��'�#'��'�!�%(�!� )'� *�'�+,� -�������.����������/����������&��'�#'��'�!�%(�!� )'� *�'�0,�123�42�5��262����7895�:8;<1=�1<=7>�		?���@��A?���B�"� ������ C� �#D�E* � 		?�����?��������� ������>('� 		?�����?��������� ������3'!�		?�����?��������� ������F�������G��G������H�I��J�����.��������G������������������������������������������G�KK������������K���������������G������������������������K�L�������������&��'�#'��'�!�%(�!� )'� *�'�
,�:�1M�78�<B�4��91B�4��		?���N�A?���>D(�� 		?�����?��������� ������C��� 		?����A?��������� ���������� 		?����A?��������� �������( � 		?�����?��������� �������O�'�#'��!' ��P"��D*#'�)* !���* #�)(��' ��"��$�*#'!�* ��D'���)' )'�QD�)D�"*(�R'��'S'�)*(�!�R'��'$*S'!��#���)* #'T(' )'�*P��D'���*�*#'!�S������* �"*(���'�#''U� %?�������

Page 32

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 1



��������	
���������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������	����������

�� �������������������������� ����������������������������� �� ����������������������������������������������� ��������������������������������������������������������������������������� ���������������������������!��"������!������������������������������������������������������������������#��������
Page 33

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 1



��������	
���������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������	����������

�������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������� ��!"�#$%$&!'�(�!''�)*+&�',-$%.,%/�*01$-2,3$.�405�-5�6�!%6�$"�47'$!.$�&$!6�/+,6!%-$�%*2$�88"�9:;<��;;=;>=?@;�A=�B@A��?�;�C=@D�EFB:GD�;@�CC�@9�:?:?H��?��I�9=?=;;��0"�JK$�7&$3$%2,*%�*)�-&,L$�!%6�6,.*&6$&�;M:M��;=GN9:@D�;@�CC�GG@O�PF@A�:?@=9?�BBD��?�=Q@=9?�BBD�9=GF9:?H��?�:>�H=;�;�O=�CF9�?F�B=;;�@A�?�	R��D;�S=9F�@FB=9=?G=�9NH;��EFB:GD�� ��;=�9GA�EFB:GD�� ���>:;;:F?�EFB:GD�I:@A�FO=9�	T�F?BD��BGFAFB�EN9GA�;=� �GA�BB=?H=��U�:�EFB:GD� �=O�GN�@:F?�EFB:GD� �:;E=9;�B�EFB:GD� �?F��BGFAFB�:?�N?;=�B=�GF?@�:?=9;�@F�B=�O=�E9=>:;=;M���-"�V+0',-�.!)$2W�BFG�B��N@AF9:@D�X�EFB:G=�B:�:;F?�GG@O�:?@=9?�B��?�=Q@=9?�B�=Q@=9:F9�B:HA@:?H�=?@9�?G=��?�C:9=�=Q:@�ENPB:G�;�C=@D�9:;<��;;=;;>=?@;�O:G@:>�G�9=�EFB:GD�=>=9H=?GD�B:HA@:?H�CF9�EFI=9�C�:BN9=��6"�JK$�7&$3$%2,*%�*)�7+0',-�%+,.!%-$�:;E=9;�B�>F?:@F9=�PD�;=GN9:@D�;@�CC�@F�=?;N9=�YN:=@��?�YN:G<�>FO=>=?@�C9F>��9=��=?@9�?G=�F?�G�O=?:;A�;@9==@�@F�E9=O=?@�?N:;�?G=�@F��B<=:@A�;@9==@�9=;:=?@;M�=Q@=9?�B�FF9;�<=E@�GBF;=�@F�E9=O=?@�EFBBN@:F?��9FN?�=Q@=9:F9�FC�E9=>:;=;�=Q@=9?�B�B:HA@;���$"�JK$�7&*2$-2,*%�*)�-K,'6&$%�)&*L�K!&L�H=?=9�B�?F�N?=9�	T�N9:?H�;@�?�9�@9�:?H���GA:B9=?�E=9>:@@=��@�E9:O�@=�CN?G@:F?;��?�=O=?@;M��NB@�;NE=9O:;:F?�F9�;=GN9:@D�;@�CC�@F�P=�E9=;=?@M�H�>:?H�>�GA:?=;�@F�P=�:;GF??=G@=��@�N?=9�	T�=O=?@;��GA�BB=?H=��U�:�EFB:GD����

Page 34

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 1



��������	
���������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������	
���������

���������� �������������������������� ��!������ "��#$�%#&�'��(��'�&��#)%(��'*����*+�'���"��#$�('��%#&�'��(��'�&��#)%(��'*����*�,�#-�������#�����#��'(��#��,(�%#&��(���#��'(��'�����(��'&-���'(�'*�����#��(�.����$)/� ����� "��#$��(���'����'*������#�����#��'(�#(&������#(��'����'(��,��#-��'������#(&�'�����0���#�����#,�/� �� "�-(&���#(&���#��"�%-���('0�#&$�����%)�#�����#��'(/� �� "��#$�(��'�&������%�������(��'����$#(���#���'*����'��1��#(#��'(/� �� "�-(&���#(&���#���*�"�&'�('���'%��)�0�������#,'$��2-��%(���%)�#�����#��'(�0����,��3��&/�� ��45�46�78�9::;8<;=�>8?;@�6;<5498�ABC�9:�5D;�E4<;8648F�7<5�GHHI=�59�J7K;�7�:7E6;�6575;J;85�48�9@�48�<988;<5498�L45D�5D46�7��E4<75498M�5D96;�LD9�J7K;�7�:7E6;�6575;J;85�J7N�O;�E47OE;�98�6>JJ7@N�<98P4<5498�59�7�:48;�9:�78N�7J9>85M������ ��B�Q�6�����R �����S��#���#&�.-�&#(��('��	�T��6�����R ���U�VWWXYZV[\�]\̂_�Z̀aa_[\�Wa_bYc_c�XYZ_[Z_�̂dXe_af�da�VWWXYZV[\gc�cdXYZY\da�da���h� ��R�i��R�h� �����������S��#���#&�.-�&#(��('��	jTM��4U������������k�h��U��U��h���ll������=�l���������������mh�����l����iM��n�.(#�-�� opqrst�uvspw�x#�� �
y�zy������#�#���)� {|}|~�����}�{|~��Lh� ���h��l �!����������������������i�h���=�������R ���U�G����ll���������h���R  ����Wa_bYc_c�XYZ_[Z_�̂dXe_af�da��[e�VWWXYZV[\gc�cdXYZY\da�da�d\̂_a�V̀\̂daYc_e�V�_[\�S��#���#&�.-�&#(��('��	�TM��4U������������k�h��U��U��h���ll������=�l���������������mh�����l����iM���n�.(#�-�� �x#�� �������#�#���)� �������<���������!���mh� ������l ����R��i��������������� ����U� ���  ��l�������������������m��h��h����ll���������S��#���#&�.-�&#(��('��	�T��������������m�������� ����������������5���lh�����R!k� ���U���i�� ������4U�i�R�m�R���l �U� �R�������  ��l����m��h�i�R�ki���!���=�i�R ���!������� ������l��������������

Page 35

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 1



��������	
���������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������	����������

���������������������������������������������������� ���������������������!������������������"����������������������������������� ������������� ��������#�������"���������������$�%�� ��"������#�&�������� ���������'�����������#������������(� ��������#�&������"����#�������������������������������������)*�������+�������'�,���-../$�� 	0�123�42�526�789:�62��8;�8�<::��<�67:�25�;��3��2=:�2<�67:�98��86�25�<2��>7�?7�;23�8�:�8���;�5@��=�62�892�4�A:?2B�5@���8A�:�<2��67:��86:�5�@76��:9;��0�C:=?��A:�67:���:B�=:=0�D2��:E8B��:F�67:�6;�:�2<���:B�=:=F��6=�@:5:�8��=�6386�25�854��8;236�854�85;�267:���5<2�B86�25�>7�?7�?23�4�A:��:�:9856�62�67:���?:5=�5@�2AG:?6�9:=0�H7:�:�;23��8����?86�25��5?�34:=�2<<I=3����:=�2<�8�?272��854�;23��56:54�62���29�4:�8���8?:�2<�?25=3B�6�25�2<�67:=:�2<<I=3����:=�2<�8�?272�F�;23�B3=6��5?�34:�8�4:=?���6�25�2<�>7:�:�67:���8?:�>����A:�854��6=���2E�B�6;�62�67:���:B�=:=0�J0�K5�6:�B=�2<�=�:?�<�?��:@3�86:4�:56:�68�5B:56=���:8=:�526:�6786L���M�8;=L�52���?:5?:��=��:N3��:4�<2���:�<2�B85?:=�A:6>::5���0���854��J0���25�85;�48;F���29�4:4�6786�67:�834�:5?:�42:=�526�:E?::4�O��0��D��B=L�52�PQRSTRS�QU�VSWXQVSY�Z[V�\T[]I<2�ÎV[ZQ]_�ZQP̀�SabQcQ]Q[T�bSPY�QT�R[̀ X̀TQ]d���:B�=:=��A:6>::5���0���854��J0���25�85;�48;���29�4:4�6786�67:�834�:5?:�42:=�526�:E?::4�O���854�67:�2�@85�=:��e8f�@:6=�?25=:56�62�67:�=?�::5�5@�<�2B�8��:�=25�>72��=��:=�25=�A�:�<2��67:���:B�=:=g�854�eAf�:5=3�:=�6786�:8?7�=3?7�=?�::5�5@�8A�4:=�A;�8@:�?�8==�<�?86�25��86�5@=0��K5422��=�2�6�5@�:9:56=L�52���?:5?:��=��:N3��:4�<2���:�<2�B85?:=�A:6>::5���0���854��J0���25�85;�48;F���29�4:4�6786�67:�834�:5?:�42:=�526�:E?::4�	���0������h2E�5@�2��H�:=6��5@�i56:�68�5B:56L��52���?:5?:��=��:N3��:4�<2��8�?256:=6F�:E7�A�6�25�2��4�=��8;�2<�j�:?2Ik2B85�>�:=6��5@F�2��<�::=6;�:�>�:=6��5@�A:6>::5���0���854��J0���25�85;�48;F���29�4:4�6786�67:�834�:5?:�42:=�526�:E?::4�	���0�l2BA�5:4�<�@76�5@�=�2�6=�m�4:<�5:4�8=�8�?256:=6F�:E7�A�6�25�2��4�=��8;�>7�?7�?2BA�5:=�A2E�5@�2��>�:=6��5@�>�67�25:�2��B2�:�B8�6�8��8�6=�m�8�:���?:5=8A�:�8=�8�A2E�5@�2��>�:=6��5@�:56:�68�5B:56��867:��6785�85��5422��=�2�6�5@�:9:560��n�9:�B3=�?L�52���?:5?:��:�B�==�25��=��:N3��:4�<2�L�o�8��:�<2�B85?:�2<�358B���<�:4���9:�B3=�?�A:6>::5���0���854��J0���25�85;�48;F�25�85;���:B�=:=0�o�8��:�<2�B85?:�2<�8B���<�:4���9:�B3=�?�A:6>::5���0���854��J0���25�85;�48;�25���:B�=:=�83672��=:4�62�=:���8�?272��<2��?25=3B�6�25�25�672=:���:B�=:=F���29�4:4�6786�67:�834�:5?:�42:=�526�:E?::4�O��0�o�8��:�<2�B85?:�2<�8B���<�:4���9:�B3=�?�A:6>::5���0���854��J0���25�85;�48;F��5�8�>2�p��8?:�6786��=�526���?:5=:4�62�=:���8�?272��25�672=:���:B�=:=F���29�4:4�6786�67:�834�:5?:�42:=�526�:E?::4�O��0��o�8��:�<2�B85?:�2<�8B���<�:4���9:�B3=�?�A:6>::5���0���854��J0���25�85;�48;F��5�8�?73�?7�78��F�9���8@:�78��F�?2BB35�6;�78��F�2��267:��=�B��8��?2BB35�6;���:B�=:=F�6786��=�526���?:5=:4�A;�8���:B�=:=���?:5?:�62�=:���8�?272�F���29�4:4�6786�e8f�67:�834�:5?:�42:=�526�:E?::4�O��F�854�eAf�67:�2�@85�=:��@:6=�?25=:56�<2��67:��:�<2�B85?:�<�2B�8��:�=25�>72��=��:=�25=�A�:�<2��67:���:B�=:=0�o�8��:�<2�B85?:�2<�8B���<�:4���9:�B3=�?�A:6>::5���0���854��J0���25�85;�48;F�86�67:�525I�:=�4:56�8����:B�=:=�2<�e�f�8��2?8��83672��6;F�2��e��f�8�=?722�F�2��e���f�8�72=��68�F���29�4:4�6786�e8f�67:�834�:5?:�42:=�526�:E?::4�O��F�854�eAf�67:�2�@85�=:��@:6=�?25=:56�<2��67:��:�<2�B85?:�25�67:��:�:9856���:B�=:=�<�2BL�e�f�67:��2?8��83672��6;�?25?:�5:4F�2��e��f�67:�=?722��2��e���f�67:�7:8�67�?8�:���29�4:��<2��67:�72=��68�0��k:?2�4:4�q3=�?L�52���?:5?:��:�B�==�25��=��:N3��:4�<2�L�o�85;���8;�5@�2<��:?2�4:4�B3=�?�A:6>::5���0���854��J0���25�85;�48;�25���:B�=:=�83672��=:4�62�=:���8�?272��<2��?25=3B�6�25�25�672=:���:B�=:=F���29�4:4�6786�67:�834�:5?:�42:=�526�:E?::4�O��0�o�85;���8;�5@�2<��:?2�4:4�B3=�?�A:6>::5���0���854��J0���25�85;�48;F��5�8�?73�?7�78��F�9���8@:�78��F�?2BB35�6;�78��F�2��267:��=�B��8��?2BB35�6;�

Page 36

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 1



��������	
���������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������	����������

����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������� ���������� ������� ������������!������������������ ��������������"�#�������������� ������������������!�����$"��������%"�������������������������&��������������������� ������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������ ���������� ������������������������������� ��'���������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������� ���������������"���(����'�����������������)������ ������ �����������!�����$"��������%"�������������������������������������������������������������"�*�!����������� �������!���������������������������������������������������"�+�,�����������������������'�����������������)���������!�����$"��������%"���������������!��������������������������-�� ��'����#��������������������.�������������������������� ���������������������!������������������������������������������������ �� ��������������������/��#��������������������.����������������������������������� ��������������������������!������������������������������������������������ �� �������������������������/��#��������������������.�������������������������� ������������!������������������������������������������������ �� ����������������������/�����#����������������������������� ��������������������!�������������������������.���������������������������������������������������������.���������!�������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������� �������������$�����������������"�0"�1�������.�����������������������������������������������������.�������������������������������������������"��"�2���������������������� ����������������������������� ��������������������������������������� ���������������� ��������������������������������!�������������������!����������� ������������� ���"�3"�2���������������������������������!������������������!��������������������������������������������������"�
"�2���������������������������������!���������!������������������������������������������������������"�"�,��������4��"�$"�5����������������������0����������.���"�"�	3"�������������������������� ������������� �����!��.�!�������������������������������������� ���������������"��"�67�89:�;<=>�?@9?A@�B9�C@�DCA@�B9�E9F=:G@�DAE9>9A�9F�B>@�?H@G<=@=I�?A@D=@�B<EJ�K9F�B>@�?H@G<=@=LM�67�89:�;<=>�?@9?A@�B9�C@�DCA@�B9�?:HE>D=@�DAE9>9A�B9�E9F=:G@�D;D8�7H9G�B>@�?H@G<=@=I�?A@D=@�B<EJ�K977�B>@�?H@G<=@=LM�67�89:�;<=>�?@9?A@�B9�C@�DCA@�B9�N9��������������B<EJ�KC9B>LM�	�"�5������������� ��������������������������������������������������������������������������������� �������������!����������������������������������������� ���������������������� �!���������������������������������������������������������� ���������������������������������������������&�������� ���� ������������������������������������������ ��������������"�		"�5��������������������������!������.���������������� ����������������O����������������"�	�"�P��������������� ����������������"�	%"�QF�D??A<EDFBL=�DR@FB�S79H�@TDG?A@�=9A<E<B9HU�GD8�=<RF�B>@�79HG�9F�B>@<H�C@>DA7�?H9V<N@N�����������������������������������������"�	0"�1�������������������������������������������� �������������������������������������������������������������������� ��"�	�"�P�������������������!�����!��������������������������!������������������������������"���

Page 37

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 1



This page is intentionally left blank



�

�

���������������������������������������������������	
���
�����	�������������������
��������������������������������������������������������������������������
������	����	���������������������������������������������������������������������������������
������������������������������������������������������������������������ !"#�$%&������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������� ��������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������� �������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
�!���	����������������������������������������������������� �������'"(()��*+,#,�������������������������������������)�-�������('"*���&�
��������	��.�� /01234035�617�899:����;<2=0424�/012312�� �� ;/98>:�?@<A�BC3DC77C34E�FGHG:�ICJ23K04D�L7<227E�MC<<@NHO3H?P<3244E�IP=Q<0CE�/6RF�RST�� ��O44P2K�@3A�� ����������U7D�V17@Q2<�89RW�633PCX�?22�TP2�TC72A�R87D�BCY�����
Z��[��
������	��	�����	\�����]�������� ���	����	����[�����̂�����
��Z��[�������_��]��
�����
����������	������
�����
��̂����
	���	̂������������	�("��
���̂�
	��	̂���
���	���
����������Z���������	�������_������]�������� ���	�������
���%���������[�
����	�
�[����	�	��[������	��	�����[�������_�������������������������	���
	����̀�����
���[�
����	�.�[��
���	����
�̂����
�������̀������������Z�����������_��a�������	�����.����b2Q211C�6XX23�6K=03�644047C37�

Page 39

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 2



� �������������	�
������������������������������������������ �!����"�  #�$�%&�'(�&&(�������)��)*���&++���,-����������./01�2.$�!& 3�40225�67891:�*�;�40225�678100�<,�� 3���,,&���� =-�����-�>��?>�%����>-�����-�>��?>�%@ ��&�+�����.��&�+����/�(�244:�A��B������������ � A�CDEF�� �

$�(&�G���(&H3�5�I�(�-&��2407� � � G��&�0��J�04�

G��(�0�K�G�&,�+&+�$&(�� +���AL�MN��NOOPQ���LR�APQST�Q�U�LP�TR�VLVQU�LPOVNV
Q��WPXQY�SNA�PQRQPQV
Q�LP�OQ�
PTAMTLV��S��	��������� M���V����Z[\[F�
�]��̂�	�������U�������\T�\R������U�
�B_��U��ǸZ�̀aO�� ��bcQPQ�McQ��T
QV
Q�T��MTSQ��TSTMQO�McQ�ONMQ���d�(��ee ���- &�����T
QV�N��Q�N
MTXTMTQ��NWMcLPT�QO��Y�McQ��T
QV
Q��A��f��R�B��T�̂�����g�������]�������h������b���������]��S����P����̂�̂�S����A��i��B�������i�O�����R����f�i���B�j���B����R�������i���̂��������gg�f��i�N���	������McQ�MTSQ��McQ��T
QV
Q�NWMcLPT�Q��McQ�
NPPYTVk�LWM�LR��T
QV�N��Q�N
MTXTMTQ���/�(�?�(l����������������������������������������!�,&+��A��f��"���+)m��H�l� 00344�(��41344�"���+)!�&+H�l�� 00344�(��41344�"���+)n&H�&+H�l�� 00344�(��41344�"���+)!���+H�l�� 00344�(��41344�"���+)*��H�l�� 00344�(��41344�"���+)'�(��H�l�� 00344�(��41344�"���+)'��H�l�� 00344�(��41344�G �l+)o�H���+�� ��

Page 40

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 2



� �������������	�
������������������������������������������ �!����"�  #�$�%&�'(�&&(�������)��)*���&++���,-����������./01�2.$�!& 3�40225�67891:�*�;�40225�678100�<,�� 3���,,&���� =-�����-�>��?>�%����>-�����-�>��?>�%@ ��&�+�����.��&�+����/�(�244:�A��B������������ � A�CDEF�� �

$�(&�G���(&H3�5�I�(�-&��2407� � � G��&�2��J�04�

�K�B��"���+)L��H�M�� 00344�(��41344�"���+)!�&+H�M�� 00344�(��41344�"���+)N&H�&+H�M�� 00344�(��41344�"���+)!���+H�M�� 00344�(��41344�"���+)*��H�M�� 00344�(��41344�"���+)'�(��H�M�� 00344�(��41344�"���+)'��H�M�� 00344�(��41344�*� ,+)O�H���+�� ��P�Q�����R�������S�����"���+)L��H�M�� 00344�(��41344�"���+)!�&+H�M�� 00344�(��41344�"���+)N&H�&+H�M� 00344�(��41344�"���+)!���+H�M�� 00344�(��41344�"���+)*��H�M�� 00344�(��41344�"���+)'�(��H�M�� 00344�(��41344�"���+)'��H�M� 00344�(��41344�O�H����'T��(+)*��(�&��H&(�� +��$��(+#�+���%&����H�+�,� ���&?&�(+����U������V��������"���+)L��H�M�� 00344�(��41344�"���+)!�&+H�M�� 00344�(��41344�"���+)N&H�&+H�M�� 00344�(��41344�"���+)!���+H�M�� 00344�(��41344�"���+)*��H�M�� 00344�(��41344�"���+)'�(��H�M�� 00344�(��41344�"���+)'��H�M�� 00344�(��41344���;���@N�&+( ���)O�H���+�� ���S��W�����"���+)L��H�M�� 00344�(��41344�"���+)!�&+H�M�� 00344�(��41344�"���+)N&H�&+H�M�� 00344�(��41344�"���+)!���+H�M�� 00344�(��41344�"���+)*��H�M�� 00344�(��41344�"���+)'�(��H�M�� 00344�(��41344�"���+)'��H�M�� 00344�(��41344�.�?&�L�+��)O�H���+�� ��X����Q�Q�W����"���+)L��H�M�� 00344�(��41344�"���+)!�&+H�M�� 00344�(��41344�"���+)N&H�&+H�M�� 00344�(��41344�"���+)!���+H�M�� 00344�(��41344�"���+)*��H�M�� 00344�(��41344�

Page 41

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 2



� �������������	�
������������������������������������������ �!����"�  #�$�%&�'(�&&(�������)��)*���&++���,-����������./01�2.$�!& 3�40225�67891:�*�;�40225�678100�<,�� 3���,,&���� =-�����-�>��?>�%����>-�����-�>��?>�%@ ��&�+�����.��&�+����/�(�244:�A��B������������ � A�CDEF�� �

$�(&�G���(&H3�5�I�(�-&��2407� � � G��&�:��J�04�

"���+)'�(��H�K�� 00344�(��41344�"���+)'��H�K�� 00344�(��41344�L&���H&H�M�+��)N�H���+�� �"���+)'&�+��� �O����(���+�� P&��Q&��R+�<?&�21�������A��S��B�������S�T�����"���+)M��H�K�� 00344�(��41344�"���+)!�&+H�K�� 00344�(��41344�"���+)U&H�&+H�K�� 00344�(��41344�"���+)!���+H�K�� 00344�(��41344�"���+)*��H�K�� 00344�(��41344�"���+)'�(��H�K�� 00344�(��41344�"���+)'��H�K�� 00344�(��41344�$���&)N�H���+�� �"���+)'&�+��� �O����(���+�� P&��Q&��R+�<?&�21�������V����W�S���B�X���B����"���+)M��H�K�� 00344�(��41344�"���+)!�&+H�K�� 00344�(��41344�"���+)U&H�&+H�K�� 00344�(��41344�"���+)!���+H�K�� 00344�(��41344�"���+)*��H�K�� 00344�(��41344�"���+)'�(��H�K�� 00344�(��41344�"���+)'��H�K�� 00344�(��41344�*��� �(�&+)M�+��)N�H���+�� �*��� �(�&+)M�+��)*��(�&��H&(+�� $Y�,�;����&Z��[,&�(��V�������S���\������"���+)M��H�K�� 00344�(��41344�"���+)!�&+H�K�� 00344�(��41344�"���+)U&H�&+H�K�� 00344�(��41344�"���+)!���+H�K�� 00344�(��41344�"���+)*��H�K�� 00344�(��41344�"���+)'�(��H�K�� 00344�(��41344�"���+)'��H�K�� 00344�(��41344�*��� �(�&+)$���&)N�H���+�� �*��� �(�&+)$���&)*��(�&��H&(+��$���&�J �������]]�W��S�̂���	���"���+)M��H�K� 00344�(��41344�"���+)!�&+H�K� 00344�(��41344�"���+)U&H�&+H�K� 00344�(��41344�"���+)!���+H�K� 00344�(��41344�"���+)*��H�K� 00344�(��41344�"���+)'�(��H�K� 00344�(��41344�"���+)'��H�K� 00344�(��41344�/ ���� )I��(�&�[�&,�+&+� �

Page 42

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 2



� �������������	�
������������������������������������������ �!����"�  #�$�%&�'(�&&(�������)��)*���&++���,-����������./01�2.$�!& 3�40225�67891:�*�;�40225�678100�<,�� 3���,,&���� =-�����-�>��?>�%����>-�����-�>��?>�%@ ��&�+�����.��&�+����/�(�244:�A��B������������ � A�CDEF�� �

$�(&�G���(&H3�5�I�(�-&��2407� � � G��&�1��J�04�

�KALMNMO�PKQR��KS�TPL�ARLUN�L���"���+)V��H�W� 00344�(��41344�"���+)!�&+H�W� 00344�(��41344�"���+)X&H�&+H�W� 00344�(��41344�"���+)!���+H�W� 00344�(��41344�"���+)*��H�W� 00344�(��41344�"���+)'�(��H�W� 00344�(��41344�"���+)'��H�W� 00344�(��41344���YPLRL�TPL��N
LM
L�ZQTPKRN�L���QAA�NL��KS�Z�
KPK��YPLTPLR�TPL�L�ZRL�KM�ZM[\KR�KSS��QAA�NL����/ ���� )I��(�&�]�&,�+&+���� � A����D��MZUL̂�_RLON�TLRL[̀�Z[[RL��̂�TL�LAPKML�MQU�LR�ZM[�LUZN��_YPLRL�RL�LaZMT̀�KS�PK�[LR�KS�ARLUN�L���N
LM
L���U���b�����T����c�d�����EE�Y�����	����R��ê�������fN�fS������̂�
�Bg��̂��Zhi�FQ[���RLON�TLRL[�MQU�LR�KS�PK�[LR̂�SKR�LjZUA�L�
KUAZMk�MQU�LR̂�
PZRNTk�MQU�LR�_YPLRL�ZAA�N
Z��L̀��V�+�l& ����!���&W�m��&+� n&��+(��(����o�>�� ���MZUL̂�Z[[RL���ZM[�TL�LAPKML�MQU�LR�KS�[L�NOMZTL[�ARLUN�L���QALRaN�KR�YPLRL�TPL�ARLUN�L���N
LM
L��ZQTPKRN�L��TPL��QAA�k�KS�Z�
KPK����V�+�l& ����!���&W�m��&+� �66�X&+(�'���&�n��H#�������)p�)*���&++#���,-���#�./01�:q$�40225�17015:� ���ALR�KMZ���N
LM
L�MQU�LR�ZM[�N��QNMO�ZQTPKRNTk�KS�ALR�KMZ���N
LM
L�PL�[��k�[L�NOMZTL[�ARLUN�L����QALRaN�KR�YPLRL�TPL�ARLUN�L���N
LM
L�ZQTPKRN�L��SKR�TPL��QAA�k�KS�Z�
KPK���.��&��&�o�3��G/4022� p++�&H�-W3��������)��)*���&++��

Page 43

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 2



� �������������	�
������������������������������������������ �!����"�  #�$�%&�'(�&&(�������)��)*���&++���,-����������./01�2.$�!& 3�40225�67891:�*�;�40225�678100�<,�� 3���,,&���� =-�����-�>��?>�%����>-�����-�>��?>�%@ ��&�+�����.��&�+����/�(�244:�A��B������������ � A�CDEF�� �

$�(&�G���(&H3�5�I�(�-&��2407� � � G��&�9��J�04�

�KLLMNM��KLLMN�O�PQM��R
ML�RLS�K
P�DCCF�TUKLVKPWXY�
WLVRPRWL�Z��[��H�(��\����H�(���+���&�+�-]&�(�(���,&�H,&�(�-\��&�(�� ���?&��,&�(>�̂(��+�(�&� ��&��&��� H&�_+��&+̀��+�-� �(\�(��&�+��&�(��(�(�&\���&��̀�(��H�(&���(����\������&+���� &��+ �(���>��[��H�(��\����H�(���+���&�&� ��&��&���(����+&+�(�&�+�̀  ̀\��J�� ���� ��a0b�c��+�̀  ̀\��J�� ���� �,�\�-&�,�H&���H&��(�&�̀�&,�+&+� ��&��&�)�a�b��(���(�,&���&��(�&�&��+����H&+����(&H�̀�&,�+&+�+�̀&�?�+�������&+̀&�(��J�(�&�̀�&,�+&+� ��&��&#����a-b��(���(�,&���&��(�&�H&+����(&H�̀�&,�+&+�+�̀&�?�+���H�&+���(��� H���̀&�+��� � ��&��&������+�̀&�+��� � ��&��&��+�+�+̀&�H&H>��a2b�<?&�\�+�̀  ̀\��J�� ���� ���H&��(�&�̀�&,�+&+� ��&��&�,�+(�-&�,�H&������(����+&H�-\���̀&�+��������� H+���&̀�+��� � ��&��&>��[��H�(��\����H�(������&�&�$����'�̀&�?�+��+���&�̀��?�H&H�a<;�&̀(�(�&�(�&+#����&,�+#�-�������  +���H���+���+b��a0b�d�&�&���̀�&,�+&+� ��&��&���� �H&+������H�(����(��(��(�+̀&��J�&H�(�,&+���&����,��&���H�?�H�� +�,�+(�-&��(�(�&�̀�&,�+&+�(������\���(���+&����(\���(�?�(\#�&������H�?�H�� �,�+(3�a�b��&���(����+&H�(������\���(�(��(���(�?�(\�-\��� ��&��&�����(&H���H&��(�&�G��?�(&�'&����(\�/�(�2440�aG'̂/be����a-b��&�&�(�( &H�(������\���(�(��(���(�?�(\�-\�?��(�&��J�+&�(����1��J�(�&�.��&�+����/�(�244:��a2b���(���(��������+�-+&�(����a0b��-�?&��&f���&+�+���������H�(����(��-&��,̀ �+&H3�a�b�̂���&+̀&�(��J�̀�&,�+&+���(����̀������̀��6a:ba�b��J�'��&H� &�2�(��(�&�G'̂/�2440à�&,�+&+���(���̀&,�+&+� ��&��&+���(����+����̀ �\+����J� ,+be����a-b�̂���&+̀&�(��J�̀�&,�+&+�����& �(����(�3�a�b�/�\�����+����,&�(���&H����̀������̀��6a:ba-b����a�b��J�(��(�'��&H� &�à�&,�+&+�-&�����+&H�&;� �+�?& \�-\�(�&�� �-���(��� �-�̀�&,�+&+��&�(�J���(&#���H&����(&,̀ ����\�&?&�(���(��&���(����+����J� ,+������H&������,���� ��&��&#����a��b�/�\�����+������(����̀������̀��6a:baHb��J�(��(�'��&H� &�a����+���+�̀�&+���-&H�-\��&�� �(���+���H&��(��(�/�(b��a:b�*���(�&�̀��̀�+&+��J�(��+�+&�(���3�a�b�g+&����(\���(�?�(\g�,&��+������(�?�(\�(��������̀������̀��2a0ba�b��J�(��(�'��&H� &��̀  ̀�&+#���H#��������+� ��&�+�- &����H��(�J���(�&�̀��̀�+&��J�(��(�/�(#�a-b�G������̀��6a9b��J�(��(�'��&H� &�a��(&�̀�&(�(�����J��&J&�&��&+�(���������+���b��̀  ̀�&+��+��(��̀  ̀�&+�����& �(����(��̀������̀��6��J�(��(�'��&H� &>��

Page 44

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 2



� �������������	�
������������������������������������������ �!����"�  #�$�%&�'(�&&(�������)��)*���&++���,-����������./01�2.$�!& 3�40225�67891:�*�;�40225�678100�<,�� 3���,,&���� =-�����-�>��?>�%����>-�����-�>��?>�%@ ��&�+�����.��&�+����/�(�244:�A��B������������ � A�CDEF�� �

$�(&�G���(&H3�5�I�(�-&��2407� � � G��&�8��J�04�

!�&�J�  ���������H�(���+�+��  ��KK L�J��,�26(��M�L�2401��N0O�/��& &?��(�K&�+���+��  �&�+��&�(��(����� ���� ��+�+� H����+�KK �&H�J������+�,K(�����������JJ�(�&�K�&,�+&+�J�����K���&��������+� &++�(����(�&�K&�,�((&H�K���&>��N2O�*���(�&�K��K�+&+��J�(�&����H�(����+&(���(����K������K��0�)�N�O�PH�(LP��+�(��-&����+(��&H���������H���&���(��(�&�/ ���� ���.�Q����$�(�&+�/�(�0575R�N-O�PK&�,�((&H�K���&P��+�(�&�K���&�J���H�-L��KK L����(�&�J��,� ��)�G�S�$�T�N$�;�UO�V�&�&�)�N�O�G��+�(�&�K&�,�((&H�K���&#�N��O�$��+�(�&���(&��J�H�(L������&�- &�����& �(����(��(�&�� ���� ��+��J�(�&�H�(L��&�&������&H����(�&�H�(&��J�(�&�+� &����+�KK L��J�(�&�� ���� #���H�N���O�U��+�(�&���(&��J�?� �&��HH&H�(�;������&�- &�����& �(����(��(�&�� ���� ��+��J�(�&�?� �&��HH&H�(�;��&�&������&H����(�&�H�(&��J�(�&�+� &����+�KK L��J�(�&�� ���� R�N�O�P�& &?��(�K&�+��P�,&��+#�����& �(����(��K�&,�+&+�����&+K&�(��J�������(�&�&��+����J���&���K�&,�+&+� ��&��&)�N�O�(�&��� H&���J�(�&�K�&,�+&+� ��&��&#�N��O�(�&�H&+����(&H�K�&,�+&+�+�K&�?�+���N�J���LO�����&+K&�(��J�+������ ��&��&#����N���O�(�&�K&�+��� � ��&��&��� H&������,�%&+������(����+&+���+�KK L��J�� ���� ���H&��+������ ��&��&R�NHO�P�& &?��(�K&�+��P�,&��+#�����& �(����(��K�&,�+&+�����&+K&�(��J�������(�&�&��+����J���&���� �-�K�&,�+&+��&�(�J���(&#���L�,&,-&������JJ��&���J�(�&�� �-�K�&+&�(����(�&�K�&,�+&+��������K���(L�������&��- &+�(�&�,&,-&������JJ��&��(��K�&?&�(�(�&�+�KK L����Q�&+(���R���H�N&O�P?� �&H��HH&H�(�;P�,&��+�?� �&��HH&H�(�;������&H���������H���&���(��(�&�U� �&�/HH&H�!�;�/�(�0551>��N:O��V�&�&�(�&�K&�,�((&H�K���&���?&��-L�G������K��N-O��J�K������K��2���� H�N�K��(�J��,�(��+�K������K�O���(�-&������ &���,-&���J�K&���&+#�(�&�K���&���?&��-L�(��(�+�-)K������K��+��  �-&�(�%&��(��-&�(�&�K���&���(��  L���?&��-L�(��(�+�-)K������K������H&H��K�(��(�&��&��&+(�K&��L>��N1O�N0O�'�-)K������K��N2O��KK �&+���&�&�(�&�K&�,�((&H�K���&���?&��-L�G������K��N-O��J�K������K��2������H�L�NP(�&�J��+(�H�LPO���� H�-&�H�JJ&�&�(�J��,�(�&�K&�,�((&H�K���&����(�&��&;(�H�L�NP(�&�+&���H�H�LPO��+����&+� (��J��������&�(��(�&���(&��J�H�(L����?� �&��HH&H�(�;>�� N2O�!�&�K&�,�((&H�K���&���������� H��KK L����(�&�J��+(�H�L��KK �&+�(��+� &+����+�KK �&+��J�� ���� �������(�%&�K ��&�-&J��&�(�&�&;K��L��J�01�H�L+�-&�����������(�&�+&���H�H�L>��!�&�J�  ���������H�(���+�+��  ��KK L�J��,�0+(�I�(�-&��2401��0>�N0O�!�&��&+K��+�- &�K&�+���,�+(�&�+��&�(��(�+(�JJ�����& &?��(�K�&,�+&+�H����(�����L��(#�������&����K��(���K�(&������L����&+K��+�- &�K��,�(���+�����& �(����(��(�&�K�&,�+&+>��N2O�W��(��+�K������K�#�������&+K��+�- &�K��,�(����,&��+���L���&����,��&��J�(�&�J�  ��������(�?�(�&+#����+�-+(��(��  L�+�,� �����(�?�(�&+#������&H����J���(�&�K��K�+&��J�&�����������(�&�+� &����+�KK L��J�� ���� �J������+�,K(�������(�&�K�&,�+&+�)�N�O���,&+�����(�&����(�?�(�&+��������&Q���&����&�������&#������&�H&+���&H�(���&Q���&����&�������&#�

Page 45

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 2



� �������������	�
������������������������������������������ �!����"�  #�$�%&�'(�&&(�������)��)*���&++���,-����������./01�2.$�!& 3�40225�67891:�*�;�40225�678100�<,�� 3���,,&���� =-�����-�>��?>�%����>-�����-�>��?>�%@ ��&�+�����.��&�+����/�(�244:�A��B������������ � A�CDEF�� �

$�(&�G���(&H3�5�I�(�-&��2407� � � G��&�7��J�04�

��H�?�H�� +�(��)�K�L�H���%���M���(�(N��J�� ���� ���(������(�,&� �,�(�K�(�&��(����(��H���%�� ���� �+� H����+�OO �&H����(�&�O�&,�+&+�-&J��&�(�&��&++�(�����J�(�&�O&���H����������(�&��&+O��+�- &�O&�+����+���(����+&H�(��+&  ����+�OO N�� ���� L#����K��L�H���%��+�,����� ���� ��+�O�++�- &�K��&(�&����(������(�,&� �,�(�����(�&���+&LP�K-L�O��?�+�����J��� �,�(&H������+O&��J�&H�M���(�(�&+��J�� ���� �J�&&����J�����J�;&H����H�+����(&H�J&&�(��(�&�O�- ������(��������O�H&J��&H�-N���O��(��� ���������(&��+(��������,���&�������������&+���+����J����(���+%��J���H&�,�������� ��&�+�����-Q&�(�?&P�K�L�O��?�+�����J�J�&&����H�+����(&H�� ���� ������N��(�&��(������+���O��R&�(��&�������&�����&���H�(�&�O�����+&���H����+�,O(�����J�� ���� ��?&����O&���H��J�21�����+���� &++������,���&�������������&+���+����J����(���+%��J���H&�,�������� ��&�+�����-Q&�(�?&P�KHL�+&  �������+�OO N����� ���� �����++����(������(��O��,�(���� �O�+(&�+����J N&�+���#�������(�&�?�����(N��J#�(�&�O�&,�+&+������������&�+���- N�-&����+�H&�&H�(�����H��&#�&�������&����� �,���+&���(�)+���� �-&��?��������(���&J&��(��(�&�&JJ&�(+��J�H���%&��&++������N�J�?����- &�,���&�P�K&L�H�+O&�+����� ���� �H��&�( N�-N���&�O&�+�����(��(�&�,��(���J����(�&��K�(�&��(������&�&�(��(��(�&��O&�+����+����- &�(��H���%���(���(��++�+(���&�-N��&�+����J�H�+�-� �(NL>��2>�!�&��&+O��+�- &�O&�+���,�+(�&�+��&�(��(�J�&&�O�(�- &���(&���+�O��?�H&H�����&M�&+(�(����+(�,&�+���&�&��(��+��&�+���- N��?�� �- &>��:>�K0L�!�&�O�&,�+&+� ��&��&��� H&������ �-�O�&,�+&+��&�(�J���(&��� H&��,�+(�&�+��&�(��(������&�?&��J���(����O� ��N��+��H�O(&H�����&+O&�(��J�(�&�O�&,�+&+�����& �(����(��(�&�+� &����+�OO N��J�� ���� >�K2L�!�&�H&+����(&H�O�&,�+&+�+�O&�?�+�������& �(����(��(�&�O�&,�+&+� ��&��&�,�+(�&�+��&�(��(�(�&�+�OO N��J�� ���� ��(�(�&�O�&,�+&+��+������&H������������H���&���(��(�&���&�?&��J���(����O� ��N>�K:L�!�&�O� ��N�,�+(��&M���&���H�?�H�� +������OO&���(��(�&��&+O��+�- &�O&�+���(��-&���H&��06�N&��+��J���&�K���+����� H&����&��+�,�N�-&�+O&��J�&H����(�&�O� ��NL�(��O��H��&�����&M�&+(#�-&J��&�-&����+&�?&H�� ���� #��H&�(�J���(����-&������(�&���O��(����O�#�H�(&��J�-��(����H�&�(�&��)��K�L����� ����O����,��%#�����K-L����� (��?�� &(�J&�(��&>��1>�!�&��&+O��+�- &�O&�+���,�+(�&�+��&�(��(�)�K�L���&�&���N��J�(�&�J�  ������� ���� ���H���%+��+�+� H����+�OO �&H�J������+�,O(�������(�&�O�&,�+&+�K�(�&��(����� ���� ���H���%+�+� H����+�OO �&H���?����-&&��,�H&��O�����H?���&��&�HN�J���+� &����+�OO N������+&���& N�� �+&H����(���&�L��(��+��?�� �- &�(����+(�,&�+����(�&�J�  ������,&�+��&+�)�K�L�-&&�������H&�3�0@2�O��(P�K��L����#���,#�?�H%��������+%N3�29�, ����:9�, P���H�K���L�+(�  ����&������� �++3�029�, P�K-L�(�&+&�,&�+��&+���&�H�+O �N&H������,&��#�O���&� �+(�����(�&��O���(&H�,�(&��� ��������+��?�� �- &�(����+(�,&�+����(�&�O�&,�+&+P���H��K�L���&�&�����+(�,&��H�&+���(�����& �(����(����+� &��J�� ���� �+O&��JN�(�&�M���(�(N��J�� ���� �(��-&�+� H#�(�&���+(�,&���+�,�H&�����&�(��(�(�&+&�,&�+��&+���&��?�� �- &>S���

Page 46

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 2



� �������������	�
������������������������������������������ �!����"�  #�$�%&�'(�&&(�������)��)*���&++���,-����������./01�2.$�!& 3�40225�67891:�*�;�40225�678100�<,�� 3���,,&���� =-�����-�>��?>�%����>-�����-�>��?>�%@ ��&�+�����.��&�+����/�(�244:�A��B������������ � A�CDEF�� �

$�(&�G���(&H3�5�I�(�-&��2407� � � G��&�6��J�04�

KLLMN�D�O�
PLQRSRPL��
PL�R�SMLS�TRSU�SUM�PAMVKSRLW��
UMQX�M���0>�!�&�Y�&,�+&+���  ���?&���&�'Z/��&��+(&�&H�H����+�Y&�?�+���Y&��79�Y&�+��+��((&�H�����Y�(����,�;�,�,��J�944�Y&�+��+���H���&�'Z/��&��+(&�&H�H����+�Y&�?�+���Y&��044�Y&�+��+��((&�H�����-�?&�944�Y&�+��+��2>�/����((&���&���H�+��  �-&�%&Y(����(�&�Y�&,�+&+�-[�(�&�$&+����(&H�G�&,�+&+�'�Y&�?�+����J�&?&�[�Y&�+���&,Y �[&H����(�&�Y�&,�+&+��+���H����+�Y&�?�+���������&��+(&��%&Y(�J���(��(�Y��Y�+&>��!��(��&���H�+��  ����(����(�&�J�  ������H&(�� +3���\�(�&�H����+�Y&�?�+��]+���,&#�H�(&��J�-��(����H���,&��HH�&++��-\���+@�&��'&����([�Z�H�+(�[�/�(����([� ��&��&���,-&����\�(�&�(�,&���H�H�(&��&@+�&�+(��(+���H�J���+�&+�H�([��H\�(�&�(�,&��J���[�-�&�%+�(�%&����� +(����H�([�&\�&����&�(�[�+��  �-&�+���&H�-[�(�&�H����+�Y&�?�+����:>�!��(��&��+(&��+��  �-&��?�� �- &�J�����+Y&�(�������H&,��H�-[����/�(����+&H�IJJ��&���J�(�&������� #�(�&�'&����([�Z�H�+(�[�/�(����([������G� ��&����+(�- &>��1>�/�(�,Y&��Y���J���!̂ �+[+(&,�+��  �-&���+(�  &H��(�(�&�Y�&,�+&+���� ���+�����(����H�(��(�&�+�(�+J��(�����J�(�&���,-����G� ��&�.��&�+������H���,,���([�'�J&([�IJJ��&�+���H�+��  �-&��+&H�(���&���H�H�������  �����+�(��(��� ��&�+�- &���(�?�([�(�%&+�Y ��&����(�&�Y�&,�+&+>���9>�_�&�&���!̂ �&̀��Y,&�(��+�J�((&H#��(�+��  �-&�,���(���&H�������H����%������H&����������H���&���(��(�&�,���J��(��&�]+���+(���(���+>���8>�/����((&���&���H�+��  �-&�%&Y(�&?&�[�(�,&��,��&+���&��&���H&H�-[���!̂ ���H�+��  ���� �H&�H&(�� +��J�(�&��&���H����,&H��,��+&H#�(�&�(�,&���H�H�(&��&���H������,,&��&H���H�J���+�&H>�!��+��&���H�+��  ��H&�(�J[�(�&�Y&�+����&+Y��+�- &�J���(�&��&���H������H�+��  �-&�+���&H�-[���,@�&�>�_�&�&�(�&��&���H�����+�������&,�?�- &�,&H��,�a�>&>�?�H&�(�Y&#���,Y��(�H�+�#�J �+�����H�&(�>\#���+&���&�+(����&�+[+(&,�(��+(��&�(��+&��&���H����,&H��,+�+��  �-&�Y��?�H&H>��7>�!�&��,��&+��&���H&H�-[�(�&���!̂ �+[+(&,�+��  �-&��&(���&H������&H�(&H�J��,�J�����Y&���H��J���(� &++�(����01�H�[+>��6>�/(��  �(�,&+���&��(�&�Y�&,�+&+���&��Y&��(�&�&�+��  �-&�Y�&+&�(����(�&�Y�&,�+&+���,&,-&���J�+(�JJ������+�(����&H����(�&��Y&��(�����J���!̂ ���+(�  &H��(�(�&�Y�&,�+&+���H�H��� ��H�����J�H�(���,��&+���(�����&���H����J��,�(>�/�[��,��&+��&̀���&H�J���Y� ��&���?&+(���(������  �-&�+�YY �&H�(��G� ��&�IJJ��&�+����H&,��H����-[�� �+&��J�-�+��&++�������&?&���+�&�� �&+(>��5>�!�&�&�+��  �-&����J���&�J���(�&�Y�&,�+&+���H���+�+&�����Y� ��[�J���Y��+Y&�(�?&���+(�,&�+�������+��  �-&�H&?& �Y&H���� ���+�����(����H�(��(�&�+�(�+J��(�����J�(�&�G� ��&�.��&�+����IJJ��&��J���(�&���&������&��&H>�!�&�&�+��  �-&�H�+Y �[&H�(��������(�(�&�Y�&,�+&+�����(��&���J��,����Y��+Y&�(�?&���+(�,&�+��J�(�&�+&�����Y� ��[>�!�&���(��&�+��  �-&�+&���& [�J�;&H���H�?�+�- &�(��,&,-&�+��J�(�&�Y�- ��>��

Page 47

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 2



� �������������	�
������������������������������������������ �!����"�  #�$�%&�'(�&&(�������)��)*���&++���,-����������./01�2.$�!& 3�40225�67891:�*�;�40225�678100�<,�� 3���,,&���� =-�����-�>��?>�%����>-�����-�>��?>�%@ ��&�+�����.��&�+����/�(�244:�A��B������������ � A�CDEF�� �

$�(&�G���(&H3�5�I�(�-&��2407� � � G��&�5��J�04�

04>�K��L&�+������L�++&++�����J����� ���� ���H���%������+&� &H������+&� &H����(���&��+��  �-&��  ��&H�(��&�(&��(�&�L�&,�+&+�&;�&L(�J���(�&�L��L�+&+��J�H& �?&�M>��00>�K��H���%�+��  �-&��&,�?&H�J��,�(�&�L�&,�+&+���������+&� &H����(���&�>��02>�/���(��&������(��&+�+��  �-&�H�+L �M&H������H��(�(�&�&�(����&�(��(�&�L�&,�+&+���&�&�(�&M�����-&�� &�� M�+&&����H��&�H���H�+��  ���H���(&�(��(��(��+��� ��J� �J���L&�+��+���H&��06�(��L�����+&�� ���� ����J�����M�L&�+���(��L�����+&�� ���� ����-&�� J��J���L&�+�����H&��06�M&��+��J���&>��0:>�!�&�&�+��  �-&����L ��&�J���(�&�L�&,�+&+������((&���H,�++���+�L� ��M�(��L�&?&�(�(�&�+� &����+�LL M��J�� ���� �(��L&�+��+���H&��06�M&��+��J���&>�!��(�L� ��M�+��  ��&N���&��L���&�(�M���M�L&�+��������LL&��+�(��-&���H&��(�&���&��J�20�M&��+�(��L��H��&����&�����+&H�L���J��J���&����H�����&H�(&H���H&��(�&�G���J��J�/�&�'(��H��H+�'��&,&�OG/''P#�����(�Q&�����H�+�LL��(&H�-M�(�&���,&��JJ��&#���L��(��H��?���� ��&�+&#���L�++L��(�����JJ���� �"R�J���&+����<S�T$����H�-&������L��(����H�H�(&��J�-��(�>��01>�!�&� ��&��&��� H&����H@���(�&�H&+����(&H�L�&,�+&+�+�L&�?�+��������L&�+�����,���(&H�-M�(�&,�+��  ���(�?& M�L��(���L�(&���H�-&���,&,-&���J���G�-���H�� �-���(���+��&,&�J���(�&���&����(����������(�&�L�&,�+&+��+� ���(&H>�G��(����L�+���  �-&�,�H&��?�� �- &�(��&,L �M&&+���H�H�+L �M&H���� ��&���(��(�&������(������+(�(�(���>��09>�T���H&�(+��J����,&���H�H�+��H&���������������������&���(��(�&�L�&,�+&+����������+&�����&���(��$G'�����(�&��&,L �M&&+��J�(�&�?&��&���  �-&��&���H&H�������(������H��&L��(&H�(��(�&������(�����,,�((&&���� ��&���(��(�&������(������+(�(�(���>��08>�/�H�+L&�+� �L� ��M�(��-&��,L &,&�(&H�(��(�&�+�(�+J��(�����J�(�&�L� ��&� ��&�+�����JJ��&��(��(���  �+&(���(�(�&�+(&L+�(�&�?&��&���  �(�%&��(�(�&�&�H��J�(�&�(��H����+&++����(��,���,�+&�(�&�L�(&�(�� �J���H�+��H&����H�H�+(��-���&��+���+(�,&�+� &�?&�(�&�L�&,�+&+>��07>�/�� �+��&@&?����(����L� ��M�(��-&��,L &,&�(&H�(��(�&�'�(�+J��(�����J�(�&�K&���-������H�G� ��&�T�+L&�(��>���U�V�������W�����X�������������YZ���[���\Y]�]̂]�U���YU�_	��A��[�������X�
�B����̂ �̀���̂������!a�)�T�(&��� ���H�<;(&��� �'T/�'&����(M�'(�JJ�����b�(���,&,-&�+��L���H�+�LL��(�G� ��&�.���+���c&���!� &����&�$����G� ��M�20d�G��(��T$�L� ��M����U�A�Y�����X��e���!a�)�T�(&��� ���H�&;(&��� �'T/�'&����(M�'(�JJ�

Page 48

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 2



� �������������	�
������������������������������������������ �!����"�  #�$�%&�'(�&&(�������)��)*���&++���,-����������./01�2.$�!& 3�40225�67891:�*�;�40225�678100�<,�� 3���,,&���� =-�����-�>��?>�%����>-�����-�>��?>�%@ ��&�+�����.��&�+����/�(�244:�A��B������������ � A�CDEF�� �

$�(&�G���(&H3�5�I�(�-&��2407� � � G��&�04��J�04�

K��(�,����&�G� ��L�*��&�M�+%�/++&++,&�(���H�*��&�/ ��,�"&� (��N�'�J&(L���+%��++&++,&�(�'(�JJ�!����������OP�Q	��A��R�������S�A�T���U���������!K�)�V�(&��� �N�<;(&��� �<;(&��� �H���+�%&W(�+��(�)�W�&?&�(����+&�W�  �(����'V/�'&����(L�'(�JJ��<;(&��� � ���(������P�Q	��A����������S�
	�O����S��B�X��B�Y&�&�� ������� H�&��W&�,�((&H�(��+(��H��H�(��H����&?&����+�G��?�(&�J���(���+���H�J�,� L�&?&�(+���� H�&��W&�,�((&H�/ ���� �20Z�W��(��V$�W� ��L>�Y�,����,�����&+�H�+����&�(&H�H������J�,� L�&?&�(+��[UU\]�F�̂�
_Ù aQa_U��[QQ[
X\̀ �[bQ\c�[�X\[caUd��e�QX\��a
\U�aUd�[fQX_caQe��g�(��WW ���- &>��[UU\]�h�̂�A�[U��� ��G ��+�+�WW �&H�07(��*&-����L�2400�/,&�H&H�W ��+�+�WW �&H�09(��'&W(&,-&��2407��

Page 49

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 2



� �������������	�
������������������������������������������ �!����"�  #�$�%&�'(�&&(�������)��)*���&++���,-����������./01�2.$�!& 3�40225�67891:�*�;�40225�678100�<,�� 3���,,&���� =-�����-�>��?>�%����>-�����-�>��?>�%@ ��&�+�����.��&�+����/�(�244:�A��B�������������BB��C� A�DEFG�� �

$�(&�H���(&I3�5�J�(�-&��2407� � H��&�0��K�1�

H�&,�+&+�$&(�� +���AL�MN��NOOPQ���LR�APQST�Q�U�LP�TR�VLVQU�LPOVNV
Q��WPXQY�SNA�PQRQPQV
Q�LP�OQ�
PTAMTLV��S��	������� �Z[\[G�
�]��̂�	�������U�������\T�\R������U�
�B_��U��ǸZ�̀aO�M���V�����bcQPQ�McQ��T
QV
Q�T��MTSQ��TSTMQO�McQ�ONMQ���d�(��ee ���- &�����T
QV�N��Q�N
MTXTMTQ��NWMcLPT�QO��Y�McQ��T
QV
Q���A��C��R�B��T�̂�����f�������]�������g������b���������]��S����P����̂�̂�S����A��h��B�������h�O�����R����C�h���B�i���B����R�������h���̂��������ff�C��h�N���	�����McQ�MTSQ��McQ��T
QV
Q�NWMcLPT�Q��McQ�
NPPYTVj�LWM�LR��T
QV�N��Q�N
MTXTMTQ���/�(�?�(k� !�,&+��A��C��"���+)l��I�k�� 00344�(��41344�"���+)!�&+I�k�� 00344�(��41344�"���+)m&I�&+I�k�� 00344�(��41344�"���+)!���+I�k�� 00344�(��41344�"���+)*��I�k�� 00344�(��41344�"���+)'�(��I�k�� 00344�(��41344�"���+)'��I�k�� 00344�(��41344�H �k+)n�I���+�� �

Page 50

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 2



� �������������	�
������������������������������������������ �!����"�  #�$�%&�'(�&&(�������)��)*���&++���,-����������./01�2.$�!& 3�40225�67891:�*�;�40225�678100�<,�� 3���,,&���� =-�����-�>��?>�%����>-�����-�>��?>�%@ ��&�+�����.��&�+����/�(�244:�A��B�������������BB��C� A�DEFG�� �

$�(&�H���(&I3�5�J�(�-&��2407� � H��&�2��K�1�

L�B��"���+)M��I�N�� 00344�(��41344�"���+)!�&+I�N�� 00344�(��41344�"���+)O&I�&+I�N�� 00344�(��41344�"���+)!���+I�N�� 00344�(��41344�"���+)*��I�N�� 00344�(��41344�"���+)'�(��I�N�� 00344�(��41344�"���+)'��I�N�� 00344�(��41344�*� ,+)P�I���+�� ��Q�R�����S�������T�����"���+)M��I�N�� 00344�(��41344�"���+)!�&+I�N�� 00344�(��41344�"���+)O&I�&+I�N�� 00344�(��41344�"���+)!���+I�N�� 00344�(��41344�"���+)*��I�N�� 00344�(��41344�"���+)'�(��I�N�� 00344�(��41344�"���+)'��I�N�� 00344�(��41344�P�I����'U��(+)*��(�&��I&(�� +��$��(+#�+���%&����I�+�,� ���&?&�(+����V������W��������"���+)M��I�N�� 00344�(��41344�"���+)!�&+I�N�� 00344�(��41344�"���+)O&I�&+I�N�� 00344�(��41344�"���+)!���+I�N�� 00344�(��41344�"���+)*��I�N�� 00344�(��41344�"���+)'�(��I�N�� 00344�(��41344�"���+)'��I�N�� 00344�(��41344���;���@O�&+( ���)P�I���+�� ���T��X�����"���+)M��I�N�� 00344�(��41344�"���+)!�&+I�N�� 00344�(��41344�"���+)O&I�&+I�N�� 00344�(��41344�"���+)!���+I�N�� 00344�(��41344�"���+)*��I�N�� 00344�(��41344�"���+)'�(��I�N�� 00344�(��41344�"���+)'��I�N�� 00344�(��41344�.�?&�M�+��)P�I���+�� ��Y����R�R�X����"���+)M��I�N�� 00344�(��41344�"���+)!�&+I�N�� 00344�(��41344�"���+)O&I�&+I�N�� 00344�(��41344�"���+)!���+I�N�� 00344�(��41344�"���+)*��I�N�� 00344�(��41344�

Page 51

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 2



� �������������	�
������������������������������������������ �!����"�  #�$�%&�'(�&&(�������)��)*���&++���,-����������./01�2.$�!& 3�40225�67891:�*�;�40225�678100�<,�� 3���,,&���� =-�����-�>��?>�%����>-�����-�>��?>�%@ ��&�+�����.��&�+����/�(�244:�A��B�������������BB��C� A�DEFG�� �

$�(&�H���(&I3�5�J�(�-&��2407� � H��&�:��K�1�

"���+)'�(��I�L�� 00344�(��41344�"���+)'��I�L�� 00344�(��41344�M&���I&I�N�+��)O�I���+�� �"���+)'&�+��� �P����(���+�� Q&��R&��S+�<?&�21�������A��T��B�������T�U�����"���+)N��I�L�� 00344�(��41344�"���+)!�&+I�L�� 00344�(��41344�"���+)V&I�&+I�L�� 00344�(��41344�"���+)!���+I�L�� 00344�(��41344�"���+)*��I�L�� 00344�(��41344�"���+)'�(��I�L�� 00344�(��41344�"���+)'��I�L�� 00344�(��41344�$���&)O�I���+�� �"���+)'&�+��� �P����(���+�� Q&��R&��S+�<?&�21�������W����C�T���B�X���B����"���+)N��I�L�� 00344�(��41344�"���+)!�&+I�L�� 00344�(��41344�"���+)V&I�&+I�L�� 00344�(��41344�"���+)!���+I�L�� 00344�(��41344�"���+)*��I�L�� 00344�(��41344�"���+)'�(��I�L�� 00344�(��41344�"���+)'��I�L�� 00344�(��41344�*��� �(�&+)N�+��)O�I���+�� �*��� �(�&+)N�+��)*��(�&��I&(+�� $Y�,�;����&Z��[,&�(��W�������T���\������"���+)N��I�L�� 00344�(��41344�"���+)!�&+I�L�� 00344�(��41344�"���+)V&I�&+I�L�� 00344�(��41344�"���+)!���+I�L�� 00344�(��41344�"���+)*��I�L�� 00344�(��41344�"���+)'�(��I�L�� 00344�(��41344�"���+)'��I�L�� 00344�(��41344�*��� �(�&+)$���&)O�I���+�� �*��� �(�&+)$���&)*��(�&��I&(+��$���&�K �������]]�C��T�̂���	���"���+)N��I�L�� 00344�(��41344�"���+)!�&+I�L�� 00344�(��41344�"���+)V&I�&+I�L�� 00344�(��41344�"���+)!���+I�L�� 00344�(��41344�"���+)*��I�L�� 00344�(��41344�"���+)'�(��I�L�� 00344�(��41344�"���+)'��I�L�� 00344�(��41344�

Page 52

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 2



� �������������	�
������������������������������������������ �!����"�  #�$�%&�'(�&&(�������)��)*���&++���,-����������./01�2.$�!& 3�40225�67891:�*�;�40225�678100�<,�� 3���,,&���� =-�����-�>��?>�%����>-�����-�>��?>�%@ ��&�+�����.��&�+����/�(�244:�A��B�������������BB��C� A�DEFG�� �

$�(&�H���(&I3�5�J�(�-&��2407� � H��&�1��K�1�

/ ���� )J��(�&�L�&,�+&+�� �� ��MANOPOQ�RMST��MU�VRN�ATNWP�N���"���+)X��I�Y�� 00344�(��41344�"���+)!�&+I�Y�� 00344�(��41344�"���+)Z&I�&+I�Y�� 00344�(��41344�"���+)!���+I�Y�� 00344�(��41344�"���+)*��I�Y�� 00344�(��41344�"���+)'�(��I�Y�� 00344�(��41344�"���+)'��I�Y�� 00344�(��41344��[RNTN�VRN��P
NO
N�\SVRMTP�N���SAA�PN��MU�\�
MRM��[RNVRNT�VRN�N�\TN�MO�\O]̂MT�MUU��SAA�PN����/ ���� )J��(�&�L�&,�+&+���� ��O\WN_�̀TNQP�VNTN]a�\]]TN���MU�RM�]NT�MU�ATNWP�N���P
NO
N��W���b�����V����C�c�����FF�[�����	����T��d_�������eP�eU������_�
�Bf��_��\gh�GS]�� ��TNQP�VNTN]�OSW�NT�MU�RM�]NT_�UMT�Ni\WA�N�
MWA\Oj�OSW�NT_�
R\TPVj�OSW�NT�̀[RNTN�\AA�P
\��Nk��X�+�l& ����!���&Y�m��&+� n&��+(��(����o�>��� ��O\WN�MU�]N�PQO\VN]�ATNWP�N���SANTpP�MT�[RNTN�VRN�ATNWP�N���P
NO
N�\SVRMTP�N��VRN��SAA�j�MU�\�
MRM����X�+�l& ����!���&Y�m��&+� ����V\VN�[RNVRNT�\

N���VM�VRN�ATNWP�N���j�
RP�]TNO�P��TN�VTP
VN]�MT�ATMRP�PVN]���� �

Page 53

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 2



This page is intentionally left blank



�

�

�������������������	
���
����
��
���	����������
������������������������������� �!��"���#�����$#��  �%�#&�'�(����)!������(� ��*� !�+��"�  ���,�-.�/�01�2�3��%��"�4 ��� ,�5���!6����7$�����8��9"��3���� �!���::(��� �!��"���#������%��6� "���3��6� !��; ��%��*� "��(�������*�"!$�����%�! "���(������#(���� �3� ����<�!��-��� !�0��8�2$�#����2!�� �#$(��&�!#=�� �� !� "����::(��� �!��#���%�!�� "��<!((!6��*�(�������*�!#=�� �3��>�?�@ABCBDEFGD�GH�IAFJB�KDL�LFMGALBA�?�@NOPFI�MKHBEQ�7�!�� "���::(��� �!�� !�3��&���%��#&�'�(����)!���� "����R$�� ���� !�3��&� "��"!$���!����7��%�&���*" ���%�4� $�%�&���*" �<�!��-����(!���*� !�0����(!���*8��9"������($%��� "��:�!3���!��!<����!�%�%��$���,�:��<!�������!<�%�������%��(�!��$::(&�!<��(�!"!(��!3��*�!�� "������*" �� !�<����"�� �0��8��9"����(�!��!3����#!;��*���*" ���%�#��S�"!(�%�&�4$�%�&�� !��������!:���$� �(�0��8�2$�#����2!�� �#$(��&����!#=�� ��*�#���%�!�� "���!������� "� � "���6�((���$��������������������������%�%��!�%��,�$( ��� �(&��<<�� ��*� "����<� &�!<� "��:$#(��8���9!��$::!� � "���!#=�� �!��T�"�3���!((� �%�<�� ����%�<�*$����#� 6����U� �+���"�VWUX���%�U� �+���"�VWVW,� "���������!�%��� !�:�!3�%����<$((���<(�� �!��!<�������%� ��6� "!$ ����!�:!�� ��*� "��2Y�TZ�UX�(!�S%!6�8��9"��<�*$������(� �� !� �����#� 6����9"$��%�&��3����*� !�+!�%�&��!����*���%��!3���5���!6�9!6��2�� �����%��$��!$�%��*�� ��� �8��9"��<�*$������(� �� !� "��<!((!6��*� &:���!<����!�%�%�������>�?�[FGPBDIB�\KMMKNPE�BEI]̂�?�@NOPFI�_ALBA�?� ÀFJFDKP�aKJKbB��cd��
	��e��	��
��e�	���
�f����������Z$���*� "��&�����!�������*� "��WUgW1gVWUX� "����6���UhX�����������!�%�%�6� "��� "�������:�� $��%�����::��%�;��8��9"��"�*"�� �:�!:!� �!��!<��������!��$��!����6��S��%���*" � ������!�!�&�#� 6����WW>WW�/�W1>0X"���6"���+��"�  ��������$���� (&�!:��8��2!�:���%�6� "� "��� ����!����7��%�&��!����*���%�+!�%�&��!����*� "��������(�!� ���-WWi�������������������!����4� $�%�&��!����*���%�jWWi����������!����4$�%�&��!����*8��9"��#�**�� �%�<<�������#� 6���� "����%�&����� "��<�� � "� � "����*" ��($#������!:�����%��$�"�#$�����6� "��$� !����8�k!6�3���#� 6����W->WW�/�Wj>0X"���!��4� $�%�&��!����*� "��(�3�(��!<�������%�!:��*���� !�Uj�!<<���������!�%�%���%�!����4$�%�&��!����*�#� 6���� "�������"!$���UV���������������!�%�%8�������<�����������#��%��6�� "� � "���6�((�#��%$�� !� "���$���� �:���������(!���*�� �-��8��T �����! �$����(�� ��� !��;:�� ��������(� &� !�!��$��6"���:���!���(��3����(������%�:��������� ��(!���*� ����%$�� !��� !;��� �!��(��%��*�!� !�3�!(����g:$#(���!�%�����%�!<<������!<��������(�%���*�8�9"�������!���((&�����*�%�#&�!<<������:����� �� � "�� ���,�!<<���������:!�%��*� !�����%�� ����%�!<<�������!���*����!�������%�� ��!��:� �!(8�9"�����(� &���� "� ��< ������"!$��!���!� "��(!��(� &����*�����((&���: ��%�!<� "����*" � ������!�!�&���3�((���,����$( ��*��������%$� �!��!<������8��h-i�!<��((��������!��$����*�#� 6����WW>WW�/�W1>0X"���4� $�%�&��!����*������(�!"!(���(� �%�!<<�������h1i�!<��((��������!��$����*�#� 6����WW>WW�/�W1>0X"���4$�%�&��!����*������(�!"!(���(� �%�!<<�����8����

lNmBAFDEBDLBDE�nopp�lKAKq�rKIsMGD�tuvwx�lKAKqyrKIsMGDzINJOAFKymGPFIByNs�{�|}|�B~E��GmEFGD�n��B~EBDMFGD�pnopp��� ��w��������v�x���q̀FBH�̀GDMEKOPB��FIqBPPB�lsBBA��@�����\�GDM̂�@GPFIB��BKL�NKAEBAM�K̀APBEGD��KPP�@BDAFEq��̀NJOAFK��̀|}�n���� INJOAFKmGPFIB����yINJOAFKymGPFIByNs� Page 55

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 3



�

�

���������	
������������������	������	
�	
�������������	�����	��
������������	�����	�
��	��	���
����	���������
���������������������������
���������
���	�	���	
����������
������	��	��
���������������
�����
������������	
	������
�	������	������������������	��	�������������
������������������������
������������	
	�������������	����	�
���
����	�����������������������	��
����������
����������	
�����	����	
������������	������	��
��
��������������������	��
������	
���	������	���������
�����
 ��	�����	�	���������������������	
��	������
��
������	�
���
��������������������������	��������������������������� ��
������	
��	��
��
��������
��������
�����	���������������������	�������������������
�������������
�������������
�!�"!!��
��!#"�$�����%&'()*+�),,&-.&+�.)//(00&1�2���
��3����	����
������������	����	�	��������	���
����������
����������4��
�
���	�5	
����5	�
�
���
�������������67�����������������	�������	���	���
����	���
��
��	���
�����
��8����	����	����9�����	�������	
��7:�	����	�
���	���
����������������	�����	
���������	���������7;:�	����	�
���	���
�����������	��	��	
���������������������<���������	��=	����>������������
������������>�������	�
������	�
�����	��$!:�	���������
��	���
�����	���������
�����������������������	���	�������	���������������������������
������
��	����������������	��
������������
��
���	
��?��
������2���
��3�@������������������	��
������	����	
���
����
�����	���������	������
�������
������������������������������	���
	��������
�	��	����������	���������	�
��
�����������	�5�
�����
��������
�	��	��������	����	
���������������������������������������������	���	����
���
����	�
������
�����A������������	
�����	����	
�������5�
�����
�������B��������	�������������	�����	���������������	�
�����������������	��������������
�!!"!!�C�!7"�$���		���������
������	����������	�����������!�"!!�D�!#"�$���2���
��	���	������	���
�����	���������		��
�����������
���	��
�������	��5�
�����
�������
������
�������������������
����	������������������������	�
��
��5�
�����
�����������������������	���
�����	���������
�������������
�
���
�������������B�	���
����
��������������
������������������������������������	�����������	�����
������������	
	����
������������

Page 56

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 3



�

�

������������	
������	������������������������������������� ��!�"��������������� � ������������� �����#�$�$���%&���$#�'&����$��%�������()����#*�#**�����+�%�,�����������-��./0�#*���������%&������������')���%��)'$%�,��#&&#������')�����$�1�2�+'���%���#���#*�������#**������+�%�,����%�*)%��%#��#*�,�%�3#'��+#$%)4����&-��5�����%�����%�6��������%&��)�3�)���%))��%����%�������%��������%���#'����������(��&%���-��5�������%&������%��%���#�)4���)�����#�#**������#��'��%�,��%��%��#��%&&�$%���)4�#'��%$�����������������3��'�-��7�������%&������#�$�$�%������)#��)%�4��#')$��#����#��%����%��)%���+'���#')$�+���#���%+'��$��#�(���#���+�%�,���������������%&&�$%���)4�+�*#���������%&��#��'���$-��8�*������� 9���� :'&&��4�;��7�<8=���/ .>��   ?� ? �� @�6�#����'�(���������((�#����$�=A���%���%������%,����)'+-�:'�(�����������������')��$�=A�+4�('��%�,��%&��%���*#����%������+��6���'�%�,�����=A��#�*�))��#-����*)##�-�5�%�����')��$�%���#�%�B'�4���$������'�(����&�6��#**�%��'�6�#���$%����%#�-�<8=���/ �!�� �>?� ? �� :'�(���������((�#����$�����3%��%&���%)���#'��%$�����%,����)'+C���$�����('����$�3%��%&��#�����*������'�%�,���3%�%+)����$�&��6���$����#++)4��##��-�<8=���DED/D� ��?� ?�!� 1$')��&�)�C���%)���%��#F%����$�%����+'�4�('+)%��+��������((�#����$��G�4����#)$�*�&�)��3%��%&���#�����'�6�#����#��%&C�*�#&�+��%�$-��2������,��++�$������#'�$��������6���$�$��,,�$������#�����,�#'�$���'�%�,��#�%�B'�4-��2��������&#3�$�+4�$##�����**-��5�%������#��'���$�$'�%�,������#'���#*�$��6�����%����(##�)4�)%��('+)%��+�������-�<8=���D� .D� � ?��?�!� @�6�#���#**��$�������������+��,�$�3%��%&�#'��%$��#*����%,���)'+-�H%��%&��'**���$��#�%�B'�%���<8=���D� .E� � ?��?�!� I�&�$�#**��$�����#�%�������F�(�������#*�3%��%&��������#�����$�%�6�#3���3%��%&���%)������$%�,������+��-�I�&�$�#**��$��������#�(��&%��%#���#�$#���%�-�<8=���D� . � � ?��?�!� @�6�#���#**��$���%����&�&+���#*�$##�����**���#�����+�����B���%�,�3%��%&���$������%���%&��3%��%&�*�))��#�����,�#'�$C���'�%�,������#��'���%�����#����4�-�<8=���D� �.� �E?��?�!� I�&�$��'�(����%����('+)%��)#���%#������,��++�$���$�('))�$�����3%��%&����%����'�%�,������#�*�))��#�����*)##���%����#�%�B'�%���<8=���E.> >�  �?��?�!� J�%)�������%,���)'+�7**��$����������$+'���$�3%��%&�%������*������'�%�,�%�B'�4��#�������<8=���EG/G�� �E?��?�!� 7**��$��C���%)���%��#F%����$�����+����)��*'))4��B����$�*�#&�)%�����$�(��&%����+4�$##�����**K3%��%&L-�7**��$�������+%�����3%��%&��#�����������)��3%�,���$$��%�,���$�+�'%�%�,-�<8=��� >>E�� �>?�G?�!� H%��%&�����+����#'��%$�����%,����)'+���$�����+������3%�,����%,������C�3%��%&�*��)������'$�#�������%$��#*��%��*����+'��$#���M����������#**��$�����$�$�#(���#�����*)##����'�%�,��%&��#�+��6�#�6�$�$#�����$�$�N�$?'�����$4�#���%��*���-�1��#'()��#*�$�4���*��������%��%$��������3%��%&��'**�����%����%�,)%�,���$��'&+�������$����))%�,���$�3%�%�������$#��#����#���*����%&��#�����$�����$����%��F���4�$���%�����#����%������6�+#���%��+�#6���%����#�()�������$��%���4��%���#&()���)4�+)##$��#�-��<8=��� E>�D� �/?�>?�!� O�#���*�&�)���'�(��������,��++�$�3%��%&�+4�������%����$���$�$��,,�$������#�����*)##����'�%�,�������%���#�+���%((�$�#'�-�J�%)��#������*)##�������'�(��������('����$�3%��%&��#��������$��'&��#'���%&���

Page 57

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 3



�

�

������������ ��	�
	��� �������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������� ����������������������������������!��������������������������������������������������������������������"����������������������#��������������������������������"���������$%�� �%	��	��� ��&������������� ����������������������������������������� ���������������&��������������������'��������������(���������� �������������"�)�������������(���������&����������������"����������**+�� $�	�$	��� ,�����������������&��������������������������������#�������������������������������������������������������������������������������������'���"���������
%�� �%	�$	��� -�������������������������&������������������������������������������������������������������������������&���������#�����������#����������.����������������"�/���������������������������������������������������������������������&��������������'���"���������+�+� ��	�$	��� 0�����(����������������������.�������������������������������������&����������������� ������������������(1���.�������� ���������������������(��������������������������������������������(1���������

Page 58

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 3



�

�

����������	
��	��������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������� ��!���������������"����#��$���%����������#��$���%��������������������������������������������$�������%���"���������$�����#�������#%������������#�&���������������������$��������������������������#���������������$�������������� ��'���"���������������#��������������(�����������������������������%�������������"������������%��������������������������������������������$�������������������������������������������������#��������������#������������������������ ��)������������"�������������#����������&��������%������*�����#������$������������������&���������$�����������%���#����#�������$�����������������������������+�#&�������������� �����,��-��.�/�-0�1�2�!��3����%�45�����$����4545��+�+��#����������+�!��"�����#�6������������������������#�����$������7������8��������������������"��������������������� ��9���������������������������#����������������������������� ���:�;<=>?@>AB�C>DE>FF>DG�H�I=JJA@==?�>JJ�E>KL�M<LNOGLG�K><O>FO=DGP��QELO<�=RSLTFOKL�OG�F=�E>KL�=DL�MJ>TL�@EL<L�FEL�TUGF=NL<G�T>D�VLF�LKL<AFEODV�@OFE=UF�FEL�DLL?�F=�JL>KLB�W=<�LX>NMJL�FELA�E>KL�FEL�R><GB�DOVEFTJURG�>D?�><L�>JG=�ODT=<M=<>FODV�>�YOFTELD�OD�I=JJA@==?�F=�>JJ=@�W=<�FEL�G>JL�=W�J>FL�DOVEF�<LW<LGENLDFGP��QEOG�>JG=�E>G�>D�OD?==<�GL>FODV�><L>P���:�Z==<�GF>WW�=D�>WFL<�TJ=GODV�FONLG�OG�>�T=DGO?L<>FO=D��:�[�F<O>J�ML<O=?�@=UJ?�RL�>�T=DGO?L<>FO=D�W=<�FELN�=D�LXFLDGO=D�=W�E=U<GB�E=@LKL<�FEOG�@OJJ�=DJA�RL�>V<LL?�GE=UJ?�FEL�=RSLTFO=D�RL�<LSLTFL?�RA�FEL�R=><?P�:�QELA�UD?L<GF>D?�FEL�M=JOTL�T=DTL<DG�FE>F�FEL�LXFLDGO=D�@OJJ�NL>D�ML=MJL�GF>A�OD�FEL�TJUR�J>FL<�>D?�UJFON>FLJA�@=D\F�JL>KL�FEL�F=@D�TLDF<L�UDFOJ�FEL�KL<A�L><JA�E=U<G�=W�FEL�N=<DODV���3���%����������������������������� ��]��������������]�����8��������+�#&����+��������%�����������������������

Page 59

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 3



�

�

�����������������	�
�������
���������������������������������������������
������
������������������������������������������������������
�

Page 60

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 3



�

�

���������	�
���������������
������������������

���

Page 61

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 3



�

�

���������������������������	�
��������������������������������������

����������������� ������������������ �!�"�

Page 62

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 3



Simon Crompton 
Director at The Lounge Group 

5-15 Dalkeith Street 
Barrow in Furness 

 

28th August 2020 

 

Planning / Licencing Dept 
Barrow Borough Council 
Town Hall, Duke St 
Barrow in Furness 
 

To whom it may concern,  

My name is Simon Crompton, Director at The Lounge Group, and I am writing to log my 
objections / concerns to the application made by Broadway, Hollywood, Broadway and 
Manhattans, licence premises located in Cavendish Street, Barrow in Furness. 

As the owner of a licence premises in Barrow in Furness for the last 3 years I have already 
expressed in different occasions my concerns about the current closing times of different licence 
premises in Cavendish Street.  

My personal experience is most of the violent incidents and/or alcohol intoxications that 
require ambulance and/or police intervention, are taking place after 01:30 am.  

I have expressed in numerous occasions, during Bar Watch meetings, that the closing 
times should be reviewed and brought back to 2 am. This would be, in my opinion, help with the 
prevention of crime and disorder and with the prevention of public nuisance, two of the 
licencing objectives. My personal commitment with this idea is applied to my business by 
choosing, although we hold a licence to open until 4 am and a 24 hrs licence in special 
circumstances, to close at 2 am  as we feel this is the right thing to do to protect our staff, 
customer and business. As a direct result of this policy we have a history of ZERO police incidents 
within our premises or related with our premises. 

To finish, I have had different conversations with nigh time economy business 
owners/operators that have the same concerns I do and feel that this will have a significant 
negative impact in sector. With the current alcohol related problems in the area and incidents 
and disorder with the Barrow town centre area, we feel this extension of opening hours would 
not support the licencing objectives. I am happy to discuss this in person with yourself or the 
planning/licencing committee as I feel very strongly about this matter.  

 

 

Sincerely,  

Simon Crompton 

 

Page 63

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 4



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 65

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 5



Page 66

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 5



Page 67

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 5



Page 68

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 5



�

�������	�
��	�	���� ������������������� �	�� !!
"�#������
!$!$
%!&!'(� )��*��+��
,��-�� ./0�1�� 2�&
3+4*�����-
�##�+���+��
5��
�6���7�7
�#��+�4
*���-�89
:;<=>?9@>A
BC??D
EC?
<=>
F>G;D
9@
?>HGD9@IJ

KD
LCMM>@<N
;?>
;9M>F
;<
K;@=;<<;@ON
P9I=<LGQR
S=9L=
T
=;U>
?>;F
9N

;HHGD9@I
<C
>V<>@F
9<N
CH>@9@I
=CQ?N
Q@<9G
W;M
C@
;
S>>X>@FJ

YN
;
<;V9
F?9U>?
S=C
@C?M;GGD
SC?XN
S>>X>@F
@9I=<N
T
L>?<;9@GD
SCQGF
@C<

R>
H?>H;?>F
<C
SC?X
<=;<
G;<>
;@F
;GMCN<
;GG
C<=>?
F?9U>?N
T
=;U>
NHCX>@

<C
=;U>
N;9F
<=>
N;M>J

Z=9N
LCQGF
?>NQG<
9@
;
NQRN<;@<9;G
@QMR>?
CE
DCQ@I
H>?NC@N
R>9@I
G>E<
9@

<=>
<CS@
L>@<?>
S9<=
G9<<G>
9@E?;N<?QL<Q?>
9@
HG;L>
<C
I><
<=>M
=CM>J
Z=9N
>VL>NN
CE
H>CHG>
LCQGF
G>;F
<C
F9N?QH<9C@
<C
<=>
GCL;G>
S=9L=
SCQGF

;FF
H?>NNQ?>
C@
<=>
[CG9L>
;@F
LCQGF
G>;F
<C
;@
9@L?>;N>
9@
L?9M>
;@F

@Q9N;@L>

T
SCQGF
R>
=;HHD
<C
\C9@
;
]CCM
M>><9@I
<C
?>H?>N>@<
<=9N

̂>I;?FN
K;?<D@
_>GGJ






̀@
ababcbdcbe
fWghiA
:;<=>?9@>
_>@NC@
S?C<>g
j
89
K;?<D@A
j

j
Z=;@X
DCQ
EC?
DCQ?
?>H?>N>@<;<9C@
9@
?>G;<9C@
<C
<=>
U;?9;<9C@
j
;HHG9L;<9C@N
EC?
NCM>
@9I=<LGQRN
9@
_;??CSJ
j

j
k;@
DCQ
HG>;N>
LG;?9ED
S=9L=
H?>M9N>N
DCQ
;?>
M;X9@I
;
?>H?>N>@<;<9C@
j
;RCQ<J
j

j
lCQ?
?>H?>N>@<;<9C@
@>>FN
<C
R>
LG>;?
S=;<
<=>
G9X>GD
>EE>L<
CE
<=>
j
I?;@<
CE
<=>
;HHG9L;<9C@
<C
U;?D
<=>
G9L>@L>
SCQGF
R>
;I;9@N<
>;L=
CE
j
<=>
G9L>@N9@I
CR\>L<9U>Ng
j

j
c













[?>U>@<9C@
CE
L?9M>
;@F
F9NC?F>?
j

j
c













[QRG9L
N;E><D
j

j
c













[?>U>@<9C@
CE
HQRG9L
@Q9N;@L>
j

j
c













[?C<>L<9C@
CE
L=9GF?>@
E?CM
=;?MJ
j



Page 69

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 6



�

��������	
��������	�����������	
�	�����������������������������������������������	�����������������������������������������������		��������������	����������������������������������������������������������������������� !�����������
����������!�����		�����		����
����
����������������	�������"�����������
������������������������		������#����
��$�������������		������	
����	���������		������%����������!��	
������	����������������������	����������
�������$���
����	������������������		����������������
������������	���������
��������		������������������������������������������
����������������
��������������&��
������
������&���������������'()������&���������*�����+�����������������������,������-��	���-�����������������������*����������*����� �� .�������$����/�		0�*����� �� .����0�!��������1(2�3�4��������5���	6�������7����������������8��$�	6�+9(33:,�;<=>2?������.���6�@������*�		�'���	��6������7����		������)�������6�9<�����������3939�(362?���$�6�!��������	������������������6�A�����	������	�������������B���
�
��������������������/�0��������	
�	��������B�������������������������	��������������B����
�����0����������	����	������
��������
�����������
��������������������������������������������������������
������
��C����������������������	���0�������������
�����	������������	�������������B��
��������������		�������������������		����	���	��������������������	������������������	�������������������������0��������	
����	�������	��������������	�����������������
���������������������������
�
�������������$��������������	
��������������������������	����������-	���������������������	�������������������D����
���@������*�		���/������������������������@������*�		���  �     � ��� ���������                         ������$�������	��������������
���������E�����������������	���������

Page 70

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 6



�

�������	�
��	�	���� ����������
����������	�� ��
 !"!�#
�$�$
%$&%%'� (�#)���*�
+�*��*�,-.�/�� 01&
2���*��*"
�3#�*���*456
7
6899
9:;<
:=
=>
=?@
A@B>AC


D:;C
E@FGACH

IG;CAG
JKL@:99
MI@;:>A
NCO:;:H=AG=>A
P
IQH=@OH
R
STH:;@HHU

VTW9:B
VA>=@B=:>;
I@AX:B@H

S>A>TF?
>Y
SGAA>Z7:;74TA;@HH
[>Z;
\G99]
SGAA>Z7:;74TA;@HH]
̂TOWA:G
_Ǹa
b_cd
eOG:9f
HQ>;@:99gWGAA>ZWBdF>XdT<
h

[@9f
MìbbjU
klmnao


77777JA:F:;G9
p@HHGF@77777
4A>Of
q>;G=?G;
\GAA:H>;
rOG:9=>fs>;;Q?̀gO@dB>Ot

I@;=f
bl
NTFTH=
bibi
̀ifii
[>f
̂>OO@AB:G9
I@AX:B@H
ITWs@B=f
_:B@;H:;F
@u=@;H:>;

c@GA
H:A
>A
OGCGO]

6
GO
ZA:=:;F
=>
@uvA@HH
B>;B@A;H
Z:=?
=?@
vA>v>H@C
@u=@;C@C
>v@;:;F
?>TAH
>Y
OG;?G==G;Hd

NH
G
O@OW@A
>Y
=?@
H=A@@=
G;F@9H
FA>Tv
Z?>
X>9T;=@@A
G;C
?@9v
=?>H@
=?G=
;@@C
Y:AH=
G:C
>A
sTH=
G
B?G=
>;
G
;:F?=
>T=
:;
SGAA>Z]
6
H=ATFF9@
=>
H@@
Z?G=
Z:99
W@
FG:;@C
>=?@A
=?G;
O>A@
C:YY:BT9=:@H
v>9:B:;F
=?@
H:=TG=:>;H
=?G=
>BBTA
>;
ĜX@;C:H?
H=A@@=d
NH
H>O@>;@
Z?>
G9H>
Z>A<H
Z:=?
v@>v9@
H=ATFF9:;F
Z:=?
GCC:B=:>;
G;C
?@9vH
v@>v9@
=>
F@=
WGB<
:;=>
Z>A<
G;C
?>TH:;F]
\@HH@
G;=:
H>B:G9
?>TAH
G9H>
GCC
=>
=?@
C:YY:BT9=:@H
YGB@C
WQ
v@>v9@
Z?>
;@@C
O>A@
H=ATB=TA@
=>
=?@:A
CGQH]
GH
=?@
<;>B<
>;
@YY@B=H
>Y
H=GQ:;F
>T=
H>
9G=@
:H
>Y=@;
Y@9=
Y>A
H@X@AG9
CGQH
GY=@AZGACH
G;C
H>
OG<@H
:=
?GAC@A
=>
W@
A@9:GW9@
Z>A<@AHd
5>TAH
H:;B@A@9Q
q>;G=?G;
\GAA:H>;


777777777777777777777777777777777777
[?:H
@OG:9
?GH
W@@;
HBG;;@C
Y>A
HvGO
R
X:ATH@Hd
6Y
Q>T
W@9:@X@
=?:H
@OG:9
H?>T9C
?GX@
W@@;
H=>vv@C
WQ
>TA
Y:9=@AH]
B9:B<
=?@
Y>99>Z:;F
9:;<
=>
A@v>A=
:=
M?==vHfwwv>A=G9dOG:9G;Q>;@d;@=w:;C@ud?=O9xw>T=@AwA@v>A=HvGOy=><@;zC{L9Bs̀sWb̀=|{qsG}4H~�q?B;qXCbqs_OCXC:ǹG�=iB�iuL[<aL[eaJc6ZJo�̀G}~jL�5iL�BbpspuJe�ZJ[9̂pi�SLcpZLeeups<ZEs�̂~�6lC�jA|}ajLc~Q|cL<J[L?5sp p̀[5i5}�?L�5op[ei|}|?|��o|cCs5}~uLb~uLsH�ocUd




Page 71

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 7



This page is intentionally left blank



�

�������	�
��	�	���� ����
���������	�� ��
����� !�"
����
##$%&'� ()���"*��
+��,���-./�0�� 12$
34�� )�*5
"���6$
34�� )�*5
"���6$
�*�7��
��*��
��
5���)5�89::;
<=>?9@AB9C

D:9=E9
E99
F9:;GC
H;
I;J
B99H
=BI>?ABK
9:E9L

M?=BNE

O;?B

PPPPPQ@AKAB=:
R9EE=K9PPPPP
S@;TU
VVWX
VVWX
YT=A:>;UFFZ;BZ9@B9H@[KT=A:\Z;T]

9̂B>U
_̀
̂9a>9TF9@
̀_̀_
bbUc_
M;U
O;?B
D9Bd;:H
ĴFe9Z>U
X9U
fJ>;T=>AZ
@9a:IU
fJ>;T=>AZ
@9a:IU
̂ABK:9
a;AB>
;d
Z;B>=Z>

g;
b

g;
BAK?>Z:JFE
=@9
ZJ@@9B>:I
gQM
=::;G9H
>;
;a9B
=BH
=E
T=B?=>>=BE
=@9
NB;GB
=E
=
BAK?>Z:JF
G9
d99:
>?AE
G;J:H
E9BH
>?9
G@;BK
T9EE=K9
;J>
HJ@ABK
>?AE
K:;F=:
a=BH9TAZ\


>?AE
A
=ZZ9a>

AE
Z;hAH
@9:=>9H

g;
̀

D;:AZABK
>?AE
h9BJ9
E?;J:H
A>
F9

=::;G9H
GA::
aJ>
=
E>@=AB
;B
=
E9@hAZ9
ZJ@@9B>:I


JBH9@
a@9EEJ@9
=E
>?9
a;:AZ9
?=h9
Z;BdA@T9H
>?9I
=@9
ZJ@@9B>:I
JBH9@E>=dd9H
JBH9@dJBH
i:;Z=:E
=BH
B=>A;B=::Ij
=BH
G9
d99:
=BI>?ABK
:AN9
>?AE

E?;J:H
F9
@9dJE9H

HJ9
>;
>?AE

g;
c
DJF:AZ
E=d9>I
=E
=::
;>?9@
h9BJ9E
=@9
Z:;E9H
FI
b
=T
A>
G;J:H
9BZ;J@=K9
:=>9PBAK?>
H@ABNABK
=BH
H@JBN9B
F9?=hA;J@
AB
>?9
>;GB
G?AZ?
G;J:H
?=h9
=
H9>@AT9B>=:
9dd9Z>
;B
>?9
EJ@@;JBHABK
=@9=
=E
G9::
=E
>?9
K9B9@=:
aJF:AZ\
>?9@9

?=E
F99B
=


:=@K9
BJTF9@
;d
=EE=J:>E
H@JBN9BB9EE

@9:=>ABK
>;
>?9
h9BJ9



=BH
d99:
>?AE
G;J:H
;B:I
K9>
G;@E9
E?;J:H
=

k
=T
:AZ9BZ9
F9

AEEJ9H
=E
>?AE
GA::
F9
>?9
;B:I
h9BJ9
AB
>;GB
a9B
>?AE
=>9
E;
G;J:H
=>>@=Z>
H@JBNE
G=:NABK
G;JBH9H
9Z>

G?AZ?
G;J:H

@9EJ:>
AB
=
dJ@>?9@
HAE>J@F=BZ9
AB
>?9
=@9=

g;
l


>?9
h9BJ9
ZJ@@9B>:I
?=E
=
:AZ9BZ9
AB
a:=Z9
G?AZ?


AE
=H9mJ=>9
d;@


A>E
aJ@a;E9E
=BH

E?;J:H
B;>
F9
=:>9@9H
>;
=::;G
:=>9
BAK?>
H@ABNABK
=E
:=AH
;J>
AB
WQnop

@9KJ:=>A;BE

@9
=:>9@=>A;B
;d
:AZ9BZ9E
=BH
AEEJABK
;d
B9G
:AZ9BZ9E
i
B;
:AZ9BZ9
>;
F9
=:>9@9H
=BH
B;
B9G
:AZ9BZ9E
>;
F9
AEEJ9H
HJ@ABK

=
K:;F=:
a=BH9TAZj
>?9@9
AE
ZJ@@9B>:I
B;
B99H
d;@

=BI
h9BJ9
AB
>?9
>;GB
>;
?=h9
=
k
=T
:AZ9BZ9

=E
G9
=@9=
>;GB
B;>
=
ZA>I
=BH
>;


AEEJ9
EJZ?
=
:AZ9BZ9
G;J:H
E9BH
>?9
G@;BK
T9EE=K9
;J>
=F;J>
>?9
>;GB
G?AZ?
ZJ@@9B>:I
?=E

=
E9@A;JE
=:Z;?;:
a@;F:9T
=BH

G;J:H

>?9B
KAh9
a9;a:9
GA>?
=
a@;F:9T
E;T9G?9@9
>;
K;
AB
>?9
9=@:I
?;J@E
il
;BG=@HEj
a:JE
>?AE
G;J:H
:9=H
>;

dJ@>?9@
aJF:AZ
;@H9@
AEEJ9

B;>
>;
T9B>A;B

>?9
a;:AZABK
;d
E=AH
HAE>J@F=BZ9E

=BH
dAB=::IC
Ad
I;J
G9@9
>;
AEEJ9
>?9
E=AH
:AZ9BZ9

?;G


Page 73

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 8



�

�������	
�������
�������������������	������
�����������������
�������	��
���������	�������
�����
���	�������	
�	�	���������
���������
���
������������������������������
������������	������	���	�����������
��
�������
��	����	
���������
��������
�
���������������������������
�������
�������������	
���������	������
���
�����	��������	
����������
����
�������������
����	�������������������	��������
������������������	���������������������
�	���������	�����	
������
�
���������
�
������������������
���������������������
������	���
������������������	
������
���
�������������������������������������������
����
�������
�������	����������
����������������������������
��������������	������������	�������������������
�������
�������������������	����	���
���
������������
��������
��������� !��"��#	���$����%���&�&����'(&&�)*��� !��� !�+����������,���
�-���.�����(�.�.�/���*��)������.�.��0������
�
���������������
���������	��� !��������
�������
�����.���1��
�����������	���������������
���������
�	����������������.��������
������������	���	�������������
����������
���
���	���.�����������������������������	�������2"3345""/����������
���'����.��
���������6���������������������1��
�����������	
�������	�.�������
���������.�7��8��7���
�	�������������������7"#����������������������.����	����������������������
�	������������	
�������������	�������.��������������
����	
��������������
�-�.�7�����)��
�
����	
�������	�����
�������������
�������������
�������.����
�������������������������.�7��9�)���
�����������������	�������������������8����
��������.������������:�
�	����
��
���������������	��
����
���	�������	
�	�.�������	��������
���������������	���������
������������������	�.�����������
�-�.�7��;����	��������������	������
����
��������	
�	���
����6����.�������
�����������������	�������������������������������
�	��.���
��
��������
������
�� "<0/��������
�������������
�������
�����.�����
���
����������
�����������
�������������������������.��
����������
��������
������������������
���.�.�5�������������
�������
����������������
���
����������
����������.�����	�����������	��� !�����	��	���������������	
�	�������.�����
���������������������������������������������
�������	�.���
�����$��=4�!"$/��	
�	�	�������
��������
�	� "<0/-�#	�����	���.�����
���������������������������	���������������	
������	�.������
���	
�������
����������������
������	��������
�������.��������	���������������
���	�����
����
������
����
�����
���.�����	
�������
���	�����
�������
�����������������������
�����	
��.�����)���
��������-�.�#	
����
��	��������6������������	��������	�����������	��� !�.�������
�����������������
���������������
������	���
���������	�.��������.�

Page 74

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 8



�

����������		
���������������������������������������		
��		
����������� �!�"�#$%��"��&��������������'#�$$(�&)������#��#����#����*���#'��(�����#��#����#�����*���������#��#����������'�����$��#���)�� �����'�����)��)�����)�����$�� �������������$���������)����#�������+�����������#�$� #����#������������������������������������,����		
��		
����������� �!�"�#$%��"��&�������������������)�*(���'����)�����+�������&���$����$��#'(��)��� ���#$������)��� #�� �(��������)�*(��������������������������������������-��.����/�)���'�$ ��0+�'�$ !�����&��%��1%�*��&����������������������2����3#��������������������$�����������$�&��)��
���#$4�����+��������)���������(�����#�� ���$��#��������1�����������&���# �������� ���-��)�������%������������������''#�����'��"��)�����$#���������#�� �+���"���1#�#�� �	����&�����(�(����� �(�'�$$�&#���)�#���1���&)#�)�&���)�$ ���3���� �(�-��������%��''#�����"���&#�)��)��2��#���� ����"#����3�+��1#�����'��)��+��"#����&)��&���� 1#�� ��������)��1# ����'�+��+$�� ��#��� ��)�&�����+(��'�#�%��)���1�������#�����+��1# � �	����&�	
�&#�)����1���+$��+�#�������)���1����&)#�)��+��#'#��$$(������ ��#���$��#����� ��#�������������������43)��$ �+��+$����������� �����)����&#$$����������� ����+���%��)�(�&#$$����+�$#��$(���*� ��������(��)�����&�� �%��)����&#$$��������������"��%��)����&#$$������&��#��'��"��)���� ���)����)�(�&#$$�������#���� �'#�$$(��)�(�&#$$����+�+$�(#�%4������������������)��2�3�� 1#�� ��)���+��+$��&���� ��#��� ��)������� ��++����)�&���#"+$�"��� ��&#�)��)��"��#����#�����++� �����1���$������#���� �+��+$���0���� %������������������)���#���#�����#��������$(���#�� ��$��&#�)��(�����51#��"���$��������#�����"%������������������)����# ��������� ����+��'��"�����#�����)����1%�*�&���#���)�����)��+��66&&&%��1%�*6��# ���6&��*#�7��'�$(7 ��#�7�����1#���7��1# 7-�6+��'��"#�7������ ���"���  #�#��$���# ����)�����)��+��66&&&%�1��# ����(�&�%��"6&+7�����6�+$�� �6����6�8659'2
�37
�:927-�7;��*#�73�'�$(7�7/�$(7����%+ '�����������������;������#�����$����������&#�)��)��+��"#��������������)�(���"+$(�&#�)���# ����$�# ������(��)��<�1��� ������"���#�����#�%���������������������� ������������������/�)�����������������77777��#�#�$��������77777���������=��"��		
��		
��>"�#$����������� �!�"�#$%��"?���������3����-,�������������--�-��������������/�)���'�$ ���������3��0�������������"��#����+$(������"��#����+$(��3#�$��+�#���'������������������������"��#������'�$ �)�+��(���)� ���� �&��*� �+$����'# ������)� �����������1# �������"�"���������#1� �&)#�)����*�+$�����1����)��&��*� �����)��

Page 75

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 8



This page is intentionally left blank



6 | Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 

2. The licensing objectives 

Crime and disorder 

2.1 Licensing authorities should look to the police as the main source of advice on crime 

and disorder. They should also seek to involve the local Community Safety Partnership 

(CSP). 

2.2 In the exercise of their functions, licensing authorities should seek to co-operate with the 

Security Industry Authority (“SIA”) as far as possible and consider adding relevant 

conditions to licences where appropriate. The SIA also plays an important role in 

preventing crime and disorder by ensuring that door supervisors are properly licensed 

and, in partnership with police and other agencies, that security companies are not 

being used as fronts for serious and organised criminal activity. This may include 

making specific enquiries or visiting premises through intelligence led operations in 

conjunction with the police, local authorities and other partner agencies. Similarly, the 

provision of requirements for door supervision may be appropriate to ensure that people 

who are drunk, drug dealers or people carrying firearms do not enter the premises and 

ensuring that the police are kept informed. 

2.3 Conditions should be targeted on deterrence and preventing crime and disorder 

including the prevention of illegal working in licensed premises (see paragraph 10.10). 

For example, where there is good reason to suppose that disorder may take place, the 

presence of closed-circuit television (CCTV) cameras both inside and immediately 

outside the premises can actively deter disorder, nuisance, anti-social behaviour and 

crime generally. Some licence holders may wish to have cameras on their premises for 

the prevention of crime directed against the business itself, its staff, or its customers. 

But any condition may require a broader approach, and it may be appropriate to ensure 

that the precise location of cameras is set out on plans to ensure that certain areas are 

properly covered and there is no subsequent dispute over the terms of the condition. 

2.4 The inclusion of radio links and ring-round phone systems should be considered an 

appropriate condition for public houses, bars and nightclubs operating in city and town 

centre leisure areas with a high density of licensed premises. These systems allow 

managers of licensed premises to communicate instantly with the police and facilitate a 

rapid response to any disorder which may be endangering the customers and staff on 

the premises. 

2.5 Conditions relating to the management competency of designated premises supervisors 

should not normally be attached to premises licences. It will normally be the 

responsibility of the premises licence holder as an employer, and not the licensing 

authority, to ensure that the managers appointed at the premises are competent and 

appropriately trained. The designated premises supervisor is the key person who will 

usually be responsible for the day to day management of the premises by the premises 

licence holder, including the prevention of disorder. A condition of this kind may only be 

justified as appropriate in rare circumstances where it can be demonstrated that, in the 

circumstances associated with particular premises, poor management competency 

could give rise to issues of crime and disorder and public safety. 

  

Page 77

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 9



Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 I 7 

2.6 The prevention of crime includes the prevention of immigration crime including the 

prevention of illegal working in licensed premises. Licensing authorities should work with 

Home Office Immigration Enforcement, as well as the police, in respect of these 

matters. Licence conditions that are considered appropriate for the prevention of illegal 

working in licensed premises might include requiring a premises licence holder to 

undertake right to work checks on all staff employed at the licensed premises or 

requiring that a copy of any document checked as part of a right to work check are 

retained at the licensed premises.  

Public safety 

2.7 Licence holders have a responsibility to ensure the safety of those using their premises, 

as a part of their duties under the 2003 Act. This concerns the safety of people using the 

relevant premises rather than public health which is addressed in other legislation. 

Physical safety includes the prevention of accidents and injuries and other immediate 

harms that can result from alcohol consumption such as unconsciousness or alcohol 

poisoning. Conditions relating to public safety may also promote the crime and disorder 

objective as noted above. There will of course be occasions when a public safety 

condition could incidentally benefit a person’s health more generally, but it should not be 

the purpose of the condition as this would be outside the licensing authority’s powers 

(be ultra vires) under the 2003 Act. Conditions should not be imposed on a premises 

licence or club premises certificate which relate to cleanliness or hygiene. 

2.8 A number of matters should be considered in relation to public safety. These may 

include: 

•  Fire safety; 

•  Ensuring appropriate access for emergency services such as ambulances; 

•  Good communication with local authorities and emergency services, for example 

communications networks with the police and signing up for local incident alerts (see 

paragraph 2.4 above); 

•  Ensuring the presence of trained first aiders on the premises and appropriate first aid 

kits; 

•  Ensuring the safety of people when leaving the premises (for example, through the 

provision of information on late-night transportation); 

•  Ensuring appropriate and frequent waste disposal, particularly of glass bottles; 

•  Ensuring appropriate limits on the maximum capacity of the premises (see 

paragraphs 2.12-2.13, and Chapter 10; and 

•  Considering the use of CCTV in and around the premises (as noted in paragraph 2.3 

above, this may also assist with promoting the crime and disorder objective). 

2.9 The measures that are appropriate to promote public safety will vary between premises 

and the matters listed above may not apply in all cases. As set out in Chapter 8 (8.38-

8.46), applicants should consider when making their application which steps it is 

appropriate to take to promote the public safety objective and demonstrate how they 

achieve that. 

  

Page 78

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 9



8 | Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 

Ensuring safe departure of those using the premises 

2.10 Licence holders should make provision to ensure that premises users safely leave their 

premises. Measures that may assist include: 

•  Providing information on the premises of local taxi companies who can provide safe 

transportation home; and 

•  Ensuring adequate lighting outside the premises, particularly on paths leading to and 

from the premises and in car parks. 

Maintenance and repair 

2.11 Where there is a requirement in other legislation for premises open to the public or for 

employers to possess certificates attesting to the safety or satisfactory nature of certain 

equipment or fixtures on the premises, it would be inappropriate for a licensing condition 

to require possession of such a certificate. However, it would be permissible to require 

as a condition of a licence or certificate, if appropriate, checks on this equipment to be 

conducted at specified intervals and for evidence of these checks to be retained by the 

premises licence holder or club provided this does not duplicate or gold-plate a 

requirement in other legislation. Similarly, it would be permissible for licensing 

authorities, if they receive relevant representations from responsible authorities or any 

other persons, to attach conditions which require equipment of particular standards to 

be maintained on the premises. Responsible authorities – such as health and safety 

authorities – should therefore make their expectations clear in this respect to enable 

prospective licence holders or clubs to prepare effective operating schedules and club 

operating schedules. 

Safe capacities 

2.12 “Safe capacities” should only be imposed where appropriate for the promotion of public 

safety or the prevention of disorder on the relevant premises. For example, if a capacity 

has been imposed through other legislation, it would be inappropriate to reproduce it in 

a premises licence. Indeed, it would also be wrong to lay down conditions which conflict 

with other legal requirements. However, if no safe capacity has been imposed through 

other legislation, a responsible authority may consider it appropriate for a new capacity 

to be attached to the premises which would apply at any material time when the 

licensable activities are taking place and make representations to that effect. For 

example, in certain circumstances, capacity limits may be appropriate in preventing 

disorder, as overcrowded venues can increase the risks of crowds becoming frustrated 

and hostile. 

2.13 The permitted capacity is a limit on the number of persons who may be on the premises 

at any time, following a recommendation by the relevant fire and rescue authority under 

the Regulatory Reform (Fire Safety) Order 2005. For any application for a premises 

licence or club premises certificate for premises without an existing permitted capacity 

where the applicant wishes to take advantage of the special provisions set out in section 

177 of the 2003 Act1, the applicant should conduct their own risk assessment as to the 

appropriate capacity of the premises. They should send their recommendation to the fire 

and rescue authority which will consider it and decide what the “permitted capacity” of 

                                                
1
 S 177 of the 2003 Act now only applies to performances of dance. 

Page 79

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 9



Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 I 9 

those premises should be. 

2.14 Public safety may include the safety of performers appearing at any premises, but does 

not extend to the prevention of injury from participation in a boxing or wrestling 

entertainment. 

Public nuisance 

2.15 The 2003 Act enables licensing authorities and responsible authorities, through 

representations, to consider what constitutes public nuisance and what is appropriate to 

prevent it in terms of conditions attached to specific premises licences and club 

premises certificates. It is therefore important that in considering the promotion of this 

licensing objective, licensing authorities and responsible authorities focus on the effect 

of the licensable activities at the specific premises on persons living and working 

(including those carrying on business) in the area around the premises which may be 

disproportionate and unreasonable. The issues will mainly concern noise nuisance, light 

pollution, noxious smells and litter. 

2.16 Public nuisance is given a statutory meaning in many pieces of legislation. It is however 

not narrowly defined in the 2003 Act and retains its broad common law meaning. It may 

include in appropriate circumstances the reduction of the living and working amenity and 

environment of other persons living and working in the area of the licensed premises. 

Public nuisance may also arise as a result of the adverse effects of artificial light, dust, 

odour and insects or where its effect is prejudicial to health. 

2.17 Conditions relating to noise nuisance will usually concern steps appropriate to control 

the levels of noise emanating from premises. This might be achieved by a simple 

measure such as ensuring that doors and windows are kept closed after a particular 

time, or persons are not permitted in garden areas of the premises after a certain time. 

More sophisticated measures like the installation of acoustic curtains or rubber speaker 

mounts to mitigate sound escape from the premises may be appropriate. However, 

conditions in relation to live or recorded music may not be enforceable in circumstances 

where the entertainment activity itself is not licensable (see chapter 16). Any conditions 

appropriate to promote the prevention of public nuisance should be tailored to the type, 

nature and characteristics of the specific premises and its licensable activities. Licensing 

authorities should avoid inappropriate or disproportionate measures that could deter 

events that are valuable to the community, such as live music. Noise limiters, for 

example, are expensive to purchase and install and are likely to be a considerable 

burden for smaller venues. 

2.18 As with all conditions, those relating to noise nuisance may not be appropriate in certain 

circumstances where provisions in other legislation adequately protect those living in the 

area of the premises. But as stated earlier in this Guidance, the approach of licensing 

authorities and responsible authorities should be one of prevention and when their 

powers are engaged, licensing authorities should be aware of the fact that other 

legislation may not adequately cover concerns raised in relevant representations and 

additional conditions may be appropriate. 

2.19 Where applications have given rise to representations, any appropriate conditions 

should normally focus on the most sensitive periods. For example, the most sensitive 

period for people being disturbed by unreasonably loud music is at night and into the 

Page 80

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 9



10 | Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 

early morning when residents in adjacent properties may be attempting to go to sleep or 

are sleeping. This is why there is still a need for a licence for performances of live music 

between 11 pm and 8 am. In certain circumstances, conditions relating to noise 

emanating from the premises may also be appropriate to address any disturbance 

anticipated as customers enter and leave. 

2.20 Measures to control light pollution will also require careful thought. Bright lighting 

outside premises which is considered appropriate to prevent crime and disorder may 

itself give rise to light pollution for some neighbours. Applicants, licensing authorities 

and responsible authorities will need to balance these issues. 

2.21 Beyond the immediate area surrounding the premises, these are matters for the 

personal responsibility of individuals under the law. An individual who engages in anti-

social behaviour is accountable in their own right. However, it would be perfectly 

reasonable for a licensing authority to impose a condition, following relevant 

representations, that requires the licence holder or club to place signs at the exits from 

the building encouraging patrons to be quiet until they leave the area, or that, if they 

wish to smoke, to do so at designated places on the premises instead of outside, and to 

respect the rights of people living nearby to a peaceful night. 

Protection of children from harm 

2.22 The protection of children from harm includes the protection of children from moral, 

psychological and physical harm. This includes not only protecting children from the 

harms associated directly with alcohol consumption but also wider harms such as 

exposure to strong language and sexual expletives (for example, in the context of 

exposure to certain films or adult entertainment). Licensing authorities must also 

consider the need to protect children from sexual exploitation when undertaking 

licensing functions. 

2.23 The Government believes that it is completely unacceptable to sell alcohol to children. 

Conditions relating to the access of children where alcohol is sold and which are 

appropriate to protect them from harm should be carefully considered. Moreover, 

conditions restricting the access of children to premises should be strongly considered 

in circumstances where: 

•  adult entertainment is provided; 

•  a member or members of the current management have been convicted for serving 

alcohol to minors or with a reputation for allowing underage drinking (other than in the 

context of the exemption in the 2003 Act relating to 16 and 17 year olds consuming 

beer, wine and cider when accompanied by an adult during a table meal); 

•  it is known that unaccompanied children have been allowed access; 

•  there is a known association with drug taking or dealing; or 

•  in some cases, the premises are used exclusively or primarily for the sale of alcohol 

for consumption on the premises. 

2.24 It is also possible that activities, such as adult entertainment, may take place at certain 

times on premises but not at other times. For example, premises may operate as a café 

bar during the day providing meals for families but also provide entertainment with a 

sexual content after 8.00pm. It is not possible to give an exhaustive list of what amounts 

to entertainment or services of an adult or sexual nature. Applicants, responsible 

Page 81

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 9



Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 I 11 

authorities and licensing authorities will need to consider this point carefully. This would 

broadly include topless bar staff, striptease, lap-, table- or pole-dancing, performances 

involving feigned violence or horrific incidents, feigned or actual sexual acts or fetishism, 

or entertainment involving strong and offensive language. 

2.25 Applicants must be clear in their operating schedules about the activities and times at 

which the events would take place to help determine when it is not appropriate for 

children to enter the premises. Consideration should also be given to the proximity of 

premises to schools and youth clubs so that applicants take appropriate steps to ensure 

that advertising relating to their premises, or relating to events at their premises, is not 

displayed at a time when children are likely to be near the premises. 

2.26 Licensing authorities and responsible authorities should expect applicants, when 

preparing an operating schedule or club operating schedule, to set out the steps to be 

taken to protect children from harm when on the premises. 

2.27 Conditions, where they are appropriate, should reflect the licensable activities taking 

place on the premises. In addition to the mandatory condition regarding age verification, 

other conditions relating to the protection of children from harm can include: 

•  restrictions on the hours when children may be present; 

•  restrictions or exclusions on the presence of children under certain ages when 

particular specified activities are taking place; 

•  restrictions on the parts of the premises to which children may have access; 

•  age restrictions (below 18); 

•  restrictions or exclusions when certain activities are taking place; 

•  requirements for an accompanying adult (including for example, a combination of 

requirements which provide that children under a particular age must be 

accompanied by an adult); and 

•  full exclusion of people under 18 from the premises when any licensable activities are 

taking place. 

2.28 Please see also Chapter 10 for details about the Licensing Act 2003 (Mandatory 

Licensing Conditions) Order 2010. 

2.29 Licensing authorities should give considerable weight to representations about child 

protection matters. In addition to the responsible authority whose functions relate 

directly to child protection, the Director of Public Health may also have access to 

relevant evidence to inform such representations. These representations may include, 

amongst other things, the use of health data about the harms that alcohol can cause to 

underage drinkers. Where a responsible authority, or other person, presents evidence to 

the licensing authority linking specific premises with harms to children (such as 

ambulance data or emergency department attendances by persons under 18 years old 

with alcohol- related illnesses or injuries) this evidence should be considered, and the 

licensing authority should also consider what action is appropriate to ensure this 

licensing objective is effectively enforced. In relation to applications for the grant of a 

licence in areas where evidence is presented on high levels of alcohol-related harms in 

persons aged under 18, it is recommended that the licensing authority considers what 

conditions may be appropriate to ensure that this objective is promoted effectively. 

2.30 The 2003 Act provides that, where a premises licence or club premises certificate 

Page 82

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 9



12 | Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 

authorises the exhibition of a film, it must include a condition requiring the admission of 

children to films to be restricted in accordance with recommendations given either by a 

body designated under section 4 of the Video Recordings Act 1984 specified in the 

licence (the British Board of Film Classification is currently the only body which has 

been so designated) or by the licensing authority itself. Further details are given in 

Chapter 10. 

2.31 Theatres may present a range of diverse activities and entertainment including, for 

example, variety shows incorporating adult entertainment. It is appropriate in these 

cases for a licensing authority to consider restricting the admission of children in such 

circumstances. Entertainments may also be presented at theatres specifically for 

children. It will be appropriate to consider whether a condition should be attached to a 

premises licence or club premises certificate which requires the presence of a sufficient 

number of adult staff on the premises to ensure the wellbeing of the children during any 

emergency. 

Offences relating to the sale and supply of alcohol to children 

2.32 Licensing authorities are expected to maintain close contact with the police, young 

offenders’ teams and trading standards officers (who can carry out test purchases under 

section 154 of the 2003 Act) about the extent of unlawful sales and consumption of 

alcohol by minors and to be involved in the development of any strategies to control or 

prevent these unlawful activities and to pursue prosecutions. Licensing authorities, 

alongside the police, are prosecuting authorities for the purposes of these offences, 

except for the offences under section 147A (persistently selling alcohol to children). 

Where, as a matter of policy, warnings are given to retailers prior to any decision to 

prosecute in respect of an offence, it is important that each of the enforcement arms 

should be aware of the warnings each of them has given. 

  

Page 83

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 9



This page is intentionally left blank



Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 I 49 

8. Applications for premises licences 

Relevant licensing authority 

8.1 Premises licences are issued by the licensing authority in which the premises are 

situated or, in the case of premises straddling an area boundary, the licensing authority 

where the greater part of the premises is situated. Where the premises is located 

equally in two or more areas, the applicant may choose but, in these rare cases, it is 

important that each of the licensing authorities involved maintain close contact. 

8.2 Section 13 of the 2003 Act defines the parties holding important roles in the context of 

applications, inspection, monitoring and reviews of premises licences. 

Authorised persons 

8.3 The first group –“authorised persons”– are bodies empowered by the 2003 Act to carry 

out inspection and enforcement roles. The police and immigration officers are not 

included because they are separately empowered by the 2003 Act to carry out their 

duties. 

8.4 For all premises, the authorised persons include: 

•  officers of the licensing authority; 

•  fire inspectors; 

•  inspectors with responsibility in the licensing authority’s area for the enforcement of 

the Health and Safety at Work etc Act 1974;  

•  officers of the local authority exercising environmental health functions 

8.5 Local authority officers will most commonly have responsibility for the enforcement of 

health and safety legislation, but the Health and Safety Executive is responsible for 

certain premises. In relation to vessels, authorised persons also include an inspector or 

a surveyor of ships appointed under section 256 of the Merchant Shipping Act 1995. 

These would normally be officers acting on behalf of the Maritime and Coastguard 

Agency. The Secretary of State may prescribe other authorised persons by means of 

regulations, but has not currently prescribed any additional bodies. If any are 

prescribed, details will be made available on the GOV.UK website. 

8.6 Where an immigration officer has reason to believe that any premises are being used 

for a licensable activity, the officer may enter the premises with a view to seeing 

whether an offence under any of the Immigration Acts is being committed in connection 

with the licensable activity.  

Responsible authorities 

8.7 The second group –“responsible authorities”– are public bodies that must be fully 

notified of applications and that are entitled to make representations to the licensing 

authority in relation to the application for the grant, variation or review of a premises 

licence. These representations must still be considered ‘relevant’ by the licensing 

authority and relate to one or more of the licensing objectives. For all premises, 

responsible authorities include: 

•  the relevant licensing authority and any other licensing authority in whose area part of 

Page 85

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 10



50 | Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 

the premises is situated; 

•  the chief officer of police; 

•  the local fire and rescue authority; 

•  the relevant enforcing authority under the Health and Safety at Work etc Act 1974; 

•  the local authority with responsibility for environmental health; 

•  the local planning authority; 

•  a body that represents those who are responsible for, or interested in, matters 

relating to the protection of children from harm; 

•  each local authority’s Director of Public Health (DPH) in England4 and Local Health 

Boards (in Wales);  

•  the local weights and measures authority (trading standards); and 

•   Home Office Immigration Enforcement (on behalf of the Secretary of State). 

8.8 The licensing authority should indicate in its statement of licensing policy which body it 

recognises to be competent to advise it on the protection of children from harm. This 

may be the local authority social services department, the Local Safeguarding Children 

Board or another competent body. This is important as applications for premises 

licences have to be copied to the responsible authorities in order for them to make any 

representations they think are relevant. 

8.9 In relation to a vessel, responsible authorities also include navigation authorities within 

the meaning of section 221(1) of the Water Resources Act 1991 that have statutory 

functions in relation to the waters where the vessel is usually moored or berthed, or any 

waters where it is proposed to be navigated when being used for licensable activities; 

the Environment Agency; the Canal and River Trust; and the Secretary of State (who in 

practice acts through the Maritime and Coastguard Agency (MCA)). In practice, the 

Environment Agency and the Canal and River Trust only have responsibility in relation 

to vessels on waters for which they are the navigation statutory authority. 

8.10 The MCA is the lead responsible authority for public safety, including fire safety, 

affecting passenger ships (those carrying more than 12 passengers) wherever they 

operate and small commercial vessels (carrying no more than 12 passengers) which go 

to sea. The safety regime for passenger ships is enforced under the Merchant Shipping 

Acts by the MCA which operates certification schemes for these vessels. Fire and 

rescue authorities, the Health and Safety Executive and local authority health and safety 

inspectors should normally be able to make “nil” returns in relation to such vessels and 

rely on the MCA to make any appropriate representations in respect of this licensing 

objective. 

8.11 Merchant Shipping legislation does not, however, apply to permanently moored vessels. 

So, for example, restaurant ships moored on the Thames Embankment, with permanent 

shore connections should be considered by the other responsible authorities concerned 

with public safety, including fire safety. Vessels carrying no more than 12 passengers 

which do not go to sea are not subject to MCA survey and certification, but may be 

licensed by the local port or navigation authority. 

                                                
4
 This change was made as a result of the commencement of measures in the Health and Social Care Act 2012 which amended 

the 2003 Act and further provision in the NHS Bodies and Local Authorities (Partnership Arrangements, Care Trusts, Public 
Health and Local Healthwatch) Regulations 2012. 

Page 86

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 10



Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 I 51 

8.12 The Secretary of State may prescribe other responsible authorities by means of 

regulations. Any such regulations are published on the Government’s legislation 

website: www.legislation.gov.uk. 

Other persons 

8.13 As well as responsible authorities, any other person can play a role in a number of 

licensing processes under the 2003 Act. This includes any individual, body or business 

entitled to make representations to licensing authorities in relation to applications for the 

grant, variation, minor variation or review of premises licences and club premises 

certificates, regardless of their geographic proximity to the premises. In addition, these 

persons may themselves seek a review of a premises licence. Any representations 

made by these persons must be ‘relevant’, in that the representation relates to one or 

more of the licensing objectives. It must also not be considered by the licensing 

authority to be frivolous or vexatious. In the case of applications for reviews, there is an 

additional requirement that the grounds for the review should not be considered by the 

licensing authority to be repetitious. Chapter 9 of this guidance (paragraphs 9.4 to 9.10) 

provides more detail on the definition of relevant, frivolous and vexatious 

representations. 

8.14 While any of these persons may act in their own right, they may also request that a 

representative makes the representation to the licensing authority on their behalf. A 

representative may include a legal representative, a friend, a Member of Parliament, a 

Member of the Welsh Government, or a local ward or parish councillor who can all act in 

such a capacity. 

Who can apply for a premises licence? 

8.15 Any person (if an individual aged 18 or over) who is carrying on or who proposes to 

carry on a business which involves the use of premises (any place including one in the 

open air) for licensable activities may apply for a premises licence either on a 

permanent basis or for a time-limited period. 

8.16 “A person” in this context includes, for example, a business or a partnership. Licensing 

authorities should not require the nomination of an individual to hold the licence or 

determine the identity of the most appropriate person to hold the licence. 

8.17 In considering joint applications (which is likely to be a rare occurrence), it must be 

stressed that under section 16(1)(a) of the 2003 Act each applicant must be carrying on 

a business which involves the use of the premises for licensable activities. In the case of 

public houses, this would be easier for a tenant to demonstrate than for a pub owning 

company that is not itself carrying on licensable activities. Where licences are to be held 

by businesses, it is desirable that this should be a single business to avoid any lack of 

clarity in accountability. 

8.18 A public house may be owned, or a tenancy held, jointly by a husband and wife, civil 

partners or other partnerships of a similar nature, and both may be actively involved in 

carrying on the licensable activities. In these cases, it is entirely possible for the 

husband and wife or the partners to apply jointly as applicant for the premises licence, 

even if they are not formally partners in business terms. This is unlikely to lead to the 

same issues of clouded accountability that could arise where two separate businesses 

Page 87

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 10



52 | Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 

apply jointly for the licence. If the application is granted, the premises licence would 

identify the holder as comprising both names and any subsequent applications, for 

example for a variation of the licence, would need to be made jointly. 

8.19 A wide range of other individuals and bodies set out in section 16 of the 2003 Act may 

apply for premises licences. They include, for example, Government Departments, local 

authorities, hospitals, schools, charities or police forces. In addition to the bodies listed 

in section 16, the Secretary of State may prescribe by regulations other bodies that may 

apply and any such regulations are published on the Government’s legislation website. 

There is nothing in the 2003 Act which prevents an application being made for a 

premises licence at premises where a premises licence is already held. 

Application forms 

8.20 The Provision of Services Regulations 2009 require local authorities to ensure that all 

procedures relating to access to, or the exercise of, a service activity may be easily 

completed, at a distance and by electronic means. Electronic application facilities for 

premises licences may be found either on GOV.UK or the licensing authority’s own 

website. It remains acceptable to make an application in writing. 

Electronic applications 

8.21 Applicants may apply using the licence application forms available on GOV.UK, or will 

be re-directed from GOV.UK to the licensing authority’s own electronic facility if one is 

available. Applicants may also apply directly to the licensing authority’s facility without 

going through GOV.UK. 

Electronic applications using forms on gov.uk 

8.22 GOV.UK will send a notification to the licensing authority when a completed application 

form is available for it to download from GOV.UK. This is the day that the application is 

taken to be ‘given’ to the licensing authority, even if it is downloaded at a later stage, 

and the application must be advertised from the day after that day (as for a written 

application). The licensing authority must acknowledge the application as quickly as 

possible, specifying the statutory time period and giving details of the appeal procedure. 

8.23 The period of 28 consecutive days during which the application must be advertised on a 

notice outside the premises is, effectively, the statutory timescale by which the 

application must be determined (unless representations are made). This will be 

published on GOV.UK and must also be published on the licensing authority’s own 

electronic facility if one exists. If no representations are made during this period, the 

licensing authority must notify the applicant as quickly as possible that the licence has 

been granted. The licensing authority must send the licence to the applicant as soon as 

possible after this, but the applicant may start the licensed activity as soon as they have 

been notified that the application is granted (subject to compliance with the conditions of 

the licence). The licence may be supplied in electronic or written format as long as the 

applicant is aware which document constitutes ‘the licence’. If representations are 

made, the guidance in Chapter 9 applies. 

Requirement to copy application to responsible authorities 

8.24 The licensing authority must copy electronic applications, made via GOV.UK or its own 

facility, to responsible authorities no later than the first working day after the application 

Page 88

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 10



Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 I 53 

is given. However, if an applicant submits any part of their application in writing, the 

applicant will remain responsible for copying it to responsible authorities. 

Applications via the local authority electronic application facility 

8.25 Where applications are made on the licensing authority’s own electronic facility, the 

application will be taken to be ‘given’ when the applicant has submitted a complete 

application form and paid the fee. The application is given at the point at which it 

becomes accessible to the authority by means of the facility. The licensing authority 

must acknowledge the application as quickly as possible, specifying the statutory time 

period and giving details of the appeal procedure. 

‘Holding’ and ‘deferring’ electronic applications 

8.26 The Government recommends (as for written applications) that electronic applications 

should not be returned if they contain obvious and minor errors such as typing mistakes, 

or small errors that can be rectified with information already in the authority’s 

possession. However, if this is not the case and required information is missing or 

incorrect, the licensing authority may ‘hold’ the application until the applicant has 

supplied all the required information. This effectively resets the 28 day period for 

determining an application and may be done any number of times until the application 

form is complete. Licensing authorities must ensure that they notify the applicant as 

quickly as possible of any missing (or incorrect) information, and explain how this will 

affect the statutory timescale and advertising requirements. 

8.27 If an application has been given at the weekend, the notice advertising the application 

(where applicable) may already be displayed outside the premises by the time that the 

licensing authority downloads the application. It is therefore recommended that, if a 

licensing authority holds an application, it should inform the applicant that the original (or 

if necessary, amended) notice must be displayed until the end of the revised period. The 

licensing authority should also advise the applicant that they should not advertise the 

application in a local newspaper until they have received confirmation from the licensing 

authority that the application includes all the required information. To ensure clarity for 

applicants, the Government recommends that licensing authorities include similar 

advice on their electronic application facilities (where these exist) to ensure that 

applicants do not incur any unnecessary costs. 

8.28 If an applicant persistently fails to supply the required information, the licensing authority 

may refuse the application and the applicant must submit a new application. 

8.29 Licensing authorities may also ‘defer’ electronic applications once if the application is 

particularly complicated, for example if representations are received and a hearing is 

required. This allows the licensing authority to extend the statutory time period for the 

determination of the application by such time as is necessary, including, if required, 

arranging and holding a hearing. Licensing authorities must ensure that applicants are 

informed as quickly as possible of a decision to defer, and the reasons for the deferral, 

before the original 28 days has expired. 

Written applications 

8.30 A written application for a premises licence must be made in the prescribed form to the 

relevant licensing authority and be copied to each of the appropriate responsible 

authorities. For example, it would not be appropriate to send an application for premises 

Page 89

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 10



54 | Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 

which was not a vessel to the Maritime and Coastguard Agency. The application must 

be accompanied by: 

•  the required fee (details of fees may be viewed on the GOV.UK website); 

•  an operating schedule (see below); 

•  a plan of the premises in a prescribed form; and 

•  if the application involves the supply of alcohol, a form of consent from the individual 

who is to be specified in the licence as the designated premises supervisor (DPS). 

8.31 If the application is being made by an individual it should be accompanied by acceptable 

evidence of entitlement to work in the UK (this includes where the application is 

submitted electronically), as set out in the application form (see paragraph 4.8). 

8.32 If the application is being made in respect of a community premises, it may be 

accompanied by the form of application to apply the alternative licence condition. 

8.33 Guidance on completing premises licence, club premises certificate and minor variation 

forms can be found on the GOV.UK website. The Licensing Act 2003 (Premises 

licences and club premises certificates) Regulations 2005 contain provision about the 

prescribed form of applications, operating schedules and plans and are published on the 

legislation.gov.uk website. 

Plans 

8.34 Plans, for written and electronic applications, will not be required to be submitted in any 

particular scale, but they must be in a format which is “clear and legible in all material 

respects”, i.e. they must be accessible and provides sufficient detail for the licensing 

authority to be able to determine the application, including the relative size of any 

features relevant to the application. There is no requirement for plans to be 

professionally drawn as long as they clearly show all the prescribed information. 

Beer gardens or other outdoor spaces 

8.35 Applicants will want to consider whether they might want to use a garden or other 

outdoor space as a location from which alcohol will be consumed. The sale of alcohol is 

to be treated as taking place where the alcohol is appropriated to the contract. In 

scenarios where drink orders are taken by a member of staff in the garden or outdoor 

space and the member of staff then collects the drinks from the licensed premises and 

returns to deliver them to the customer this would be treated as an off-sale and any 

conditions that relate to off-sales would apply. 

8.36 In such cases it will be not necessary to include the garden or other outdoor space on 

the plan as part of the area covered by the premises licence. However, it will be 

necessary for the applicant to include the garden or other outdoor space on the plan as 

part of the area covered by the premises licence if the intention is to provide a service 

whereby drinks are available for sale and consumption directly from that area (i.e. the 

provision of on-sales). This would apply in the case of an outdoor bar or a service 

whereby a member of staff who is in the garden or outdoor space carries with them 

drinks that are available for sale (without the need for the staff member to return to the 

licensed premises to collect them). 

8.37 If the beer garden or other outdoor area is to be used for the consumption of off-sales 

only, there is no requirement to show it on the plan of the premises, but the prescribed 

Page 90

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 10



Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 I 55 

application form requires the applicant to provide a description of where the place is and 

its proximity to the premises. 

Entitlement to work in the UK 

8.38 Individuals applying for a premises licence for the sale of alcohol or late night 

refreshment must be entitled to work in the UK. From 6 April 2017 licensing authorities 

must be satisfied that an individual who applies for a premises licence is entitled to work 

in the UK. This includes applications made by more than one individual applicant. An 

application made by an individual without the entitlement to work in the UK must be 

rejected. This applies to applications which include the sale of alcohol and the 

provisions of late night refreshment, but does not include applications which apply to 

regulated entertainment only. For example, a person applying for a licence for a music 

venue who does not intend to sell alcohol or late night refreshment is not prohibited from 

applying for a licence on grounds of immigration status. However, they will commit a 

criminal offence if they work illegally.   

8.39 The documents which may be relied on in support of an application demonstrating an 

entitlement to work in the UK are the same as for personal licence applicants see 

paragraph 4.8. Where there is sufficient evidence that the applicant is not resident in the 

UK there is no requirement that the applicant has an entitlement to work in the UK. 

8.40 Where an applicant’s permission to work in the UK is time-limited the licensing authority 

may issue a premises licence for an indefinite period, but the licence will become invalid 

when the immigration permission expires. The individual’s entitlement to work in the UK 

may be extended or made permanent by the Home Office, and granting the licence for 

an indefinite period prevents the licensee from having to re-apply for a new licence.  In 

the event that the Home Office cuts short or ends a person’s immigration permission 

(referred to a curtailment or revocation), any licence issued on or after 6 April 2017 

which authorises the sale of alcohol or provision of late night refreshment will 

automatically lapse. As with personal licences, the licensing authority is under no duty to 

carry out on going immigration checks to see whether a licence holder’s permission to 

be in the UK has been brought to an end. For further details on entitlement to work see 

paragraphs 4.8 to 4.18.    

Steps to promote the licensing objectives 

8.41 In completing an operating schedule, applicants are expected to have regard to the 

statement of licensing policy for their area. They must also be aware of the expectations 

of the licensing authority and the responsible authorities as to the steps that are 

appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives, and to demonstrate knowledge 

of their local area when describing the steps they propose to take to promote the 

licensing objectives. Licensing authorities and responsible authorities are expected to 

publish information about what is meant by the promotion of the licensing objectives and 

to ensure that applicants can readily access advice about these matters. However, 

applicants are also expected to undertake their own enquiries about the area in which 

the premises are situated to inform the content of the application. 

8.42 Applicants are, in particular, expected to obtain sufficient information to enable them to 

demonstrate, when setting out the steps they propose to take to promote the licensing 

objectives, that they understand: 

Page 91

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 10



56 | Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 

•  the layout of the local area and physical environment including crime and disorder 

hotspots, proximity to residential premises and proximity to areas where children may 

congregate; 

•  any risk posed to the local area by the applicants’ proposed licensable activities; and 

•  any local initiatives (for example, local crime reduction initiatives or voluntary 

schemes including local taxi-marshalling schemes, street pastors and other 

schemes) which may help to mitigate potential risks. 

8.43 Applicants are expected to include positive proposals in their application on how they 

will manage any potential risks. Where specific policies apply in the area (for example, a 

cumulative impact policy), applicants are also expected to demonstrate an 

understanding of how the policy impacts on their application; any measures they will 

take to mitigate the impact; and why they consider the application should be an 

exception to the policy. 

8.44 It is expected that enquiries about the locality will assist applicants when determining 

the steps that are appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives. For example, 

premises with close proximity to residential premises should consider what effect this 

will have on their smoking, noise management and dispersal policies to ensure the 

promotion of the public nuisance objective. Applicants must consider all factors which 

may be relevant to the promotion of the licensing objectives, and where there are no 

known concerns, acknowledge this in their application. 

8.45 The majority of information which applicants will require should be available in the 

licensing policy statement in the area. Other publicly available sources which may be of 

use to applicants include: 

•  the Crime Mapping website; 

•  Neighbourhood Statistics websites; 

•  websites or publications by local responsible authorities; 

•  websites or publications by local voluntary schemes and initiatives; and 

•  on-line mapping tools. 

8.46 While applicants are not required to seek the views of responsible authorities before 

formally submitting their application, they may find them to be a useful source of expert 

advice on local issues that should be taken into consideration when making an 

application. Licensing authorities may wish to encourage co-operation between 

applicants, responsible authorities and, where relevant, local residents and businesses 

before applications are submitted in order to minimise the scope for disputes to arise. 

8.47 Applicants are expected to provide licensing authorities with sufficient information in this 

section to determine the extent to which their proposed steps are appropriate to 

promote the licensing objectives in the local area. Applications must not be based on 

providing a set of standard conditions to promote the licensing objectives and applicants 

are expected to make it clear why the steps they are proposing are appropriate for the 

premises. 

8.48 All parties are expected to work together in partnership to ensure that the licensing 

objectives are promoted collectively. Where there are no disputes, the steps that 

applicants propose to take to promote the licensing objectives, as set out in the 

operating schedule, will very often translate directly into conditions that will be attached 

Page 92

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 10



Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 I 57 

to premises licences with the minimum of fuss. 

8.49 For some premises, it is possible that no measures will be appropriate to promote one 

or more of the licensing objectives, for example, because they are adequately covered 

by other existing legislation. It is however important that all operating schedules should 

be precise and clear about the measures that are proposed to promote each of the 

licensing objectives. 

Variations 

Introduction 

8.50 Where a premises licence holder wishes to amend the licence, the 2003 Act in most 

cases permits an application to vary to be made rather than requiring an application for 

a new premises licence. The process to be followed will depend on the nature of the 

variation and its potential impact on the licensing objectives. Applications to vary can be 

made electronically via GOV.UK or by means of the licensing authority’s own electronic 

facility following the procedures set out in Chapter 8 above. 

Simplified processes 

8.51 There are simplified processes for making applications, or notifying changes, in the 

following cases: 

•  a change of the name or address of someone named in the licence (section 33); 

•  an application to vary the licence to specify a new individual as the designated 

premises supervisor (DPS) (section 37); 

•  a request to be removed as the designated premises supervisor (section 41); 

•  an application by a licence holder in relation to community premises authorised to sell 

alcohol to remove the usual mandatory conditions set out in sections 19(2) and 19(3) 

of the 2003 Act concerning the supervision of alcohol sales by a personal licence 

holder and the need for a DPS who holds a personal licence (sections 25A and 41D); 

and 

•  an application for minor variation of a premises licence (sections 41A to 41C) or club 

premises certificate (sections 86A to 86C). 

8.52 If an application to specify a new DPS or to remove the mandatory conditions 

concerning the supervision of alcohol sales is made electronically via GOV.UK or the 

licensing authority’s own electronic facility, the authority must notify the police no later 

than the first working day after the application is given. 

8.53 Where a simplified process requires the applicant (if they are not also the personal 

licence holder) to copy the application to the licence holder for information, this will 

apply regardless of whether the application is made in writing or electronically. 

Otherwise the general guidance set out above (paragraphs 8.21 to 8.28) on electronic 

applications applies. 

Minor variations process 

8.54 Variations to premises licences or club premises certificates that could not impact 

adversely on the licensing objectives are subject to a simplified ‘minor variations’ 

process. Under this process, the applicant is not required to advertise the variation in a 

newspaper or circular, or copy it to responsible authorities. However, they must display 

Page 93

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 10



58 | Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 

it on a white notice (to distinguish it from the blue notice used for full variations and new 

applications). The notice must comply with the requirements set out in regulation 26A of 

the Licensing Act 2003 (Premises licences and club premises certificates) Regulations 

2005. In accordance with those regulations, the notice must be displayed for a period of 

ten working days starting on the working day after the minor variation application was 

given to the licensing authority. 

8.55 On receipt of an application for a minor variation, the licensing authority must consider 

whether the variation could impact adversely on the licensing objectives. It is recommended 

that decisions on minor variations should be delegated to licensing officers. 

8.56 In considering the application, the licensing authority must consult relevant responsible 

authorities (whether the application is made in writing or electronically) if there is any 

doubt about the impact of the variation on the licensing objectives and they need 

specialist advice, and take their views into account in reaching a decision. The 

application is unlikely to be relevant to all responsible authorities.  

8.57 The licensing authority must also consider any relevant representations received from 

other persons within the time limit referred to below. As stated earlier in this Guidance, 

representations are only relevant if they clearly relate to the likely effect of the grant of 

the variation on the promotion of at least one of the licensing objectives; representations 

must be confined to the subject matter of the variation. In the case of minor variations, 

there is no right to a hearing (as for a full variation or new application), but licensing 

authorities must take any representations into account in arriving at a decision. 

8.58 Other persons have ten working days from the ‘initial day’, that is to say, the day after 

the application is received by the licensing authority, to submit representations. The 

licensing authority must therefore wait until this period has elapsed before determining 

the application, but must do so at the latest within 15 working days, beginning on the 

first working day after the authority received the application, with effect either that the 

minor variation is granted or the application is refused. 

8.59 If the licensing authority fails to respond to the applicant within 15 working days (see 

section 193 of the 2003 Act for the definition of working day), the application will be 

treated as refused and the authority must return the fee to the applicant forthwith. 

However, the licensing authority and the applicant may agree instead that the 

undetermined application should be treated as a new application and that the fee 

originally submitted will be treated as a fee for the new application. 

8.60 Where an application is refused and is then re-submitted through the full variation 

process, the full 28 day notification period will apply from the date the new application is 

received and applicants should advertise the application and copy it to all responsible 

authorities (in accordance with the regulations applicable to full variations). 

8.61 Minor variations will generally fall into four categories: minor changes to the structure or 

layout of premises; small adjustments to licensing hours; the removal of out of date, 

irrelevant or unenforceable conditions or addition of volunteered conditions; and the 

addition of certain licensable activities. In all cases the overall test is whether the 

proposed variation could impact adversely on any of the four licensing objectives. 

Changes to structure/layout 

8.62 Many small variations to layout will have no adverse impact on the licensing objectives. 

Page 94

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 10



Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 I 59 

However, changes to layout should be referred to the full variation process if they could 

potentially have an adverse impact on the promotion of the licensing objectives, for 

example by: 

•  increasing the capacity for drinking on the premises; 

•  affecting access between the public part of the premises and the rest of the premises 

or the street or public way, for instance, block emergency exits or routes to 

emergency exits; or 

•  impeding the effective operation of a noise reduction measure such as an acoustic 

lobby. 

8.63 Licensing authorities will also need to consider the combined effect of a series of 

applications for successive small layout changes (for example, as part of a rolling 

refurbishment of premises) which in themselves may not be significant, but which 

cumulatively may impact adversely on the licensing objectives. This emphasises the 

importance of having an up-to-date copy of the premises plan available. 

8.64 An application to remove a licensable activity should normally be approved as a minor 

variation. Variations to add the sale by retail or supply of alcohol to a licence are 

excluded from the minor variations process and must be treated as full variations in all 

cases. 

8.65 For other licensable activities, licensing authorities will need to consider each 

application on a case by case basis and in light of any licence conditions put forward by 

the applicant. 

Licensing hours 

8.66 Variations to the following are excluded from the minor variations process and must be 

treated as full variations in all cases: 

•  to extend licensing hours for the sale or supply of alcohol for consumption on or off 

the premises between the hours of 23.00 and 07.00; or 

•  to increase the amount of time on any day during which alcohol may be sold or 

supplied for consumption on or off the premises. 

8.67 Applications to reduce licensing hours for the sale or supply of alcohol or, in some 

cases, to move (without increasing) the licensed hours between 07.00 and 23.00 will 

normally be processed as minor variations. 

8.68 Applications to vary the time during which other licensable activities take place should 

be considered on a case-by-case basis with reference to the likely impact on the 

licensing objectives. 

Licensing conditions  

a) Imposed conditions 

8.69 Licensing authorities cannot impose their own conditions on the licence through the 

minor variations process. If the licensing officer considers that the proposed variation 

would impact adversely on the licensing objectives unless conditions are imposed, they 

should refuse it. 

Page 95

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 10



60 | Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 

b) Volunteered conditions 

8.70 Applicants may volunteer conditions as part of the minor variation process. These 

conditions may arise from their own risk assessment of the variation, or from informal 

discussions with responsible authorities or the licensing authority. 

8.71 For instance, there may be circumstances when the licence holder and a responsible 

authority such as the police or environmental health authority, agree that a new condition 

should be added to the licence (for example, that a nightclub adds the provision of late 

night refreshment to its licence to ensure a longer period of dispersal). Such a change 

would not normally impact adversely on the licensing objectives and could be expected to 

promote them by preventing crime and disorder or public nuisance. In these 

circumstances, the minor variation process may provide a less costly and onerous means 

of amending the licence than a review, with no risk to the licensing objectives. However, 

this route should only be used where the agreed variations are minor and the licence 

holder and the responsible authority have come to a genuine agreement. The licensing 

authority should be alive to any attempts to pressure licence or certificate holders into 

agreeing to new conditions where there is no evidence of a problem at the premises and, 

if there is any doubt, should discuss this with the relevant parties. 

c) Amending or removing existing conditions 

8.72 However, there may be some circumstances when the minor variation process is 

appropriate. Premises may change over time and the circumstances that originally led 

to the condition being attached or volunteered may no longer apply. For example, there 

may be no need for door supervision if a bar has been converted into a restaurant. 

Equally some embedded conditions may no longer apply.  

8.73 Changes in legislation may invalidate certain conditions. Although the conditions do not 

have to be removed from the licence, licence holders and licensing authorities may 

agree that this is desirable to clarify the licence holder’s legal obligations. There may 

also be cases where it is appropriate to revise the wording of a condition that is unclear 

or unenforceable. This would be acceptable as a minor variation as long as the purpose 

of the condition and its intended effect remain unchanged. Such a change could be 

expected to promote the licensing objectives by making it easier for the licence holder to 

understand and comply with the condition and easier for the licensing authority to 

enforce it. 

Full variations process 

8.74 Any other changes to the licence or certificate require an application to vary under 

sections 34 or 84 of the 2003 Act. 

8.75 Licensing authorities may wish to consider whether there is any likely impact on the 

promotion of the licensing objectives in deciding whether there is a need for an 

application to vary in relation to features which are not required to be shown on the plan 

under section 17 of the 2003 Act, but have nevertheless been included, for example, 

moveable furniture (altering the position of tables and chairs) or beer gardens 

(installation of a smoking shelter that will not affect the use of exits or escape routes). 

8.76 However, it should be noted that a section 34 application cannot be used to vary a 

licence so as to: 

Page 96

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 10



Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 I 61 

•  extend a time limited licence; 

•  transfer the licence from one holder to another; or 

•  transfer the licence from one premises to another. 

8.77 If an applicant wishes to make these types of changes to the premises licence, the 

applicant should make a new premises licence application under section 17 of the 2003 

Act; or, to transfer the licence to another holder, an application under section 42 of the 

2003 Act. 

Relaxation of opening hours for local, national and international 
occasions 

8.78 It should normally be possible for applicants for premises licences and club premises 

certificates to anticipate special occasions which occur regularly each year – such as 

bank holidays and St. George’s or St. Patrick’s Day – and to include appropriate 

opening hours in their operating schedules. Similarly, temporary event notices should be 

sufficient to cover other events which take place at premises that do not have a 

premises licence or club certificate. 

8.79 However, exceptional events of local, national or international significance may arise 

which could not have been anticipated when the application was first made. In these 

circumstances, the Secretary of State may make a licensing hours order to allow 

premises to open for specified, generally extended, hours on these special occasions. 

This avoids the need for large numbers of applications to vary premises licences and 

club premises certificates. Typical events might include a one-off local festival or a 

Royal Jubilee. 

Advertising applications 

8.80  The requirements governing the advertisement of applications for the grant, variation or 

review of premises licences and club premises certificates are contained in Regulations 

25 and 26 of the Licensing Act 2003 (Premises licences and club premises certificates) 

Regulations 2005 which are published on the Government’s legislation website. 

8.80 Applicants are required to: 

•  publish a notice in a local newspaper or, if there is none, in a local newsletter, circular 

or similar document circulating in the area in which the premises are situated; and 

•  display a brief summary of the application on an A4 (or larger) size notice, on pale 

blue paper in a prominent position immediately on or outside the premises for at least 

28 consecutive days (starting on the day after the day on which the application was 

given to the relevant licensing authority). The notice must be printed legibly in black 

ink or typed in black in size 16 font or larger. 

•  ensure that the above notices contain the name of the applicant, postal addresses of 

the premises (or if there is no postal address a description of the premises sufficient 

to enable the location to be identified), relevant licensing authority and the date by 

which any representations in relation to the application need to be made to the 

licensing authority. They should also contain a statement of the relevant licensable 

activities or relevant qualifying club activities that it is proposed will be carried on at 

the premises, or in the case of an application to vary a premises licence or a club 

premises certificate the notices shall briefly describe the proposed variation. 

Page 97

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 10



62 | Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 

8.81 It is the responsibility of the applicant for putting the notice up, however licensing 

authorities should consider where the signs should be placed and advise the applicant 

where appropriate, to ensure people will see them, in particular if an application is likely 

to be of interest to the public. As prescribed in regulations, licensing authorities must 

also place a notice on their website outlining key details of the application as set out in 

regulations, including: 

•  the name of the applicant or club; 

•  the postal address of the premises or club premises; 

•  the postal address and, where applicable, the internet address where the relevant 

licensing authority’s register is kept and where and when the record of the application 

may be inspected; 

•  the date by which representations from responsible authorities or other persons 

should be received and how these representations should be made; and 

•  that it is an offence knowingly or recklessly to make a false statement in connection 

with an application and the maximum fine for which a person is liable on summary 

conviction for the offence. 

8.82 The summary of the application should set out matters such as the proposed licensable 

activities and the proposed hours of opening and should be clearly displayed for the 

period during which representations may be made, together with information about 

where the details of the application may be viewed. 

8.83 Licensing authorities in Wales should consider encouraging applicants to provide details 

in the alternative language (Welsh or English) to that of the main advertisement itself 

where the application may be viewed. Therefore, if an applicant publishes a notice in 

English they should be encouraged to provide a statement in Welsh as to where the 

application may be viewed, and vice versa. This would allow the reader of the notice to 

make enquiries to the licensing authority and find out the nature of the application. 

8.84 Licensing authorities in Wales are also required to publish key information from licence 

applications in Welsh on their websites. 

8.85 In the case of applications for premises licences involving internet or mail order sales, 

notices should be conspicuously displayed at the place where the alcohol is 

appropriated to the contract. 

8.86 A vessel which is not permanently moored or berthed is treated as if it were a premises 

situated in a place where it is usually moored or berthed. The newspaper advertisement 

notice for such a vessel would need to be in relation to this place (where it is usually 

moored or berthed) and there is no provision requiring such advertising in other areas, 

for instance, if the vessel journeys through other licensing authority areas. 

8.87 Arrangements should be put in place by the licensing authority for other parties to view 

a record of the application in the licensing register as described in Schedule 3 to the 

2003 Act. Charges made for copies of the register should not exceed the cost of 

preparing such copies. Licensing authorities may wish to conduct random and 

unannounced visits to premises to confirm that notices have been clearly displayed and 

include relevant and accurate information. 

Page 98

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 10



Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 I 63 

Applications to change the designated premises supervisors 

8.88 Chapter 4 covers designated premises supervisors and applications to vary a premises 

licence covering sales of alcohol by specifying a new designated premises supervisor. 

Chapter 4 covers applications by community premises to disapply the usual mandatory 

conditions in sections 19(2) and 19(3) of the 2003 Act concerning the authorisation of 

alcohol sales by a personal licence holder and the need for a designated premises 

supervisor who holds a personal licence. 

Provisional statements 

8.89 Where premises are being or are about to be constructed, extended or otherwise 

altered for the purpose of being used for one or more licensable activities, investors may 

be unwilling to commit funds unless they have some assurance that a premises licence 

covering the desired licensable activities would be granted for the premises when the 

building work is completed. 

8.90 The 2003 Act does not define the words “otherwise altered”, but the alteration must 

relate to the purpose of being used for one or more licensable activities. 

8.91 Any person falling within section 16 of the 2003 Act can apply for a premises licence 

before new premises are constructed, extended or changed. This would be possible 

where clear plans of the proposed structure exist and the applicant is in a position to 

complete an operating schedule including details of: 

•  the activities to take place there; 

•  the time at which such activities will take place; 

•  the proposed hours of opening; 

•  where the applicant wishes the licence to have effect for a limited period, that period; 

•  the steps to be taken to promote the licensing objectives; and 

•  where the sale of alcohol is involved, whether supplies are proposed to be for 

consumption on or off the premises (or both) and the name of the designated 

premises supervisor the applicant wishes to specify. 

8.92 In such cases, the licensing authority would include in the licence the date upon which it 

would come into effect. A provisional statement will normally only be required when the 

information described above is not available. 

8.93 The 2003 Act therefore provides for a person, if an individual aged 18 or over, who has 

an interest in the premises to apply for a “provisional statement”. This will not be time 

limited, but the longer the delay before an application for a premises licence is made, 

the more likely it is that there will be material changes and that the licensing authority 

will accept representations. “Person” in this context includes a business. 

8.94 When a hearing is held, the licensing authority must decide whether, if the premises 

were constructed or altered in the way proposed in the schedule of works and if a 

premises licence was sought for those premises, it would consider it appropriate for the 

promotion of the licensing objectives to: 

•  attach conditions to the licence; 

•  rule out any of the licensable activities applied for; 

•  refuse to specify the person nominated as premises supervisor; or 

Page 99

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 10



64 | Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 

•  reject the application. 

It will then issue the applicant with a provisional statement setting out the details of that 

decision together with its reasons. 

8.95 The licensing authority must copy the provisional statement to each person who made 

relevant representations, and the chief officer of police for the area in which the premises 

is situated. The licensing authority should give full and comprehensive reasons for its 

decision. This is important in anticipation of an appeal by any aggrieved party. 

8.96 When a person applies for a premises licence in respect of premises (or part of the 

premises or premises which are substantially the same) for which a provisional 

statement has been made, representations by responsible authorities and other persons 

will be excluded in certain circumstances. These are where: 

•  the application for a licence is in the same form as the licence described in the 

provisional statement; 

•  the work in the schedule of works has been satisfactorily completed; 

•  given the information provided in the application for a provisional statement, the 

responsible authority or other person could have made the same, or substantially the 

same, representations about the application then but failed to do so without 

reasonable excuse; and 

•  there has been no material change in the circumstances relating either to the 

premises or to the area in the proximity of those premises since the provisional 

statement was made. 

8.97 Any decision of the licensing authority on an application for a provisional statement will 

not relieve an applicant of the need to apply for planning permission, building control 

approval of the building work, or in some cases both planning permission and building 

control. 

8.98 A provisional statement may not be sought or given for a vessel, a vehicle or a 

moveable structure (see section 189 of the 2003 Act). 

Transfers of premises licences 

8.99 The 2003 Act provides for any person who may apply for a premises licence, which 

includes a business, to apply for a premises licence to be transferred to them. Where 

the application is made in writing, the applicant must give notice of the application to the 

chief officer of police in all cases, and the Home Office (Immigration Enforcement) if the 

licence authorises the sale of alcohol or provision of late night refreshment. Where it is 

made electronically via GOV.UK or the licensing authority’s electronic facility, the 

licensing authority must notify the police and the Home Office (Immigration 

Enforcement) no later than the first working day after the application is given. However, 

the responsibility to notify the DPS remains with the applicant. Otherwise the general 

guidance on electronic applications set out in paragraphs 8.21 to 8.28 applies. 

8.100 In the vast majority of cases, it is expected that a transfer will be a very simple 

administrative process. Section 43 of the 2003 Act provides a mechanism which allows 

the transfer to come into immediate interim effect as soon as the licensing authority 

receives it, until it is formally determined or withdrawn. This is to ensure that there should 

be no interruption to normal business at the premises. If the police or the Home Office 

Page 100

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 10



Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 I 65 

(Immigration Enforcement) raise no objection about the application, the licensing authority 

must transfer the licence in accordance with the application, amend the licence 

accordingly and return it to the new holder. 

8.101 In exceptional circumstances where the chief officer of police believes the transfer may 

undermine the crime prevention objective, the police may object to the transfer. The 

Home Office (Immigration Enforcement) may object if it considers that granting the 

transfer would be prejudicial to the prevention of illegal working in licensed premises. 

Such objections are expected to be rare and arise because the police or the Home 

Office (Immigration Enforcement) have evidence that the business or individuals 

seeking to hold the licence, or businesses or individuals linked to such persons, are 

involved in crime (or disorder) or employing illegal workers. 

8.102 Such objections (and therefore such hearings) should only arise in truly exceptional 

circumstances. If the licensing authority believes that the police or the Home Office 

(Immigration Enforcement) are using this mechanism to vet transfer applicants routinely 

and to seek hearings as a fishing expedition to inquire into applicants’ backgrounds, it is 

expected that it would raise the matter immediately with the chief officer of police or the 

Home Office (Immigration Enforcement). 

Interim authorities 

8.103 The 2003 Act provides special arrangements for the continuation of permissions under a 

premises licence when the holder of a licence dies suddenly, becomes bankrupt, 

mentally incapable or ceases to be entitled to work in the UK. In the normal course of 

events, the licence would lapse in such circumstances. However, there may also be 

some time before, for example, the deceased person’s estate can be dealt with or an 

administrative receiver appointed. This could have a damaging effect on those with 

interests in the premises, such as an owner, lessor or employees working at the 

premises in question; and could bring unnecessary disruption to customers’ plans. The 

2003 Act therefore provides for the licence to be capable of being reinstated in a 

discrete period of time in certain circumstances. 

8.104 These circumstances arise only where a premises licence has lapsed owing to the 

death, incapacity or insolvency of the holder or where the holder ceases to be entitled to 

work in the UK. In such circumstances, an “interim authority” notice may be given to the 

licensing authority within 28 consecutive days beginning the day after the licence 

lapsed. Where applications are made in writing, the applicant must give notice of the 

application to the chief officer of police in all cases, and the Home Office (Immigration 

Enforcement) if the licence authorises the sale of alcohol or provision of late night 

refreshment. If an application is made electronically via GOV.UK or the licensing 

authority’s electronic facility, the licensing authority must notify the police and the Home 

Office (Immigration Enforcement) no later than the first working day after the notice is 

given. 

8.105 An interim notice may only be given either by a person with a prescribed interest in the 

premises as set out in the regulations made under the 2003 Act (which may be viewed 

on www.legislation.gov.uk, the Government’s legislation website); or by a person 

connected to the former holder of the licence (normally a personal representative of the 

former holder; or a person with power of attorney; or where someone has become 

Page 101

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 10



66 | Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 

insolvent, that person’s insolvency practitioner). The person giving the interim authority 

notice must be entitled to work in the UK. 

8.106 The effect of giving the notice is to reinstate the premises licence as if the person giving 

the notice is the holder of the licence and thereby allow licensable activities to continue 

to take place pending a formal application for transfer. The maximum period for which 

an interim authority notice may have effect is three months. 

8.107 The interim authority notice ceases to have effect unless, by the end of the initial period 

of 28 consecutive days, a copy of the notice has been given to the chief officer of police 

and the Home Office (Immigration Enforcement). Within two working days of receiving 

the copy, and if satisfied that in the exceptional circumstances of the case failure to 

cancel the interim authority would undermine the crime prevention objective, the police 

may give a notice to that effect to the licensing authority. Similarly, the Home Office 

(Immigration Enforcement) may give a notice to the licensing authority if satisfied that 

the exceptional circumstances of the case are such that failure to cancel the interim 

authority would undermine the prevention of illegal working in licensed premises.  In 

such circumstances, the licensing authority must hold a hearing to consider the 

objection notice and cancel the interim authority notice if it decides that it is appropriate 

to do so for the promotion of the crime prevention objective. 

8.108 Licensing authorities should be alert to the need to consider the objection quickly. Under 

section 50 of the 2003 Act, where the premises licence lapses (because of death, 

incapacity or insolvency of the holder or because the holder is no longer entitled to work 

in the UK) or by its surrender, but no interim authority notice has effect, a person who 

may apply for the grant of a premises licence under section 16(1) may apply within 28 

consecutive days of the lapse for the transfer of the licence to them with immediate effect 

pending the determination of the application. This will result in the licence being reinstated 

from the point at which the transfer application was received by the licensing authority. 

Where the application is made in writing, the person applying for the transfer must copy 

their application to the chief officer of police and the Home Office (Immigration 

Enforcement). If the application is made electronically the licensing authority must copy 

the application to the police and the Home Office (Immigration Enforcement). 

Right of freeholders etc to be notified of licensing matters 

8.109 A person (which will include a business or company) with a property interest in any 

premises situated in the licensing authority’s area may give notice of their interest to the 

authority using a prescribed form and on payment of the relevant fee. The application 

may be made in writing or electronically via GOV.UK or the licensing authority’s own 

facility, in which case the guidance at paragraphs 8.21 to 8.28 applies. Details of fees 

and forms are available on the GOV.UK website. It is entirely at the discretion of such 

persons whether they choose to register or not. It is not a legal requirement. Those who 

may take advantage of this arrangement include the freeholder or leaseholder, a legal 

mortgagee in respect of the premises, a person in occupation of the premises or any 

other person prescribed by the Secretary of State. 

8.110 The notice will have effect for 12 months but a new notice can be given every year. 

While the notice has effect, if any change relating to the premises concerned has been 

made to the licensing register (which the licensing authority has a duty to keep under 

Page 102

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 10



Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 I 67 

section 8 of the 2003 Act), the licensing authority must notify the person who registered 

an interest of the matter to which the change relates. The person will also be notified of 

their right under section 8 to request a copy of the information contained in any entry in 

the register. In cases relating to interim authority notices (see above), it is important that 

such communications are dealt with promptly. 

 

Page 103

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 10



This page is intentionally left blank



68 | Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 

9. Determining applications 

General 

9.1 When a licensing authority receives an application for a new premises licence or an 

application to vary an existing premises licence, it must determine whether the 

application has been made in accordance with section 17 of the 2003 Act, and in 

accordance with regulations made under sections 17(3) to (6), 34, 42, 54 and 55 of the 

2003 Act. It must similarly determine applications for the grant of club premises 

certificates made in accordance with section 71 of the 2003 Act, and in accordance with 

regulations made under sections 71(4) to (7), 84, 91 and 92 of the 2003 Act. This 

means that the licensing authority must consider among other things whether the 

application has been properly advertised in accordance with those regulations. 

Where no representations are made 

9.2 A hearing is not required where an application has been properly made and no 

responsible authority or other person has made a relevant representation or where 

representations are made and subsequently withdrawn. In these cases, the licensing 

authority must grant the application in the terms sought, subject only to conditions which 

are consistent with the operating schedule and relevant mandatory conditions under the 

2003 Act. This should be undertaken as a simple administrative process by the licensing 

authority’s officials who should replicate the proposals contained in the operating 

schedule to promote the licensing objectives in the form of clear and enforceable licence 

conditions. Licensing authorities should not hold hearings for uncontested applications, 

for example in situations where representations have been made and conditions have 

subsequently been agreed. 

Where representations are made 

9.3 Where a representation concerning the licensing objectives is made by a responsible 

authority about a proposed operating schedule and it is relevant (see paragraphs 9.4 to 

9.10 below), the licensing authority’s discretion will be engaged. It will also be engaged 

if another person makes relevant representations to the licensing authority, which are 

also not frivolous or vexatious (see paragraphs 9.4 to 9.10 below). Relevant 

representations can be made in opposition to, or in support of, an application and can 

be made by any individual, body or business that has grounds to do so. 

Relevant, vexatious and frivolous representations 

9.4 A representation is “relevant” if it relates to the likely effect of the grant of the licence on 

the promotion of at least one of the licensing objectives. For example, a representation 

from a local businessperson about the commercial damage caused by competition from 

new licensed premises would not be relevant. On the other hand, a representation by a 

businessperson that nuisance caused by new premises would deter customers from 

entering the local area, and the steps proposed by the applicant to prevent that 

nuisance were inadequate, would be relevant. In other words, representations should 

relate to the impact of licensable activities carried on from premises on the objectives. 

For representations in relation to variations to be relevant, they should be confined to 

Page 105

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 11



Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 I 69 

the subject matter of the variation. There is no requirement for a responsible authority or 

other person to produce a recorded history of problems at premises to support their 

representations, and in fact this would not be possible for new premises. 

9.5 It is for the licensing authority to determine whether a representation (other than a 

representation from responsible authority) is frivolous or vexatious on the basis of what 

might ordinarily be considered to be vexatious or frivolous. A representation may be 

considered to be vexatious if it appears to be intended to cause aggravation or 

annoyance, whether to a competitor or other person, without reasonable cause or 

justification. Vexatious circumstances may arise because of disputes between rival 

businesses and local knowledge will therefore be invaluable in considering such 

matters. Licensing authorities can consider the main effect of the representation, and 

whether any inconvenience or expense caused by it could reasonably be considered to 

be proportionate. 

9.6 Frivolous representations would be essentially categorised by a lack of seriousness. 

Frivolous representations would concern issues which, at most, are minor and in 

relation to which no remedial steps would be warranted or proportionate. 

9.7 Any person who is aggrieved by a rejection of their representations on either of these 

grounds may lodge a complaint through the local authority’s corporate complaints 

procedure. A person may also challenge the authority’s decision by way of judicial 

review. 

9.8 Licensing authorities should not take decisions about whether representations are 

frivolous, vexatious or relevant to the licensing objectives on the basis of any political 

judgement. This may be difficult for councillors who receive complaints from residents 

within their own wards. If consideration is not to be delegated, contrary to the 

recommendation in this Guidance, an assessment should be prepared by officials for 

consideration by the sub- committee before any decision is taken that necessitates a 

hearing. Any councillor who considers that their own interests are such that they are 

unable to consider the matter independently should disqualify themselves. 

9.9 It is recommended that, in borderline cases, the benefit of the doubt about any aspect of 

a representation should be given to the person making that representation. The 

subsequent hearing would then provide an opportunity for the person or body making 

the representation to amplify and clarify it. 

9.10 Licensing authorities should consider providing advice on their websites about how any 

person can make representations to them. 

The role of responsible authorities 

9.11 Responsible authorities under the 2003 Act are automatically notified of all new 

applications. While all responsible authorities may make representations regarding 

applications for licences and club premises certificates and full variation applications, it 

is the responsibility of each responsible authority to determine when they have 

appropriate grounds to do so. 

  

Page 106

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 11



70 | Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 

9.12 Each responsible authority will be an expert in their respective field, and in some cases 

it is likely that a particular responsible authority will be the licensing authority’s main 

source of advice in relation to a particular licensing objective. For example, the police 

have a key role in managing the night-time economy and should have good working 

relationships with those operating in their local area5. The police should usually 

therefore be the licensing authority’s main source of advice on matters relating to the 

promotion of the crime and disorder licensing objective. However, any responsible 

authority under the 2003 Act may make representations with regard to any of the 

licensing objectives if they have evidence to support such representations. Licensing 

authorities must therefore consider all relevant representations from responsible 

authorities carefully, even where the reason for a particular responsible authority’s 

interest or expertise in the promotion of a particular objective may not be immediately 

apparent. However, it remains incumbent on all responsible authorities to ensure that 

their representations can withstand the scrutiny to which they would be subject at a 

hearing. 

Licensing authorities acting as responsible authorities 

9.13 Licensing authorities are included in the list of responsible authorities. A similar 

framework exists in the Gambling Act 2005. The 2003 Act does not require responsible 

authorities to make representations about applications for the grant of premises licences 

or to take any other steps in respect of different licensing processes. It is, therefore, for 

the licensing authority to determine when it considers it appropriate to act in its capacity 

as a responsible authority; the licensing authority should make this decision in 

accordance with its duties under section 4 of the 2003 Act. 

9.14 Licensing authorities are not expected to act as responsible authorities on behalf of 

other parties (for example, local residents, local councillors or community groups) 

although there are occasions where the authority may decide to do so. Such parties can 

make relevant representations to the licensing authority in their own right, and it is 

reasonable for the licensing authority to expect them to make representations 

themselves where they are reasonably able to do so. However, if these parties have 

failed to take action and the licensing authority is aware of relevant grounds to make a 

representation, it may choose to act in its capacity as responsible authority. 

9.15 It is also reasonable for licensing authorities to expect that other responsible authorities 

should intervene where the basis for the intervention falls within the remit of that other 

responsible authority. For example, the police should make representations where the 

representations are based on concerns about crime and disorder. Likewise, it is 

reasonable to expect the local authority exercising environmental health functions to 

make representations where there are concerns about noise nuisance. Each 

responsible authority has equal standing under the 2003 Act and may act independently 

without waiting for representations from any other responsible authority. 

9.16 The 2003 Act enables licensing authorities to act as responsible authorities as a means 

of early intervention; they may do so where they consider it appropriate without having 

to wait for representations from other responsible authorities. For example, the licensing 

                                                
5
 Police and Crime Commissioners are expected to have a central role working in partnership with local authorities, enforcement 

bodies and other local partners to decide on what action is needed to tackle alcohol- related crime and disorder in their areas. 
However, the Chief Officer of Police remains the named responsible authority under the 2003 Act. 

Page 107

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 11



Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 I 71 

authority may (in a case where it has applied a cumulative impact policy) consider that 

granting a new licence application will add to the cumulative impact of licensed 

premises in its area and therefore decide to make representations to that effect, without 

waiting for any other person to do so. 

9.17 In cases where a licensing authority is also acting as responsible authority in relation to 

the same process, it is important to achieve a separation of responsibilities within the 

authority to ensure procedural fairness and eliminate conflicts of interest. In such cases 

licensing determinations will be made by the licensing committee or sub committee 

comprising elected members of the authority (although they are advised by a licensing 

officer). Therefore, a separation is achieved by allocating distinct functions (i.e. those of 

licensing authority and responsible authority) to different officials within the authority. 

9.18 In these cases, licensing authorities should allocate the different responsibilities to 

different licensing officers or other officers within the local authority to ensure a proper 

separation of responsibilities. The officer advising the licensing committee (i.e. the 

authority acting in its capacity as the licensing authority) must be a different person from 

the officer who is acting for the responsible authority. The officer acting for the 

responsible authority should not be involved in the licensing decision process and 

should not discuss the merits of the case with those involved in making the 

determination by the licensing authority. For example, discussion should not take place 

between the officer acting as responsible authority and the officer handling the licence 

application regarding the merits of the case. Communication between these officers in 

relation to the case should remain professional and consistent with communication with 

other responsible authorities. Representations, subject to limited exceptions, must be 

made in writing. It is for the licensing authority to determine how the separate roles are 

divided to ensure an appropriate separation of responsibilities. This approach may not 

be appropriate for all licensing authorities and many authorities may already have 

processes in place to effectively achieve the same outcome. 

9.19 Smaller licensing authorities, where such a separation of responsibilities is more 

difficult, may wish to involve officials from outside the licensing department to ensure a 

separation of responsibilities. However, these officials should still be officials employed 

by the authority. 

Health bodies acting as responsible authorities 

9.20 Where a local authority’s Director of Public Health in England (DPH)6 or Local Health 

Board (LHB) (in Wales) exercises its functions as a responsible authority, it should have 

sufficient knowledge of the licensing policy and health issues to ensure it is able to fulfil 

those functions. If the authority wishes to make representations, the DPH or LHB will 

need to decide how best to gather and coordinate evidence from other bodies which 

exercise health functions in the area, such as emergency departments and ambulance 

services. 

9.21 Health bodies may hold information which other responsible authorities do not, but 

which would assist a licensing authority in exercising its functions. This information may 

                                                
6
 This change was made as a result of the commencement of measures in the Health and Social Care Act 2012 which amended 

the 2003 Act and further provision in the NHS Bodies and Local Authorities (Partnership Arrangements, Care Trusts, Public 
Health and Local Healthwatch) Regulations 2012. 

Page 108

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 11



72 | Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 

be used by the health body to make representations in its own right or to support 

representations by other responsible authorities, such as the police. Such 

representations can potentially be made on the grounds of all four licensing objectives. 

Perhaps the most obvious example is where drunkenness leads to accidents and 

injuries from violence, resulting in attendances at emergency departments and the use 

of ambulance services. Some of these incidents will be reported to the police, but many 

will not. Such information will often be relevant to the public safety and crime and 

disorder objectives. 

9.22 However, health bodies are encouraged to make representations in respect of any of 

the four licensing objectives without necessarily seeking views from other responsible 

authorities where they have appropriate evidence to do so. There is also potential for 

health bodies to participate in the licensing process in relation to the protection of 

children from harm. This objective not only concerns the physical safety of children, but 

also their moral and psychological well being. 

9.23 Evidence relating to under 18s alcohol-related emergency department attendance, 

hospital admissions and underage sales of alcohol, could potentially have implications 

for both the protection of children from harm and the crime and disorder objectives. 

Health bodies can provide evidence to lead or support representations in relation to this 

objective. In relation to proxy purchases, data collected by health bodies could be used 

to inform other responsible authorities, including the police and licensing authorities, 

about a prevalence of proxy purchasing in a particular area. For example, the police 

could use this data to tackle instances of ‘shoulder tapping’ (where under 18s approach 

adults to buy alcohol on their behalf) and to suggest measures which retailers might be 

able to take to ensure, as far as possible, that they are not knowingly selling alcohol to 

an adult who is buying on behalf of a person aged under 18. Although less obvious, 

health bodies may also have a role to play in the prevention of public nuisance where its 

effect is prejudicial to health and where they hold relevant data. 

9.24 DPHs and LHBs will need to consider how to collect anonymised information about 

incidents that relate to specific premises or premises in a particular area (for example, a 

cumulative impact zone). Many areas have already developed procedures for local 

information sharing to tackle violence, which could provide useful evidence to support 

representations. The College of Emergency Medicine has issued guidelines for 

information sharing to reduce community violence which recommends that data about 

assault victims should be collected upon admission to emergency departments, 

including the date, time and location of the assault – i.e. the name of the pub, club or 

street where the incident occurred. Sometimes, it may be possible to link ambulance 

callouts or attendances at emergency departments to irresponsible practices at specific 

premises, such as serving alcohol to people who are intoxicated or targeting promotions 

involving unlimited or unspecified quantities of alcohol at particular groups. 

  

Page 109

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 11



Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 I 73 

Home Office Immigration Enforcement acting as a responsible 
authority   

9.25 The Immigration Act 2016 made the Secretary of State a responsible authority in 

respect of premises licensed to sell alcohol or late night refreshment with effect from 6 

April 2017. In effect this conveys the role of responsible authority to Home Office 

Immigration Enforcement who exercises the powers on the Secretary of State’s behalf. 

When Immigration Enforcement exercises its powers as a responsible authority it will do 

so in respect of the prevention of crime and disorder licensing objective because it is 

concerned with the prevention of illegal working or immigration offences more broadly.  

Disclosure of personal details of persons making representations 

9.26 Where a notice of a hearing is given to an applicant, the licensing authority is required 

under the Licensing Act 2003 (Hearings) Regulations 2005 to provide the applicant with 

copies of the relevant representations that have been made. 

9.27 In exceptional circumstances, persons making representations to the licensing authority 

may be reluctant to do so because of fears of intimidation or violence if their personal 

details, such as name and address, are divulged to the applicant. 

9.28 Where licensing authorities consider that the person has a genuine and well-founded 

fear of intimidation and may be deterred from making a representation on this basis, 

they may wish to consider alternative approaches. 

9.29 For instance, they could advise the persons to provide the relevant responsible authority 

with details of how they consider that the licensing objectives are being undermined so 

that the responsible authority can make representations if appropriate and justified. 

9.30 The licensing authority may also decide to withhold some or all of the person’s personal 

details from the applicant, giving only minimal details (such as street name or general 

location within a street). However, withholding such details should only be considered 

where the circumstances justify such action. 

Hearings 

9.31 The Licensing Act 2003 (Hearings) Regulations 2005 governing hearings may be found 

on the www.legislation.gov.uk website. If the licensing authority decides that 

representations are relevant, it must hold a hearing to consider them. The need for a 

hearing can only be avoided with the agreement of the licensing authority, where the 

applicant and all of the persons who made relevant representations have given notice to 

the authority that they consider a hearing to be unnecessary. Where this is the case and 

the authority agrees that a hearing is unnecessary, it must forthwith give notice to the 

parties that the hearing has been dispensed with. Notwithstanding those regulatory 

provisions, in cases where the licensing authority believes that a hearing is still 

necessary, it is recommended that the authority should, as soon as possible, provide 

the parties with reasons in writing for the need to hold the hearing. In cases where only 

‘positive’ representations are received, without qualifications, the licensing authority 

should consider whether a hearing is required. To this end, it may wish to notify the 

persons who made representations and give them the opportunity to withdraw those 

representations. This would need to be done in sufficient time before the hearing to 

ensure that parties were not put to unnecessary inconvenience. 

Page 110

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 11



74 | Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 

9.32 Responsible authorities should try to conclude any discussions with the applicant in 

good time before the hearing. The 2005 Hearings Regulations permit licensing 

authorities to extend a time limit provided for by those Regulations for a specified period 

where it considers this to be necessary in the public interest. For example, if the 

application is amended at the last moment, the licensing committee should consider 

giving other persons time to address the revised application before the hearing 

commences. Where the authority has extended a time limit it must forthwith give a 

notice to the parties involved stating the period of the extension and the reasons for it. 

9.33 The 2005 Hearings Regulations require that representations must be withdrawn 24 

hours before the first day of any hearing. If they are withdrawn after this time, the 

hearing must proceed and the representations may be withdrawn orally at that hearing. 

However, where discussions between an applicant and those making representations 

are taking place and it is likely that all parties are on the point of reaching agreement, 

the licensing authority may wish to use the power given within the hearings regulations 

to extend time limits, if it considers this to be in the public interest. 

9.34 Applicants should be encouraged to contact responsible authorities and others, such as 

local residents, who may be affected by the application before formulating their 

applications so that the mediation process may begin before the statutory time limits 

come into effect after submission of an application. The hearing process must meet the 

requirements of regulations made under the 2003 Act. Where matters arise which are 

not covered by the regulations, licensing authorities may make arrangements as they 

see fit as long as they are lawful. 

9.35 There is no requirement in the 2003 Act for responsible authorities that have made 

representations to attend, but it is generally good practice and assists committees in 

reaching more informed decisions. Where several responsible authorities within a local 

authority have made representations on an application, a single local authority officer 

may represent them at the hearing if the responsible authorities and the licensing 

authority agree. This local authority officer representing other responsible authorities 

may be a licensing officer, but only if this licensing officer is acting as a responsible 

authority on behalf of the licensing authority and has had no role in the licensing 

determination process. This is to ensure that the responsible authorities are represented 

by an independent officer separate from the licensing determination process. 

9.36 As noted in paragraphs 9.13 to 9.19 above, where the licensing officer is acting as a 

responsible authority the relevant steps should be followed to ensure that this individual 

has no role in the decision making process regarding the licensing determination. 

9.37 As a matter of practice, licensing authorities should seek to focus the hearing on the 

steps considered appropriate to promote the particular licensing objective or objectives 

that have given rise to the specific representation and avoid straying into undisputed 

areas. A responsible authority or other person may choose to rely on their written 

representation. They may not add further representations to those disclosed to the 

applicant prior to the hearing, but they may expand on their existing representation and 

should be allowed sufficient time to do so, within reasonable and practicable limits.  

9.38 In determining the application with a view to promoting the licensing objectives in the 

overall interests of the local community, the licensing authority must give appropriate 

weight to: 

Page 111

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 11



Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 I 75 

•  the steps that are appropriate to promote the licensing objectives; 

•  the representations (including supporting information) presented by all the parties; 

•  this Guidance; 

•  its own statement of licensing policy. 

9.39 The licensing authority should give its decision within five working days of the 

conclusion of the hearing (or immediately in certain specified cases) and provide 

reasons to support it. This will be important if there is an appeal by any of the parties. 

Notification of a decision must be accompanied by information on the right of the party 

to appeal. After considering all the relevant issues, the licensing authority may grant the 

application subject to such conditions that are consistent with the operating schedule. 

Any conditions imposed must be appropriate for the promotion of the licensing 

objectives; there is no power for the licensing authority to attach a condition that is 

merely aspirational. For example, conditions may not be attached which relate solely to 

the health of customers rather than their direct physical safety. Any conditions added to 

the licence must be those imposed at the hearing or those agreed when a hearing has 

not been necessary. 

9.40 Alternatively, the licensing authority may refuse the application on the grounds that this 

is appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives. It may also refuse to specify 

a designated premises supervisor and/or only allow certain requested licensable 

activities. In the interests of transparency, the licensing authority should publish 

hearings procedures in full on its website to ensure that those involved have the most 

current information. 

9.41 In the context of variations or minor variations, which may involve structural alteration to 

or change of use of a building, the decision of the licensing authority will not exempt an 

applicant from the need to apply for building control approval, planning permission or 

both of these where appropriate. 

Determining actions that are appropriate for the promotion of the 
licensing objectives 

9.42 Licensing authorities are best placed to determine what actions are appropriate for the 

promotion of the licensing objectives in their areas. All licensing determinations should 

be considered on a case-by-case basis. They should take into account any 

representations or objections that have been received from responsible authorities or 

other persons, and representations made by the applicant or premises user as the case 

may be. 

9.43 The authority’s determination should be evidence-based, justified as being appropriate 

for the promotion of the licensing objectives and proportionate to what it is intended to 

achieve. 

9.44 Determination of whether an action or step is appropriate for the promotion of the 

licensing objectives requires an assessment of what action or step would be suitable to 

achieve that end. While this does not therefore require a licensing authority to decide 

that no lesser step will achieve the aim, the authority should aim to consider the 

potential burden that the condition would impose on the premises licence holder (such 

as the financial burden due to restrictions on licensable activities) as well as the 

potential benefit in terms of the promotion of the licensing objectives. However, it is 

Page 112

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 11



76 | Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 

imperative that the authority ensures that the factors which form the basis of its 

determination are limited to consideration of the promotion of the objectives and nothing 

outside those parameters. As with the consideration of licence variations, the licensing 

authority should consider wider issues such as other conditions already in place to 

mitigate potential negative impact on the promotion of the licensing objectives and the 

track record of the business. Further advice on determining what is appropriate when 

imposing conditions on a licence or certificate is provided in Chapter 10. The licensing 

authority is expected to come to its determination based on an assessment of the 

evidence on both the risks and benefits either for or against making the determination. 

Considering cases where licensing and planning applications are 
made simultaneously 

9.45 Where businesses have indicated, when applying for a licence under the 2003 Act, that 

they have also applied for planning permission or that they intend to do so, licensing 

committees and officers should consider discussion with their planning counterparts 

prior to determination with the aim of agreeing mutually acceptable operating hours and 

scheme designs. 

 

Page 113

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 11



This page is intentionally left blank



Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 I 77 

10. Conditions attached to premises 
licences and club premises certificates 

General 

10.1 This chapter provides further guidance in relation to conditions attached to premises 

licences and club premises certificates. General principles on licence conditions are set 

out in Chapter 1 (see paragraph 1.16). 

10.2 Conditions include any limitations or restrictions attached to a licence or certificate and 

essentially are the steps or actions that the holder of the premises licence or the club 

premises certificate will be required to take or refrain from taking in relation to the 

carrying on of licensable activities at the premises in question. Failure to comply with 

any condition attached to a licence or certificate is a criminal offence, which on 

conviction is punishable by an unlimited fine or up to six months’ imprisonment. The 

courts have made clear that it is particularly important that conditions which are 

imprecise or difficult for a licence holder to observe should be avoided. 

10.3 There are three types of condition that may be attached to a licence or certificate: 

proposed, imposed and mandatory. Each of these categories is described in more detail 

below. 

Proposed conditions 

10.4 The conditions that are appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives should 

emerge initially from the risk assessment carried out by a prospective licence or 

certificate holder, which they should carry out before making their application for a 

premises licence or club premises certificate. This would be translated into the steps 

recorded in the operating schedule or club operating schedule, which must also set out 

the proposed hours during which licensable activities will be conducted and any other 

hours during which the premises will be open to the public. 

10.5 It is not acceptable for licensing authorities to simply replicate the wording from an 

applicant’s operating schedule. A condition should be interpreted in accordance with the 

applicant’s intention. 

Consistency with steps described in operating schedule 

10.6 The 2003 Act provides that where an operating schedule or club operating schedule has 

been submitted with an application and there have been no relevant representations made 

by responsible authorities or any other person, the licence or certificate must be granted 

subject only to such conditions as are consistent with the schedule accompanying the 

application and any mandatory conditions required under the 2003 Act. 

10.7 Consistency means that the effect of the condition should be substantially the same as 

that intended by the terms of the operating schedule. If conditions are broken, this may 

lead to a criminal prosecution or an application for a review and it is extremely important 

therefore that they should be expressed on the licence or certificate in unequivocal and 

unambiguous terms. The duty imposed by conditions on the licence holder or club must 

be clear to the licence holder, club, enforcement officers and the courts. 

Page 115

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 12



78 | Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 

Imposed conditions 

10.8 The licensing authority may not impose any conditions unless its discretion has been 

exercised following receipt of relevant representations and it is satisfied as a result of a 

hearing (unless all parties agree a hearing is not necessary) that it is appropriate to 

impose conditions to promote one or more of the four licensing objectives. In order to 

promote the crime prevention licensing objective conditions may be included that are 

aimed at preventing illegal working in licensed premises. This provision also applies to 

minor variations. 

10.9 It is possible that in some cases no additional conditions will be appropriate to promote 

the licensing objectives. 

Proportionality 

10.10 The 2003 Act requires that licensing conditions should be tailored to the size, type, 

location and characteristics and activities taking place at the premises concerned. 

Conditions should be determined on a case-by-case basis and standardised conditions 

which ignore these individual aspects should be avoided. For example, conditions 

should not be used to implement a general policy in a given area such as the use of 

CCTV, polycarbonate drinking vessels or identity scanners where they would not be 

appropriate to the specific premises. Conditions that are considered appropriate for the 

prevention of illegal working in premises licensed to sell alcohol or late night 

refreshment might include requiring a premises licence holder to undertake right to work 

checks on all staff employed at the licensed premises or requiring that a copy of any 

document checked as part of a right to work check is retained at the licensed premises. 

Licensing authorities and other responsible authorities should be alive to the indirect 

costs that can arise because of conditions. These could be a deterrent to holding events 

that are valuable to the community or for the funding of good and important causes. 

Licensing authorities should therefore ensure that any conditions they impose are only 

those which are appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives.  

Naming, packing and promotion in retail premises 

10.11 The Government acknowledges that the irresponsible naming, packing or promotion of 

alcoholic drinks may contribute to alcohol related harms. Where there is direct evidence 

of specific incidents of irresponsible naming, packing or promotion of alcoholic drinks 

linked to the undermining of one of the licensing objectives, licensing authorities should, 

in the exercise of their licensing functions (in particular, in relation to an application for 

the grant, variation or review of a premises licence), consider whether it is appropriate to 

impose conditions on licences that require the licence holder to comply with the 

Portman Group’s Retailer Alert Bulletins. This condition should be considered on a case 

by case basis and in the context of the promotion of the licensing objectives. 

10.12 The Portman Group operates, on behalf of the alcohol industry, a Code of Practice on 

the Naming, Packaging and Promotion of Alcoholic Drinks. The Code seeks to ensure 

that drinks are packaged and promoted in a socially responsible manner and only to 

those who are 18 years old or older. Complaints about products under the Code are 

considered by an Independent Complaints Panel and the Panel’s decisions are 

published on the Portman Group’s website, in the trade press and in an annual report. If 

a product’s packaging or point-of-sale advertising is found to be in breach of the Code, 

Page 116

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 12



Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 I 79 

the Portman Group may issue a Retailer Alert Bulletin to notify retailers of the decision 

and ask them not to replenish stocks of any such product or to display such point-of-

sale material, until there has been compliance with the decision. 

Hours of trading 

10.13 The Government acknowledges that different licensing strategies may be appropriate 

for the promotion of the licensing objectives in different areas. The 2003 Act gives the 

licensing authority power to make decisions about the hours during which premises can 

conduct licensable activities as part of the implementation of its licensing policy 

statement. Licensing authorities are best placed to make decisions about appropriate 

opening hours in their areas based on their local knowledge and in consultation with 

responsible authorities. However, licensing authorities must always consider each 

application and must not impose predetermined licensed opening hours, without giving 

individual consideration to the merits of each application. 

10.14 Where there are objections to an application to extend the hours during which licensable 

activities are to be carried on and the licensing authority determines that this would 

undermine the licensing objectives, it may reject the application or grant it with 

appropriate conditions and/or different hours from those requested. 

10.15 Shops, stores and supermarkets should normally be free to provide sales of alcohol for 

consumption off the premises at any times when the retail outlet is open for shopping 

unless there are good reasons, based on the licensing objectives, for restricting those 

hours. 

The performance of plays 

10.16 The 2003 Act provides that other than for the purposes of public safety, conditions must 

not be attached to premises licences or club premises certificates authorising the 

performance of a play7 which attempt to censor or modify the content of plays in any 

way. Any such condition would be ultra vires the 2003 Act. 

Censorship 

10.17 In general, other than in the context of film classification for film exhibitions, licensing 

authorities should not use their powers under the 2003 Act to seek to impose conditions 

which censor the content of any form of regulated entertainment. This is not a proper 

function of licensing law and cannot be properly related to the licensing objectives. The 

content of regulated entertainment is a matter which is addressed by existing laws 

governing indecency and obscenity. Where the concern is about protecting children, 

their access should be restricted where appropriate. But no other limitation should 

normally be imposed. 

Major festivals and carnivals 

10.18 Licensing authorities should publicise the need for the organisers of major festivals and 

carnivals to approach them at the earliest opportunity to discuss arrangements for 

licensing activities falling under the 2003 Act. For some events, the organisers may 

seek a single premises licence to cover a wide range of activities at varied locations 

                                                
7
 See chapter 15 for when a performance of a play is licensable. 

Page 117

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 12



80 | Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 

within the premises. This would involve the preparation of a substantial operating 

schedule, and licensing authorities should offer advice and assistance about its 

preparation. 

10.19 For other events, applications for many connected premises licences may be made 

which in combination will represent a single festival. It is important that licensing 

authorities should publicise the need for proper co-ordination of such arrangements and 

will need to ensure that responsible authorities are aware of the connected nature of the 

individual applications. 

10.20 Local authorities should bear in mind their ability to seek premises licences from the 

licensing authority for land or buildings under public ownership within the community in 

their own name.8 This could include, for example, village greens, market squares, 

promenades, community halls, local authority owned art centres and similar public areas 

where festivals and carnivals might take place.9  Performers and entertainers would 

then have no need to obtain a licence or give a temporary event notice themselves to 

enable them to give performances in these places, although they would need the 

permission of the local authority to put on the event. 

Fixed prices 

10.21 Licensing authorities should not attach standardised blanket conditions promoting fixed 

prices for alcoholic drinks to premises licences or club licences or club premises 

certificates in an area. This may be unlawful under current law. However, it is important 

to note that the mandatory conditions made under sections 19A and 73B of the 2003 

Act prohibit a number of types of drinks promotions including where they give rise to a 

significant risk to any one of the four licensing objectives; the mandatory conditions also 

prohibit the sale of alcohol below the permitted price, as defined in paragraph 10.56. 

10.22 Where licensing authorities are asked by the police, other responsible authorities or 

other persons to impose restrictions on promotions in addition to those restricted by the 

mandatory conditions, they should consider each application on its individual merits, 

tailoring any conditions carefully to cover only irresponsible promotions in the particular 

and individual circumstances of any premises where these are appropriate for the 

promotion of the licensing objectives. In addition, when considering any relevant 

representations which demonstrate a clear causal link between sales promotions or 

price discounting and levels of crime and disorder on or near the premises, it would be 

appropriate for the licensing authority to consider the imposition of a new condition 

prohibiting irresponsible sales promotions or the discounting of prices of alcoholic 

beverages at those premises. However, before pursuing any form of restrictions at all, 

licensing authorities should take their own legal advice. 

  

                                                
8
 No licence is required for any entertainment provided by or on behalf of a local authority, see paragraphs 15.16-15.19 

9
 The register of public spaces: https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/licensed-spaces-register 

Page 118

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 12



Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 I 81 

Large capacity venues used exclusively or primarily for the 
“vertical” consumption of alcohol (HVVDs) 

10.23 Large capacity “vertical drinking” premises, sometimes called High Volume Vertical 

Drinking establishments (HVVDs), are premises with exceptionally high capacities, 

which are used primarily or exclusively for the sale and consumption of alcohol, and 

have little or no seating for patrons. Previous research has demonstrated that the 

environment within such establishments can have a significant bearing on the likelihood 

of crime and disorder. 

10.24 Where appropriate, conditions can be attached to premises licences for the promotion of 

the prevention of crime and disorder at such premises that require the premises to 

observe: 

•  a prescribed capacity; 

•  an appropriate ratio of tables and chairs to customers based on the capacity; and 

•  a requirement that security staff holding the appropriate SIA licence or exemption are 

present to control entry for the purpose of compliance with the capacity limit and to 

deny entry to individuals who appear drunk or disorderly or both. 

Mandatory conditions in relation to the supply of alcohol 
 

10.25 The 2003 Act provides for the following mandatory conditions to be included in every 

licence and/or club premises certificate in the circumstances specified. 

Designated premises supervisor 

10.26 The 2003 Act provides that, where a premises licence authorises the supply of alcohol, 

it must include a condition that no supply of alcohol may be made at a time when no 

designated premises supervisor has been specified in the licence or at a time when the 

designated premises supervisor does not hold a personal licence or the personal 

licence has been suspended. 

10.27 The main purpose of the ‘designated premises supervisor’ as defined in the 2003 Act is 

to ensure that there is always one specified individual among these personal licence 

holders who can be readily identified for the premises where a premises licence is in 

force. That person will normally have been given day to day responsibility for running 

the premises by the premises licence holder. The requirements set out in relation to the 

designated premises supervisor and authorisation of alcohol sales by a personal licence 

holder do not apply to community premises in respect of which a successful application 

has been made to disapply the usual mandatory conditions in sections 19(2) and 19(3) 

of the 2003 Act (see Chapter 4 of this Guidance). 

10.28 The 2003 Act does not require a designated premises supervisor or any other personal 

licence holder to be present on the premises at all times when alcohol is sold. However, 

the designated premises supervisor and the premises licence holder remain responsible 

for the premises at all times including compliance with the terms of the 2003 Act and 

conditions attached to the premises licence to promote the licensing objectives. 

  

Page 119

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 12



82 | Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 

Authorisation by personal licence holders 

10.29 In addition, every premises licence that authorises the sale of alcohol must require that 

every supply of alcohol under the premises licence must be made or authorised by a 

person who holds a personal licence. This in most instances will be the designated 

premises supervisor who must hold a valid personal licence. Any premises at which 

alcohol is sold or supplied may employ one or more personal licence holders. This does 

not mean that the condition should require the presence of the designated premises 

supervisor or any other personal licence holder on the premises at all times. 

10.30 Similarly, the fact that every supply of alcohol must be made under the authority of a 

personal licence holder does not mean that only personal licence holders can make 

sales or that they must be personally present at every transaction. A personal licence 

holder may authorise members of staff to make sales of alcohol but may be absent at 

times from the premises when a transaction takes place. However, the responsible 

personal licence holder may not be able to escape responsibility for the actions of 

anyone authorised to make sales. 

10.31 “Authorisation” does not imply direct supervision by a personal licence holder of each 

sale of alcohol. The question arises as to how sales can be authorised. Ultimately, 

whether an authorisation has been given is a question of fact that would have to be 

decided by the courts on the evidence before it in the course of a criminal prosecution. 

10.32 The following factors should be relevant in considering whether or not an authorisation 

has been given: 

•  the person(s) authorised to sell alcohol at any particular premises should be clearly 

identified; 

•  the authorisation should have specified the acts which may be carried out by the 

person who is authorised to supply alcohol; 

•  there should be an overt act of authorisation, for example, a specific written 

statement given to the individual who is authorised to supply alcohol; and 

•  there should be in place sensible arrangements for the personal licence holder to 

monitor the activity that they have authorised on a reasonably regular basis. 

10.33 It is strongly recommended that personal licence holders give specific written 

authorisations to individuals whom they are authorising to retail alcohol. A single written 

authorisation would be sufficient to cover multiple sales over an unlimited period. This 

would assist personal licence holders in demonstrating due diligence should issues 

arise with enforcement authorities; and would protect employees if they themselves are 

challenged in respect of their authority to sell alcohol. 

10.34 Written authorisation is not a requirement of the 2003 Act and its absence alone could 

not give rise to enforcement action. 

10.35 It must be remembered that while the designated premises supervisor or a personal 

licence holder may authorise other individuals to sell alcohol in their absence, they are 

responsible for any sales that may be made. Similarly, the premises licence holder 

remains responsible for ensuring that licensing law and licence conditions are observed 

at the premises. 

Page 120

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 12



Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 I 83 

Arrangements for the mandatory licence conditions 

10.36 The mandatory conditions made under sections 19A and 73B of the 2003 Act (the 

conditions governing irresponsible promotions, dispensing alcohol directly into the 

mouth, provision of free tap water, age verification, small measures and the prohibition 

on sales of alcohol below the permitted price) do not have to be physically included in 

the licence or certificate but nonetheless will apply to every licence and certificate 

authorising the sale and supply of alcohol for consumption on the premises. The 

mandatory conditions set out in section 19 of the 2003 Act (the requirement for a DPS 

and for all sales to be made or authorised by a personal licence holder) do, however, 

have to be physically included in the licence. The mandatory licence conditions do not 

apply to activities (including the supply of alcohol) authorised by a temporary event 

notice. 

10.37 Whereas the initial mandatory conditions in section 19 of the 2003 Act are set out in 

Annex 1 of the licence, the additional mandatory conditions made under section 19A of 

the 2003 Act are treated as if they were included in existing licences and certificates on 

the date that those conditions came into force. 

10.38 Following their commencement, the mandatory conditions overrode any pre-existing 

conditions already included in a licence or certificate insofar as the mandatory 

conditions were identical to, or inconsistent with or more onerous than, any pre-existing 

conditions. It is not necessary to record on the face of existing licences and certificates 

the impact that the introduction of the mandatory conditions has had on pre-existing 

conditions. 

Irresponsible promotions 

10.39 Under this condition, the “responsible person” (defined in the 2003 Act as the holder of a 

premises licence, designated premises supervisor, a person aged 18 or over who is 

authorised to allow the sale or supply of alcohol by an under 18 or a member or officer 

of a club present on the club premises who can oversee the supply of alcohol) should 

be able to demonstrate that they have ensured that staff do not carry out, arrange or 

participate in any irresponsible promotions. An irresponsible promotion is one that fits 

one of the descriptions below (or is substantially similar), is carried on for the purpose of 

encouraging the sale or supply of alcohol for consumption on the premises. The aim of 

the condition is to prohibit or restrict promotions which encourage people to drink more 

than they might ordinarily do and in a manner which undermines the licensing 

objectives. 

Drinking games 

10.40 Drinking games which require or encourage individuals to drink a quantity of alcohol 

within a time limit, or drink as much alcohol as possible within a time limit or otherwise, 

are prohibited. For example, this may include organised ‘drink downing’ competitions. 

This would not prevent the responsible person from requiring all drinks to be consumed 

or abandoned at, or before, the closing time of the premises. Nor does it necessarily 

prohibit ‘happy hours’ as long as these are not designed to encourage individuals to 

drink excessively or rapidly. 

  

Page 121

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 12



84 | Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 

Large quantities of alcohol for free or a fixed price 

10.41 Irresponsible promotions can include the provision of unlimited or unspecified quantities 

of alcohol free or for a fixed or discounted price, where there is a significant risk that 

such a promotion would undermine one or more of the licensing objectives. This 

includes alcohol provided to the public or to a group defined by a particular 

characteristic, for example, a promotion which offers women free drinks before a certain 

time or “all you can drink for £10”. Promotions can be designed with a particular group in 

mind (for example, over 65s). A common sense approach is encouraged, which may 

include specifying the quantity of alcohol included in it or not targeting a group which 

could become more vulnerable or present a greater risk of crime and disorder as a 

result of excessive alcohol consumption. 

Prizes and rewards 

10.42 The sale, supply or provision of free or discounted alcohol or any other item as a prize 

to encourage or reward the purchase and consumption of alcohol can be within the 

definition of an irresponsible promotion, where there is a significant risk that such a 

promotion would undermine one or more of the licensing objectives. This may include 

promotions under which free or discounted alcohol is offered as a part of the sale of 

alcohol, for example, “Buy one and get two free” and “Buy one cocktail and get a 

second cocktail for 25p”. This includes promotions which involve the provision of free or 

discounted alcohol within the same 24 hour period. 

Posters and flyers 

10.43 Irresponsible promotions can also include the sale or supply of alcohol in association 

with promotional materials on display in or around the premises, which can either be 

reasonably considered to condone, encourage or glamorise anti social behaviour or 

refer to the effects of drunkenness in any favourable manner. 

Dispensing alcohol directly into the mouth 

10.44 The responsible person (see paragraph 10.39) must ensure that no alcohol is dispensed 

directly into the mouth of a customer. For example, this may include drinking games 

such as the ‘dentist’s chair’ where a drink is poured continuously into the mouth of 

another individual and may also prevent a premises from allowing another body to 

promote its products by employing someone to dispense alcohol directly into customers’ 

mouths. An exception to this condition would be when an individual is unable to drink 

without assistance due to a disability. 

Free potable water 

10.45 The responsible person (see paragraph 10.39) must ensure that free potable water is 

provided on request to customers where it is reasonably available on the premises. 

What is meant by reasonably available is a question of fact; for example, it would not be 

reasonable to expect free tap water to be available in premises for which the water 

supply had temporarily been lost because of a broken mains water supply. However, it 

may be reasonable to expect bottled water to be provided in such circumstances. 

  

Page 122

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 12



Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 I 85 

Age verification 

10.46 The premises licence holder or club premises certificate holder must ensure that an age 

verification policy applies to the premises in relation to the sale or supply of alcohol. This 

must as a minimum require individuals who appear to the responsible person (see 

paragraph 10.39) to be under the age of 18 years of age to produce on request, before 

being served alcohol, identification bearing their photograph, date of birth, and either a 

holographic mark or ultraviolet feature. The Home Office encourages licensed premises 

to accept cards bearing the Proof of Age Standards Scheme (PASS) hologram as their 

preferred proof of age, while acknowledging that many other forms of identification meet 

the requirements of the mandatory condition. 

10.47 The premises licence holder or club premises certificate holder must ensure that staff 

(in particular, staff who are involved in the supply of alcohol) are made aware of the 

existence and content of the age verification policy which applies by the premises. 

10.48 The designated premises supervisor (where there is one) must ensure that the supply of 

alcohol at the premises is carried on in accordance with the age verification policy. This 

means that the DPS has personal responsibility for ensuring that staff are not only 

aware of, but are also applying, the age verification policy. 

10.49 It is acceptable, and indeed encouraged, for premises to have an age verification policy 

which requires individuals who appear to the responsible person to be under an age 

greater than 18 to produce such identification on request. For example, if premises have 

a policy that requires any individual that appears to be under the age of 21 to produce 

identification that meets the criteria listed above, this is perfectly acceptable under the 

mandatory code. 

10.50 Licence holders should consider carefully what steps they are required to take to comply 

with the age verification requirements under the 2003 Act in relation to sales of alcohol 

made remotely. These include sales made online, by telephone and mail order sales, 

and alcohol delivery services. Each of these sales must comply with the requirements of 

the 2003 Act. The mandatory condition requires that age verification takes place before 

a person is served alcohol. Where alcohol is sold remotely (for example, online) or 

through a telephone transaction, the sale is made at this point but the alcohol is not 

actually served until it is delivered to the customer. Age verification measures (for 

example, online age verification) should be used to ensure that alcohol is not sold to any 

person under the age of 18. However, licence holders should also consider carefully 

what steps are appropriate to ensure that age verification takes place before the alcohol 

is served (i.e. physically delivered) to the customer to be satisfied that the customer is 

aged 18 or over. It is, therefore, the responsibility of the person serving or delivering the 

alcohol to ensure that age verification has taken place and that photo ID has been 

checked if the person appears to be less than 18 years of age. 

Smaller measures 

10.51 The responsible person (see paragraph 10.39) shall ensure that the following drinks, if 

sold or supplied on the premises, are available in the following measures: 

•  Beer or cider: ½ pint 

•  Gin, rum, vodka or whisky: 25ml or 35ml 

•  Still wine in a glass: 125ml 

Page 123

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 12



86 | Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 

10.52 As well as making the drinks available in the above measures, the responsible person 

must also make customers aware of the availability of these measures by displaying 

them on printed materials available to customers on the premises. This can include 

making their availability clear on menus and price lists, and ensuring that these are 

displayed in a prominent and conspicuous place in the relevant premises (for example, 

at the bar). Moreover, staff must make customers aware of the availability of small 

measures when customers do not request that they be sold alcohol in a particular 

measure. 

10.53 This condition does not apply if the drinks in question are sold or supplied having been 

made up in advance ready for sale or supply in a securely closed container. For 

example, if beer is only available in pre-sealed bottles the requirement to make it 

available in 1/2 pints does not apply. 

10.54 The premises licence holder or club premises certificate holder must ensure that staff 

are made aware of the application of this condition. 

Ban on sales of alcohol below the permitted price 

10.55 The relevant person (the holder of the premises licence, the designated premises 

supervisor (if any) in respect of such a licence, the personal licence holder who makes 

or authorises a supply of alcohol under such a licence, or any member or officer of a 

club present on the premises in a capacity which enables the member or officer to 

prevent the supply in question) shall ensure that no alcohol is sold or supplied for 

consumption on or off the premises for a price which is less than the permitted price. 

10.56 The permitted price is defined as the aggregate of the duty chargeable in relation to the 

alcohol on the date of its sale or supply and the amount of that duty multiplied by a 

percentage which represents the rate of VAT chargeable in relation to the alcohol on the 

date of its sale or supply. Detailed guidance on how to make this calculation and a 

calculator to determine permitted prices for each product are available on the Home 

Office website. 

10.57 Where there is a change to the rate of duty or VAT applying to alcohol (for instance, 

following a Budget), the relevant person should ensure that the permitted price reflects 

the new rates within fourteen days of the introduction of the new rate. 

10.58 It is still permitted to sell alcohol using promotions (as long as they are compatible with 

any other licensing condition that may be in force), and the relevant person should 

ensure that the price of the alcohol is not less than the permitted price. Detailed 

guidance on the use of promotions is given in the guidance document available on the 

Gov.uk website. 

Exhibition of films 

10.59 The 2003 Act provides that where a premises licence or club premises certificate 

authorises the exhibition of a film, it must include a condition requiring the admission of 

children to films to be restricted in accordance with recommendations given either by a 

body designated under section 4 of the Video Recordings Act 1984 specified in the 

licence (currently only the British Board of Film Classification (BBFC)) or by the 

licensing authority itself. 

10.60 The effect of paragraph 5 of Schedule 1 to the 2003 Act is to exempt adverts from the 

Page 124

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 12



Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 I 87 

definition of regulated entertainment, but not exempt them from the definition of 

exhibition of a film. Since the above mandatory condition applies to ‘any film’, it is 

therefore applicable to the exhibition of adverts. 

Door supervision 

10.61 Under section 21 of the 2003 Act, when a condition is included in a premises licence 

that at specified times an individual must be present at the premises to carry out a 

security activity (as defined in section 21(3)(a) by reference to the Private Security 

Industry Act 2001 (“the 2001 Act”)), the licence must include a condition requiring that 

individual to be licensed by the Security Industry Authority (“the SIA”) under the 2001 

Act, or be entitled to carry out that activity by virtue of section 4 of the 2001 Act. 

10.62 A premises licence need not require a person to hold a licence granted by the SIA if that 

person benefits from an exemption under section 4 of the 2001 Act. For example, 

certain employees benefit from an exemption when carrying out conduct in connection 

with a certified sports ground (section 4(6) to (12)). Furthermore, in certain 

circumstances persons benefit from an exemption where they operate under the SIA’s 

Approved Contractor Scheme (section 15). 

10.63 Conditions under section 21 of the 2003 Act should only relate to individuals carrying 

out security activities defined by section 21(3)(a) of the 2003 Act. Therefore, they should 

only relate to an activity to which paragraph 2(1)(a) of Schedule 2 to the 2001 Act 

applies (certain manned guarding activities) and which is licensable conduct within the 

meaning of section 3(2) of that Act. The requirement does not relate to individuals 

performing non-security related activities, and section 21 should not be used in relation 

to any such activities. 

10.64 Section 21 of the 2003 Act continues to ensure that a premises licence need not impose 

such a requirement in relation to those licensed premises which the 2001 Act treats as 

unlicensed premises. Those are: 

•  premises in respect of which there is in force a premises licence authorising a 

performance of a play or an exhibition of a film; 

•  casinos or bingo halls licensed under the Gambling Act 2005; 

•  premises where a club certificate is in force when activities are being carried on 

under the authority of that certificate. 

See paragraph 8(3) of Schedule 2 to the 2001 Act for full details. 

10.65 It should be noted, however, that the 2001 Act will require contractors and a small 

number of employees (those managing/supervising and those supplied under contract) 

to be licensed as manned guards (rather than door supervisors) when undertaking 

licensable conduct on premises to which paragraph 8(3) of Schedule 2 to the 2001 Act 

applies. 

10.66 It is therefore important that if a licensing authority intends that individuals must be 

present to carry out security activities (as defined by section 21(3)(a) of the 2003 Act) 

this should be explicit, as should the mandatory condition for those individuals to hold 

an SIA licence or be entitled to carry out that activity by virtue of section 4 of the 2001 

Act. On the other hand, where a licensing authority intends that individuals must be 

present to carry out other activities (for example, activities related to safety or steward 

activities to organise, advise and direct members of the public), no mandatory condition 

Page 125

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 12



88 | Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 

should be imposed under section 21 of the 2003 Act. In all cases it is important when 

determining whether or not a condition is to be imposed under section 21 of the 2003 

Act to consider whether the activities of any individual working in licensed premises fall 

within the definition of security activities in section 21(3)(a) of the 2003 Act. (Regardless 

of whether a condition is imposed under section 21 of the 2003 Act, under the 2001 Act 

the appropriate SIA licence must be held by any individual performing an activity for 

which they are licensable under that Act.) 

 

Page 126

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 12



PART ONE
Barrow Borough Council 
Licensing Sub-Committee

20th October 2020
Application to vary a Premises Licence

 
Report from:  Senior Licensing Officer
Report Author: Katherine Benson 
Wards:  Hindpool

1.0 Summary and Conclusions 

1.1 This report sets out details of an application to vary a premises licence under 
section 34(1) of the Licensing Act 2003 for Hollywood Rock Cafe, 45-53 
Cavendish Street, Barrow in Furness, Cumbria, LA14 1QD. The applicant is 
Zelina Jones.

1.2 The application is the subject of three valid representations therefore a hearing is 
required.  

1.3 The applicant and the party making the representations have been notified of the 
hearing in accordance with the Licensing Act 2003 (Hearings) Regulations 2005 and 
Licensing Act 2003 (Hearings) (Amendment) Regulations 2005 “the Regulations”. 
Information to accompany the notice of hearing was provided to the applicant and the 
party making representations in accordance with “the Regulations”.

1.4 Appendix 1 to this report provides details of this application.

2.0 Recommendation 
2.1       It is recommended that Licensing Sub-Committee:- 
2.2 Determine whether the application, in accordance with the ‘Guide to Licensing 

Sub-Committee Hearings Procedure’, to vary the licence should be granted, with 
or without changes/conditions, or refused, based on the information in this report 
and as presented at the hearing.

3.0 Background and Proposals 

Background

3.1 The supply of alcohol, provision of regulated entertainment, and sale of late night 
refreshment are licensable activities under s.1 Licensing Act 2003 (“the Act”). 
Authorisation from the Council, in its role as the licensing authority, is required in 
order to carry on any of these activities at premises within the Borough.

Page 127

Agenda Item 10



3.2 The Licensing Act 2003 provides a clear focus on the promotion of four statutory 
objectives which must be addressed when licensing functions are undertaken. 
The licensing objectives are:

 The prevention of crime and disorder;
 Public safety;
 The prevention of public nuisance; and
 The protection of children from harm.

Each objective is of equal importance. There are no other statutory licensing 
objectives, so that the promotion of the four objectives is a paramount 
consideration at all times.

3.3 Under s. 34(1) an application to vary a premises licence must be made to the 
relevant Licensing Authority subject to ss.54 and 55 (form of application and fees 
to accompany an application). Barrow Borough Council is the licensing authority 
for the Borough of Barrow-in-Furness.

3.4 Where a premises licence holder wishes to amend the licence, the 2003 Act in 
most cases permits an application to vary to be made rather than requiring a new 
application for a premises licence.

3.5 Under the scheme of delegation adopted by the Council, the Licensing Sub-
Committee (“the Sub-Committee”) is responsible for the exercise of many of the 
functions of the licensing authority, including determination of premises licence 
applications where representations have been received.

3.6 The Health Protection (Coronavirus, Restrictions)(No.2) 
(England)(Amendment)(No.5) Regulations 2020 4A(1) currently require licensed 
premises to close between 22.00 and 05.00. If this application is granted, the new 
opening hours will not take effect until the Regulations have been 
amended/removed.

3.7 Although the Licensing Act 2003 contains no statutory definition of a nightclub, 
Hollywood Rock Cafe is a nightclub used for vertical drinking and dancing 
purposes. The Health Protection (Coronavirus, Restrictions)(No.2)(England) 
Regulations 2020 Schedule 2, 1 currently mandate nightclubs to remain closed, 
however a business may re-open provided it is repurposed for customers to 
remain seated. They must still remain closed between 22.00 and 05.00. 
Hollywood Rock Café has recently re-opened to the public repurposed to allow 
customers to be seated.

The Application

3.8 On 17th August 2020, under s.34(1) of the Act, an application was made to the 
Licensing Authority by Zelina Jones, in relation to premises Hollywood Rock 
Cafe, 45-53 Cavendish Street, Barrow in Furness, Cumbria, LA14 1QD to vary 
their premises licence. The applicant is seeking:

Page 128

Agenda Item 10



 To vary their hours for supply of alcohol, recorded music, performances of 
dance to add an extra hour Thursday – Sunday.

 To vary their licence to add off sales of alcohol.
 To vary their hours for late night refreshment, by adding an extra two 

hours Thursday – Sunday.
 Opening hours are therefore also being updated, with some seasonal 

variations.
 Updated plan of the premises, to incorporate a new takeaway.

3.9 Pages 12 and 14 of the application (Appendix 1) contain a discrepancy in the 
hours for late night refreshment Monday – Wednesday and the opening hours 
Monday – Wednesday. The applicant has confirmed that no changes are being 
made to the existing licence for those days (Appendix 2).

3.10 A copy of their existing licence is attached at Appendix 3. Tabulated below 
summarises the variation requested and the existing provisions.

*Section 11 of the Business and Planning Act 2020 has made amendments to 
the 2003 Act providing automatic permission for premises with on sales only to 
provide off sales without seeking additional permission from the Licensing 
Authority, until 30 September 2021. Using this automatic permission is subject 
to a cut off time of 11pm.

Licensable 
activity:

Variation requested: Existing licensable activity 
hours:

Supply of Alcohol
(on the premises)

Thursday - Sunday
3am – 4am

Monday – Sunday 
11am – 3am

Add off sales of 
alcohol*

Monday – Wednesday 
11am – 3am
Thursday – Sunday 
11am – 4am

No current provision for off 
sales

Recorded music Thursday - Sunday
3am – 4am

Monday – Sunday 
11am – 3am

Performances of 
dance

Thursday - Sunday
3am – 4am

Monday – Sunday 
11am – 3am

Late Night 
Refreshment (the 
sale of hot food 
and hot drink 
between 11pm – 
5am)

Thursday – Sunday
3am – 5am

Monday – Sunday 
11pm – 3am

Opening Hours of 
the Premises

Thursday – Sunday 
3am – 5am 
New Years Eve – 24 hours
Boxing Night 3am – 5am

Monday – Sunday 
11am – 3.30am

Page 129

Agenda Item 10



3.11 In accordance with s.17(5) the Applicant advertised the application within the 
prescribed period however the content was incorrect so it was republished on 4th 
September. This extended the consultation date to 23rd September 2020. A 
notice has been displayed on the premises about the application to vary the 
licence.

3.12 Additionally notice of application has been given by the Applicant through service 
of a copy of the application to the specified responsible authorities (this obligation 
is fulfilled by officers where the application was given electronically, sent on 17th 
August 2020), satisfying s 17(6) of the Act. 

3.13 Failure to comply with these requirements would render an application invalid.  

3.14 Promotion of Licensing Objectives 
The applicant provides details on Page 16 of their variation application of the 
steps they intend to take to meet the four licensing objectives. These steps would 
in turn, where applicable, be made into conditions to be attached to the premises 
licence, if the variation application is granted.

3.15 Members can only lawfully consider the matters which are being requested as 
part of the variation application. It is not within the Licensing Sub-Committees 
remit to consider their current licence permissions.

3.16 Representations 

3.17 Section 18(3) of the Act states that where relevant representations are made, the 
authority must hold a hearing to consider them, unless the authority, the applicant 
and each person who has made representations agree that a hearing is 
unnecessary.

3.18 The Licensing Authority has received relevant representations and therefore has 
given notice of the hearing to the Applicant an those persons who have made 
relevant representations (as defined by s. 18(6)) as required by Sch.2 and 
regulation 6 Licensing Act 2003 (Hearings) Regulations 2005.

3.19 The Council has consulted with the following responsible authorities:-  

 Licensing Authority (Barrow Borough Council*) (s.13(4)(g))
 The Local Planning Authority (s.13(4)(d))
 Environmental Protection Team (s.13(4)(e))
 Chief Officer of Police (s.13(4)(a))
 Health and Safety Officer (s.13(4)(c))
 Divisional Officer, Cumbria Fire and Rescue (s.13(4)(b))
 Trading Standards (s.13(4)(f)(ii))
 Public Health (s.13(4)(e))
 Safeguarding and Review, Child Protection (s.13(4)(f)(i)); and

Page 130

Agenda Item 10



 Home Office Immigration Enforcement (The Immigration Act 2016 
made the Secretary of State a responsible authority in respect of 
premises licensed to sell alcohol)

*A licensing authority must carry out its function under the act with a view to 
promoting the licensing objectives and its licensing statement (s.4).

3.20 Representations from responsible authorities

3.21 On 7th September 2020 Cumbria Police made a representation objecting to the 
grant of the variation application. A copy of the full representation is at Appendix 
4 The content of the representation is summarised below:

Concerns raised Licensing objective(s)
Number of crimes in/around the location Prevention of crime and disorder

Serious offences committed in/around 
the location

Prevention of crime and disorder
Public safety

Ability for police to respond to incidents Public safety
Prevention of crime and disorder

There have been no other representations from Responsible Authorities.

3.22 Representations from other parties

3.23 There have been two representations from other parties, which are summarised 
below.

Appendix Name/organisation Concerns raised Licensing 
objective(s)

5 Mr Simon Crompton – The 
Lounge Group

- Violent incidents
- Alcohol 

intoxication – 
after 1:30am

- Alcohol related 
problems in the 
area

Public safety

Prevention of 
crime and 
disorder

6 Mr Brian White – on behalf 
of Coastal Cars/taxi trade

- Visible disorder
- Alcohol related 

social, domestic 
and violence

- Amount of 
incidents 
unreported and 
unseen

- Rise in noise
- Drink and drugs

Prevention of 
crime and 
disorder

Public safety

Prevention of 
public 
nuisance

Page 131

Agenda Item 10



- Extended hours 
could leave the 
public stranded 
in town

3.24 For members information, below summarises nearby licensed premises and their 
licensable hours for supply of alcohol and late night refreshment on the premises. 
Please note that although premises are licensed to supply alcohol and/or provide 
late night refreshment until a certain time, they may choose not to remain open 
until this time. Some licences also have seasonal variations, for example to 
supply alcohol for a longer period on bank holidays, at Christmas etc.

Name of Premises Licensable hours for supply of 
alcohol

Theatre Bar, Cavendish Street 10:00 – 04:00 Monday - Sunday
Barrow Labour Club, Cavendish Street 10:00 – 01:00 Monday - Sunday
Mexicana’s, Cavendish Street 11:00 – 03:00 Monday - Sunday
Wrapport, Cavendish Street 08:00 – 03:00 Monday - Sunday
Manhattans, Cavendish Street 11:00 – 04:00 Monday - Sunday
Broadway Sports Bar, Cavendish Street 11:00 – 02:00 Sunday – Wednesday

11:00 – 03:00 Thursday – Saturday
Cross Keys, William Street 09:00 – 04:00 Monday - Sunday
The Lounge and Cloud 9, Dalkeith Street 10:00 – 04:00 Monday - Sunday
Tailors, Dalton Road 09:00 – 00:30 Sunday – Wednesday

09:00 – 03:00 Thursday – Saturday 
The Townhouse, Dalton Road 08:00 – 03:00 Monday - Sunday
Barrow Arms, Cavendish Street 11:00 – 02:00 Sunday

10:30 – 02:00 Monday – Thursday
10:30 - 03:00 Friday - Saturday

Salvana’s, Cavendish Street 12:00 – 00:00 Monday – Saturday
12:00 – 23:30 Sunday

Barrow Indian Cuisine, Cavendish Street 17:00 – 00:00 Monday - Sunday
Izgara Restaurant, Cavendish Street 11:00 – 23:00 Monday - Sunday
Barrow Fiesta, Cavendish Street 10:00 – 23:00 Monday – Saturday

12:00 – 22:30 Sunday
Licensable hours for late night 
refreshment

Mexicana’s, Cavendish Street 23:00 – 03:00 Monday - Sunday
Wrapport, Cavendish Street 23:00 – 03:00 Monday - Sunday
Hot Potato, William Street 23:00 – 05:00 Monday - Sunday
Sizzle Inn, Cavendish Street 23:00 – 03:00 Monday - Sunday
Efes, Cavendish Street 23:00 – 02:00 Monday – Wednesday

23:00 – 04:00 Thursday & Sunday
23:00 – 05:00 Friday - Saturday

Barrow Indian Cuisine, Cavendish Street 23:00 – 00:00 Monday - Sunday
Theatre Bar, Cavendish Street 23:00 – 03:00 Monday - Sunday
Barrow Labour Club, Cavendish Street 23:00 – 01:00 Monday - Sunday
Cross Keys, William Street 23:00 – 04:00 Monday - Sunday
The Lounge and Cloud 9, Dalkeith Street 23:00 – 04:00 Monday - Sunday

Page 132

Agenda Item 10



Tailors, Dalton Road 23:00 – 00:00 Sunday – Wednesday
23:00 – 03:00 Thursday – Saturday 

The Townhouse, Dalton Road 23:00 – 03:00 Monday - Sunday
Yungnein House, Cavendish Street 23:00 – 00:00 Sunday – Thursday

23:00 – 04:00 Friday - Saturday
Mithali, Cavendish Street 23:00 – 03:00 Monday - Sunday

3.25 Borough of Barrow in Furness, Statement of Licensing Policy 2015

3.26 Applications

3.27 The Statement of Licensing Policy makes clear to applicants and persons who 
have made representations the considerations that will be taken into account 
when determining applications. It is also intended to guide the Sub-Committee 
when considering licensing applications; however, the Sub-Committee may 
depart from either the Statement of Licensing Policy or the statutory guidance 
where the circumstances of the application justify it and if there are good reasons 
for doing so.  Full reasons must be given and Sub-Committees should be aware 
that such departures could give rise to an appeal or judicial review.

When considering applications, the Licensing Authority will have regard to: 

• The Licensing Act and licensing objectives 

• Government guidance issued under Section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003

• Any supporting regulations 

• The Statement of Licensing Policy

7.4 When considering applications where representations have been made, the 
Licensing Authority will seek to balance those factors against its duty to promote 
the four licensing objectives and the rights of residents to peace and quiet. 

3.28 The Licensing Objectives 

The Sub-Committee must ensure that all licensing decisions have a direct 
relationship to the promotion of one or more of the licensing objectives. Every 
application should be considered on its merits, and there must not be a 'blanket 
policy' to the extent that it is applied so rigidly that an exercise of discretion in 
each individual case is precluded. Applications must be considered with regard to 
the principles of fair process and the Human Rights Act.

3.29 National Guidance

3.30 Revised guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003.

Section 2 – The Licensing Objectives is attached at Appendix 7.
Section 8 – Applications for Premises Licences is attached at Appendix 8
Section 9 – Determining applications is attached at Appendix 9

Page 133

Agenda Item 10



3.31 The provisions of chapter 10 (Appendix 10) of the statutory guidance highlight 
that only precise, appropriate and proportionate conditions, which promote one or 
more of the licensing objectives, should be attached to the licence or certificate. 
The Sub-Committee should only impose such conditions as are necessary to 
promote the licensing objectives arising out of the consideration of the 
representations received, and should avoid straying into undisputed areas. 
Conditions duplicating other statutory provisions are not considered to be 
appropriate.

3.32 Determination of application for premises licence

3.33 When the Licensing Authority receives an application for a premises licence 
made in accordance with s.34 and it is satisfied that the applicant has complied 
with the requirements imposed under s.17(5) the Licensing Authority must grant 
the licence in accordance with the application subject only to:-

a) Such conditions as are consistent with the operating schedule accompanying the 
application; and

b) Any conditions which must, under ss. 19, 20, 21 be included in the licence 
(mandatory conditions).

3.34 The application must be determined having regard to any relevant 
representations made take such of the steps mentioned below as it considers 
necessary for the promotion of the licensing objectives.

3.35 The steps are:

a) To grant the licence subject to:-

(i) Conditions which are consistent with the Operating 
Schedule, modified to such extent as the Licensing 
Authority considers necessary for the promotion of the 
licensing objectives

(ii) Any applicable mandatory conditions

b) Refuse to grant the premises licence.

3.36 Options

The options available to members are:

1. Grant the application to vary the licence for Hollywood Rock Café as applied 
for;

2. Grant the application to vary the licence for Hollywood Rock Café  with 
additional conditions and/or changes as deemed appropriate, taking into 
account Chapter 10 of the statutory guidance ‘Conditions attached to 
premises licences and club premises certificates’ (Appendix 10);

Page 134

Agenda Item 10



3. Refuse the application to vary the licence.

4.0 Consultation 
4.1 This is a legislation led process; details of the statutory consultation are detailed 

above.

5.0 Alternative Options 
5.1 The requirements of the legislation place restrictions around the options available 

to the Licensing Sub-Committee. The options available are detailed above.

6.0 Contribution to Council Plan Priorities 
6.1 The effective implementation of the Licensing Act 2003 will contribute to an 

improved environment for local residents and other stakeholders. 

7.0 Implications 
7.1 Financial, Resources and Procurement 
7.2 There are no direct financial implications associated with this report, subject to 

the risks set out at paragraph 7.10. 
This application is being processed as part of normal duties and therefore the 
work associated with it is contained within the departmental budget.

7.3 Legal
7.4 The sub-committee must determine the application, taking into account relevant 

representations, the Licensing Act 2003, the regulations made thereunder 
statutory guidance and the Council’s own licensing policy.

7.5 The application meets the requirements of The Licensing Act 2003.

7.6 Human Rights

7.7 The Human Rights 1998 (HRA) requires public bodies to ensure everything they 
do is compatible with Convention Rights and makes it unlawful for a public 
authority to act incompatibly with those Rights. Article 6 (A6) of the European 
Convention on Human Rights (ECHR) is the right to a fair trial. The key elements 
of this include: 

 The right to a fair hearing; 
 The right to a public hearing;
 The right to a hearing before an independent and impartial tribunal;
 The right to a hearing within a reasonable time. 1

7.8 When hearing an application, the proceedings of a non-judicial body such as the 
Licensing Sub Committee, as opposed to an actual Court, need not meet the full 
requirements of A6 where there is a right of appeal from the Licensing Sub 
Committee to a Court that does meet the full A6 standards and can consider all 
aspects of the case (even if that does not include a full re-hearing of the facts). 

Page 135

Agenda Item 10



7.9 While it is good practice to make a hearing before the Licensing Sub Committee 
as A6 compliant as possible, it will not be a breach of the HRA if it is not. Further, 
the hearing of all applications is subject to the principles of Natural Justice and 
the requirement for decisions to be ‘Wednesbury reasonable’.

7.10 Risks 

7.11 An appeal against a decision of the Sub-Committee or a Judicial Review of the 
application process may present financial risks to the Council with regard to any 
award of costs against it.

Any party to an application (that being an applicant or someone who made a 
representation has a right of appeal to the Magistrates Court.

8.0 Equality and Diversity
The arrangements for the Licensing Hearings seek to ensure that all applicants 
and other interested parties receive a fair hearing and that the process is 
accessible to all groups within the community. 

Contact Officers 
Katherine Benson kbenson@barrowbc.gov.uk 

Appendices Attached to this Report 
Appendix No. Name of Appendix 
1 Application to vary a premises licence under the Licensing Act 2003

2 Email from the applicant regarding late night refreshment & opening 
hours Monday – Wednesday 

3 Existing Premises Licence for Hollywood Rock Café 

4 Representation from Cumbria Police

5 Representation from Simon Crompton

6 Representation from Brian White

7 Revised guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 
2003 – Licensing Objectives

8 Revised guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 
2003 – Applications for premises licences

9 Revised guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 
2003 – Determining applications 

10 Revised guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 
2003 – Conditions attached to premises licences and club premises 
certificates

Page 136

Agenda Item 10

mailto:kbenson@barrowbc.gov.uk


Background Documents Available
Name of Background 
document 

Where it is available 

1 Revised Guidance issued 
under section 182 of the 
Licensing Act 2003

2 Licensing Act 2003

3 Alcohol licensing: guidance 
on new temporary off-sales 
permissions

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/explanatory-
memorandum-revised-guidance-issued-under-s-182-of-
licensing-act-2003

https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2003/17/contents 

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/guidance-
for-temporary-alcohol-licensing-provisions-in-the-
business-and-planning-bill/alcohol-licensing-guidance-
on-new-temporary-off-sales-permissions 

 

Page 137

Agenda Item 10

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/explanatory-memorandum-revised-guidance-issued-under-s-182-of-licensing-act-2003
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/explanatory-memorandum-revised-guidance-issued-under-s-182-of-licensing-act-2003
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/explanatory-memorandum-revised-guidance-issued-under-s-182-of-licensing-act-2003
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2003/17/contents
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/guidance-for-temporary-alcohol-licensing-provisions-in-the-business-and-planning-bill/alcohol-licensing-guidance-on-new-temporary-off-sales-permissions
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/guidance-for-temporary-alcohol-licensing-provisions-in-the-business-and-planning-bill/alcohol-licensing-guidance-on-new-temporary-off-sales-permissions
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/guidance-for-temporary-alcohol-licensing-provisions-in-the-business-and-planning-bill/alcohol-licensing-guidance-on-new-temporary-off-sales-permissions
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/guidance-for-temporary-alcohol-licensing-provisions-in-the-business-and-planning-bill/alcohol-licensing-guidance-on-new-temporary-off-sales-permissions


This page is intentionally left blank



��������	
���������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������	���������

������������������������������������������������ �����!���������������"������#�������������$%%&�� '#(�)(�*(�+�,-(��.##./012�01),*3�,0.1)��0*),��4567�5�879��5:�;<�:=�>�67�9���5?>5��5?@�:=5�<A�@?;85�;7:5>�?:�:=5�5;@�76�:=5�67�9B��C6�D7A�?�5�879��5:�;<�:=�>�67�9�ED�=?;@���5?>5�F��:5��5<�E�D��;�E�78G�8?��:?�>B��C;�?���8?>5>�5;>A�5�:=?:�D7A��?;>F5�>�?�5��;>�@5�:=5�E7H5>�?;@�F��::5;��;�E�?8G��;GB��I>5�?@@�:�7;?��>=55:>��6�;585>>?�DB���J7A�9?D�F�>=�:7�G55��?�87�D�76�:=5�879��5:5@�67�9�67��D7A���587�@>B��0K/���LMNCO��PQOMR���������STUVWXY�UZ[WSV\�]̂�Z__̀abZUY\��c�����������!����������������"�d����� ������ �����!���������������"����������&e��f�����#�������������$%%&�f��������!�����"����c�"����'���g�c������'�!���������������!c���hN�i	j��'���g�k�'�!�����+��������h7>:?��?@@�5>>�76���59�>5>�7�l��6�;7;5l�7�@;?;85�>A�m5D�9?���565�5;85�7��@5>8���:�7;�nj�o�ji�p�qMOrCRs�RtuMMt�h7>:�:7F;�4�uuQv�CO�wIuOMRR� h7>:87@5� N�	n�	xr��t5�5�=7;5�;A9E5��?:���59�>5>�y�6�?;Dz� ��������O7;{@795>:�8��?:5?E�5�m?�A5�76���59�>5>� |	}ljj�B����'���$�k�����������"��������r?D:�95�87;:?8:��:5�5�=7;5�;A9E5�� �
j~}	�~}
��M{9?���?@@�5>>�y7�:�7;?�z� ������pA��5;:��7>:?��?@@�5>>��6�@�665�5;:�6�79���59�>5>�?@@�5>>� }}�vMRt�RsQuM�uQ�r�h7>:�:7F;�4�uuQv�CO�wIuOMRR������ h7>:87@5� N�	n�iIr�

Page 139

Agenda Item 10
Appendix 1



��������	
�������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������

������������������������������������������������������ �!���"���������#�$�������!����"�$���%%����������!���������&��'���������(����������� �)���*%�!��+�%��,� "���#����#������ �!���"��$�������!����������%%���'� ������������-�����-���(��(����(����(������� � � � � � � �
�������� �!���"���������#�$�������!����"�$���%%�����!��������!�����"���!���#�����!��%��"�������!�."����$�'�/�����������.��#�!���!����	0����� (��� ���������� �)�����12�32�4235�62�6�2718��92����:2��7��92�;�;�324�<��������/�����������.��#�!���!������0�=>?=)��?*-=@�ABC��DEBFBD�@�D=@�G)?*D�H�,�?�I=�J�(�ABB��@�D=@�G)?*D�K�,�

�*%�������������#�$�������!� ���#�,��!��"���K+�������,����������������L�����#��������!#��"�����,���������!���!����,�+���������������"��!�,&����L�����#��������!#M� ��������

Page 140

Agenda Item 10
Appendix 1



��������	
�������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������

������������������������� ������ ��!"#���$��$%" �����$ �"&�$%��'����$�()�*!%�+,���-��".�.%�!%�.",�+�-�� ,-/�!$�$"�!%�()���&�$%� ������!�$�"(�$"�0��1�� � ,!!�  &,�2����34�5�3��36������������������7����8���5��5������������3���9:� ���������5�����;������������������������<��=����1 �>�&�$�!?�()�1� @�&�����(�-"A��=� �-=�&��# �>�&�$�!?�()�1� @�&�����(�-"A�B=� �!=��(+""�� �"�$�()��0�($ �>�&�$�!?�()�1� @�&�����(�-"A�C=� �+=�-"A�()�"��.�� $��()��($��$��(#�($�>�&�$�!?�()�1� @�&�����(�-"A�D=� ��=���0��#, �!�>�&�$�!?�()�1� @�&�����(�-"A�E=� �&=� ��!"�+�+�#, �!�>�&�$�!?�()�1� @�&�����(�-"A�F=� �)=����&"�#�(!� �"&�+�(!��>�&�$�!?�()�1� @�&�����(�-"A�G=� �%=��(1$%�()�"&��� �#�����+� !���$�"(�$"�$%�$�&����()�.�$%�(�>�=@�>&=�"��>)=��>�&�$�!?�()�1� @�&�����(�-"A�H=� ��� � �� � �� � ���34�5�3��36�������������6��5�7����>�&�$�!?�()�1� @�&�����(�-"A�I=�� ������<�36���3�3��>�&�$�!?�()�1� @�&�����(�-"A�J=� �K������5�5��37������L3M�5�NO�P����Q��

Page 141

Agenda Item 10
Appendix 1



��������	
�������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������

���������������������������������������������������������� ����������������������������� ������������������������������!����"���������� ������������������������������� #������� �$�������� �%�� ����� &������ '���� �(��� ������ ��������������)����������������������������������������������*�������������� ������+��� ������ ������������ ���������������� ���������������������)����������������������������������������������������,�������������� ������+���� ������ ������������ ������&��� ������ ������-�����������������.�����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������/������������������������������������
�������������� ��������� ������ ������������ ���������� ������ ������������ �������

Page 142

Agenda Item 10
Appendix 1



��������	
�������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������

����������������������������������������������������������������� ���������� ��!�������"�"�������#�������������������������������!����$�����������#����������������������������%���� &������� �'�������� �(��� ������ ������ ����� �)��� ������ ������*��������+��"�������������������������������������������������������������� ������,��� ������ ������������ ���������������� �������������������������+����������"�������� ��!�������"�"��������������������������������-�������������� ������,���� ������ ������������ ��������� ������ ������.�������������������/���������������������������������������"�������� ��!�������"�"����������""���������������������������������������������������"�0����������������������������������������
�������������� ���������� ������ ������������ ���������� ������ ������������ �������

Page 143

Agenda Item 10
Appendix 1



��������	
�������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������

���������������������������������������������������������������������������������� ������������ ���!��������������������������������������"��������#��� ������ $����!�%��� ������ ������������ ������&��� ������ ������������������������������������ �������������������������������������������������������������������� ������'��������� ������������ ������&!��� ������ ������(�������������������)��'!�����������������������!����������� �������������������������������  ����������������!���������������!�������������!���� �*����������������������������������������
�������������� ������$��� ������ ������������ ���������� ������ ������������ ���������� ������ ������������ ������� �

Page 144

Agenda Item 10
Appendix 1



��������	
���������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
���������

�������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������� ������ ��!���������������������������������"������������������������!� �#�����������"���������������������������$����� %����� �&������ ����� ������ '���� � �� � �(�� ������ ������)��������*��+��� ����������� ������������������������������,�������������� ������-��� ������ ������������ ���������������� ������������������������*���������+��!���������������������������������������������������������.�������������� ������- ��� ������ ������������ ������'��� ������ ������/������������������0��� ��������������������� �����������+��!������������������������������������++��������������� �������������� ����������� ����+�1���������������������������������������
�������������� ���������� ������ ������������ ���������� ������ ������������ �������

Page 145

Agenda Item 10
Appendix 1



��������	
�������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������

���������������������������������������������������������������������� ������������ ��������� ��������������!�������������������������������"����#�����������!����������������������������$����� %������� �&�������� �'��� ������ (������ )���� �*��� ������ ������+����������� �����������������������������������������������,�������������� ������-��� ������ ������������ ���������������� ������������������������������������ ���������� ��������� ���������������������������������������.�������������� ������-���� ������ ������������ ������(��� ������ ������/�������������������0��������������������������������������� ���������� ��������� �����������������  ��������������������������������������������������� �1����������������������������������������
�������������� ���������� ������ ������������ ���������� ������ ������������ �������

Page 146

Agenda Item 10
Appendix 1



��������	
�������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������

�������������������������������������������������������������������������� ������������������ ������������������!�������������������������������"����#�����������!����������������������������$����� %������� �&�������� �'��� ������ ������� (���� �)��� 		*����+*���,��������-�� �����������������������������������������������.�������������� ������/��� 		*����+*��������� ����������		*����+*����������������������-���������� ���������������� �������������������������������������������0��12��32���242��$�5&6�(&7%18�1%85/�		*��9�$*��������� ������/���� 		*����$*��������� ���������� 		*����$*���1�������������������*��������������������������������������� ���������������� ���������������������  ��������������������������������������������������� �:����������������������������������������
�������������� ���������� 		*����$*��������� ���������� 		*����$*��������� �������

Page 147

Agenda Item 10
Appendix 1



��������	
���������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������	����������

������������������������������������������������ ��!��!��!����"����#!��$�!�%&� '())�*+�,�����������������*�-�,)���(�����������.*���������/�*+�0�,)���*(�-� ��!��!��!����"����#!��$�!�1&���� 2��$$��� �3"��$$��� �4��� ������ 5����6� 7$�6� �8$�� 		9����:9����)���;(<��.�*+���*�()��+�� ��!��!��!����"����#!��$�!�=&������������� ������>"!� 		9����:9��������� ������?!��		9����:9���@*�*���A�������)�<��(�*(��������*+�,����������������� ��!��!��!����"����#!��$�!�B&�CD?�ED�F��DGD��1�H3IF�73J2C��C2�H>�		9��K�19��������� ������>6"�� 		9����19��������� ������5��� 		9����19���L����*�������*(�(�;�M��'+��A�.�(�*���*��.��*+�,��(�������*+�,������������������*��(����*�*(���*��*+���)(�*��(��*+���).������*+�)�*N�,)���)(�*� ��!��!��!����"����#!��$�!�
&������������� ���������� 		9����19��������� �������"�� 		9����19��������� �������

Page 148

Agenda Item 10
Appendix 1



��������	
���������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������		���������

��������������������������������������������������������� !��� ������ �"#$%&$�&�&$'(�$%&�#�)�%*(�+��,$(,��,$&�*-�&$%.,�%/#,�01� 2�,$(,�*�3,�$�&,(.���#�/%�/4�#5,�#'�,�/4�,%#,�#$�%),%#�'/-�6����7,���/3�&�%*�������8$'� "#$�#� 9�%�(5� :����������������������;�������������������<����������=����>�����������;�+��,$(,��,$&�*-�&$%.,�%/#,�?1�� @%&//�(� �A/%� ������ ������ B-#&//�(� ������� ������ C/#5� �D-,� ������ ������E��������F���<�������������������+��,$(,��,$&�*-�&$%.,�%/#,�G1������������� ������H,&������� ������������ ������D5-�� ������ ������I����������������F����������������������������������������������������������������������� !��� ������ ��+��,$(,��,$&�*-�&$%.,�%/#,�J1������������� ������9��� ������ ������������ ������"$#� ������ ������K����������������L��:�������<���������<���������������������������������������������������������������������������������� !��� ������ ��������������������������������������������<������������!�������������+��,$(,��,$&�*-�&$%.,�%/#,�
1������������� ������"-%� ������ ������������ �������

Page 149

Agenda Item 10
Appendix 1



��������	
���������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������	����������

������������������������������������������������� ��!��"��"��"��� #����$"��%�"�&'� (�))�����*�+,���+��+��)����������������������-��*).����/++���+��+0�/++���+��1+���2�*)������.-�!��"��"��"��� #����$"��%�"�3'���� ���%%��� �4#��%%��� �5��� ������ 6����7� 8%�7� �9%�� 		:����3:���;)������,���0������/���)�������!��"��"��"��� #����$"��%�"�<'������������� ������=#"� 		:����3:��������� ������>"��		:����3:���?�����@����+�)�,����+����+������*�+,���+��+��)���������������������!��"��"��"��� #����$"��%�"�A'������������� ������=7#�� 		:����<:��������� ������6��� 		:����<:���B+�����/�/��������C��(�����@+0������/��+�0�������*���������+������*�+,���+��+��)�����������������������/��������������D��+���+���)����/��������.+)0���+������)���D�*)����)����!��"��"��"��� #����$"��%�"�
'������������� ���������� 		:����<:��������� �������#�� 		:����<:��������� �������

Page 150

Agenda Item 10
Appendix 1



��������	
���������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������	����������

���������������������������������������������� ��!��!��!����"����#!��$�!�%&� '(���)�*�+�����������������,*���-���.+�/�)(�.�0���*�+*�)(�1�� ��!��!��!����"����#!��$�!�2&���� 3���4!���!���!�� �355��4!���!���!�� �6��� ������ 7����4� 8$�4� �9$�� 		:�����:���)�)*��.��+*�+�.���;�-(�)(�.+���-�)�*�+����������������� ��!��!��!����"����#!��$�!�<&�=>?�@>�A��>B>��C�D3EA�83FG=H�=GHDI�		:��J�C:��������� ������I"!� 		:�����:��������� ������?!��		:�����:��������� ������I4"�� 		:����C:���K�.L+)�.M�-M�)(/(.N+O��'�*-*�����(.)*.M�)���+*�)�*��-*/(+*+���-�)�*�+������������������)�M(��*-*.)�)(/*+�)��)��+*��(+)*M�(.�)�*�����/.��.�)�*��*�)P���*�+*��(+)� ��!��!��!����"����#!��$�!�
&������������� ������7��� 		:����C:��������� ���������� 		:����C:��������� �������"�� 		:����C:��������� �������Q�
����R�
S�*�+*��(N��(N�)��.���M��)�*.)*-)�(./*.)��-�+*-;(�*+P���)(;()(*+P��)�*-�*.)*-)�(./*.)��-�/�))*-+��.�(���-��)��)�*��+*����)�*��-*/(+*+�)��)�/���N(;*�-(+*�)����.�*-.�(.�-*+�*�)����#4����!�� ��!��!��!����"����#!��$�!�	�&:�������������

Page 151

Agenda Item 10
Appendix 1



��������	
���������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������	����������

���������������������������������������� �� � �!"��� ���#��$"�%��&�"&��&� �$'� ��(&��)�&�*+� ,�������-���������.���������%��&�"&��&� �$'� ��(&��)�&�/+�012�31�4��151����6784�97:;0<�0;<6=�		>��?�@>��������A�!� ������ B���"C�D)�� 		>����E>��������� ������='&� 		>����E>��������� ������2& �		>����E>��������� ������F������G��G������H�I��J�����-�������G���������������������������������������G�KK������������K�������������G����������������������K�L�������������%��&�"&��&� �$'� ��(&��)�&�
+�������=C'�� 		>����@>��������� ������B��� 		>����@>��������� ���������� 		>����@>��������� �������'�� 		>����@>��������� �������M�&�"&�� &���N!��C)"&�()� ���)�"�('��&���!��#�)"& �)���C&���(&�(&�OC�(C�!)'�P&��&Q&�()'� �P&��&#)Q& ��"���()�"&R'&�(&�)N��C&���)�)"& �Q������)��!)'���&�"&&S��$>�������
�

Page 152

Agenda Item 10
Appendix 1



��������	
���������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������	����������

� �������������������������� ����������������������������� �� ����������������������������������������������� ��������������������������������������������������������������������������� ���������������������������!��"������!������������������������������������������������������������������#��������
Page 153

Agenda Item 10
Appendix 1



��������	
���������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������	����������

�������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������� ��!"�#$%$&!'�(�!''�)*+&�',-$%.,%/�*01$-2,3$.�405�-5�6�!%6�$"�47'$!.$�&$!6�/+,6!%-$�%*2$�88"�9:;<��;;=;>=?@;�A=�B@A��?�;�C=@D�EFB:GD��0"�HI$�7&$3$%2,*%�*)�-&,J$�!%6�6,.*&6$&�;K:K��9=L:;@=9=�FF9�;@�CC��;�9=MN:9=�CF9�O�9��?�@�<=�P�D��GG@Q�OF@A�:?@=9?�BBD��?�=R@=9?�BBD�9=GF9:?L��?�:>�L=;�;�Q=�CF9�?F�B=;;�@A�?�	S��D;�T=9F�@FB=9=?G=�9NL;��EFB:GD�� ��;=�9GA�EFB:GD�� �GA�BB=?L=��U�:�EFB:GD� �=Q�GN�@:F?�EFB:GD� �:;E=9;�B�EFB:GD� �?F��BGFAFB�:?�N?;=�B=�GF?@�:?=9;�@F�B=�Q=�E9=>:;=;K���-"�V+0',-�.!)$2W�BFG�B��N@AF9:@D�X�EFB:G=�B:�:;F?�CN?G@:F?:?L�:L:@�B�GG@Q�9=GF9:?L�=R@=9:F9�B:LA@:?L�=?@9�?G=��?�C:9=�=R:@�ENOB:G�;�C=@D�9:;<��;;=;;>=?@�=>=9L=?GD�B:LA@:?L�CF9�EFP=9�C�:BN9=��6"�HI$�7&$3$%2,*%�*)�7+0',-�%+,.!%-$�:;E=9;�B�>F?:@F9=�OD�FF9�;@�CC�@F�=?;N9=�MN:=@��?�MN:G<�>FQ=>=?@�C9F>��9=��=?@9�?G=�F?�G�Q=?:;A�;@9==@�@F�E9=Q=?@�?N:;�?G=�@F��B<=:@A�;@9==@�9=;:=?@;K�>N;:G�B=Q=B;�<=E@�BFP�@F�E9=Q=?@�EFBBN@:F?��9FN?�=R@=9:F9�FC�E9=>:;=;���$"�HI$�7&*2$-2,*%�*)�-I,'6&$%�)&*J�I!&J�VYZHZ�[\�VZ][̂_�̀aHb_�8cd�ea]̀ff�g̀hZb̀ �cV��î Ẑ�Via[̀\�g_�i\e]H�Zb�]iH̀b�[h�Vb[jiH̀�heâ H[Zak��̂Yi]]̀a#̀ �lm�[\�VZ][̂_����

Page 154

Agenda Item 10
Appendix 1



��������	
���������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������	
���������

���������� �������������������������� ��!������ "��#$�%#&�'��(��'�&��#)%(��'*����*+�'���"��#$�('��%#&�'��(��'�&��#)%(��'*����*�,�#-�������#�����#��'(��#��,(�%#&��(���#��'(��'�����(��'&-���'(�'*�����#��(�.����$)/� ����� "��#$��(���'����'*������#�����#��'(�#(&������#(��'����'(��,��#-��'������#(&�'�����0���#�����#,�/� �� "�-(&���#(&���#��"�%-���('0�#&$�����%)�#�����#��'(/� �� "��#$�(��'�&������%�������(��'����$#(���#���'*����'��1��#(#��'(/� �� "�-(&���#(&���#���*�"�&'�('���'%��)�0�������#,'$��2-��%(���%)�#�����#��'(�0����,��3��&/�� ��45�46�78�9::;8<;=�>8?;@�6;<5498�ABC�9:�5D;�E4<;8648F�7<5�GHHI=�59�J7K;�7�:7E6;�6575;J;85�48�9@�48�<988;<5498�L45D�5D46�7��E4<75498M�5D96;�LD9�J7K;�7�:7E6;�6575;J;85�J7N�O;�E47OE;�98�6>JJ7@N�<98P4<5498�59�7�:48;�9:�78N�7J9>85M������ ��B�Q�6�����R �����S��#���#&�.-�&#(��('��	�T��UVWXYZ[\]�̂_�Ỳ àVbYXZ�cZd]�b[\\]XZ�̀\]eVf]f�aVb]Xb]�d̂ag]\h�̂\�Ỳ àVbYXZif��������� �� ���j� ��R�k��R�j� �����������S��#���#&�.-�&#(��('��	lTM��4m������������n�j��m��m��j���oo������=�o���������������pj�����o����kM��q�.(#�-�� rstuvw�xyvsz�{#�� 	|}�~}������#�#���)� �(�#���#(#.���Lj� ���j��o �!����������������������k�j���=�������R ���m�G����oo���������j���R  ����\̀]eVf]f�aVb]Xb]�d̂ag]\h�̂\��Xg�Ỳ àVbYXZif�f̂aVbVẐ\�̂\�̂Zd]\�Y[Zd̂\Vf]g�YW]XZ�S��#���#&�.-�&#(��('��	|TM��4m������������n�j��m��m��j���oo������=�o���������������pj�����o����kM���q�.(#�-�� �{#�� �������#�#���)� �������<���������!���pj� ������o ����R��k��������������� ����m� ���  ��o�������������������p��j��j����oo���������S��#���#&�.-�&#(��('��	�T��������������p�������� ����������������5���oj�����R!n� ���m���k�� ������4m�k�R�p�R���o �m� �R�������  ��o����p��j�k�R�nk���!���=�k�R ���!������� ������o��������������

Page 155

Agenda Item 10
Appendix 1



��������	
���������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������	����������

���������������������������������������������������� ���������������������!������������������"����������������������������������� ������������� ��������#�������"���������������$�%�� ��"������#�&�������� ���������'�����������#������������(� ��������#�&������"����#�������������������������������������)*�������+�������'�,���-../$�� 	0�123�42�526�789:�62��8;�8�<::��<�67:�25�;��3��2=:�2<�67:�98��86�25�<2��>7�?7�;23�8�:�8���;�5@��=�62�892�4�A:?2B�5@���8A�:�<2��67:��86:�5�@76��:9;��0�C:=?��A:�67:���:B�=:=0�D2��:E8B��:F�67:�6;�:�2<���:B�=:=F��6=�@:5:�8��=�6386�25�854��8;236�854�85;�267:���5<2�B86�25�>7�?7�?23�4�A:��:�:9856�62�67:���?:5=�5@�2AG:?6�9:=0�H7:�:�;23��8����?86�25��5?�34:=�2<<I=3����:=�2<�8�?272��854�;23��56:54�62���29�4:�8���8?:�2<�?25=3B�6�25�2<�67:=:�2<<I=3����:=�2<�8�?272�F�;23�B3=6��5?�34:�8�4:=?���6�25�2<�>7:�:�67:���8?:�>����A:�854��6=���2E�B�6;�62�67:���:B�=:=0�J0�K5�6:�B=�2<�=�:?�<�?��:@3�86:4�:56:�68�5B:56=���:8=:�526:�6786L���M�8;=L�52���?:5?:��=��:N3��:4�<2���:�<2�B85?:=�A:6>::5���0���854��J0���25�85;�48;F���29�4:4�6786�67:�834�:5?:�42:=�526�:E?::4�O��0��PQRSTU�VW�RQXYVXY�QT�ZY[\QZY]�̂WZ�_VẀI<2�IaZŴQ̀b�̂QRS�YcdQeQ̀QWV�dYR]�QV�XWSS\VQ̀f���:B�=:=��A:6>::5���0���854��J0���25�85;�48;���29�4:4�6786�67:�834�:5?:�42:=�526�:E?::4�O���854�67:�2�@85�=:��g8h�@:6=�?25=:56�62�67:�=?�::5�5@�<�2B�8��:�=25�>72��=��:=�25=�A�:�<2��67:���:B�=:=i�854�gAh�:5=3�:=�6786�:8?7�=3?7�=?�::5�5@�8A�4:=�A;�8@:�?�8==�<�?86�25��86�5@=0��K5422��=�2�6�5@�:9:56=L�52���?:5?:��=��:N3��:4�<2���:�<2�B85?:=�A:6>::5���0���854��J0���25�85;�48;F���29�4:4�6786�67:�834�:5?:�42:=�526�:E?::4�	���0������j2E�5@�2��H�:=6��5@�k56:�68�5B:56L��52���?:5?:��=��:N3��:4�<2��8�?256:=6F�:E7�A�6�25�2��4�=��8;�2<�l�:?2Im2B85�>�:=6��5@F�2��<�::=6;�:�>�:=6��5@�A:6>::5���0���854��J0���25�85;�48;F���29�4:4�6786�67:�834�:5?:�42:=�526�:E?::4�	���0�n2BA�5:4�<�@76�5@�=�2�6=�o�4:<�5:4�8=�8�?256:=6F�:E7�A�6�25�2��4�=��8;�>7�?7�?2BA�5:=�A2E�5@�2��>�:=6��5@�>�67�25:�2��B2�:�B8�6�8��8�6=�o�8�:���?:5=8A�:�8=�8�A2E�5@�2��>�:=6��5@�:56:�68�5B:56��867:��6785�85��5422��=�2�6�5@�:9:560��p�9:�B3=�?L�52���?:5?:��:�B�==�25��=��:N3��:4�<2�L�q�8��:�<2�B85?:�2<�358B���<�:4���9:�B3=�?�A:6>::5���0���854��J0���25�85;�48;F�25�85;���:B�=:=0�q�8��:�<2�B85?:�2<�8B���<�:4���9:�B3=�?�A:6>::5���0���854��J0���25�85;�48;�25���:B�=:=�83672��=:4�62�=:���8�?272��<2��?25=3B�6�25�25�672=:���:B�=:=F���29�4:4�6786�67:�834�:5?:�42:=�526�:E?::4�O��0�q�8��:�<2�B85?:�2<�8B���<�:4���9:�B3=�?�A:6>::5���0���854��J0���25�85;�48;F��5�8�>2�r��8?:�6786��=�526���?:5=:4�62�=:���8�?272��25�672=:���:B�=:=F���29�4:4�6786�67:�834�:5?:�42:=�526�:E?::4�O��0��q�8��:�<2�B85?:�2<�8B���<�:4���9:�B3=�?�A:6>::5���0���854��J0���25�85;�48;F��5�8�?73�?7�78��F�9���8@:�78��F�?2BB35�6;�78��F�2��267:��=�B��8��?2BB35�6;���:B�=:=F�6786��=�526���?:5=:4�A;�8���:B�=:=���?:5?:�62�=:���8�?272�F���29�4:4�6786�g8h�67:�834�:5?:�42:=�526�:E?::4�O��F�854�gAh�67:�2�@85�=:��@:6=�?25=:56�<2��67:��:�<2�B85?:�<�2B�8��:�=25�>72��=��:=�25=�A�:�<2��67:���:B�=:=0�q�8��:�<2�B85?:�2<�8B���<�:4���9:�B3=�?�A:6>::5���0���854��J0���25�85;�48;F�86�67:�525I�:=�4:56�8����:B�=:=�2<�g�h�8��2?8��83672��6;F�2��g��h�8�=?722�F�2��g���h�8�72=��68�F���29�4:4�6786�g8h�67:�834�:5?:�42:=�526�:E?::4�O��F�854�gAh�67:�2�@85�=:��@:6=�?25=:56�<2��67:��:�<2�B85?:�25�67:��:�:9856���:B�=:=�<�2BL�g�h�67:��2?8��83672��6;�?25?:�5:4F�2��g��h�67:�=?722��2��g���h�67:�7:8�67�?8�:���29�4:��<2��67:�72=��68�0��m:?2�4:4�s3=�?L�52���?:5?:��:�B�==�25��=��:N3��:4�<2�L�q�85;���8;�5@�2<��:?2�4:4�B3=�?�A:6>::5���0���854��J0���25�85;�48;�25���:B�=:=�83672��=:4�62�=:���8�?272��<2��?25=3B�6�25�25�672=:���:B�=:=F���29�4:4�6786�67:�834�:5?:�42:=�526�:E?::4�O��0�q�85;���8;�5@�2<��:?2�4:4�B3=�?�A:6>::5���0���854��J0���25�85;�48;F��5�8�?73�?7�78��F�9���8@:�78��F�?2BB35�6;�78��F�2��267:��=�B��8��?2BB35�6;�

Page 156

Agenda Item 10
Appendix 1



��������	
���������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������	����������

����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������� ���������� ������� ������������!������������������ ��������������"�#�������������� ������������������!�����$"��������%"�������������������������&��������������������� ������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������ ���������� ������������������������������� ��'���������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������� ���������������"���(����'�����������������)������ ������ �����������!�����$"��������%"�������������������������������������������������������������"�*�!����������� �������!���������������������������������������������������"�+�,�����������������������'�����������������)���������!�����$"��������%"���������������!��������������������������-�� ��'����#��������������������.�������������������������� ���������������������!������������������������������������������������ �� ��������������������/��#��������������������.����������������������������������� ��������������������������!������������������������������������������������ �� �������������������������/��#��������������������.�������������������������� ������������!������������������������������������������������ �� ����������������������/�����#����������������������������� ��������������������!�������������������������.���������������������������������������������������������.���������!�������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������� �������������$�����������������"�0"�1�������.�����������������������������������������������������.�������������������������������������������"��"�2���������������������� ����������������������������� ��������������������������������������� ���������������� ��������������������������������!�������������������!����������� ������������� ���"�3"�2���������������������������������!������������������!��������������������������������������������������"�
"�2���������������������������������!���������!������������������������������������������������������"�"�,��������4��"�$"�5����������������������0����������.���"�"�	3"�������������������������� ������������� �����!��.�!�������������������������������������� ���������������"��"�67�89:�;<=>�?@9?A@�B9�C@�DCA@�B9�E9F=:G@�DAE9>9A�9F�B>@�?H@G<=@=I�?A@D=@�B<EJ�K9F�B>@�?H@G<=@=LM�67�89:�;<=>�?@9����������������������������������������������!��� �������?H@G<=@=I�?A@D=@�B<EJ�K977�B>@�?H@G<=@=LM�67�89:�;<=>�?@9?A@�B9�C@�DCA@�B9�N9�C9B>I�?A@D=@�B<EJ�KC9B>LM�	�"�5������������� ��������������������������������������������������������������������������������� �������������!����������������������������������������� ���������������������� �!���������������������������������������������������������� ���������������������������������������������&�������� ���� ������������������������������������������ ��������������"�		"�5��������������������������!������.���������������� ����������������O����������������"�	�"�P��������������� ����������������"�	%"�QF�D??A<EDFBL=�DR@FB�S79H�@TDG?A@�=9A<E<B9HU�GD8�=<RF�B>@�79HG�9F�B>@<H�C@>DA7�?H9V<N@N�����������������������������������������"�	0"�1�������������������������������������������� �������������������������������������������������������������������� ��"�	�"�P�������������������!�����!��������������������������!������������������������������"���

Page 157

Agenda Item 10
Appendix 1



Page 158

Agenda Item 10
Appendix 1



�

�������	�
��	�	���� ������
�����
��������������� ��!"�	�� ��
# $�%�&
'�'�
()*(+,� -�$.�&���
/�����"012�3�� 45*
6���78��9
�::�� �$���;<
=>?@AB<CA
D
E>C
EFCG<BH
D
IF
CF?
J<K@
?F
E@>CLA
M>?A
C<L@?
BAGBAK@HAC?
GFB
;FMMNJFFI
OFCI>N
?F
PAICAKI>N
>CI
JFQMI
M<RA
?F
RAAS
SBAKAC?
@FQBK
OFCI>N
?F
PAICAKI>NT
UAL>BIK
VAM<C>
WFCAK

XAC?
GBFH
O><M
GFB
P<CIFJK
YZ

[\]̂ _
=>?@AB<CA
̀ACKFC
abcd_
PAICAKI>Ne
fE?FgAB
he
iZiZ
jkYj
lO
m]_
noAM<C>
pFCAKn
aqrsbtd_
;FMMNJFFI
>SSM<E>?<FC

;<
VAM<C>e

uK
I<KEQKKAIe
J<?@<C
NFQB
>SSM<E>?<FC
?F
v>BN
;FMMNJFFIwK
M<EACEAe
?@ABA
<K
>
I<KEBAS>CEN
<C
?@A
M>?A
C<L@?
BAGBAK@HAC?
>CI
FSAC<CL
@FQBK
GFB
;FMMNJFFIe
J<?@
?@A
M>?A
C<L@?
BAGBAK@HAC?
@FQBK
LF<CL
gANFCI
?@A
SBAH<KAK
FSAC<CL
@FQBK
xOFCI>N
y
PAICAKI>N
FCMNzT

{>C
NFQ
?@ABAGFBA
EFCG<BH
?@>?
NFQ
>BA
CF?
H>R<CL
>CN
E@>CLAK
?F
M>?A
C<L@?
BAGBAK@HAC?
OFCI>N
y
PAICAKI>N
J@<E@
<K
EQBBAC?MN
i|kZZ
y
Z|kZZ
>CI
?@A
FSAC<CL
@FQBK
OFCI>N
y
PAICAKI>N
J@<E@
>BA
EQBBAC?MN
YYkZZ
y
Z|k|ZT

=<CI
BAL>BIKe
=>?@AB<CA




}~d�b\�cb
�bc�]c
xXAC<FB
�<EACK<CL
fGG<EABz
 
�qr��t
�\]dbtd�]c
ab\��tb�

�]\]q��
]�
�~\\]���c�[q\cb��
�FJC
;>MMe
̀>BBFJ�<C��QBCAKKe
{QHgB<>
�uYj
i��T
�̂ ~��_
RgACKFC�g>BBFJgETLFvTQR
�

mb�_
xZYii�z
�h��j|




������
�������
���� ¡¢
£
¤�
¥¡¦�
§�¦
���� ¡¢̈©
ª�¡¥� «
��§¡ ¦
��¬
®ª̄
ª�¢¡ «
°¢¦�©¦
 ¢¡ ±
¢¡�±
²¦¢��


�§§°©³́́���µ²�����² µ��¥µ�±́�²��§¶§�¦¶ ��� ¡¢́¬�§�¶°��§¦ §¡��¶��¬¶°�¡¥� «¶©§�§¦·¦�§́


Page 159

Agenda Item 10
Appendix 2



This page is intentionally left blank



�

�

�����������������������������������������������������	
���
�����	�������������������
��������������������������������������������������������������������������
������	����	���������������������������������������������������������������������������������
������������������������������������������������������������������������ !"#�$%&������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������� ��������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������� ������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������ � "�������
��'(")���&�
�����*�
�
�+�� ,-./01-02�3.4�5667����89/:-1/1�,-./0./�� �� 8,67;<�=>9?�@>AABC>>D�E>.F�GHI/�J<K<7�GHL/0D-1M�N49//4O�PH99>CKQ0K=R90/11O�GR:S9-HO�,3;J�;TU�� ��Q11R/D�>0?�� VWXY�Z[\]̂_]̀�abVc�G>::/0./1?�VdXY�Z[\]̂_]̀�abVc�����
e��f��
������	��	�����	g�����h�������� ���	����	����f�����i�����
��e��f�������j��h��
�����
����������	������
�����
��i����
	���	i������������	�'"��
���i�
	��	i���
���	���
����������e���������	�������j������h�������� ���	�������
���%���������f�
����	�
�f����	�	��f������	��	�����f�������j�������������������������	���
	����k�����
���f�
����	�+�f��
���	����
�i����
������k������������e�����������j��l�������	�����+���mnopqn�rsotuvv�!&��w� �!��xw�x����y��

Page 161

Agenda Item 10
Appendix 3



� �������������	�
������������������������������������������ �!����"�  #�$�%&�'(�&&(�������)��)*���&++���,-����������./01�2.$�!& 3�40225�67891:�*�;�40225�678100�<,�� 3���,,&���� =-�����-�>��?>�%����>-�����-�>��?>�%@ ��&�+�����.��&�+����/�(�244:�A��B������������ � A�CDEF�� �

� � G��&�0��H�01�

G��(�0�I�G�&,�+&+�$&(�� +���AJ�KL��LMMNO���JP�ANOQR�O�S�JN�RP�TJTOS�JNMTLT
O��UNVOW�QLA�NOPONOT
O�JN�MO�
NRAKRJT��X���Y���Z�N��[�
�\�� �� �� �� �� K���T����]F̂FD�
�_��Z�	�������S�������̂R�̂P������S�
�B �̀�S��LE]�EaM�� ��bXONO�KXO��R
OT
O�R��KRQO��RQRKOM�KXO�MLKO���c�(��dd ���- &�����R
OT�L��O�L
KRVRKRO��LUKXJNR�OM��W�KXO��R
OT
O��R�Z�����e�������_������_��Q����N����Z�Z�Q����A��\��B�������\�M�����P�������\���Z�����������T�	��N�\���	B������ee�Y��\�L���	������KXO�KRQO��KXO��R
OT
O�LUKXJNR�O��KXO�
LNNWRTf�JUK�JP��R
OT�L��O�L
KRVRKRO���/�(�?�(g����������������������������������������!�,&+��R�Z�����e�������_�����"���+)h��i�g�� 00>44�(��42>44�"���+)!�&+i�g�� 00>44�(��42>44�"���+)j&i�&+i�g� 00>44�(��42>44�"���+)!���+i�g�� 00>44�(��42>44�"���+)*��i�g�� 00>44�(��42>44�"���+)'�(��i�g�� 00>44�(��42>44�"���+)'��i�g� 00>44�(��42>44�k�i����'d��(+)*��(�&��i&(�� +��k�i������,&+#�i��(+#�d�� ���i�+�,� ���,�g-&�d �g&i��(�(�,&+����d�&,�+&+��

Page 162

Agenda Item 10
Appendix 3



� �������������	�
������������������������������������������ �!����"�  #�$�%&�'(�&&(�������)��)*���&++���,-����������./01�2.$�!& 3�40225�67891:�*�;�40225�678100�<,�� 3���,,&���� =-�����-�>��?>�%����>-�����-�>��?>�%@ ��&�+�����.��&�+����/�(�244:�A��B������������ � A�CDEF�� �

� � G��&�2��H�01�

��I��J�����"���+)K��L�M�� 00>44�(��42>44�"���+)!�&+L�M�� 00>44�(��42>44�"���+)N&L�&+L�M�� 00>44�(��42>44�"���+)!���+L�M�� 00>44�(��42>44�"���+)*��L�M�� 00>44�(��42>44�"���+)'�(��L�M�� 00>44�(��42>44�"���+)'��L�M�� 00>44�(��42>44�.�?&�K�+��)O�L���+�� �.�?&�K�+��)*��(�&��L&(�� +�� .�?&�,�+�����(+�,�M��������+����P&�H��,����P�&,+�&+�Q����R�R�J����"���+)K��L�M�� 00>44�(��4:>44�"���+)!�&+L�M�� 00>44�(��4:>44�"���+)N&L�&+L�M�� 00>44�(��4:>44�"���+)!���+L�M�� 00>44�(��4:>44�"���+)*��L�M�� 00>44�(��4:>44�"���+)'�(��L�M�� 00>44�(��4:>44�"���+)'��L�M�� 00>44�(��4:>44�S&���L&L�K�+��)O�L���+�� �S&���L&L�K�+��)*��(�&��L&(�� +�/,P �H�&L��&���L&L�,�+�����  �-&�P �M&L�L������(��L��������+�"���+)'&�+��� �T����(���+�� U&��V&��+�<?&�H��,�00>44�(��U&��V&��+�$�M�4:>44�"���+)U���'(��L��L�!�,���+�����%�"� �L�M�'��L�M+�00>44�(�����%�"� �L�M�K��L�M+�4:>44�A��W��B�������W�X�����"���+)K��L�M�� 00>44�(��4:>44�"���+)!�&+L�M�� 00>44�(��4:>44�"���+)N&L�&+L�M�� 00>44�(��4:>44�"���+)!���+L�M�� 00>44�(��4:>44�"���+)*��L�M�� 00>44�(��4:>44�"���+)'�(��L�M�� 00>44�(��4:>44�"���+)'��L�M�� 00>44�(��4:>44�$���&)O�L���+�� �$���&)*��(�&��L&(�� +�� $���&�P&�H��,���&+����+(��&���&���������+���+�"���+)'&�+��� �T����(���+�� U&��V&��+�<?&�00>44�(��U&��V&��+�$�M�4:>44�"���+)U���'(��L��L�!�,���+�����%�"� �L�M�'��L�M+�00>44�(�����%�"� �L�M�K��L�M+�4:>44�Y�������W���R������*��� �(�&+)$���&)O�L���+�� �"���+)K��L�M�� 00>44�(��4:>44�"���+)!�&+L�M�� 00>44�(��4:>44�"���+)N&L�&+L�M�� 00>44�(��4:>44�"���+)!���+L�M�� 00>44�(��4:>44�"���+)*��L�M�� 00>44�(��4:>44�"���+)'�(��L�M�� 00>44�(��4:>44�"���+)'��L�M�� 00>44�(��4:>44�*��� �(�&+)$���&)$&+���P(����� ',�  �L���&���&�����H���(��H�+(��&���

Page 163

Agenda Item 10
Appendix 3



� �������������	�
������������������������������������������ �!����"�  #�$�%&�'(�&&(�������)��)*���&++���,-����������./01�2.$�!& 3�40225�67891:�*�;�40225�678100�<,�� 3���,,&���� =-�����-�>��?>�%����>-�����-�>��?>�%@ ��&�+�����.��&�+����/�(�244:�A��B������������ � A�CDEF�� �

� � G��&�:��H�01�

������I�	��J�K���	B����.L�M&H�&+�,&�(+)N�O���+� �"���+)P��O�Q� 00>44�(��4:>44�"���+)!�&+O�Q� 00>44�(��4:44�"���+)R&O�&+O�Q� 00>44�(��4:>44�"���+)!���+O�Q� 00>44�(��4:>44�"���+)*��O�Q� 00>44�(��4:>44�"���+)'�(��O�Q� 00>44�(��4:>44�"���+)'��O�Q� 00>44�(��4:>44�.L�M&H�&+�,&�(+)*��(�&��O&(+�"�(�H��O�(��-&�+&�?&O�O������(��O��������+>�.�(&�����(�(�%&���Q�,&���"���+)'&�+��� �S����(���+� L&��T&��+�<?&�00>44�(��L&��T&��+�$�Q�4:>44�"���+)L���'(��O��O�!�,���+����%�"� �O�Q�'��O�Q+�00>44�(�����%�"� �O�Q�P��O�Q+�4:>44���UU�V��K�W���	���/ ���� )X��(�&�Y�&,�+&+� �"���+)P��O�Q� 00>44�(��4:>44�"���+)!�&+O�Q� 00>44�(��4:>44�"���+)R&O�&+O�Q� 00>44�(��4:>44�"���+)!���+O�Q� 00>44�(��4:>44�"���+)*��O�Q� 00>44�(��4:>44�"���+)'�(��O�Q� 00>44�(��4:>44�"���+)'��O�Q� 00>44�(��4:>44�"���+)'&�+��� �S����(���+� L&��T&��+�<?&�H��,�00>44�(��L&��T&��+�$�Q�4:>44�"���+)L���'(��O��O�!�,���+����%�"� �O�Q�'��O�Q+�00>44�(�����%�"� �O�Q�P��O�Q+�4:>44������ZA[I\I]�̂Z_J��Z̀ �â [�AJ[b\�[���"���+)P��O�Q� 00>44�(��4:>:4�"���+)!�&+O�Q� 00>44�(��4:>:4�"���+)R&O�&+O�Q� 00>44�(��4:>:4�"���+)!���+O�Q� 00>44�(��4:>:4�"���+)*��O�Q� 00>44�(��4:>:4�"���+)'�(��O�Q� 00>44�(��4:>:4�"���+)'��O�Q� 00>44�(��4:>:4�"���+)'&�+��� �S����(���+� L&��T&��+�<?&�00>44�(��L&��T&��+�$�Q�4:>:4�"���+)L���'(��O��O�!�,���+����%��� �O�Q�'��O�Q+�00>44�(�����%��� �O�Q�P��O�Q+�4:>:4�� ��c [̂J[�â [��\
[I
[�W_â ZJ\�[���_AA�\[��Z̀ �W�
Ẑ Z��c [̂â [J�â [�[�WJ[�ZI�WIdeZJ�Z̀ �̀�_AA�\[����/ ���� )X��(�&�Y�&,�+&+��� �

Page 164

Agenda Item 10
Appendix 3



� �������������	�
������������������������������������������ �!����"�  #�$�%&�'(�&&(�������)��)*���&++���,-����������./01�2.$�!& 3�40225�67891:�*�;�40225�678100�<,�� 3���,,&���� =-�����-�>��?>�%����>-�����-�>��?>�%@ ��&�+�����.��&�+����/�(�244:�A��B������������ � A�CDEF�� �

� � G��&�1��H�01�

A����I��JKLMN�OPMQR�SMPMTU�KTTPM��N�SM�MAVWJM�JXL�MP�KJT�MLKR��OYVMPM�PM�MZKJSU�W[�VW�TMP�W[�APMLR�M���R
MJ
M��L���\�����S����]�̂�����__�Y�����	����P��̀N�������aR�a[������N�
�Bb��N��KEc�DXT�� ���PMQR�SMPMT�JXL�MP�W[�VW�TMPN�[WP�MdKLA�M�
WLAKJe�JXL�MPN�
VKPRSe�JXL�MP�OYVMPM�KAA�R
K��MU��"�  f���g�h��%���H&� h&��+(��(����i�>�� �� ��JKLMN�KTTPM���KJT�SM�MAVWJM�JXL�MP�W[�TM�RQJKSMT�APMLR�M���XAMPZR�WP�YVMPM�SVM�APMLR�M���R
MJ
M��KXSVWPR�M��SVM��XAA�e�W[�K�
WVW����j+�'�+���<  &��"��(&�� �11�'(���(���$��?&#�$� (��)k�)*���&++#���,-���#�./09�6l��476758220:4� �� ��AMP�WJK���R
MJ
M�JXL�MP�KJT�R��XRJQ�KXSVWPRSe�W[�AMP�WJK���R
MJ
M�VM�T��e�TM�RQJKSMT�APMLR�M����XAMPZR�WP�YVMPM�SVM�APMLR�M���R
MJ
M�KXSVWPR�M��[WP�SVM��XAA�e�W[�K�
WVW���mnopqop�rst��G/u295� vwwxpy�z{t��������)��)*���&++�� ���KJJMdM��KJJMd�E��SVM��R
MJ�RJQ�K
S�ICCD�OLKJTKSWPe�
WJTRSRWJ�U��j��g�(��f����g�(���+���&�&� ��&��&���(����+&+�+�|| f��H�� ���� ��}0~���&�&���|�&,�+&+� ��&��&���(����+&+�(�&�+�|| f��H�� ���� #�(�&� ��&��&�,�+(���� �g&�(�&�H�  ���������g�(���+>�

Page 165

Agenda Item 10
Appendix 3



� �������������	�
������������������������������������������ �!����"�  #�$�%&�'(�&&(�������)��)*���&++���,-����������./01�2.$�!& 3�40225�67891:�*�;�40225�678100�<,�� 3���,,&���� =-�����-�>��?>�%����>-�����-�>��?>�%@ ��&�+�����.��&�+����/�(�244:�A��B������������ � A�CDEF�� �

� � G��&�9��H�01�

I2J�!�&�H��+(����K�(�����+�(��(����+�LL M��H�� ���� �,�M�-&�,�K&���K&��(�&�L�&,�+&+� ��&��&)�I�J��(���(�,&���&��(�&�&��+����K&+����(&K�L�&,�+&+�+�L&�?�+�������&+L&�(��H�(�&�L�&,�+&+� ��&��&#����I-J��(���(�,&���&��(�&�K&+����(&K�L�&,�+&+�+�L&�?�+���K�&+���(��� K���L&�+��� � ��&��&������+�L&�+��� � ��&��&��+�+�+L&�K&K>�I:J�!�&�+&���K����K�(�����+�(��(�&?&�M�+�LL M��H�� ���� ���K&��(�&�L�&,�+&+� ��&��&�,�+(�-&�,�K&������(����+&K�-M���L&�+��������� K+���L&�+��� � ��&��&>��N��K�(��M����K�(���3�&;��-�(�����H�H� ,+��I0J�O�&�&���L�&,�+&+� ��&��&���(����+&+�(�&�&;��-�(�����H�H� ,+#�(�&� ��&��&�,�+(���� �K&������K�(�����&P�������(�&��K,�++�����H���� K�&��(��(�&�&;��-�(�����H���M�H� ,�(��-&��&+(���(&K���������K���&���(��(��+�+&�(���>�I2J�O�&�&�(�&�H� ,�� �++�H���(����-�KM��+�+L&��H�&K����(�&� ��&��&#��� &++�+�-+&�(����I:JI-J��LL �&+#��K,�++�����H���� K�&��,�+(�-&��&+(���(&K���������K���&���(����M��&��,,&�K�(����,�K&�-M�(��(�-�KM>�I:J�O�&�&)�I�J�(�&�H� ,�� �++�H���(����-�KM��+���(�+L&��H�&K����(�&� ��&��&#����I-J�(�&��& &?��(� ��&�+������(����(M���+���(�H�&K�(�&��� K&���H�(�&� ��&��&�(��(�(��+�+�-+&�(�����LL �&+�(��(�&�H� ,����P�&+(���#��K,�++�����H���� K�&��,�+(�-&��&+(���(&K���������K���&���(����M��&��,,&�K�(����,�K&�-M�(��(� ��&�+������(����(M>�I1J�Q��(��+�+&�(���)�R��� K�&�R�,&��+�L&�+��+���&K���K&��06S���K�RH� ,�� �++�H���(����-�KMR�,&��+�(�&�L&�+������L&�+��+�K&+����(&K��+�(�&���(����(M���K&��+&�(����1��H�(�&�T�K&��U&���K���+�/�(�0561�I�>�:5J�I��(����(M�(��K&(&�,��&�+��(�-� �(M��H�?�K&�����%+�H���� �++�H���(���J>��N��K�(��M����K�(���3�K����+�L&�?�+�����I0J�O�&�&���L�&,�+&+� ��&��&���� �K&+������K�(����(��(��(�+L&��H�&K�(�,&+���&����,��&���K�?�K�� +�,�+(�-&��(�(�&�L�&,�+&+�(������M���(���+&����(M���(�?�(M#�(�&� ��&��&�,�+(���� �K&������K�(����(��(�&����+������K�?�K�� �,�+(�-&� ��&�+&K�-M�(�&�'&����(M�Q�K�+(�M�/�(����(M>��I2J���(���(��������+�-+&�(����I0J��&P���&+�+���������K�(����(��-&��,L�+&K)�I�J�����&+L&�(��H�L�&,�+&+���(����L������L��6I:JI�J��H�'��&K� &�2�(��(�&�G��?�(&�'&����(M�Q�K�+(�M�/�(�2440IL�&,�+&+���(��L�&,�+&+� ��&��&+���(����+����L �M+����H� ,+J#����I-J�����&+L&�(��H�L�&,�+&+�����& �(����(�)�I�J���M�����+����,&�(���&K����L������L��6I:JI-J����I�J��H�(��(�'��&K� &�IL�&,�+&+�-&�����+&K�&;� �+�?& M�-M�� �-���(��� �-�L�&,�+&+��&�(�H���(&#���K&����(&,L����M�&?&�(���(��&���(����+����L �M+����H� ,+������K&������,���� ��&��&J#����I��J���M�����+������(����L������L��6I:JIKJ��H�(��(�'��&K� &�I����+���+�L�&+���-&K�-M��&�� �(���+���K&��(��(�/�(J>�I:J�*���(�&�L��L�+&+��H�(��+�+&�(���)�I�J�R+&����(M���(�?�(MR�,&��+������(�?�(M�(��������L������L��2I0JI�J��H�(��(�'��&K� &��LL �&+#���K�I-J�L������L��6I9J��H�(��(�'��&K� &�I��(&�L�&(�(�����H��&H&�&��&+�(���������+���J��LL �&+��+��(��LL �&+�����& �(����(��L������L��6��H�(��(�'��&K� &>���

Page 166

Agenda Item 10
Appendix 3



� �������������	�
������������������������������������������ �!����"�  #�$�%&�'(�&&(�������)��)*���&++���,-����������./01�2.$�!& 3�40225�67891:�*�;�40225�678100�<,�� 3���,,&���� =-�����-�>��?>�%����>-�����-�>��?>�%@ ��&�+�����.��&�+����/�(�244:�A��B������������ � A�CDEF�� �

� � G��&�8��H�01�

G����-�(&I����I�(���+3�J �K+��L0M�N���& �(����(����J�&,�+&+� ��&��&���������(����+&+�(�&�J&�H��,���&��H�J �K+#�������I�(����,�K�-&��((���&I�(��(�&� ��&��&��+�(��(�&���(��&��H�(�&�J �K+�������,�K�-&�J&�H��,&I#����(�&�,���&���H�J&�H��,����J �K+#���I&��(�&� ��&��&>�L2M���(�+�-+&�(����L0M�I�&+���(�J�&?&�(��� ��&�+������(����(K��,J�+���#���������I���&���(��+&�(����06L2ML�M����L:ML-M#�:9L:ML-M����92L:M#���K����I�(�����������(����+�I&�+��&�&++��K����(�&������I+��H�J�- ���+�H&(K>��'!/!O!PQR�NS'!QOT<S!�2404�S�>�684�.N�<S�<'�/S$�.N�<S'NSU�!"<�.N�<S'NSU�/�!�244:�LT/S$/!PQR�.N�<S'NSU��PS$N!NPS'M�PQ$<Q�2404��!�&�H�  ������J������J�+���,&���(��H���&����8(��/J�� �24043��0>)L0M�!�&��&+J��+�- &�J&�+���+��  �(�%&��  ��&�+���- &�+(&J+�(��&�+��&�(��(�+(�HH�����& &?��(�J�&,�+&+�I����(�����K���(#�������&����J��(���J�(&������K����&+J��+�- &�J��,�(���+�����& �(����(��(�&�J�&,�+&+>��L2M�N��(��+�J������J�#�������&+J��+�- &�J��,�(����,&��+���K���&����,��&��H�(�&�H�  ��������(�?�(�&+#����+�-+(��(��  K�+�,� �����(�?�(�&+#������&I����H���(�&�J��J�+&��H�&�����������(�&�+� &����+�JJ K��H�� ���� �H������+�,J(�������(�&�J�&,�+&+������,���&�������������&+���+����H����(���+%��H� &�I����������(��-�(����(�����,&���I�I�+��I&�#�J�&V�I��&�(��J�- ���+�H&(K#�J�- ������+���&#�������,�(����� I�&�)�L�M���,&+�����(�&����(�?�(�&+��������&W���&����&�������&#������&�I&+���&I�(���&W���&�����&�������&#���I�?�I�� +�(�)�L�M�I���%���W���(�(K��H�� ���� ���(������(�,&� �,�(�L�(�&��(����(��I���%�� ���� �+� I����+�JJ �&I����(�&�J�&,�+&+�-&H��&�(�&��&++�(�����H�(�&�J&���I����������(�&��&+J��+�- &�J&�+����+���(����+&I�(��+&  ����+�JJ K�� ���� M#����L��M�I���%��+�,����� ���� ��+�J�++�- &�L��&(�&����(������(�,&� �,�(�����(�&���+&MX��L-M�J��?�+�����H��� �,�(&I������+J&��H�&I�W���(�(�&+��H�� ���� �H�&&����H�����H�;&I����I�+����(&I�H&&�(��(�&�J�- ������(��������J�I&H��&I�-K���J��(��� ���������(&��+(���L�(�&��(������K�J��,�(�������I�+����(��?�� �- &�(�������I�?�I�� �����&+J&�(��H�� ���� �H������+�,J(�����(���(�- &�,&� #��+�I&H��&I����+&�(����095��H�(�&�/�(MX��L�M�J��?�+�����H�H�&&����I�+����(&I�� ���� ������K��(�&��(������+���J��Y&�(��&�������&�����&���I�(�&�J�����+&���I����+�,J(�����H�� ���� ��?&����J&���I��H�21�����+���� &++X��LIM�J��?�+�����H�H�&&����I�+����(&I�� ���� �����& �(����(��(�&�?�&��������(�&�J�&,�+&+��H���+J��(����&?&�(#���&�&�(��(�J��?�+�����+�I&J&�I&�(���)�L�M�(�&���(��,&��H������&#���,J&(�(��������(�&��&?&�(����J���&++#����L��M�(�&� �%& ����I��H���K(��������������������(����������X��L&M�+&  �������+�JJ K����� ���� �����++����(������(��J��,�(���� �J�+(&�+����H K&�+���#�������(�&�?�����(K��H#�(�&�J�&,�+&+������������&�+���- K�-&����+�I&�&I�(�����I��&#�&�������&����� �,���+&���(�)+���� �-&��?��������(���&H&��(��(�&�&HH&�(+��H�I���%&��&++������K�H�?����- &�,���&�>�

Page 167

Agenda Item 10
Appendix 3



� �������������	�
������������������������������������������ �!����"�  #�$�%&�'(�&&(�������)��)*���&++���,-����������./01�2.$�!& 3�40225�67891:�*�;�40225�678100�<,�� 3���,,&���� =-�����-�>��?>�%����>-�����-�>��?>�%@ ��&�+�����.��&�+����/�(�244:�A��B������������ � A�CDEF�� �

� � G��&�7��H�01�

�2>�!�&��&+I��+�- &�I&�+���+��  �&�+��&�(��(����� ���� ��+�J�+I&�+&J�J��&�( K�-K���&�I&�+�����(��(�&�,��(���H����(�&��L�(�&��(������&�&�(��(��(�&��I&�+����+����- &�(��J���%���(���(��++�+(���&�-K��&�+����H���J�+�-� �(KM>��:>�!�&��&+I��+�- &�I&�+���+��  �&�+��&�(��(�H�&&�(�I���(&���+�I��?�J&J�����&N�&+(�(����+(�,&�+���&�&��(��+��&�+���- K��?�� �- &>��!�&�H�  ������I������I�+���,&���(��H���&����0+(�O�(�-&��24043��1>)L0M�!�&�I�&,�+&+� ��&��&��� J&������ �-�I�&,�+&+��&�(�H���(&��� J&��+��  �&�+��&�(��(������&�?&��H���(����I� ��K��II �&+�(��(�&�I�&,�+&+�����& �(����(��(�&�+� &����+�II K��H�� ���� >��L2M�!�&�I� ��K�,�+(��&N���&���J�?�J�� +������II&���(��(�&��&+I��+�- &�I&�+���(��-&���J&��06�K&��+��H���&�L���+����� J&����&��+�,�K�-&�+I&��H�&J����(�&�I� ��KM�(��I��J��&�����&N�&+(#�-&H��&�-&����+&�?&J�� ���� #��J&�(�H���(����-&������(�&���I��(����I�#�J�(&��H�-��(����J����� ����I����,��%>��9>�!�&��&+I��+�- &�I&�+���+��  �&�+��&�(��()�L�M���&�&���K��H�(�&�H�  ������� ���� ���J���%+��+�+� J����+�II �&J�H������+�,I(�������(�&�I�&,�+&+�L�(�&��(����� ���� ���J���%+�+� J����+�II �&J���?����-&&��,�J&��I�����J?���&��&�JK�H���+� &����+�II K������+&���& K�� �+&J����(���&�M��(��+��?�� �- &�(����+(�,&�+����(�&�H�  ������,&�+��&+)�L�M�-&&�������J&�3�0@2�I��(P�L��M����#���,#�?�J%��������+%K3�29�, ����:9�, P���J�L���M�+(�  ����&������� �++3�029�, P���J�L-M���+(�,&�+���&�,�J&�����&��H�(�&��?�� �-� �(K��H�(�&+&�,&�+��&+>��QRRST�U�V�
WRXYZYWR��
WR�Y�ZSRZ�[YZ\�Z\S�WAS]QZYR̂ ��
\SX_�S����!"<�G̀ <a<b!cOb�O*��̀ cd<�/b$�$c'Ò $<̀ ��!�&� ��&��&��� J&�����$&+����(&J�G�&,�+&+�'�I&�?�+�����  ���+%��++&++�(�&��&&J�H���'c/�����&J�(&J�J����+&����(K�+(�HH�������&&% K�-�+�+>��!�&�I�&,�+&+���  ���?&�'c/�����&J�(&J�J����+(�HH�&?&�K�*��J�K���J�'�(��J�K���J����%�"� �J�K�'��J�K�H��,�04I,���(� �� �+����(�,&>��!�&�I�&,�+&���  ���?&���&�'c/�����&J�(&J�J����+�I&�?�+���I&��79�I&�+��+��((&�J�����I�(��(�&�,�;�,�,�:44�I&�+��+>��$����+�I&�?�+����&���J+���  �-&�%&I(�+������3�b�,&#��JJ�&++#�J�(&��H�-��(�#�'c/� ��&��&���,-&�#�(�&�(�,&���J�J�(&+����J�(K���� �J����-�&�%+�&����&�(�K�(��-&�+���&J�-K�J����+�I&�?�+��>��/�(�,I&��I���H���!a�+K+(&,�+��  �-&���+(�  &J��(�(�&�I�&,�+&+���� ���+�����(����J�(��(�&�+�(�+H��(�����H���,-����G� ��&���J���,,���(K�+�H&(K��HH��&�+>����!a���  ��&���J�J�������  �����+��� ��&�+�- &���(�?�(K�(�%&+�I ��&����I�&,�+&+>����!a�+��  �-&�,���(���&J�������J����%������J&����������J���&���(��,���H��(��&�+���+(���(���+>�

Page 168

Agenda Item 10
Appendix 3



� �������������	�
������������������������������������������ �!����"�  #�$�%&�'(�&&(�������)��)*���&++���,-����������./01�2.$�!& 3�40225�67891:�*�;�40225�678100�<,�� 3���,,&���� =-�����-�>��?>�%����>-�����-�>��?>�%@ ��&�+�����.��&�+����/�(�244:�A��B������������ � A�CDEF�� �

� � G��&�6��H�01�

�/I&J��(&�&;(&��� � ���(�����H�(�&�K�&,�+&+���  �-&�,���(���&I�+���+�(��-&���,K�(�- &���(��(�&��&J���&,&�(+��H���!L�+M+(&,����K ��&>��/����((&���&���I�+��  �-&�%&K(�&?&�M�(�,&��,��&+���&��&���I&I���I�I&(�� +��H�,&I��,��+&I#�(�,&�I�(&��H���,,&��&,&�(���I�H���+��(�,&+��H��&���I���>��!�&��&���I�+��  ��I&�(�HM�(�&�K&�+����&+K��+�- &�H����&���I������I�+��  �-&�+���&I�-M�(��(�K&�+��>��N&,�?�- &��&���I����,&I��,+�,�+(�-&�+&���& M�+(��&I>��!�&��,��&+��&���I&I�-M�(�&���!L�+M+(&,�+��  �-&��&(���&I���&I�(&I�H�����K&���I��H���(� &++�(����01�I�M+>��/(��  �(�,&+���&��(�&�K�&,�+&+���&��K&��(�&�&�+��  �-&�K�&+&�(����(�&�K�&,�+&+���,&,-&���H�+(�HH������+�(����&I�����K&��(������I�I��� ��I�����H��,��&+���(�����&���I����H��,�(>��/�M��,��&+��&J���&I�H���K� ��&���?&+(���(������  �-&�+�KK �&I�(��G� ��&��HH��&�+����I&,��I����-M�� �+&��H�-�+��&++>��!�&�&�+��  �-&����H���&�H���(�&�K�&,�+&+���$���+�'&�����K� ��M�H���K��+K&�(�?&���+(�,&�+�������+��  �-&�I&?& �K&I���� ���+�����(����I�(��(�&�+�(�+H��(�����H�(�&�G� ��&� ��&�+�����HH��&��H���(�&���&������&��&I>��!�&�&�+��  �-&�I�+K �M&I�(��������(�K�&,�+&+�����(��&���H��,����K��+K&�(�?&���+(�,&�+��H�(�&�+&�����K� ��M�(��+���  �-&�?�+�- &���I�+&���& M�H�;&I>��O��K&�+��+����K�++&++�����H�� ���� �I���%������+&� &I������+&� &I����(���&��+��  �-&��  ��&I�(��&�(&��K�&,�+&+�&;�&K(�H���K��K�+&��H�I& �?&�M>��O��� ���� ���I���%�+��  �-&��&,�?&I�H��,�K�&,�+&+���������+&� &I����(���&�>��/���(��&������(��&+�+��  �-&�I�+K �M&I��(�(�&�&�(����&�(��K�&,�+&+���&�&�(�&M������ &�� M�-&�+&&����I�+��  ���I���(&�(��(��(��+��� ��H� �H���K&�+���+��I&��06�(��K�����+&�� ���� ����H�����M�K&�+���(��K�����+&�� ���� ����-&�� H��H���K&�+�����I&��06�M&��+��H���&>��!�&�&�+��  �-&����K ��&�H���(�&�K�&,�+&+������((&���I,�++���+�K� ��M�(��K�&?&�(�(�&�+� &����+�KK M��H�� ���� �(��K&�+��+���I&��06�M&��+��H���&>��!��(�K� ��M�+��  ��&J���&�K���H��H���&����I�����&I�(&I���I&��(�&�K���H��H���&�+��&,&#�����(�P&�+����I�+�KK��(&I�-M�(�&���,&��HH��&#���K��(��I��?���� ��&��&#���K�++K��(�����HH���� �"Q�H���&+����<R�S$����I>��!�&� ��&��&��� I&����I@���K�&,�+&�+�K&�?�+������K&�+�����,���(&I�-M�(�&,�+��  ���(�?& M�K��(���K�(&���I�-&���,&,-&���H���K�-���I�� �-���(���+��&,&�H���(�&���&����(����������K�&,�+&+��+� ���(&I>�G��(����K�+���  �-&�,�I&��?�� �- &�(��&,K �M&&+���I�I�+K �M&I���� ��&���(�������(������+(�(�(���>��S���I&�(+��H����,&���I�I�+��I&�������������+��������&���K�&,�+&����������+&�����&���(��$G'�����(�&��K�&,�+&�&,K �M&&+���  �-&��&���I&I�������(������I��&K��(&I�(��-����(�����&���&J���&I���� ��&���(�������(������+(�(�(���>��/�I�+K&�+� �K� ��M�(��-&��,K &,&�(&I�(��(�&�+�(�+H��(�����H�G� ��&� ��&�+�����HH��&��(��(���  �+&(���(�(�&�+(&K+�

Page 169

Agenda Item 10
Appendix 3



� �������������	�
������������������������������������������ �!����"�  #�$�%&�'(�&&(�������)��)*���&++���,-����������./01�2.$�!& 3�40225�67891:�*�;�40225�678100�<,�� 3���,,&���� =-�����-�>��?>�%����>-�����-�>��?>�%@ ��&�+�����.��&�+����/�(�244:�A��B������������ � A�CDEF�� �

� � G��&�5��H�01�

(�&�?&��&���  �(�%&��(�(�&�&�I��H�(��I����+&++����(��,���,�+&�(�&�J�(&�(�� �H���I�+��I&����I�I�+(��-���&��+���+(�,&�+� &�?&�J�&,�+&+>��/�� �+��&@&?����(����J� ��K�(��-&��,J &,&�(&I�(��+�(�+H��(�����H��&���-������I�J� ��&���+J&�(��>��.��� ���(����(K���I�J� ��&� ���+��>��GL�.M��'/*<!N��*��&�� ��,���I�I&(&�(����+K+(&,�*��&�&;(�����+�&�+���I�%�(��&��H��&�- ��%&(�.��� ���(����(K���I�J� ��&� ���+���*���(�������I���(� ���!O��&���I����<;(&����� ���(�����(�&�(����&���I�H��&�&;�(+�G�- ���+�H&(K���+%��++&++,&�(+�<,&��&��K� ���(���������+&��H�J��&��H�� ��&��!"<�GP<O<Q!MRQ�R*�GL�.M��QLM'/Q�<��P&+(���(&I�����+�(���&I��&� �(&�����(����+���&�<�(����&������?&�I�+��'(�&&(�(��J�&?&�(����+���&��&���$� %&�(��'(�&&(��&+�I&�(+�S�+��� &?& +�,����&I�(��&�+��&�������+&�J�  �(����.�?&�,�+���(��-&�J �K&I��� K��J�(��2�,�(���&I��&����+&����+���&>��!"<�GPR!<�!MRQ�R*��"M.$P<Q�*PRS�"/PS��L�I&��06+���(�J&�,�((&I����J�&,�+&+��H(&��00J,��� &++��(�J��?�(&�H���(��������,J���&I�-K��I� (>�G��(��M$�� ���� �+&�?����J� ��K�29T�'(�HH�(���������UVVWX�D�Y�
ZV[\]\ZV��U]]U
̂ W[�U_]Ẁ �U�̂WÙ \Va��b�]̂ W��\
WV�\Va�Uc]̂ Z̀ \]b����UVVWX�d�Y�A�UV��� ���G ��+�+�JJ �&I�-K�e& ����f��&+����29(��R�(�-&��240:�Q&��J ���+�-,�((&I�2�I�*&-����K�2409����

Page 170

Agenda Item 10
Appendix 3



� �������������	�
������������������������������������������ �!����"�  #�$�%&�'(�&&(�������)��)*���&++���,-����������./01�2.$�!& 3�40225�67891:�*�;�40225�678100�<,�� 3���,,&���� =-�����-�>��?>�%����>-�����-�>��?>�%@ ��&�+�����.��&�+����/�(�244:�A��B�������������BB��C� A�DEFG�� �

� � H��&�04��I�01�

H�&,�+&+�$&(�� +���AJ�KL��LMMNO���JP�ANOQR�O�S�JN�RP�TJTOS�JNMTLT
O��UNVOW�QLA�NOPONOT
O�JN�MO�
NRAKRJT��X���C���Y�N��Z�
�[�� �\G]GE�
�̂��Y�	�������S�������]R�]P������S�
�B_��S��LF\�F̀ M�K���T�����aXONO�KXO��R
OT
O�R��KRQO��RQRKOM�KXO�MLKO���b�(��cc ���- &�����R
OT�L��O�L
KRVRKRO��LUKXJNR�OM��W�KXO��R
OT
O���R�Y�����d�������̂������̂��Q����N����Y�Y�Q����A��[��B�������[�M�����P�������[���Y�����������T�	��N�[���	B������dd�C��[�L���	���� ��KXO�KRQO��KXO��R
OT
O�LUKXJNR�O��KXO�
LNNWRTe�JUK�JP��R
OT�L��O�L
KRVRKRO���/�(�?�(f� !�,&+���R�Y�����d�������̂�����"���+)g��h�f�� 00>44�(��42>44�"���+)!�&+h�f�� 00>44�(��42>44�"���+)i&h�&+h�f�� 00>44�(��42>44�"���+)!���+h�f�� 00>44�(��42>44�"���+)*��h�f�� 00>44�(��42>44�"���+)'�(��h�f�� 00>44�(��42>44�"���+)'��h�f�� 00>44�(��42>44�j�h����'c��(+)*��(�&��h&(�� +��j�h������,&+#�h��(+#�c�� ���h�+�,� ���,�f-&�c �f&h��(�(�,&+����c�&,�+&+���

Page 171

Agenda Item 10
Appendix 3



� �������������	�
������������������������������������������ �!����"�  #�$�%&�'(�&&(�������)��)*���&++���,-����������./01�2.$�!& 3�40225�67891:�*�;�40225�678100�<,�� 3���,,&���� =-�����-�>��?>�%����>-�����-�>��?>�%@ ��&�+�����.��&�+����/�(�244:�A��B�������������BB��C� A�DEFG�� �

� � H��&�00��I�01�

��J��K�����"���+)L��M�N�� 00>44�(��42>44�"���+)!�&+M�N�� 00>44�(��42>44�"���+)O&M�&+M�N�� 00>44�(��42>44�"���+)!���+M�N�� 00>44�(��42>44�"���+)*��M�N�� 00>44�(��42>44�"���+)'�(��M�N�� 00>44�(��42>44�"���+)'��M�N�� 00>44�(��42>44�.�?&�L�+��)P�M���+�� �.�?&�L�+��)*��(�&��M&(�� +�� .�?&�,�+�����(+�,�N��������+����Q&�I��,����Q�&,+�&+�R����S�S�K����"���+)L��M�N�� 00>44�(��4:>44�"���+)!�&+M�N�� 00>44�(��4:>44�"���+)O&M�&+M�N�� 00>44�(��4:>44�"���+)!���+M�N�� 00>44�(��4:>44�"���+)*��M�N�� 00>44�(��4:>44�"���+)'�(��M�N�� 00>44�(��4:>44�"���+)'��M�N�� 00>44�(��4:>44�T&���M&M�L�+��)P�M���+�� �T&���M&M�L�+��)*��(�&��M&(�� +�/,Q �I�&M��&���M&M�,�+�����  �-&�Q �N&M�M������(��M��������+�"���+)'&�+��� �U����(���+�� V&��W&��+�<?&�I��,�00>44�(��V&��W&��+�$�N�4:>44�"���+)V���'(��M��M�!�,���+�����%�"� �M�N�'��M�N+�00>44�(�����%�"� �M�N�L��M�N+�4:>44�A��X��B�������X�Y�����"���+)L��M�N�� 00>44�(��4:>44�"���+)!�&+M�N�� 00>44�(��4:>44�"���+)O&M�&+M�N�� 00>44�(��4:>44�"���+)!���+M�N�� 00>44�(��4:>44�"���+)*��M�N�� 00>44�(��4:>44�"���+)'�(��M�N�� 00>44�(��4:>44�"���+)'��M�N�� 00>44�(��4:>44�$���&)P�M���+�� �$���&)*��(�&��M&(�� +�� $���&�Q&�I��,���&+����+(��&���&���������+���+�"���+)'&�+��� �U����(���+�� V&��W&��+�<?&�00>44�(��V&��W&��+�$�N�4:>44�"���+)V���'(��M��M�!�,���+�����%�"� �M�N�'��M�N+�00>44�(�����%�"� �M�N�L��M�N+�4:>44�Z�������X���S������*��� �(�&+)$���&)P�M���+�� �"���+)L��M�N�� 00>44�(��4:>44�"���+)!�&+M�N�� 00>44�(��4:>44�"���+)O&M�&+M�N�� 00>44�(��4:>44�"���+)!���+M�N�� 00>44�(��4:>44�"���+)*��M�N�� 00>44�(��4:>44�"���+)'�(��M�N�� 00>44�(��4:>44�"���+)'��M�N�� 00>44�(��4:>44�*��� �(�&+)$���&)$&+���Q(����� ',�  �M���&���&�����I���(��I�+(��&��

Page 172

Agenda Item 10
Appendix 3



� �������������	�
������������������������������������������ �!����"�  #�$�%&�'(�&&(�������)��)*���&++���,-����������./01�2.$�!& 3�40225�67891:�*�;�40225�678100�<,�� 3���,,&���� =-�����-�>��?>�%����>-�����-�>��?>�%@ ��&�+�����.��&�+����/�(�244:�A��B�������������BB��C� A�DEFG�� �

� � H��&�02��I�01�

�����J�	��K�L���	B����.M�N&I�&+�,&�(+)O�P���+�� �"���+)Q��P�R�� 00>44�(��4:>44�"���+)!�&+P�R�� 00>44�(��4:44�"���+)S&P�&+P�R�� 00>44�(��4:>44�"���+)!���+P�R�� 00>44�(��4:>44�"���+)*��P�R�� 00>44�(��4:>44�"���+)'�(��P�R�� 00>44�(��4:>44�"���+)'��P�R�� 00>44�(��4:>44�.M�N&I�&+�,&�(+)*��(�&��P&(+��"�(�I��P�(��-&�+&�?&P�P������(��P��������+>�.�(&�����(�(�%&���R�,&���"���+)'&�+��� �T����(���+�� M&��U&��+�<?&�00>44�(��M&��U&��+�$�R�4:>44�"���+)M���'(��P��P�!�,���+�����%�"� �P�R�'��P�R+�00>44�(�����%�"� �P�R�Q��P�R+�4:>44���VV�C��L�W���	���/ ���� )X��(�&�Y�&,�+&+�� �"���+)Q��P�R�� 00>44�(��4:>44�"���+)!�&+P�R�� 00>44�(��4:>44�"���+)S&P�&+P�R�� 00>44�(��4:>44�"���+)!���+P�R�� 00>44�(��4:>44�"���+)*��P�R�� 00>44�(��4:>44�"���+)'�(��P�R�� 00>44�(��4:>44�"���+)'��P�R�� 00>44�(��4:>44�"���+)'&�+��� �T����(���+�� M&��U&��+�<?&�I��,�00>44�(��M&��U&��+�$�R�4:>44�"���+)M���'(��P��P�!�,���+�����%�"� �P�R�'��P�R+�00>44�(�����%�"� �P�R�Q��P�R+�4:>44��� ��ZA[J\J]�̂Z_K��Z̀ �â [�AK[b\�[���"���+)Q��P�R�� 00>44�(��4:>:4�"���+)!�&+P�R�� 00>44�(��4:>:4�"���+)S&P�&+P�R�� 00>44�(��4:>:4�"���+)!���+P�R�� 00>44�(��4:>:4�"���+)*��P�R�� 00>44�(��4:>:4�"���+)'�(��P�R�� 00>44�(��4:>:4�"���+)'��P�R�� 00>44�(��4:>:4�"���+)'&�+��� �T����(���+�� M&��U&��+�<?&�00>44�(��M&��U&��+�$�R�4:>:4�"���+)M���'(��P��P�!�,���+�����%��� �P�R�'��P�R+�00>44�(�����%��� �P�R�Q��P�R+�4:>:4���c [̂K[�â [��\
[J
[�W_â ZK\�[���_AA�\[��Z̀ �W�
Ẑ Z��c [̂â [K�â [�[�WK[�ZJ�WJdeZK�Z̀ �̀�_AA�\[����/ ���� )X��(�&�Y�&,�+&+��

Page 173

Agenda Item 10
Appendix 3



� �������������	�
������������������������������������������ �!����"�  #�$�%&�'(�&&(�������)��)*���&++���,-����������./01�2.$�!& 3�40225�67891:�*�;�40225�678100�<,�� 3���,,&���� =-�����-�>��?>�%����>-�����-�>��?>�%@ ��&�+�����.��&�+����/�(�244:�A��B�������������BB��C� A�DEFG�� �

� � H��&�0:��I�01�

��JKLMN�OPMQR�SMPMTU�KTTPM���VW�XV�TMP�VW�APMLR�M���R
MJ
M��L���Y�����S����C�Z�����[[�\�����	����P��]N�������̂R�̂W������N�
�B_��N��KF̀�EaT�� ��PMQR�SMPMT�JaL�MP�VW�XV�TMPN�WVP�MbKLA�M�
VLAKJc�JaL�MPN�
XKPRSc�JaL�MP�O\XMPM�KAA�R
K��Md��"�  e���f�g��%���I&� g&��+(��(����h�>��� ���JKLM�VW�TM�RQJKSMT�APMLR�M���aAMPiR�VP�\XMPM�SXM�APMLR�M���R
MJ
M�KaSXVPR�M��SXM��aAA�c�VW�K�
VXV����j+�'�+���<  &��"��(&��� ����SKSM�\XMSXMP�K

M���SV�SXM�APMLR�M���c�
XR�TPMJ�R��PM�SPR
SMT�VP�APVXR�RSMT���� ����

Page 174

Agenda Item 10
Appendix 3



�

�

�������������������	
��
����
��
���	����������
���������������������� ���!"��"#�$ �%"��&�� ��'&��##�(�&)�*�+� "�,$ �����+"#� -�#$�.$++)/$$(0�12�3�45�6"7� (��%�8#���#0�9"��$/�� �:'� ���;��<%��7"��"#�$ �"==+��"#�$ �%"��&�� ��"(��/�#%�"�7��/�#$��>#� (� -�#%��+��� �� -�%$'���" (�$#%���+��� �"&+��"�#�7�#���;��6'�&��"�6$ �#"&'+"�)�$&?��#��#$�#%���"==+��"#�$ �&"��(�$ �#%��@$++$/� -�+��� �� -�$&?��#�7��A�B�CDEFEGHIJG�JK�LDIME�NGO�OIPJDOED�B�CQRSIL�PNKEHT�:�$��#%��"==+��"#�$ �#$�7"�)��"(��&)�*�+� "�,$ ���#%����U'��#�#%��7"��"#�$ ��" �&���'��"����(�&)�#%��@$++$/� -A�B�VWEGIGX�YJQDP�ZYQDPONT�[�\QGONT�IP�LQDDEGHST�QGHIS�]̂_̂]NM�[�̀abcadcef�cg�hfdci�jkljjam�B�nELJDOEO�MQPIL��ZYQDPONT�[�\QGONT�IP�LQDDEGHST�QGHIS�]̂_]]NM�[�oabcadcef�cg�hfdci�jpljjam�B�\QWWST�JK�NSLJYJS�[�ZYQDPONT�[�\QGONT�IP�LQDDEGHST�QGHIS�]̂_]]NM�[�̀abcadcef�hfdci�jpljjam�qcdr�a�bsthsgd�ueb�euu�gaisg�B�vNHE�GIXYH�DEKDEPYMEGHP�[�LQDDEGHST�QGHIS�]̂_]]NM�w�ONTP�N�xEEy�[�oabcadcef�zef{a|�}�~s{fsg{a|�hfdci�jpljjam�af{��rhbg{a|�}��hf{a|�hfdci�jkljjam�6'�&��"�6$ �#"&'+"�)����$&?��#� -�&"��(�$ �#%���$ ��� ��#%"#�#%���/�++��"'���" �� ���"���� �������" (�(��$�(��0�'+#��"#�+)�"@@��#� -�#%���"@�#)�$@�#%��='&+��;���<$��'==$�#�#%���$&?��#�$ ���%"7���$++"#�(�@"�#��" (�@�-'����&�#/�� ���#��"��%������" (���#��"��%�����0�#%������� �$�(���#$�=�$7�(��"�@'++���@+��#�$ �$@�������("#"�/�#%$'#�� �$�=$�"#� -�#%��6�!������+$��($/ ;��<%��@�-'������+"#��#$�#�����&�#/�� �<%'��(")��7� � -�#$��$ (")��$� � -�" (��$7���9"��$/�<$/ �6� #���" (��'��$' (� -��#���#�;��<%��@�-'������+"#��#$�#%��@$++$/� -�#)=���$@����$�(�(�������A�B��IJSEGLE��NPPNQSH�EHL���B�CQRSIL�VDOED�B��DIMIGNS��NMNXE������
	�����	��
���	���
������������'�� -�#%��)�"���$��� �� -�#%������5������#%����/"����������������$�(�(�/�#%� �#%��"��"�=��#'��(�� ��==� (�>��;��<%��%�-%��#�=�$=$�#�$ �$@��������$��'��$ �"�/���� (� �-%#�#������$ $�)�&�#/�� ���A���3��5A4�%���/%� �.$++)/$$(�����'��� #+)�$=� ;��6$�="��(�/�#%�#%���#����$ �"�:��(")��$� � -�" (��$ (")��$� � -�#%�������"+�$�#�"�1����� ���"���� �������$ �"�8"#'�(")��$� � -�" (������� ���"���$ �"�8' (")��$� � -;��<%��&�--��#�(�@@��� ���&�#/�� �#%����(")�����#%��@"�#�#%"#�#%�� �-%#��+'&��" (�&"���"���$=� �" (��'�%�&'�����/�#%��'�#$����;��.$/�7���&�#/�� ��1A���3���A4�%���$ �8"#'�(")��$� � -�#%��+�7�+��$@�������(�$=�"-"� �#$����$@@� �������$�(�(�" (�$ �"�8' (")��$� � -�&�#/�� �#%���"���%$'�������������"������$�(�(;��� �� @��� ����" �&��(�"/ �#%"#�#%���/�++�&��('��#$�#%���'��� #�=���������+$�� -�"#�1"�;���#���� $#�' ��"+��#���#$��>=��#������ "+�#)�#$�$��'��/%� �=���$ ��+�"7��"�+��� ��(�=��������"#��+$�� -�#����('��#$�� #$>��"#�$ �+�"(� -�$ #$�7�$+� ���='&+���$�(���" (�$@@� ����$@������ "+�("�"-�;�<%������ $��"++)��" "-�(�&)�$@@������=���� #�"#�#%��#���0�$@@���������=$ (� -�#$�� ��(� #��" (�$@@�������$�� -�"��$���� ��(� #��$ �="#�$+;�<%����"+�#)����#%"#�"@#���" �%$'��$���$�#%��+$�"+�#)����-� ��"++)���=#��(�$@�#%�� �-%#�#������$ $�)���7�++���0����'+#� -�� �"���('�#�$ �$@������;�

\QWEDIGHEGOEGH������\NDNY��NLyPJG��maci�\NDNY��NLyPJG�LQMRDIN�WJSILE�Qy����]��E H_�JWHIJG��¡�E HEGPIJG��������� ¢rcsu�¢efgda£is���YIEK��JGPHNRSE�¤ILYESSE�\yEED�¥C¤�¦§��̈JGP��CJSILE�̈ENO©QNDHEDP��NDSEHJG�̈NSS�CEGDIHY¡��QMRDIN��§�]��§ª�� LQMRDINWJSILE�xxx�LQMRDIN�WJSILE�Qy� Page 175

Agenda Item 10
Appendix 4



�

�

�����������	
�����		�

�����������������������
������
������
������
���	�����
���������	��������������	
�����		�

�����������������������
�����������
������
���	�����
���������	����� ���
��� ���������
�����������!	�������������	������"������������������������������������	���		�
��#�������������$��	
����"�������
��	����#
�#�
�����������������
�����#��#
�������������������������	��������%�����
���
�����
�������������������#����	�������#	���	��
������������������	������#
�����	��������&�����#�#����"�����
����'������������������	�	�"�
������������	��������������������������#�����������&���	��"������������#
��������������������
������
��(���
���	����&������������"���
��������
����������������	��
���$���������#������
��������#����	����������
�
��(��������������������	
������	
�����������
�
���$������
�����"����������#�	�������	
�����������	
�������������������)��������*+,-./0�.11+23+0�3.44-55+6�7##���8� ���	����������"��������	�����
���������	�������$��
�����9"��������:������:�
������������
�����;��	
�����
����������
���������	�����%������
�%����	�����<
�"����'������=�
�������#
�����������"����	�����	���
����������		��������	��������������
���>�����"����	�����	��
�������	����������������$�
��
�?�������������@���	�A���	
����
���������
���A"
����"����	��		��������
������������	
�����������	��	���������������
����$����
������������������#�	��"�	
���������	�����##�������"�	���������#��������������	��������	���B��	����7##���8�C������	
�����#��������������	���������������������	
�����		�

�������������#�
��	���
��
����$������#���������!������	�
#�
������	��������

����������
������=��������&�������	�
#�
����������	�������������
�#�	��
����$�
������	��
�	
�������#���	��
�����
����� �"��������
��
�������������	��������
�=��������������D�
��
��������������!�
����������	
�����
�����������
���
�	�������������������E������&������������������
����	
����	��������������������)������7��������������������	��	���������������������	�

���	��������������=�����������##��������������������"�	�������
�����������
�����

��������=�����������$�
��
�"
���������	��	���������������
���"��������������
����D
�������������������#����������
��������	��
���������	
����		�
���������������������	���������������
���

Page 176

Agenda Item 10
Appendix 4



�

�

������������	
������	��������������������������������������� ��!�"��������������� � �������������������#�$�$���%&���$#�'&����$��%�������()����#*�#**�����+�%�,�����������-��.�/�#*���������%&������������')���%��)'$%�,��#&&#������')�����$�0�1�+'���%�����#�#*�������#**������+�%�,����%�*)%��%#��#*�,�%�2#'��+#$%)3����&-��4�����%�����%�5��������%&��)�2�)���%))��%����%�������%��������%���#'����������(��&%���-��4�������%&������%��%���#�)3���)�����#�#**������#��'��%�,��%��%��#��%&&�$%���)3�#'��%$������1#))3�##$�2��'�-��6�������%&������#�$�$�%������)#��)%�3��#')$��#����#��%����%��)%���+'���#')$�+���#���%+'��$��#�(���#���+�%�,����1#))3�##$�%&&�$%���)3�+�*#���������%&��#��'���$-��7�*������� 8���� 9'&&��3�:��6�;7<���� =>��?��#&&#������')�� �@A�BA�!� C�#���#**��$�����%)���#�����%,���#'������('���$�����<D���'�%�,��#�%�E'�3�%��%$�����%,���)'+-�;7<���� =! �:�0�1� �@A�BA�!� 6**��$�����$�2%��%&����������,���-��8'�%�,��#'���#*�$��5�����%����)%�����$�(��&%����#**��$�����������')��$�����2%��%&�+3����#�%�,���,)����+#��)���#�����%�,��%�������2%��%&���$���'�%�,����'���#��%�����$-��6**��$�������&�$��,##$����%������(�-�;7<����@.F@�:�G�1� �>A�FA�!� 8'�%�,������#'���#*�$��5�����%���#����������$'�%�,��%,����%&����#�#&3����'�5�#���&�)������')��$�����2%��%&�+3�5�#�5%�,��%&��#�����*)##�����������('����$H�5%�5�$���$�+%������2%��%&I���#������')�%�,�%��+�'%�%�,��#��������$���$���(����#*��%���#���%)��#�+���#���#'�-�;7<����. F!�?����*��   A�FA�!� 6**��$�����%)���%��#J%����$����#',���)�#�#)H���������'(�+��%�$���(#)%���#**%����#����('+)%���%,���3�#'��%$��#*�)%�����$�(��&%������$�,��++�$�#**%��������H�#**��$����������������#**��%�������%��$%����%#��#*��#������������������������%�$��#��2#%$���(�'���+'������+������',�����$���5����#�����,�#'�$-�;7<���  !�=�?�0�1� �!A�@A�!� '�5�#����'�(��������,��++�$�����&�)��2%�%�&��,��%��)��#2����)#��%�,���'�%�,�(�%��+'���#�)���%�,�%�E'�3���$��������#�����&�)������('����$��%&��#�����*������'�%�,��#�%�E'�3�;7<��� @!F>�?�G�1� �BA�.A�!� 6**��$�������+����*%,��%�,�%���)'+���������3�('����$�2%��%&��#��%$��#*����$�$'�%�,�����*%,�����'�%�,���2���)�*����'�����#�����*������$����'�-�;7<���B� B��?�4��*�� ��A�>A�!� 8'�%�,��#'���#*�$��5����H�5�#���#**��$�����������&(��$��#�����)�2��%#'��%��&��*�#&�����2%��%&�����$+�,H�()��%�,����%�����$�%������+�,���%)���+#���(���%��������%�����%,���)'+-�K�)'��#*�%��&��%���'�����)3�'�5�#��-�;7<���B� F=�?�4��*�� ��A�>A�!� 8'�%�,��#'���#*�$��5����H�2%��%&�����+����%���%,���)'+���$�����$%��#2���$������%�%�%�))3�����(�#�����$�('������$�+������5��-��#���%��&�������)��������#2���$�+'��#**��$���������5���L�=������#'��#*�����('���-�;7<���BBB !�?��#&&#������')�� �>A�!A�!� 8'�%�,������#'���#*�$��5��������MNCN6ON�9M9DP;4�����('����$�����K<;4<��%���������$���'�%�,��#�%�E'�3�;7<���F�!=.�?�0�1� �!A��A�!� 0$')��&�)��<D���%)���$�'�5�$'�%�,�����#*�$��5���������+��#&��%�2#)2�$�%����2��+�)���,'&����%��)%�����$�(��&%�����%���&�)��#**�$�-�<D���$�#**�$����2�������)�*��)%�����$�(��&%����#��*##���%������#&()%���#*�#**�$��*#))#�%�,�+��%�$-�4�����%#���2��������$�+��5�'�)%���))�3�+��%�$�)%�����$�(��&%����������#**�$����$����#&()%�����2��(�3�%��))3������5�$�<D����%5%�,��%&��#����$�5�#�5%�,��%&��#�*)##�-�6**�$�Q�R���2�������5%�5�$�<D��#����$���'�%�,����))%�,���$�+�'%�%�,-�6**�$��������)�*��#��*##��)��2%�,�<D�#��*)##�-�;7<���FF� ��:�0�1� �.A� A�!� 9'�(����$'�%�,��%,����%&����#�#&3H�����('����$����2%��%&�#�����#�����*������'�%�,���+�'%��$���$�+)##$%�$�)%(-���

Page 177

Agenda Item 10
Appendix 4



�

�

����������	
��	���������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������� ��!���������������"����#��$���%����������#��$���%��������������������������������������������$�������%���"���������$�����#�������#%������������#�&���������������������$��������������������������#���������������$�������������� ��'���"���������������#��������������(�����������������������������%�������������"������������%��������������������������������������������$�������������������������������������������������#��������������#������������������������ ��)������������"�������������#����������&��������%������*�����#������$������������������&���������$�����������%���#����#�������$�����������������������������+�#&�������������� �����,��-��.�/�-0�1�2��!��3����%�45�����$����4545��+�+��#����������+�!��"�����#�6������������������������#�����$������7������8��������������������"��������������������� ��9���������������������������#����������������������������� ���� :� 6������%��;����������<�'���%�����������"�����#�����"��������� ��)������&*����"����������"���������������������������#��������$����"��%����$������������������������"�������=�#�������%���"������&�������$�����&���������������������������$��������������'���%�����������������������������������$���������#���� ��)�����������������������������$����� ���:� >����������������������$���#�����������������������:� ���������������������&������������������������#�����=��������������������"�����������������%�&���$������������������&*��������$����������"������������ �:� )��%������������������������������������������=�������������#��������������%�����������&���������������#����%����?�����"����������������������������"��%�����%�������������#�����$�������3���%����������������������������� ��@��������������@�����8��������+�#&����+��������%�����������������

Page 178

Agenda Item 10
Appendix 4



�

�

���������������������	�
�������
����������������������������������������������
�������
�������������������������������������������������������
�����

Page 179

Agenda Item 10
Appendix 4



�

�

���������������������	�
���������������
����������������
Page 180

Agenda Item 10
Appendix 4



�

�

��� Page 181

Agenda Item 10
Appendix 4



�

�

���������	�
�������������������������������������

��������������� ������������������ �!�"�

Page 182

Agenda Item 10
Appendix 4



Simon Crompton 
Director at The Lounge Group 

5-15 Dalkeith Street 
Barrow in Furness 

 

28th August 2020 

 

Planning / Licencing Dept 
Barrow Borough Council 
Town Hall, Duke St 
Barrow in Furness 
 

To whom it may concern,  

My name is Simon Crompton, Director at The Lounge Group, and I am writing to log my 
objections / concerns to the application made by Broadway, Hollywood, Broadway and 
Manhattans, licence premises located in Cavendish Street, Barrow in Furness. 

As the owner of a licence premises in Barrow in Furness for the last 3 years I have already 
expressed in different occasions my concerns about the current closing times of different licence 
premises in Cavendish Street.  

My personal experience is most of the violent incidents and/or alcohol intoxications that 
require ambulance and/or police intervention, are taking place after 01:30 am.  

I have expressed in numerous occasions, during Bar Watch meetings, that the closing 
times should be reviewed and brought back to 2 am. This would be, in my opinion, help with the 
prevention of crime and disorder and with the prevention of public nuisance, two of the 
licencing objectives. My personal commitment with this idea is applied to my business by 
choosing, although we hold a licence to open until 4 am and a 24 hrs licence in special 
circumstances, to close at 2 am  as we feel this is the right thing to do to protect our staff, 
customer and business. As a direct result of this policy we have a history of ZERO police incidents 
within our premises or related with our premises. 

To finish, I have had different conversations with nigh time economy business 
owners/operators that have the same concerns I do and feel that this will have a significant 
negative impact in sector. With the current alcohol related problems in the area and incidents 
and disorder with the Barrow town centre area, we feel this extension of opening hours would 
not support the licencing objectives. I am happy to discuss this in person with yourself or the 
planning/licencing committee as I feel very strongly about this matter.  

 

 

Sincerely,  

Simon Crompton 

 

Page 183

Agenda Item 10
Appendix 5



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 185

Agenda Item 10
Appendix 6



Page 186

Agenda Item 10
Appendix 6



Page 187

Agenda Item 10
Appendix 6



Page 188

Agenda Item 10
Appendix 6



6 | Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 

2. The licensing objectives 

Crime and disorder 

2.1 Licensing authorities should look to the police as the main source of advice on crime 

and disorder. They should also seek to involve the local Community Safety Partnership 

(CSP). 

2.2 In the exercise of their functions, licensing authorities should seek to co-operate with the 

Security Industry Authority (“SIA”) as far as possible and consider adding relevant 

conditions to licences where appropriate. The SIA also plays an important role in 

preventing crime and disorder by ensuring that door supervisors are properly licensed 

and, in partnership with police and other agencies, that security companies are not 

being used as fronts for serious and organised criminal activity. This may include 

making specific enquiries or visiting premises through intelligence led operations in 

conjunction with the police, local authorities and other partner agencies. Similarly, the 

provision of requirements for door supervision may be appropriate to ensure that people 

who are drunk, drug dealers or people carrying firearms do not enter the premises and 

ensuring that the police are kept informed. 

2.3 Conditions should be targeted on deterrence and preventing crime and disorder 

including the prevention of illegal working in licensed premises (see paragraph 10.10). 

For example, where there is good reason to suppose that disorder may take place, the 

presence of closed-circuit television (CCTV) cameras both inside and immediately 

outside the premises can actively deter disorder, nuisance, anti-social behaviour and 

crime generally. Some licence holders may wish to have cameras on their premises for 

the prevention of crime directed against the business itself, its staff, or its customers. 

But any condition may require a broader approach, and it may be appropriate to ensure 

that the precise location of cameras is set out on plans to ensure that certain areas are 

properly covered and there is no subsequent dispute over the terms of the condition. 

2.4 The inclusion of radio links and ring-round phone systems should be considered an 

appropriate condition for public houses, bars and nightclubs operating in city and town 

centre leisure areas with a high density of licensed premises. These systems allow 

managers of licensed premises to communicate instantly with the police and facilitate a 

rapid response to any disorder which may be endangering the customers and staff on 

the premises. 

2.5 Conditions relating to the management competency of designated premises supervisors 

should not normally be attached to premises licences. It will normally be the 

responsibility of the premises licence holder as an employer, and not the licensing 

authority, to ensure that the managers appointed at the premises are competent and 

appropriately trained. The designated premises supervisor is the key person who will 

usually be responsible for the day to day management of the premises by the premises 

licence holder, including the prevention of disorder. A condition of this kind may only be 

justified as appropriate in rare circumstances where it can be demonstrated that, in the 

circumstances associated with particular premises, poor management competency 

could give rise to issues of crime and disorder and public safety. 

  

Page 189

Agenda Item 10
Appendix 7



Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 I 7 

2.6 The prevention of crime includes the prevention of immigration crime including the 

prevention of illegal working in licensed premises. Licensing authorities should work with 

Home Office Immigration Enforcement, as well as the police, in respect of these 

matters. Licence conditions that are considered appropriate for the prevention of illegal 

working in licensed premises might include requiring a premises licence holder to 

undertake right to work checks on all staff employed at the licensed premises or 

requiring that a copy of any document checked as part of a right to work check are 

retained at the licensed premises.  

Public safety 

2.7 Licence holders have a responsibility to ensure the safety of those using their premises, 

as a part of their duties under the 2003 Act. This concerns the safety of people using the 

relevant premises rather than public health which is addressed in other legislation. 

Physical safety includes the prevention of accidents and injuries and other immediate 

harms that can result from alcohol consumption such as unconsciousness or alcohol 

poisoning. Conditions relating to public safety may also promote the crime and disorder 

objective as noted above. There will of course be occasions when a public safety 

condition could incidentally benefit a person’s health more generally, but it should not be 

the purpose of the condition as this would be outside the licensing authority’s powers 

(be ultra vires) under the 2003 Act. Conditions should not be imposed on a premises 

licence or club premises certificate which relate to cleanliness or hygiene. 

2.8 A number of matters should be considered in relation to public safety. These may 

include: 

•  Fire safety; 

•  Ensuring appropriate access for emergency services such as ambulances; 

•  Good communication with local authorities and emergency services, for example 

communications networks with the police and signing up for local incident alerts (see 

paragraph 2.4 above); 

•  Ensuring the presence of trained first aiders on the premises and appropriate first aid 

kits; 

•  Ensuring the safety of people when leaving the premises (for example, through the 

provision of information on late-night transportation); 

•  Ensuring appropriate and frequent waste disposal, particularly of glass bottles; 

•  Ensuring appropriate limits on the maximum capacity of the premises (see 

paragraphs 2.12-2.13, and Chapter 10; and 

•  Considering the use of CCTV in and around the premises (as noted in paragraph 2.3 

above, this may also assist with promoting the crime and disorder objective). 

2.9 The measures that are appropriate to promote public safety will vary between premises 

and the matters listed above may not apply in all cases. As set out in Chapter 8 (8.38-

8.46), applicants should consider when making their application which steps it is 

appropriate to take to promote the public safety objective and demonstrate how they 

achieve that. 

  

Page 190

Agenda Item 10
Appendix 7



8 | Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 

Ensuring safe departure of those using the premises 

2.10 Licence holders should make provision to ensure that premises users safely leave their 

premises. Measures that may assist include: 

•  Providing information on the premises of local taxi companies who can provide safe 

transportation home; and 

•  Ensuring adequate lighting outside the premises, particularly on paths leading to and 

from the premises and in car parks. 

Maintenance and repair 

2.11 Where there is a requirement in other legislation for premises open to the public or for 

employers to possess certificates attesting to the safety or satisfactory nature of certain 

equipment or fixtures on the premises, it would be inappropriate for a licensing condition 

to require possession of such a certificate. However, it would be permissible to require 

as a condition of a licence or certificate, if appropriate, checks on this equipment to be 

conducted at specified intervals and for evidence of these checks to be retained by the 

premises licence holder or club provided this does not duplicate or gold-plate a 

requirement in other legislation. Similarly, it would be permissible for licensing 

authorities, if they receive relevant representations from responsible authorities or any 

other persons, to attach conditions which require equipment of particular standards to 

be maintained on the premises. Responsible authorities – such as health and safety 

authorities – should therefore make their expectations clear in this respect to enable 

prospective licence holders or clubs to prepare effective operating schedules and club 

operating schedules. 

Safe capacities 

2.12 “Safe capacities” should only be imposed where appropriate for the promotion of public 

safety or the prevention of disorder on the relevant premises. For example, if a capacity 

has been imposed through other legislation, it would be inappropriate to reproduce it in 

a premises licence. Indeed, it would also be wrong to lay down conditions which conflict 

with other legal requirements. However, if no safe capacity has been imposed through 

other legislation, a responsible authority may consider it appropriate for a new capacity 

to be attached to the premises which would apply at any material time when the 

licensable activities are taking place and make representations to that effect. For 

example, in certain circumstances, capacity limits may be appropriate in preventing 

disorder, as overcrowded venues can increase the risks of crowds becoming frustrated 

and hostile. 

2.13 The permitted capacity is a limit on the number of persons who may be on the premises 

at any time, following a recommendation by the relevant fire and rescue authority under 

the Regulatory Reform (Fire Safety) Order 2005. For any application for a premises 

licence or club premises certificate for premises without an existing permitted capacity 

where the applicant wishes to take advantage of the special provisions set out in section 

177 of the 2003 Act1, the applicant should conduct their own risk assessment as to the 

appropriate capacity of the premises. They should send their recommendation to the fire 

and rescue authority which will consider it and decide what the “permitted capacity” of 

                                                
1
 S 177 of the 2003 Act now only applies to performances of dance. 

Page 191

Agenda Item 10
Appendix 7



Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 I 9 

those premises should be. 

2.14 Public safety may include the safety of performers appearing at any premises, but does 

not extend to the prevention of injury from participation in a boxing or wrestling 

entertainment. 

Public nuisance 

2.15 The 2003 Act enables licensing authorities and responsible authorities, through 

representations, to consider what constitutes public nuisance and what is appropriate to 

prevent it in terms of conditions attached to specific premises licences and club 

premises certificates. It is therefore important that in considering the promotion of this 

licensing objective, licensing authorities and responsible authorities focus on the effect 

of the licensable activities at the specific premises on persons living and working 

(including those carrying on business) in the area around the premises which may be 

disproportionate and unreasonable. The issues will mainly concern noise nuisance, light 

pollution, noxious smells and litter. 

2.16 Public nuisance is given a statutory meaning in many pieces of legislation. It is however 

not narrowly defined in the 2003 Act and retains its broad common law meaning. It may 

include in appropriate circumstances the reduction of the living and working amenity and 

environment of other persons living and working in the area of the licensed premises. 

Public nuisance may also arise as a result of the adverse effects of artificial light, dust, 

odour and insects or where its effect is prejudicial to health. 

2.17 Conditions relating to noise nuisance will usually concern steps appropriate to control 

the levels of noise emanating from premises. This might be achieved by a simple 

measure such as ensuring that doors and windows are kept closed after a particular 

time, or persons are not permitted in garden areas of the premises after a certain time. 

More sophisticated measures like the installation of acoustic curtains or rubber speaker 

mounts to mitigate sound escape from the premises may be appropriate. However, 

conditions in relation to live or recorded music may not be enforceable in circumstances 

where the entertainment activity itself is not licensable (see chapter 16). Any conditions 

appropriate to promote the prevention of public nuisance should be tailored to the type, 

nature and characteristics of the specific premises and its licensable activities. Licensing 

authorities should avoid inappropriate or disproportionate measures that could deter 

events that are valuable to the community, such as live music. Noise limiters, for 

example, are expensive to purchase and install and are likely to be a considerable 

burden for smaller venues. 

2.18 As with all conditions, those relating to noise nuisance may not be appropriate in certain 

circumstances where provisions in other legislation adequately protect those living in the 

area of the premises. But as stated earlier in this Guidance, the approach of licensing 

authorities and responsible authorities should be one of prevention and when their 

powers are engaged, licensing authorities should be aware of the fact that other 

legislation may not adequately cover concerns raised in relevant representations and 

additional conditions may be appropriate. 

2.19 Where applications have given rise to representations, any appropriate conditions 

should normally focus on the most sensitive periods. For example, the most sensitive 

period for people being disturbed by unreasonably loud music is at night and into the 

Page 192

Agenda Item 10
Appendix 7



10 | Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 

early morning when residents in adjacent properties may be attempting to go to sleep or 

are sleeping. This is why there is still a need for a licence for performances of live music 

between 11 pm and 8 am. In certain circumstances, conditions relating to noise 

emanating from the premises may also be appropriate to address any disturbance 

anticipated as customers enter and leave. 

2.20 Measures to control light pollution will also require careful thought. Bright lighting 

outside premises which is considered appropriate to prevent crime and disorder may 

itself give rise to light pollution for some neighbours. Applicants, licensing authorities 

and responsible authorities will need to balance these issues. 

2.21 Beyond the immediate area surrounding the premises, these are matters for the 

personal responsibility of individuals under the law. An individual who engages in anti-

social behaviour is accountable in their own right. However, it would be perfectly 

reasonable for a licensing authority to impose a condition, following relevant 

representations, that requires the licence holder or club to place signs at the exits from 

the building encouraging patrons to be quiet until they leave the area, or that, if they 

wish to smoke, to do so at designated places on the premises instead of outside, and to 

respect the rights of people living nearby to a peaceful night. 

Protection of children from harm 

2.22 The protection of children from harm includes the protection of children from moral, 

psychological and physical harm. This includes not only protecting children from the 

harms associated directly with alcohol consumption but also wider harms such as 

exposure to strong language and sexual expletives (for example, in the context of 

exposure to certain films or adult entertainment). Licensing authorities must also 

consider the need to protect children from sexual exploitation when undertaking 

licensing functions. 

2.23 The Government believes that it is completely unacceptable to sell alcohol to children. 

Conditions relating to the access of children where alcohol is sold and which are 

appropriate to protect them from harm should be carefully considered. Moreover, 

conditions restricting the access of children to premises should be strongly considered 

in circumstances where: 

•  adult entertainment is provided; 

•  a member or members of the current management have been convicted for serving 

alcohol to minors or with a reputation for allowing underage drinking (other than in the 

context of the exemption in the 2003 Act relating to 16 and 17 year olds consuming 

beer, wine and cider when accompanied by an adult during a table meal); 

•  it is known that unaccompanied children have been allowed access; 

•  there is a known association with drug taking or dealing; or 

•  in some cases, the premises are used exclusively or primarily for the sale of alcohol 

for consumption on the premises. 

2.24 It is also possible that activities, such as adult entertainment, may take place at certain 

times on premises but not at other times. For example, premises may operate as a café 

bar during the day providing meals for families but also provide entertainment with a 

sexual content after 8.00pm. It is not possible to give an exhaustive list of what amounts 

to entertainment or services of an adult or sexual nature. Applicants, responsible 

Page 193

Agenda Item 10
Appendix 7



Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 I 11 

authorities and licensing authorities will need to consider this point carefully. This would 

broadly include topless bar staff, striptease, lap-, table- or pole-dancing, performances 

involving feigned violence or horrific incidents, feigned or actual sexual acts or fetishism, 

or entertainment involving strong and offensive language. 

2.25 Applicants must be clear in their operating schedules about the activities and times at 

which the events would take place to help determine when it is not appropriate for 

children to enter the premises. Consideration should also be given to the proximity of 

premises to schools and youth clubs so that applicants take appropriate steps to ensure 

that advertising relating to their premises, or relating to events at their premises, is not 

displayed at a time when children are likely to be near the premises. 

2.26 Licensing authorities and responsible authorities should expect applicants, when 

preparing an operating schedule or club operating schedule, to set out the steps to be 

taken to protect children from harm when on the premises. 

2.27 Conditions, where they are appropriate, should reflect the licensable activities taking 

place on the premises. In addition to the mandatory condition regarding age verification, 

other conditions relating to the protection of children from harm can include: 

•  restrictions on the hours when children may be present; 

•  restrictions or exclusions on the presence of children under certain ages when 

particular specified activities are taking place; 

•  restrictions on the parts of the premises to which children may have access; 

•  age restrictions (below 18); 

•  restrictions or exclusions when certain activities are taking place; 

•  requirements for an accompanying adult (including for example, a combination of 

requirements which provide that children under a particular age must be 

accompanied by an adult); and 

•  full exclusion of people under 18 from the premises when any licensable activities are 

taking place. 

2.28 Please see also Chapter 10 for details about the Licensing Act 2003 (Mandatory 

Licensing Conditions) Order 2010. 

2.29 Licensing authorities should give considerable weight to representations about child 

protection matters. In addition to the responsible authority whose functions relate 

directly to child protection, the Director of Public Health may also have access to 

relevant evidence to inform such representations. These representations may include, 

amongst other things, the use of health data about the harms that alcohol can cause to 

underage drinkers. Where a responsible authority, or other person, presents evidence to 

the licensing authority linking specific premises with harms to children (such as 

ambulance data or emergency department attendances by persons under 18 years old 

with alcohol- related illnesses or injuries) this evidence should be considered, and the 

licensing authority should also consider what action is appropriate to ensure this 

licensing objective is effectively enforced. In relation to applications for the grant of a 

licence in areas where evidence is presented on high levels of alcohol-related harms in 

persons aged under 18, it is recommended that the licensing authority considers what 

conditions may be appropriate to ensure that this objective is promoted effectively. 

2.30 The 2003 Act provides that, where a premises licence or club premises certificate 

Page 194

Agenda Item 10
Appendix 7



12 | Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 

authorises the exhibition of a film, it must include a condition requiring the admission of 

children to films to be restricted in accordance with recommendations given either by a 

body designated under section 4 of the Video Recordings Act 1984 specified in the 

licence (the British Board of Film Classification is currently the only body which has 

been so designated) or by the licensing authority itself. Further details are given in 

Chapter 10. 

2.31 Theatres may present a range of diverse activities and entertainment including, for 

example, variety shows incorporating adult entertainment. It is appropriate in these 

cases for a licensing authority to consider restricting the admission of children in such 

circumstances. Entertainments may also be presented at theatres specifically for 

children. It will be appropriate to consider whether a condition should be attached to a 

premises licence or club premises certificate which requires the presence of a sufficient 

number of adult staff on the premises to ensure the wellbeing of the children during any 

emergency. 

Offences relating to the sale and supply of alcohol to children 

2.32 Licensing authorities are expected to maintain close contact with the police, young 

offenders’ teams and trading standards officers (who can carry out test purchases under 

section 154 of the 2003 Act) about the extent of unlawful sales and consumption of 

alcohol by minors and to be involved in the development of any strategies to control or 

prevent these unlawful activities and to pursue prosecutions. Licensing authorities, 

alongside the police, are prosecuting authorities for the purposes of these offences, 

except for the offences under section 147A (persistently selling alcohol to children). 

Where, as a matter of policy, warnings are given to retailers prior to any decision to 

prosecute in respect of an offence, it is important that each of the enforcement arms 

should be aware of the warnings each of them has given. 

  

Page 195

Agenda Item 10
Appendix 7



This page is intentionally left blank



Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 I 49 

8. Applications for premises licences 

Relevant licensing authority 

8.1 Premises licences are issued by the licensing authority in which the premises are 

situated or, in the case of premises straddling an area boundary, the licensing authority 

where the greater part of the premises is situated. Where the premises is located 

equally in two or more areas, the applicant may choose but, in these rare cases, it is 

important that each of the licensing authorities involved maintain close contact. 

8.2 Section 13 of the 2003 Act defines the parties holding important roles in the context of 

applications, inspection, monitoring and reviews of premises licences. 

Authorised persons 

8.3 The first group –“authorised persons”– are bodies empowered by the 2003 Act to carry 

out inspection and enforcement roles. The police and immigration officers are not 

included because they are separately empowered by the 2003 Act to carry out their 

duties. 

8.4 For all premises, the authorised persons include: 

•  officers of the licensing authority; 

•  fire inspectors; 

•  inspectors with responsibility in the licensing authority’s area for the enforcement of 

the Health and Safety at Work etc Act 1974;  

•  officers of the local authority exercising environmental health functions 

8.5 Local authority officers will most commonly have responsibility for the enforcement of 

health and safety legislation, but the Health and Safety Executive is responsible for 

certain premises. In relation to vessels, authorised persons also include an inspector or 

a surveyor of ships appointed under section 256 of the Merchant Shipping Act 1995. 

These would normally be officers acting on behalf of the Maritime and Coastguard 

Agency. The Secretary of State may prescribe other authorised persons by means of 

regulations, but has not currently prescribed any additional bodies. If any are 

prescribed, details will be made available on the GOV.UK website. 

8.6 Where an immigration officer has reason to believe that any premises are being used 

for a licensable activity, the officer may enter the premises with a view to seeing 

whether an offence under any of the Immigration Acts is being committed in connection 

with the licensable activity.  

Responsible authorities 

8.7 The second group –“responsible authorities”– are public bodies that must be fully 

notified of applications and that are entitled to make representations to the licensing 

authority in relation to the application for the grant, variation or review of a premises 

licence. These representations must still be considered ‘relevant’ by the licensing 

authority and relate to one or more of the licensing objectives. For all premises, 

responsible authorities include: 

•  the relevant licensing authority and any other licensing authority in whose area part of 

Page 197

Agenda Item 10
Appendix 8



50 | Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 

the premises is situated; 

•  the chief officer of police; 

•  the local fire and rescue authority; 

•  the relevant enforcing authority under the Health and Safety at Work etc Act 1974; 

•  the local authority with responsibility for environmental health; 

•  the local planning authority; 

•  a body that represents those who are responsible for, or interested in, matters 

relating to the protection of children from harm; 

•  each local authority’s Director of Public Health (DPH) in England4 and Local Health 

Boards (in Wales);  

•  the local weights and measures authority (trading standards); and 

•   Home Office Immigration Enforcement (on behalf of the Secretary of State). 

8.8 The licensing authority should indicate in its statement of licensing policy which body it 

recognises to be competent to advise it on the protection of children from harm. This 

may be the local authority social services department, the Local Safeguarding Children 

Board or another competent body. This is important as applications for premises 

licences have to be copied to the responsible authorities in order for them to make any 

representations they think are relevant. 

8.9 In relation to a vessel, responsible authorities also include navigation authorities within 

the meaning of section 221(1) of the Water Resources Act 1991 that have statutory 

functions in relation to the waters where the vessel is usually moored or berthed, or any 

waters where it is proposed to be navigated when being used for licensable activities; 

the Environment Agency; the Canal and River Trust; and the Secretary of State (who in 

practice acts through the Maritime and Coastguard Agency (MCA)). In practice, the 

Environment Agency and the Canal and River Trust only have responsibility in relation 

to vessels on waters for which they are the navigation statutory authority. 

8.10 The MCA is the lead responsible authority for public safety, including fire safety, 

affecting passenger ships (those carrying more than 12 passengers) wherever they 

operate and small commercial vessels (carrying no more than 12 passengers) which go 

to sea. The safety regime for passenger ships is enforced under the Merchant Shipping 

Acts by the MCA which operates certification schemes for these vessels. Fire and 

rescue authorities, the Health and Safety Executive and local authority health and safety 

inspectors should normally be able to make “nil” returns in relation to such vessels and 

rely on the MCA to make any appropriate representations in respect of this licensing 

objective. 

8.11 Merchant Shipping legislation does not, however, apply to permanently moored vessels. 

So, for example, restaurant ships moored on the Thames Embankment, with permanent 

shore connections should be considered by the other responsible authorities concerned 

with public safety, including fire safety. Vessels carrying no more than 12 passengers 

which do not go to sea are not subject to MCA survey and certification, but may be 

licensed by the local port or navigation authority. 

                                                
4
 This change was made as a result of the commencement of measures in the Health and Social Care Act 2012 which amended 

the 2003 Act and further provision in the NHS Bodies and Local Authorities (Partnership Arrangements, Care Trusts, Public 
Health and Local Healthwatch) Regulations 2012. 

Page 198

Agenda Item 10
Appendix 8



Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 I 51 

8.12 The Secretary of State may prescribe other responsible authorities by means of 

regulations. Any such regulations are published on the Government’s legislation 

website: www.legislation.gov.uk. 

Other persons 

8.13 As well as responsible authorities, any other person can play a role in a number of 

licensing processes under the 2003 Act. This includes any individual, body or business 

entitled to make representations to licensing authorities in relation to applications for the 

grant, variation, minor variation or review of premises licences and club premises 

certificates, regardless of their geographic proximity to the premises. In addition, these 

persons may themselves seek a review of a premises licence. Any representations 

made by these persons must be ‘relevant’, in that the representation relates to one or 

more of the licensing objectives. It must also not be considered by the licensing 

authority to be frivolous or vexatious. In the case of applications for reviews, there is an 

additional requirement that the grounds for the review should not be considered by the 

licensing authority to be repetitious. Chapter 9 of this guidance (paragraphs 9.4 to 9.10) 

provides more detail on the definition of relevant, frivolous and vexatious 

representations. 

8.14 While any of these persons may act in their own right, they may also request that a 

representative makes the representation to the licensing authority on their behalf. A 

representative may include a legal representative, a friend, a Member of Parliament, a 

Member of the Welsh Government, or a local ward or parish councillor who can all act in 

such a capacity. 

Who can apply for a premises licence? 

8.15 Any person (if an individual aged 18 or over) who is carrying on or who proposes to 

carry on a business which involves the use of premises (any place including one in the 

open air) for licensable activities may apply for a premises licence either on a 

permanent basis or for a time-limited period. 

8.16 “A person” in this context includes, for example, a business or a partnership. Licensing 

authorities should not require the nomination of an individual to hold the licence or 

determine the identity of the most appropriate person to hold the licence. 

8.17 In considering joint applications (which is likely to be a rare occurrence), it must be 

stressed that under section 16(1)(a) of the 2003 Act each applicant must be carrying on 

a business which involves the use of the premises for licensable activities. In the case of 

public houses, this would be easier for a tenant to demonstrate than for a pub owning 

company that is not itself carrying on licensable activities. Where licences are to be held 

by businesses, it is desirable that this should be a single business to avoid any lack of 

clarity in accountability. 

8.18 A public house may be owned, or a tenancy held, jointly by a husband and wife, civil 

partners or other partnerships of a similar nature, and both may be actively involved in 

carrying on the licensable activities. In these cases, it is entirely possible for the 

husband and wife or the partners to apply jointly as applicant for the premises licence, 

even if they are not formally partners in business terms. This is unlikely to lead to the 

same issues of clouded accountability that could arise where two separate businesses 

Page 199

Agenda Item 10
Appendix 8



52 | Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 

apply jointly for the licence. If the application is granted, the premises licence would 

identify the holder as comprising both names and any subsequent applications, for 

example for a variation of the licence, would need to be made jointly. 

8.19 A wide range of other individuals and bodies set out in section 16 of the 2003 Act may 

apply for premises licences. They include, for example, Government Departments, local 

authorities, hospitals, schools, charities or police forces. In addition to the bodies listed 

in section 16, the Secretary of State may prescribe by regulations other bodies that may 

apply and any such regulations are published on the Government’s legislation website. 

There is nothing in the 2003 Act which prevents an application being made for a 

premises licence at premises where a premises licence is already held. 

Application forms 

8.20 The Provision of Services Regulations 2009 require local authorities to ensure that all 

procedures relating to access to, or the exercise of, a service activity may be easily 

completed, at a distance and by electronic means. Electronic application facilities for 

premises licences may be found either on GOV.UK or the licensing authority’s own 

website. It remains acceptable to make an application in writing. 

Electronic applications 

8.21 Applicants may apply using the licence application forms available on GOV.UK, or will 

be re-directed from GOV.UK to the licensing authority’s own electronic facility if one is 

available. Applicants may also apply directly to the licensing authority’s facility without 

going through GOV.UK. 

Electronic applications using forms on gov.uk 

8.22 GOV.UK will send a notification to the licensing authority when a completed application 

form is available for it to download from GOV.UK. This is the day that the application is 

taken to be ‘given’ to the licensing authority, even if it is downloaded at a later stage, 

and the application must be advertised from the day after that day (as for a written 

application). The licensing authority must acknowledge the application as quickly as 

possible, specifying the statutory time period and giving details of the appeal procedure. 

8.23 The period of 28 consecutive days during which the application must be advertised on a 

notice outside the premises is, effectively, the statutory timescale by which the 

application must be determined (unless representations are made). This will be 

published on GOV.UK and must also be published on the licensing authority’s own 

electronic facility if one exists. If no representations are made during this period, the 

licensing authority must notify the applicant as quickly as possible that the licence has 

been granted. The licensing authority must send the licence to the applicant as soon as 

possible after this, but the applicant may start the licensed activity as soon as they have 

been notified that the application is granted (subject to compliance with the conditions of 

the licence). The licence may be supplied in electronic or written format as long as the 

applicant is aware which document constitutes ‘the licence’. If representations are 

made, the guidance in Chapter 9 applies. 

Requirement to copy application to responsible authorities 

8.24 The licensing authority must copy electronic applications, made via GOV.UK or its own 

facility, to responsible authorities no later than the first working day after the application 

Page 200

Agenda Item 10
Appendix 8



Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 I 53 

is given. However, if an applicant submits any part of their application in writing, the 

applicant will remain responsible for copying it to responsible authorities. 

Applications via the local authority electronic application facility 

8.25 Where applications are made on the licensing authority’s own electronic facility, the 

application will be taken to be ‘given’ when the applicant has submitted a complete 

application form and paid the fee. The application is given at the point at which it 

becomes accessible to the authority by means of the facility. The licensing authority 

must acknowledge the application as quickly as possible, specifying the statutory time 

period and giving details of the appeal procedure. 

‘Holding’ and ‘deferring’ electronic applications 

8.26 The Government recommends (as for written applications) that electronic applications 

should not be returned if they contain obvious and minor errors such as typing mistakes, 

or small errors that can be rectified with information already in the authority’s 

possession. However, if this is not the case and required information is missing or 

incorrect, the licensing authority may ‘hold’ the application until the applicant has 

supplied all the required information. This effectively resets the 28 day period for 

determining an application and may be done any number of times until the application 

form is complete. Licensing authorities must ensure that they notify the applicant as 

quickly as possible of any missing (or incorrect) information, and explain how this will 

affect the statutory timescale and advertising requirements. 

8.27 If an application has been given at the weekend, the notice advertising the application 

(where applicable) may already be displayed outside the premises by the time that the 

licensing authority downloads the application. It is therefore recommended that, if a 

licensing authority holds an application, it should inform the applicant that the original (or 

if necessary, amended) notice must be displayed until the end of the revised period. The 

licensing authority should also advise the applicant that they should not advertise the 

application in a local newspaper until they have received confirmation from the licensing 

authority that the application includes all the required information. To ensure clarity for 

applicants, the Government recommends that licensing authorities include similar 

advice on their electronic application facilities (where these exist) to ensure that 

applicants do not incur any unnecessary costs. 

8.28 If an applicant persistently fails to supply the required information, the licensing authority 

may refuse the application and the applicant must submit a new application. 

8.29 Licensing authorities may also ‘defer’ electronic applications once if the application is 

particularly complicated, for example if representations are received and a hearing is 

required. This allows the licensing authority to extend the statutory time period for the 

determination of the application by such time as is necessary, including, if required, 

arranging and holding a hearing. Licensing authorities must ensure that applicants are 

informed as quickly as possible of a decision to defer, and the reasons for the deferral, 

before the original 28 days has expired. 

Written applications 

8.30 A written application for a premises licence must be made in the prescribed form to the 

relevant licensing authority and be copied to each of the appropriate responsible 

authorities. For example, it would not be appropriate to send an application for premises 

Page 201

Agenda Item 10
Appendix 8



54 | Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 

which was not a vessel to the Maritime and Coastguard Agency. The application must 

be accompanied by: 

•  the required fee (details of fees may be viewed on the GOV.UK website); 

•  an operating schedule (see below); 

•  a plan of the premises in a prescribed form; and 

•  if the application involves the supply of alcohol, a form of consent from the individual 

who is to be specified in the licence as the designated premises supervisor (DPS). 

8.31 If the application is being made by an individual it should be accompanied by acceptable 

evidence of entitlement to work in the UK (this includes where the application is 

submitted electronically), as set out in the application form (see paragraph 4.8). 

8.32 If the application is being made in respect of a community premises, it may be 

accompanied by the form of application to apply the alternative licence condition. 

8.33 Guidance on completing premises licence, club premises certificate and minor variation 

forms can be found on the GOV.UK website. The Licensing Act 2003 (Premises 

licences and club premises certificates) Regulations 2005 contain provision about the 

prescribed form of applications, operating schedules and plans and are published on the 

legislation.gov.uk website. 

Plans 

8.34 Plans, for written and electronic applications, will not be required to be submitted in any 

particular scale, but they must be in a format which is “clear and legible in all material 

respects”, i.e. they must be accessible and provides sufficient detail for the licensing 

authority to be able to determine the application, including the relative size of any 

features relevant to the application. There is no requirement for plans to be 

professionally drawn as long as they clearly show all the prescribed information. 

Beer gardens or other outdoor spaces 

8.35 Applicants will want to consider whether they might want to use a garden or other 

outdoor space as a location from which alcohol will be consumed. The sale of alcohol is 

to be treated as taking place where the alcohol is appropriated to the contract. In 

scenarios where drink orders are taken by a member of staff in the garden or outdoor 

space and the member of staff then collects the drinks from the licensed premises and 

returns to deliver them to the customer this would be treated as an off-sale and any 

conditions that relate to off-sales would apply. 

8.36 In such cases it will be not necessary to include the garden or other outdoor space on 

the plan as part of the area covered by the premises licence. However, it will be 

necessary for the applicant to include the garden or other outdoor space on the plan as 

part of the area covered by the premises licence if the intention is to provide a service 

whereby drinks are available for sale and consumption directly from that area (i.e. the 

provision of on-sales). This would apply in the case of an outdoor bar or a service 

whereby a member of staff who is in the garden or outdoor space carries with them 

drinks that are available for sale (without the need for the staff member to return to the 

licensed premises to collect them). 

8.37 If the beer garden or other outdoor area is to be used for the consumption of off-sales 

only, there is no requirement to show it on the plan of the premises, but the prescribed 

Page 202

Agenda Item 10
Appendix 8



Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 I 55 

application form requires the applicant to provide a description of where the place is and 

its proximity to the premises. 

Entitlement to work in the UK 

8.38 Individuals applying for a premises licence for the sale of alcohol or late night 

refreshment must be entitled to work in the UK. From 6 April 2017 licensing authorities 

must be satisfied that an individual who applies for a premises licence is entitled to work 

in the UK. This includes applications made by more than one individual applicant. An 

application made by an individual without the entitlement to work in the UK must be 

rejected. This applies to applications which include the sale of alcohol and the 

provisions of late night refreshment, but does not include applications which apply to 

regulated entertainment only. For example, a person applying for a licence for a music 

venue who does not intend to sell alcohol or late night refreshment is not prohibited from 

applying for a licence on grounds of immigration status. However, they will commit a 

criminal offence if they work illegally.   

8.39 The documents which may be relied on in support of an application demonstrating an 

entitlement to work in the UK are the same as for personal licence applicants see 

paragraph 4.8. Where there is sufficient evidence that the applicant is not resident in the 

UK there is no requirement that the applicant has an entitlement to work in the UK. 

8.40 Where an applicant’s permission to work in the UK is time-limited the licensing authority 

may issue a premises licence for an indefinite period, but the licence will become invalid 

when the immigration permission expires. The individual’s entitlement to work in the UK 

may be extended or made permanent by the Home Office, and granting the licence for 

an indefinite period prevents the licensee from having to re-apply for a new licence.  In 

the event that the Home Office cuts short or ends a person’s immigration permission 

(referred to a curtailment or revocation), any licence issued on or after 6 April 2017 

which authorises the sale of alcohol or provision of late night refreshment will 

automatically lapse. As with personal licences, the licensing authority is under no duty to 

carry out on going immigration checks to see whether a licence holder’s permission to 

be in the UK has been brought to an end. For further details on entitlement to work see 

paragraphs 4.8 to 4.18.    

Steps to promote the licensing objectives 

8.41 In completing an operating schedule, applicants are expected to have regard to the 

statement of licensing policy for their area. They must also be aware of the expectations 

of the licensing authority and the responsible authorities as to the steps that are 

appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives, and to demonstrate knowledge 

of their local area when describing the steps they propose to take to promote the 

licensing objectives. Licensing authorities and responsible authorities are expected to 

publish information about what is meant by the promotion of the licensing objectives and 

to ensure that applicants can readily access advice about these matters. However, 

applicants are also expected to undertake their own enquiries about the area in which 

the premises are situated to inform the content of the application. 

8.42 Applicants are, in particular, expected to obtain sufficient information to enable them to 

demonstrate, when setting out the steps they propose to take to promote the licensing 

objectives, that they understand: 

Page 203

Agenda Item 10
Appendix 8



56 | Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 

•  the layout of the local area and physical environment including crime and disorder 

hotspots, proximity to residential premises and proximity to areas where children may 

congregate; 

•  any risk posed to the local area by the applicants’ proposed licensable activities; and 

•  any local initiatives (for example, local crime reduction initiatives or voluntary 

schemes including local taxi-marshalling schemes, street pastors and other 

schemes) which may help to mitigate potential risks. 

8.43 Applicants are expected to include positive proposals in their application on how they 

will manage any potential risks. Where specific policies apply in the area (for example, a 

cumulative impact policy), applicants are also expected to demonstrate an 

understanding of how the policy impacts on their application; any measures they will 

take to mitigate the impact; and why they consider the application should be an 

exception to the policy. 

8.44 It is expected that enquiries about the locality will assist applicants when determining 

the steps that are appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives. For example, 

premises with close proximity to residential premises should consider what effect this 

will have on their smoking, noise management and dispersal policies to ensure the 

promotion of the public nuisance objective. Applicants must consider all factors which 

may be relevant to the promotion of the licensing objectives, and where there are no 

known concerns, acknowledge this in their application. 

8.45 The majority of information which applicants will require should be available in the 

licensing policy statement in the area. Other publicly available sources which may be of 

use to applicants include: 

•  the Crime Mapping website; 

•  Neighbourhood Statistics websites; 

•  websites or publications by local responsible authorities; 

•  websites or publications by local voluntary schemes and initiatives; and 

•  on-line mapping tools. 

8.46 While applicants are not required to seek the views of responsible authorities before 

formally submitting their application, they may find them to be a useful source of expert 

advice on local issues that should be taken into consideration when making an 

application. Licensing authorities may wish to encourage co-operation between 

applicants, responsible authorities and, where relevant, local residents and businesses 

before applications are submitted in order to minimise the scope for disputes to arise. 

8.47 Applicants are expected to provide licensing authorities with sufficient information in this 

section to determine the extent to which their proposed steps are appropriate to 

promote the licensing objectives in the local area. Applications must not be based on 

providing a set of standard conditions to promote the licensing objectives and applicants 

are expected to make it clear why the steps they are proposing are appropriate for the 

premises. 

8.48 All parties are expected to work together in partnership to ensure that the licensing 

objectives are promoted collectively. Where there are no disputes, the steps that 

applicants propose to take to promote the licensing objectives, as set out in the 

operating schedule, will very often translate directly into conditions that will be attached 

Page 204

Agenda Item 10
Appendix 8



Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 I 57 

to premises licences with the minimum of fuss. 

8.49 For some premises, it is possible that no measures will be appropriate to promote one 

or more of the licensing objectives, for example, because they are adequately covered 

by other existing legislation. It is however important that all operating schedules should 

be precise and clear about the measures that are proposed to promote each of the 

licensing objectives. 

Variations 

Introduction 

8.50 Where a premises licence holder wishes to amend the licence, the 2003 Act in most 

cases permits an application to vary to be made rather than requiring an application for 

a new premises licence. The process to be followed will depend on the nature of the 

variation and its potential impact on the licensing objectives. Applications to vary can be 

made electronically via GOV.UK or by means of the licensing authority’s own electronic 

facility following the procedures set out in Chapter 8 above. 

Simplified processes 

8.51 There are simplified processes for making applications, or notifying changes, in the 

following cases: 

•  a change of the name or address of someone named in the licence (section 33); 

•  an application to vary the licence to specify a new individual as the designated 

premises supervisor (DPS) (section 37); 

•  a request to be removed as the designated premises supervisor (section 41); 

•  an application by a licence holder in relation to community premises authorised to sell 

alcohol to remove the usual mandatory conditions set out in sections 19(2) and 19(3) 

of the 2003 Act concerning the supervision of alcohol sales by a personal licence 

holder and the need for a DPS who holds a personal licence (sections 25A and 41D); 

and 

•  an application for minor variation of a premises licence (sections 41A to 41C) or club 

premises certificate (sections 86A to 86C). 

8.52 If an application to specify a new DPS or to remove the mandatory conditions 

concerning the supervision of alcohol sales is made electronically via GOV.UK or the 

licensing authority’s own electronic facility, the authority must notify the police no later 

than the first working day after the application is given. 

8.53 Where a simplified process requires the applicant (if they are not also the personal 

licence holder) to copy the application to the licence holder for information, this will 

apply regardless of whether the application is made in writing or electronically. 

Otherwise the general guidance set out above (paragraphs 8.21 to 8.28) on electronic 

applications applies. 

Minor variations process 

8.54 Variations to premises licences or club premises certificates that could not impact 

adversely on the licensing objectives are subject to a simplified ‘minor variations’ 

process. Under this process, the applicant is not required to advertise the variation in a 

newspaper or circular, or copy it to responsible authorities. However, they must display 

Page 205

Agenda Item 10
Appendix 8



58 | Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 

it on a white notice (to distinguish it from the blue notice used for full variations and new 

applications). The notice must comply with the requirements set out in regulation 26A of 

the Licensing Act 2003 (Premises licences and club premises certificates) Regulations 

2005. In accordance with those regulations, the notice must be displayed for a period of 

ten working days starting on the working day after the minor variation application was 

given to the licensing authority. 

8.55 On receipt of an application for a minor variation, the licensing authority must consider 

whether the variation could impact adversely on the licensing objectives. It is recommended 

that decisions on minor variations should be delegated to licensing officers. 

8.56 In considering the application, the licensing authority must consult relevant responsible 

authorities (whether the application is made in writing or electronically) if there is any 

doubt about the impact of the variation on the licensing objectives and they need 

specialist advice, and take their views into account in reaching a decision. The 

application is unlikely to be relevant to all responsible authorities.  

8.57 The licensing authority must also consider any relevant representations received from 

other persons within the time limit referred to below. As stated earlier in this Guidance, 

representations are only relevant if they clearly relate to the likely effect of the grant of 

the variation on the promotion of at least one of the licensing objectives; representations 

must be confined to the subject matter of the variation. In the case of minor variations, 

there is no right to a hearing (as for a full variation or new application), but licensing 

authorities must take any representations into account in arriving at a decision. 

8.58 Other persons have ten working days from the ‘initial day’, that is to say, the day after 

the application is received by the licensing authority, to submit representations. The 

licensing authority must therefore wait until this period has elapsed before determining 

the application, but must do so at the latest within 15 working days, beginning on the 

first working day after the authority received the application, with effect either that the 

minor variation is granted or the application is refused. 

8.59 If the licensing authority fails to respond to the applicant within 15 working days (see 

section 193 of the 2003 Act for the definition of working day), the application will be 

treated as refused and the authority must return the fee to the applicant forthwith. 

However, the licensing authority and the applicant may agree instead that the 

undetermined application should be treated as a new application and that the fee 

originally submitted will be treated as a fee for the new application. 

8.60 Where an application is refused and is then re-submitted through the full variation 

process, the full 28 day notification period will apply from the date the new application is 

received and applicants should advertise the application and copy it to all responsible 

authorities (in accordance with the regulations applicable to full variations). 

8.61 Minor variations will generally fall into four categories: minor changes to the structure or 

layout of premises; small adjustments to licensing hours; the removal of out of date, 

irrelevant or unenforceable conditions or addition of volunteered conditions; and the 

addition of certain licensable activities. In all cases the overall test is whether the 

proposed variation could impact adversely on any of the four licensing objectives. 

Changes to structure/layout 

8.62 Many small variations to layout will have no adverse impact on the licensing objectives. 

Page 206

Agenda Item 10
Appendix 8



Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 I 59 

However, changes to layout should be referred to the full variation process if they could 

potentially have an adverse impact on the promotion of the licensing objectives, for 

example by: 

•  increasing the capacity for drinking on the premises; 

•  affecting access between the public part of the premises and the rest of the premises 

or the street or public way, for instance, block emergency exits or routes to 

emergency exits; or 

•  impeding the effective operation of a noise reduction measure such as an acoustic 

lobby. 

8.63 Licensing authorities will also need to consider the combined effect of a series of 

applications for successive small layout changes (for example, as part of a rolling 

refurbishment of premises) which in themselves may not be significant, but which 

cumulatively may impact adversely on the licensing objectives. This emphasises the 

importance of having an up-to-date copy of the premises plan available. 

8.64 An application to remove a licensable activity should normally be approved as a minor 

variation. Variations to add the sale by retail or supply of alcohol to a licence are 

excluded from the minor variations process and must be treated as full variations in all 

cases. 

8.65 For other licensable activities, licensing authorities will need to consider each 

application on a case by case basis and in light of any licence conditions put forward by 

the applicant. 

Licensing hours 

8.66 Variations to the following are excluded from the minor variations process and must be 

treated as full variations in all cases: 

•  to extend licensing hours for the sale or supply of alcohol for consumption on or off 

the premises between the hours of 23.00 and 07.00; or 

•  to increase the amount of time on any day during which alcohol may be sold or 

supplied for consumption on or off the premises. 

8.67 Applications to reduce licensing hours for the sale or supply of alcohol or, in some 

cases, to move (without increasing) the licensed hours between 07.00 and 23.00 will 

normally be processed as minor variations. 

8.68 Applications to vary the time during which other licensable activities take place should 

be considered on a case-by-case basis with reference to the likely impact on the 

licensing objectives. 

Licensing conditions  

a) Imposed conditions 

8.69 Licensing authorities cannot impose their own conditions on the licence through the 

minor variations process. If the licensing officer considers that the proposed variation 

would impact adversely on the licensing objectives unless conditions are imposed, they 

should refuse it. 

Page 207

Agenda Item 10
Appendix 8



60 | Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 

b) Volunteered conditions 

8.70 Applicants may volunteer conditions as part of the minor variation process. These 

conditions may arise from their own risk assessment of the variation, or from informal 

discussions with responsible authorities or the licensing authority. 

8.71 For instance, there may be circumstances when the licence holder and a responsible 

authority such as the police or environmental health authority, agree that a new condition 

should be added to the licence (for example, that a nightclub adds the provision of late 

night refreshment to its licence to ensure a longer period of dispersal). Such a change 

would not normally impact adversely on the licensing objectives and could be expected to 

promote them by preventing crime and disorder or public nuisance. In these 

circumstances, the minor variation process may provide a less costly and onerous means 

of amending the licence than a review, with no risk to the licensing objectives. However, 

this route should only be used where the agreed variations are minor and the licence 

holder and the responsible authority have come to a genuine agreement. The licensing 

authority should be alive to any attempts to pressure licence or certificate holders into 

agreeing to new conditions where there is no evidence of a problem at the premises and, 

if there is any doubt, should discuss this with the relevant parties. 

c) Amending or removing existing conditions 

8.72 However, there may be some circumstances when the minor variation process is 

appropriate. Premises may change over time and the circumstances that originally led 

to the condition being attached or volunteered may no longer apply. For example, there 

may be no need for door supervision if a bar has been converted into a restaurant. 

Equally some embedded conditions may no longer apply.  

8.73 Changes in legislation may invalidate certain conditions. Although the conditions do not 

have to be removed from the licence, licence holders and licensing authorities may 

agree that this is desirable to clarify the licence holder’s legal obligations. There may 

also be cases where it is appropriate to revise the wording of a condition that is unclear 

or unenforceable. This would be acceptable as a minor variation as long as the purpose 

of the condition and its intended effect remain unchanged. Such a change could be 

expected to promote the licensing objectives by making it easier for the licence holder to 

understand and comply with the condition and easier for the licensing authority to 

enforce it. 

Full variations process 

8.74 Any other changes to the licence or certificate require an application to vary under 

sections 34 or 84 of the 2003 Act. 

8.75 Licensing authorities may wish to consider whether there is any likely impact on the 

promotion of the licensing objectives in deciding whether there is a need for an 

application to vary in relation to features which are not required to be shown on the plan 

under section 17 of the 2003 Act, but have nevertheless been included, for example, 

moveable furniture (altering the position of tables and chairs) or beer gardens 

(installation of a smoking shelter that will not affect the use of exits or escape routes). 

8.76 However, it should be noted that a section 34 application cannot be used to vary a 

licence so as to: 

Page 208

Agenda Item 10
Appendix 8



Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 I 61 

•  extend a time limited licence; 

•  transfer the licence from one holder to another; or 

•  transfer the licence from one premises to another. 

8.77 If an applicant wishes to make these types of changes to the premises licence, the 

applicant should make a new premises licence application under section 17 of the 2003 

Act; or, to transfer the licence to another holder, an application under section 42 of the 

2003 Act. 

Relaxation of opening hours for local, national and international 
occasions 

8.78 It should normally be possible for applicants for premises licences and club premises 

certificates to anticipate special occasions which occur regularly each year – such as 

bank holidays and St. George’s or St. Patrick’s Day – and to include appropriate 

opening hours in their operating schedules. Similarly, temporary event notices should be 

sufficient to cover other events which take place at premises that do not have a 

premises licence or club certificate. 

8.79 However, exceptional events of local, national or international significance may arise 

which could not have been anticipated when the application was first made. In these 

circumstances, the Secretary of State may make a licensing hours order to allow 

premises to open for specified, generally extended, hours on these special occasions. 

This avoids the need for large numbers of applications to vary premises licences and 

club premises certificates. Typical events might include a one-off local festival or a 

Royal Jubilee. 

Advertising applications 

8.80  The requirements governing the advertisement of applications for the grant, variation or 

review of premises licences and club premises certificates are contained in Regulations 

25 and 26 of the Licensing Act 2003 (Premises licences and club premises certificates) 

Regulations 2005 which are published on the Government’s legislation website. 

8.80 Applicants are required to: 

•  publish a notice in a local newspaper or, if there is none, in a local newsletter, circular 

or similar document circulating in the area in which the premises are situated; and 

•  display a brief summary of the application on an A4 (or larger) size notice, on pale 

blue paper in a prominent position immediately on or outside the premises for at least 

28 consecutive days (starting on the day after the day on which the application was 

given to the relevant licensing authority). The notice must be printed legibly in black 

ink or typed in black in size 16 font or larger. 

•  ensure that the above notices contain the name of the applicant, postal addresses of 

the premises (or if there is no postal address a description of the premises sufficient 

to enable the location to be identified), relevant licensing authority and the date by 

which any representations in relation to the application need to be made to the 

licensing authority. They should also contain a statement of the relevant licensable 

activities or relevant qualifying club activities that it is proposed will be carried on at 

the premises, or in the case of an application to vary a premises licence or a club 

premises certificate the notices shall briefly describe the proposed variation. 

Page 209

Agenda Item 10
Appendix 8



62 | Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 

8.81 It is the responsibility of the applicant for putting the notice up, however licensing 

authorities should consider where the signs should be placed and advise the applicant 

where appropriate, to ensure people will see them, in particular if an application is likely 

to be of interest to the public. As prescribed in regulations, licensing authorities must 

also place a notice on their website outlining key details of the application as set out in 

regulations, including: 

•  the name of the applicant or club; 

•  the postal address of the premises or club premises; 

•  the postal address and, where applicable, the internet address where the relevant 

licensing authority’s register is kept and where and when the record of the application 

may be inspected; 

•  the date by which representations from responsible authorities or other persons 

should be received and how these representations should be made; and 

•  that it is an offence knowingly or recklessly to make a false statement in connection 

with an application and the maximum fine for which a person is liable on summary 

conviction for the offence. 

8.82 The summary of the application should set out matters such as the proposed licensable 

activities and the proposed hours of opening and should be clearly displayed for the 

period during which representations may be made, together with information about 

where the details of the application may be viewed. 

8.83 Licensing authorities in Wales should consider encouraging applicants to provide details 

in the alternative language (Welsh or English) to that of the main advertisement itself 

where the application may be viewed. Therefore, if an applicant publishes a notice in 

English they should be encouraged to provide a statement in Welsh as to where the 

application may be viewed, and vice versa. This would allow the reader of the notice to 

make enquiries to the licensing authority and find out the nature of the application. 

8.84 Licensing authorities in Wales are also required to publish key information from licence 

applications in Welsh on their websites. 

8.85 In the case of applications for premises licences involving internet or mail order sales, 

notices should be conspicuously displayed at the place where the alcohol is 

appropriated to the contract. 

8.86 A vessel which is not permanently moored or berthed is treated as if it were a premises 

situated in a place where it is usually moored or berthed. The newspaper advertisement 

notice for such a vessel would need to be in relation to this place (where it is usually 

moored or berthed) and there is no provision requiring such advertising in other areas, 

for instance, if the vessel journeys through other licensing authority areas. 

8.87 Arrangements should be put in place by the licensing authority for other parties to view 

a record of the application in the licensing register as described in Schedule 3 to the 

2003 Act. Charges made for copies of the register should not exceed the cost of 

preparing such copies. Licensing authorities may wish to conduct random and 

unannounced visits to premises to confirm that notices have been clearly displayed and 

include relevant and accurate information. 

Page 210

Agenda Item 10
Appendix 8



Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 I 63 

Applications to change the designated premises supervisors 

8.88 Chapter 4 covers designated premises supervisors and applications to vary a premises 

licence covering sales of alcohol by specifying a new designated premises supervisor. 

Chapter 4 covers applications by community premises to disapply the usual mandatory 

conditions in sections 19(2) and 19(3) of the 2003 Act concerning the authorisation of 

alcohol sales by a personal licence holder and the need for a designated premises 

supervisor who holds a personal licence. 

Provisional statements 

8.89 Where premises are being or are about to be constructed, extended or otherwise 

altered for the purpose of being used for one or more licensable activities, investors may 

be unwilling to commit funds unless they have some assurance that a premises licence 

covering the desired licensable activities would be granted for the premises when the 

building work is completed. 

8.90 The 2003 Act does not define the words “otherwise altered”, but the alteration must 

relate to the purpose of being used for one or more licensable activities. 

8.91 Any person falling within section 16 of the 2003 Act can apply for a premises licence 

before new premises are constructed, extended or changed. This would be possible 

where clear plans of the proposed structure exist and the applicant is in a position to 

complete an operating schedule including details of: 

•  the activities to take place there; 

•  the time at which such activities will take place; 

•  the proposed hours of opening; 

•  where the applicant wishes the licence to have effect for a limited period, that period; 

•  the steps to be taken to promote the licensing objectives; and 

•  where the sale of alcohol is involved, whether supplies are proposed to be for 

consumption on or off the premises (or both) and the name of the designated 

premises supervisor the applicant wishes to specify. 

8.92 In such cases, the licensing authority would include in the licence the date upon which it 

would come into effect. A provisional statement will normally only be required when the 

information described above is not available. 

8.93 The 2003 Act therefore provides for a person, if an individual aged 18 or over, who has 

an interest in the premises to apply for a “provisional statement”. This will not be time 

limited, but the longer the delay before an application for a premises licence is made, 

the more likely it is that there will be material changes and that the licensing authority 

will accept representations. “Person” in this context includes a business. 

8.94 When a hearing is held, the licensing authority must decide whether, if the premises 

were constructed or altered in the way proposed in the schedule of works and if a 

premises licence was sought for those premises, it would consider it appropriate for the 

promotion of the licensing objectives to: 

•  attach conditions to the licence; 

•  rule out any of the licensable activities applied for; 

•  refuse to specify the person nominated as premises supervisor; or 

Page 211

Agenda Item 10
Appendix 8



64 | Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 

•  reject the application. 

It will then issue the applicant with a provisional statement setting out the details of that 

decision together with its reasons. 

8.95 The licensing authority must copy the provisional statement to each person who made 

relevant representations, and the chief officer of police for the area in which the premises 

is situated. The licensing authority should give full and comprehensive reasons for its 

decision. This is important in anticipation of an appeal by any aggrieved party. 

8.96 When a person applies for a premises licence in respect of premises (or part of the 

premises or premises which are substantially the same) for which a provisional 

statement has been made, representations by responsible authorities and other persons 

will be excluded in certain circumstances. These are where: 

•  the application for a licence is in the same form as the licence described in the 

provisional statement; 

•  the work in the schedule of works has been satisfactorily completed; 

•  given the information provided in the application for a provisional statement, the 

responsible authority or other person could have made the same, or substantially the 

same, representations about the application then but failed to do so without 

reasonable excuse; and 

•  there has been no material change in the circumstances relating either to the 

premises or to the area in the proximity of those premises since the provisional 

statement was made. 

8.97 Any decision of the licensing authority on an application for a provisional statement will 

not relieve an applicant of the need to apply for planning permission, building control 

approval of the building work, or in some cases both planning permission and building 

control. 

8.98 A provisional statement may not be sought or given for a vessel, a vehicle or a 

moveable structure (see section 189 of the 2003 Act). 

Transfers of premises licences 

8.99 The 2003 Act provides for any person who may apply for a premises licence, which 

includes a business, to apply for a premises licence to be transferred to them. Where 

the application is made in writing, the applicant must give notice of the application to the 

chief officer of police in all cases, and the Home Office (Immigration Enforcement) if the 

licence authorises the sale of alcohol or provision of late night refreshment. Where it is 

made electronically via GOV.UK or the licensing authority’s electronic facility, the 

licensing authority must notify the police and the Home Office (Immigration 

Enforcement) no later than the first working day after the application is given. However, 

the responsibility to notify the DPS remains with the applicant. Otherwise the general 

guidance on electronic applications set out in paragraphs 8.21 to 8.28 applies. 

8.100 In the vast majority of cases, it is expected that a transfer will be a very simple 

administrative process. Section 43 of the 2003 Act provides a mechanism which allows 

the transfer to come into immediate interim effect as soon as the licensing authority 

receives it, until it is formally determined or withdrawn. This is to ensure that there should 

be no interruption to normal business at the premises. If the police or the Home Office 

Page 212

Agenda Item 10
Appendix 8



Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 I 65 

(Immigration Enforcement) raise no objection about the application, the licensing authority 

must transfer the licence in accordance with the application, amend the licence 

accordingly and return it to the new holder. 

8.101 In exceptional circumstances where the chief officer of police believes the transfer may 

undermine the crime prevention objective, the police may object to the transfer. The 

Home Office (Immigration Enforcement) may object if it considers that granting the 

transfer would be prejudicial to the prevention of illegal working in licensed premises. 

Such objections are expected to be rare and arise because the police or the Home 

Office (Immigration Enforcement) have evidence that the business or individuals 

seeking to hold the licence, or businesses or individuals linked to such persons, are 

involved in crime (or disorder) or employing illegal workers. 

8.102 Such objections (and therefore such hearings) should only arise in truly exceptional 

circumstances. If the licensing authority believes that the police or the Home Office 

(Immigration Enforcement) are using this mechanism to vet transfer applicants routinely 

and to seek hearings as a fishing expedition to inquire into applicants’ backgrounds, it is 

expected that it would raise the matter immediately with the chief officer of police or the 

Home Office (Immigration Enforcement). 

Interim authorities 

8.103 The 2003 Act provides special arrangements for the continuation of permissions under a 

premises licence when the holder of a licence dies suddenly, becomes bankrupt, 

mentally incapable or ceases to be entitled to work in the UK. In the normal course of 

events, the licence would lapse in such circumstances. However, there may also be 

some time before, for example, the deceased person’s estate can be dealt with or an 

administrative receiver appointed. This could have a damaging effect on those with 

interests in the premises, such as an owner, lessor or employees working at the 

premises in question; and could bring unnecessary disruption to customers’ plans. The 

2003 Act therefore provides for the licence to be capable of being reinstated in a 

discrete period of time in certain circumstances. 

8.104 These circumstances arise only where a premises licence has lapsed owing to the 

death, incapacity or insolvency of the holder or where the holder ceases to be entitled to 

work in the UK. In such circumstances, an “interim authority” notice may be given to the 

licensing authority within 28 consecutive days beginning the day after the licence 

lapsed. Where applications are made in writing, the applicant must give notice of the 

application to the chief officer of police in all cases, and the Home Office (Immigration 

Enforcement) if the licence authorises the sale of alcohol or provision of late night 

refreshment. If an application is made electronically via GOV.UK or the licensing 

authority’s electronic facility, the licensing authority must notify the police and the Home 

Office (Immigration Enforcement) no later than the first working day after the notice is 

given. 

8.105 An interim notice may only be given either by a person with a prescribed interest in the 

premises as set out in the regulations made under the 2003 Act (which may be viewed 

on www.legislation.gov.uk, the Government’s legislation website); or by a person 

connected to the former holder of the licence (normally a personal representative of the 

former holder; or a person with power of attorney; or where someone has become 

Page 213

Agenda Item 10
Appendix 8



66 | Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 

insolvent, that person’s insolvency practitioner). The person giving the interim authority 

notice must be entitled to work in the UK. 

8.106 The effect of giving the notice is to reinstate the premises licence as if the person giving 

the notice is the holder of the licence and thereby allow licensable activities to continue 

to take place pending a formal application for transfer. The maximum period for which 

an interim authority notice may have effect is three months. 

8.107 The interim authority notice ceases to have effect unless, by the end of the initial period 

of 28 consecutive days, a copy of the notice has been given to the chief officer of police 

and the Home Office (Immigration Enforcement). Within two working days of receiving 

the copy, and if satisfied that in the exceptional circumstances of the case failure to 

cancel the interim authority would undermine the crime prevention objective, the police 

may give a notice to that effect to the licensing authority. Similarly, the Home Office 

(Immigration Enforcement) may give a notice to the licensing authority if satisfied that 

the exceptional circumstances of the case are such that failure to cancel the interim 

authority would undermine the prevention of illegal working in licensed premises.  In 

such circumstances, the licensing authority must hold a hearing to consider the 

objection notice and cancel the interim authority notice if it decides that it is appropriate 

to do so for the promotion of the crime prevention objective. 

8.108 Licensing authorities should be alert to the need to consider the objection quickly. Under 

section 50 of the 2003 Act, where the premises licence lapses (because of death, 

incapacity or insolvency of the holder or because the holder is no longer entitled to work 

in the UK) or by its surrender, but no interim authority notice has effect, a person who 

may apply for the grant of a premises licence under section 16(1) may apply within 28 

consecutive days of the lapse for the transfer of the licence to them with immediate effect 

pending the determination of the application. This will result in the licence being reinstated 

from the point at which the transfer application was received by the licensing authority. 

Where the application is made in writing, the person applying for the transfer must copy 

their application to the chief officer of police and the Home Office (Immigration 

Enforcement). If the application is made electronically the licensing authority must copy 

the application to the police and the Home Office (Immigration Enforcement). 

Right of freeholders etc to be notified of licensing matters 

8.109 A person (which will include a business or company) with a property interest in any 

premises situated in the licensing authority’s area may give notice of their interest to the 

authority using a prescribed form and on payment of the relevant fee. The application 

may be made in writing or electronically via GOV.UK or the licensing authority’s own 

facility, in which case the guidance at paragraphs 8.21 to 8.28 applies. Details of fees 

and forms are available on the GOV.UK website. It is entirely at the discretion of such 

persons whether they choose to register or not. It is not a legal requirement. Those who 

may take advantage of this arrangement include the freeholder or leaseholder, a legal 

mortgagee in respect of the premises, a person in occupation of the premises or any 

other person prescribed by the Secretary of State. 

8.110 The notice will have effect for 12 months but a new notice can be given every year. 

While the notice has effect, if any change relating to the premises concerned has been 

made to the licensing register (which the licensing authority has a duty to keep under 

Page 214

Agenda Item 10
Appendix 8



Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 I 67 

section 8 of the 2003 Act), the licensing authority must notify the person who registered 

an interest of the matter to which the change relates. The person will also be notified of 

their right under section 8 to request a copy of the information contained in any entry in 

the register. In cases relating to interim authority notices (see above), it is important that 

such communications are dealt with promptly. 

 

Page 215

Agenda Item 10
Appendix 8



This page is intentionally left blank



68 | Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 

9. Determining applications 

General 

9.1 When a licensing authority receives an application for a new premises licence or an 

application to vary an existing premises licence, it must determine whether the 

application has been made in accordance with section 17 of the 2003 Act, and in 

accordance with regulations made under sections 17(3) to (6), 34, 42, 54 and 55 of the 

2003 Act. It must similarly determine applications for the grant of club premises 

certificates made in accordance with section 71 of the 2003 Act, and in accordance with 

regulations made under sections 71(4) to (7), 84, 91 and 92 of the 2003 Act. This 

means that the licensing authority must consider among other things whether the 

application has been properly advertised in accordance with those regulations. 

Where no representations are made 

9.2 A hearing is not required where an application has been properly made and no 

responsible authority or other person has made a relevant representation or where 

representations are made and subsequently withdrawn. In these cases, the licensing 

authority must grant the application in the terms sought, subject only to conditions which 

are consistent with the operating schedule and relevant mandatory conditions under the 

2003 Act. This should be undertaken as a simple administrative process by the licensing 

authority’s officials who should replicate the proposals contained in the operating 

schedule to promote the licensing objectives in the form of clear and enforceable licence 

conditions. Licensing authorities should not hold hearings for uncontested applications, 

for example in situations where representations have been made and conditions have 

subsequently been agreed. 

Where representations are made 

9.3 Where a representation concerning the licensing objectives is made by a responsible 

authority about a proposed operating schedule and it is relevant (see paragraphs 9.4 to 

9.10 below), the licensing authority’s discretion will be engaged. It will also be engaged 

if another person makes relevant representations to the licensing authority, which are 

also not frivolous or vexatious (see paragraphs 9.4 to 9.10 below). Relevant 

representations can be made in opposition to, or in support of, an application and can 

be made by any individual, body or business that has grounds to do so. 

Relevant, vexatious and frivolous representations 

9.4 A representation is “relevant” if it relates to the likely effect of the grant of the licence on 

the promotion of at least one of the licensing objectives. For example, a representation 

from a local businessperson about the commercial damage caused by competition from 

new licensed premises would not be relevant. On the other hand, a representation by a 

businessperson that nuisance caused by new premises would deter customers from 

entering the local area, and the steps proposed by the applicant to prevent that 

nuisance were inadequate, would be relevant. In other words, representations should 

relate to the impact of licensable activities carried on from premises on the objectives. 

For representations in relation to variations to be relevant, they should be confined to 

Page 217

Agenda Item 10
Appendix 9



Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 I 69 

the subject matter of the variation. There is no requirement for a responsible authority or 

other person to produce a recorded history of problems at premises to support their 

representations, and in fact this would not be possible for new premises. 

9.5 It is for the licensing authority to determine whether a representation (other than a 

representation from responsible authority) is frivolous or vexatious on the basis of what 

might ordinarily be considered to be vexatious or frivolous. A representation may be 

considered to be vexatious if it appears to be intended to cause aggravation or 

annoyance, whether to a competitor or other person, without reasonable cause or 

justification. Vexatious circumstances may arise because of disputes between rival 

businesses and local knowledge will therefore be invaluable in considering such 

matters. Licensing authorities can consider the main effect of the representation, and 

whether any inconvenience or expense caused by it could reasonably be considered to 

be proportionate. 

9.6 Frivolous representations would be essentially categorised by a lack of seriousness. 

Frivolous representations would concern issues which, at most, are minor and in 

relation to which no remedial steps would be warranted or proportionate. 

9.7 Any person who is aggrieved by a rejection of their representations on either of these 

grounds may lodge a complaint through the local authority’s corporate complaints 

procedure. A person may also challenge the authority’s decision by way of judicial 

review. 

9.8 Licensing authorities should not take decisions about whether representations are 

frivolous, vexatious or relevant to the licensing objectives on the basis of any political 

judgement. This may be difficult for councillors who receive complaints from residents 

within their own wards. If consideration is not to be delegated, contrary to the 

recommendation in this Guidance, an assessment should be prepared by officials for 

consideration by the sub- committee before any decision is taken that necessitates a 

hearing. Any councillor who considers that their own interests are such that they are 

unable to consider the matter independently should disqualify themselves. 

9.9 It is recommended that, in borderline cases, the benefit of the doubt about any aspect of 

a representation should be given to the person making that representation. The 

subsequent hearing would then provide an opportunity for the person or body making 

the representation to amplify and clarify it. 

9.10 Licensing authorities should consider providing advice on their websites about how any 

person can make representations to them. 

The role of responsible authorities 

9.11 Responsible authorities under the 2003 Act are automatically notified of all new 

applications. While all responsible authorities may make representations regarding 

applications for licences and club premises certificates and full variation applications, it 

is the responsibility of each responsible authority to determine when they have 

appropriate grounds to do so. 

  

Page 218

Agenda Item 10
Appendix 9



70 | Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 

9.12 Each responsible authority will be an expert in their respective field, and in some cases 

it is likely that a particular responsible authority will be the licensing authority’s main 

source of advice in relation to a particular licensing objective. For example, the police 

have a key role in managing the night-time economy and should have good working 

relationships with those operating in their local area5. The police should usually 

therefore be the licensing authority’s main source of advice on matters relating to the 

promotion of the crime and disorder licensing objective. However, any responsible 

authority under the 2003 Act may make representations with regard to any of the 

licensing objectives if they have evidence to support such representations. Licensing 

authorities must therefore consider all relevant representations from responsible 

authorities carefully, even where the reason for a particular responsible authority’s 

interest or expertise in the promotion of a particular objective may not be immediately 

apparent. However, it remains incumbent on all responsible authorities to ensure that 

their representations can withstand the scrutiny to which they would be subject at a 

hearing. 

Licensing authorities acting as responsible authorities 

9.13 Licensing authorities are included in the list of responsible authorities. A similar 

framework exists in the Gambling Act 2005. The 2003 Act does not require responsible 

authorities to make representations about applications for the grant of premises licences 

or to take any other steps in respect of different licensing processes. It is, therefore, for 

the licensing authority to determine when it considers it appropriate to act in its capacity 

as a responsible authority; the licensing authority should make this decision in 

accordance with its duties under section 4 of the 2003 Act. 

9.14 Licensing authorities are not expected to act as responsible authorities on behalf of 

other parties (for example, local residents, local councillors or community groups) 

although there are occasions where the authority may decide to do so. Such parties can 

make relevant representations to the licensing authority in their own right, and it is 

reasonable for the licensing authority to expect them to make representations 

themselves where they are reasonably able to do so. However, if these parties have 

failed to take action and the licensing authority is aware of relevant grounds to make a 

representation, it may choose to act in its capacity as responsible authority. 

9.15 It is also reasonable for licensing authorities to expect that other responsible authorities 

should intervene where the basis for the intervention falls within the remit of that other 

responsible authority. For example, the police should make representations where the 

representations are based on concerns about crime and disorder. Likewise, it is 

reasonable to expect the local authority exercising environmental health functions to 

make representations where there are concerns about noise nuisance. Each 

responsible authority has equal standing under the 2003 Act and may act independently 

without waiting for representations from any other responsible authority. 

9.16 The 2003 Act enables licensing authorities to act as responsible authorities as a means 

of early intervention; they may do so where they consider it appropriate without having 

to wait for representations from other responsible authorities. For example, the licensing 

                                                
5
 Police and Crime Commissioners are expected to have a central role working in partnership with local authorities, enforcement 

bodies and other local partners to decide on what action is needed to tackle alcohol- related crime and disorder in their areas. 
However, the Chief Officer of Police remains the named responsible authority under the 2003 Act. 

Page 219

Agenda Item 10
Appendix 9



Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 I 71 

authority may (in a case where it has applied a cumulative impact policy) consider that 

granting a new licence application will add to the cumulative impact of licensed 

premises in its area and therefore decide to make representations to that effect, without 

waiting for any other person to do so. 

9.17 In cases where a licensing authority is also acting as responsible authority in relation to 

the same process, it is important to achieve a separation of responsibilities within the 

authority to ensure procedural fairness and eliminate conflicts of interest. In such cases 

licensing determinations will be made by the licensing committee or sub committee 

comprising elected members of the authority (although they are advised by a licensing 

officer). Therefore, a separation is achieved by allocating distinct functions (i.e. those of 

licensing authority and responsible authority) to different officials within the authority. 

9.18 In these cases, licensing authorities should allocate the different responsibilities to 

different licensing officers or other officers within the local authority to ensure a proper 

separation of responsibilities. The officer advising the licensing committee (i.e. the 

authority acting in its capacity as the licensing authority) must be a different person from 

the officer who is acting for the responsible authority. The officer acting for the 

responsible authority should not be involved in the licensing decision process and 

should not discuss the merits of the case with those involved in making the 

determination by the licensing authority. For example, discussion should not take place 

between the officer acting as responsible authority and the officer handling the licence 

application regarding the merits of the case. Communication between these officers in 

relation to the case should remain professional and consistent with communication with 

other responsible authorities. Representations, subject to limited exceptions, must be 

made in writing. It is for the licensing authority to determine how the separate roles are 

divided to ensure an appropriate separation of responsibilities. This approach may not 

be appropriate for all licensing authorities and many authorities may already have 

processes in place to effectively achieve the same outcome. 

9.19 Smaller licensing authorities, where such a separation of responsibilities is more 

difficult, may wish to involve officials from outside the licensing department to ensure a 

separation of responsibilities. However, these officials should still be officials employed 

by the authority. 

Health bodies acting as responsible authorities 

9.20 Where a local authority’s Director of Public Health in England (DPH)6 or Local Health 

Board (LHB) (in Wales) exercises its functions as a responsible authority, it should have 

sufficient knowledge of the licensing policy and health issues to ensure it is able to fulfil 

those functions. If the authority wishes to make representations, the DPH or LHB will 

need to decide how best to gather and coordinate evidence from other bodies which 

exercise health functions in the area, such as emergency departments and ambulance 

services. 

9.21 Health bodies may hold information which other responsible authorities do not, but 

which would assist a licensing authority in exercising its functions. This information may 

                                                
6
 This change was made as a result of the commencement of measures in the Health and Social Care Act 2012 which amended 

the 2003 Act and further provision in the NHS Bodies and Local Authorities (Partnership Arrangements, Care Trusts, Public 
Health and Local Healthwatch) Regulations 2012. 

Page 220

Agenda Item 10
Appendix 9



72 | Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 

be used by the health body to make representations in its own right or to support 

representations by other responsible authorities, such as the police. Such 

representations can potentially be made on the grounds of all four licensing objectives. 

Perhaps the most obvious example is where drunkenness leads to accidents and 

injuries from violence, resulting in attendances at emergency departments and the use 

of ambulance services. Some of these incidents will be reported to the police, but many 

will not. Such information will often be relevant to the public safety and crime and 

disorder objectives. 

9.22 However, health bodies are encouraged to make representations in respect of any of 

the four licensing objectives without necessarily seeking views from other responsible 

authorities where they have appropriate evidence to do so. There is also potential for 

health bodies to participate in the licensing process in relation to the protection of 

children from harm. This objective not only concerns the physical safety of children, but 

also their moral and psychological well being. 

9.23 Evidence relating to under 18s alcohol-related emergency department attendance, 

hospital admissions and underage sales of alcohol, could potentially have implications 

for both the protection of children from harm and the crime and disorder objectives. 

Health bodies can provide evidence to lead or support representations in relation to this 

objective. In relation to proxy purchases, data collected by health bodies could be used 

to inform other responsible authorities, including the police and licensing authorities, 

about a prevalence of proxy purchasing in a particular area. For example, the police 

could use this data to tackle instances of ‘shoulder tapping’ (where under 18s approach 

adults to buy alcohol on their behalf) and to suggest measures which retailers might be 

able to take to ensure, as far as possible, that they are not knowingly selling alcohol to 

an adult who is buying on behalf of a person aged under 18. Although less obvious, 

health bodies may also have a role to play in the prevention of public nuisance where its 

effect is prejudicial to health and where they hold relevant data. 

9.24 DPHs and LHBs will need to consider how to collect anonymised information about 

incidents that relate to specific premises or premises in a particular area (for example, a 

cumulative impact zone). Many areas have already developed procedures for local 

information sharing to tackle violence, which could provide useful evidence to support 

representations. The College of Emergency Medicine has issued guidelines for 

information sharing to reduce community violence which recommends that data about 

assault victims should be collected upon admission to emergency departments, 

including the date, time and location of the assault – i.e. the name of the pub, club or 

street where the incident occurred. Sometimes, it may be possible to link ambulance 

callouts or attendances at emergency departments to irresponsible practices at specific 

premises, such as serving alcohol to people who are intoxicated or targeting promotions 

involving unlimited or unspecified quantities of alcohol at particular groups. 

  

Page 221

Agenda Item 10
Appendix 9



Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 I 73 

Home Office Immigration Enforcement acting as a responsible 
authority   

9.25 The Immigration Act 2016 made the Secretary of State a responsible authority in 

respect of premises licensed to sell alcohol or late night refreshment with effect from 6 

April 2017. In effect this conveys the role of responsible authority to Home Office 

Immigration Enforcement who exercises the powers on the Secretary of State’s behalf. 

When Immigration Enforcement exercises its powers as a responsible authority it will do 

so in respect of the prevention of crime and disorder licensing objective because it is 

concerned with the prevention of illegal working or immigration offences more broadly.  

Disclosure of personal details of persons making representations 

9.26 Where a notice of a hearing is given to an applicant, the licensing authority is required 

under the Licensing Act 2003 (Hearings) Regulations 2005 to provide the applicant with 

copies of the relevant representations that have been made. 

9.27 In exceptional circumstances, persons making representations to the licensing authority 

may be reluctant to do so because of fears of intimidation or violence if their personal 

details, such as name and address, are divulged to the applicant. 

9.28 Where licensing authorities consider that the person has a genuine and well-founded 

fear of intimidation and may be deterred from making a representation on this basis, 

they may wish to consider alternative approaches. 

9.29 For instance, they could advise the persons to provide the relevant responsible authority 

with details of how they consider that the licensing objectives are being undermined so 

that the responsible authority can make representations if appropriate and justified. 

9.30 The licensing authority may also decide to withhold some or all of the person’s personal 

details from the applicant, giving only minimal details (such as street name or general 

location within a street). However, withholding such details should only be considered 

where the circumstances justify such action. 

Hearings 

9.31 The Licensing Act 2003 (Hearings) Regulations 2005 governing hearings may be found 

on the www.legislation.gov.uk website. If the licensing authority decides that 

representations are relevant, it must hold a hearing to consider them. The need for a 

hearing can only be avoided with the agreement of the licensing authority, where the 

applicant and all of the persons who made relevant representations have given notice to 

the authority that they consider a hearing to be unnecessary. Where this is the case and 

the authority agrees that a hearing is unnecessary, it must forthwith give notice to the 

parties that the hearing has been dispensed with. Notwithstanding those regulatory 

provisions, in cases where the licensing authority believes that a hearing is still 

necessary, it is recommended that the authority should, as soon as possible, provide 

the parties with reasons in writing for the need to hold the hearing. In cases where only 

‘positive’ representations are received, without qualifications, the licensing authority 

should consider whether a hearing is required. To this end, it may wish to notify the 

persons who made representations and give them the opportunity to withdraw those 

representations. This would need to be done in sufficient time before the hearing to 

ensure that parties were not put to unnecessary inconvenience. 

Page 222

Agenda Item 10
Appendix 9



74 | Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 

9.32 Responsible authorities should try to conclude any discussions with the applicant in 

good time before the hearing. The 2005 Hearings Regulations permit licensing 

authorities to extend a time limit provided for by those Regulations for a specified period 

where it considers this to be necessary in the public interest. For example, if the 

application is amended at the last moment, the licensing committee should consider 

giving other persons time to address the revised application before the hearing 

commences. Where the authority has extended a time limit it must forthwith give a 

notice to the parties involved stating the period of the extension and the reasons for it. 

9.33 The 2005 Hearings Regulations require that representations must be withdrawn 24 

hours before the first day of any hearing. If they are withdrawn after this time, the 

hearing must proceed and the representations may be withdrawn orally at that hearing. 

However, where discussions between an applicant and those making representations 

are taking place and it is likely that all parties are on the point of reaching agreement, 

the licensing authority may wish to use the power given within the hearings regulations 

to extend time limits, if it considers this to be in the public interest. 

9.34 Applicants should be encouraged to contact responsible authorities and others, such as 

local residents, who may be affected by the application before formulating their 

applications so that the mediation process may begin before the statutory time limits 

come into effect after submission of an application. The hearing process must meet the 

requirements of regulations made under the 2003 Act. Where matters arise which are 

not covered by the regulations, licensing authorities may make arrangements as they 

see fit as long as they are lawful. 

9.35 There is no requirement in the 2003 Act for responsible authorities that have made 

representations to attend, but it is generally good practice and assists committees in 

reaching more informed decisions. Where several responsible authorities within a local 

authority have made representations on an application, a single local authority officer 

may represent them at the hearing if the responsible authorities and the licensing 

authority agree. This local authority officer representing other responsible authorities 

may be a licensing officer, but only if this licensing officer is acting as a responsible 

authority on behalf of the licensing authority and has had no role in the licensing 

determination process. This is to ensure that the responsible authorities are represented 

by an independent officer separate from the licensing determination process. 

9.36 As noted in paragraphs 9.13 to 9.19 above, where the licensing officer is acting as a 

responsible authority the relevant steps should be followed to ensure that this individual 

has no role in the decision making process regarding the licensing determination. 

9.37 As a matter of practice, licensing authorities should seek to focus the hearing on the 

steps considered appropriate to promote the particular licensing objective or objectives 

that have given rise to the specific representation and avoid straying into undisputed 

areas. A responsible authority or other person may choose to rely on their written 

representation. They may not add further representations to those disclosed to the 

applicant prior to the hearing, but they may expand on their existing representation and 

should be allowed sufficient time to do so, within reasonable and practicable limits.  

9.38 In determining the application with a view to promoting the licensing objectives in the 

overall interests of the local community, the licensing authority must give appropriate 

weight to: 

Page 223

Agenda Item 10
Appendix 9



Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 I 75 

•  the steps that are appropriate to promote the licensing objectives; 

•  the representations (including supporting information) presented by all the parties; 

•  this Guidance; 

•  its own statement of licensing policy. 

9.39 The licensing authority should give its decision within five working days of the 

conclusion of the hearing (or immediately in certain specified cases) and provide 

reasons to support it. This will be important if there is an appeal by any of the parties. 

Notification of a decision must be accompanied by information on the right of the party 

to appeal. After considering all the relevant issues, the licensing authority may grant the 

application subject to such conditions that are consistent with the operating schedule. 

Any conditions imposed must be appropriate for the promotion of the licensing 

objectives; there is no power for the licensing authority to attach a condition that is 

merely aspirational. For example, conditions may not be attached which relate solely to 

the health of customers rather than their direct physical safety. Any conditions added to 

the licence must be those imposed at the hearing or those agreed when a hearing has 

not been necessary. 

9.40 Alternatively, the licensing authority may refuse the application on the grounds that this 

is appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives. It may also refuse to specify 

a designated premises supervisor and/or only allow certain requested licensable 

activities. In the interests of transparency, the licensing authority should publish 

hearings procedures in full on its website to ensure that those involved have the most 

current information. 

9.41 In the context of variations or minor variations, which may involve structural alteration to 

or change of use of a building, the decision of the licensing authority will not exempt an 

applicant from the need to apply for building control approval, planning permission or 

both of these where appropriate. 

Determining actions that are appropriate for the promotion of the 
licensing objectives 

9.42 Licensing authorities are best placed to determine what actions are appropriate for the 

promotion of the licensing objectives in their areas. All licensing determinations should 

be considered on a case-by-case basis. They should take into account any 

representations or objections that have been received from responsible authorities or 

other persons, and representations made by the applicant or premises user as the case 

may be. 

9.43 The authority’s determination should be evidence-based, justified as being appropriate 

for the promotion of the licensing objectives and proportionate to what it is intended to 

achieve. 

9.44 Determination of whether an action or step is appropriate for the promotion of the 

licensing objectives requires an assessment of what action or step would be suitable to 

achieve that end. While this does not therefore require a licensing authority to decide 

that no lesser step will achieve the aim, the authority should aim to consider the 

potential burden that the condition would impose on the premises licence holder (such 

as the financial burden due to restrictions on licensable activities) as well as the 

potential benefit in terms of the promotion of the licensing objectives. However, it is 

Page 224

Agenda Item 10
Appendix 9



76 | Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 

imperative that the authority ensures that the factors which form the basis of its 

determination are limited to consideration of the promotion of the objectives and nothing 

outside those parameters. As with the consideration of licence variations, the licensing 

authority should consider wider issues such as other conditions already in place to 

mitigate potential negative impact on the promotion of the licensing objectives and the 

track record of the business. Further advice on determining what is appropriate when 

imposing conditions on a licence or certificate is provided in Chapter 10. The licensing 

authority is expected to come to its determination based on an assessment of the 

evidence on both the risks and benefits either for or against making the determination. 

Considering cases where licensing and planning applications are 
made simultaneously 

9.45 Where businesses have indicated, when applying for a licence under the 2003 Act, that 

they have also applied for planning permission or that they intend to do so, licensing 

committees and officers should consider discussion with their planning counterparts 

prior to determination with the aim of agreeing mutually acceptable operating hours and 

scheme designs. 

 

Page 225

Agenda Item 10
Appendix 9



This page is intentionally left blank



Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 I 77 

10. Conditions attached to premises 
licences and club premises certificates 

General 

10.1 This chapter provides further guidance in relation to conditions attached to premises 

licences and club premises certificates. General principles on licence conditions are set 

out in Chapter 1 (see paragraph 1.16). 

10.2 Conditions include any limitations or restrictions attached to a licence or certificate and 

essentially are the steps or actions that the holder of the premises licence or the club 

premises certificate will be required to take or refrain from taking in relation to the 

carrying on of licensable activities at the premises in question. Failure to comply with 

any condition attached to a licence or certificate is a criminal offence, which on 

conviction is punishable by an unlimited fine or up to six months’ imprisonment. The 

courts have made clear that it is particularly important that conditions which are 

imprecise or difficult for a licence holder to observe should be avoided. 

10.3 There are three types of condition that may be attached to a licence or certificate: 

proposed, imposed and mandatory. Each of these categories is described in more detail 

below. 

Proposed conditions 

10.4 The conditions that are appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives should 

emerge initially from the risk assessment carried out by a prospective licence or 

certificate holder, which they should carry out before making their application for a 

premises licence or club premises certificate. This would be translated into the steps 

recorded in the operating schedule or club operating schedule, which must also set out 

the proposed hours during which licensable activities will be conducted and any other 

hours during which the premises will be open to the public. 

10.5 It is not acceptable for licensing authorities to simply replicate the wording from an 

applicant’s operating schedule. A condition should be interpreted in accordance with the 

applicant’s intention. 

Consistency with steps described in operating schedule 

10.6 The 2003 Act provides that where an operating schedule or club operating schedule has 

been submitted with an application and there have been no relevant representations made 

by responsible authorities or any other person, the licence or certificate must be granted 

subject only to such conditions as are consistent with the schedule accompanying the 

application and any mandatory conditions required under the 2003 Act. 

10.7 Consistency means that the effect of the condition should be substantially the same as 

that intended by the terms of the operating schedule. If conditions are broken, this may 

lead to a criminal prosecution or an application for a review and it is extremely important 

therefore that they should be expressed on the licence or certificate in unequivocal and 

unambiguous terms. The duty imposed by conditions on the licence holder or club must 

be clear to the licence holder, club, enforcement officers and the courts. 

Page 227

Agenda Item 10
Appendix 10



78 | Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 

Imposed conditions 

10.8 The licensing authority may not impose any conditions unless its discretion has been 

exercised following receipt of relevant representations and it is satisfied as a result of a 

hearing (unless all parties agree a hearing is not necessary) that it is appropriate to 

impose conditions to promote one or more of the four licensing objectives. In order to 

promote the crime prevention licensing objective conditions may be included that are 

aimed at preventing illegal working in licensed premises. This provision also applies to 

minor variations. 

10.9 It is possible that in some cases no additional conditions will be appropriate to promote 

the licensing objectives. 

Proportionality 

10.10 The 2003 Act requires that licensing conditions should be tailored to the size, type, 

location and characteristics and activities taking place at the premises concerned. 

Conditions should be determined on a case-by-case basis and standardised conditions 

which ignore these individual aspects should be avoided. For example, conditions 

should not be used to implement a general policy in a given area such as the use of 

CCTV, polycarbonate drinking vessels or identity scanners where they would not be 

appropriate to the specific premises. Conditions that are considered appropriate for the 

prevention of illegal working in premises licensed to sell alcohol or late night 

refreshment might include requiring a premises licence holder to undertake right to work 

checks on all staff employed at the licensed premises or requiring that a copy of any 

document checked as part of a right to work check is retained at the licensed premises. 

Licensing authorities and other responsible authorities should be alive to the indirect 

costs that can arise because of conditions. These could be a deterrent to holding events 

that are valuable to the community or for the funding of good and important causes. 

Licensing authorities should therefore ensure that any conditions they impose are only 

those which are appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives.  

Naming, packing and promotion in retail premises 

10.11 The Government acknowledges that the irresponsible naming, packing or promotion of 

alcoholic drinks may contribute to alcohol related harms. Where there is direct evidence 

of specific incidents of irresponsible naming, packing or promotion of alcoholic drinks 

linked to the undermining of one of the licensing objectives, licensing authorities should, 

in the exercise of their licensing functions (in particular, in relation to an application for 

the grant, variation or review of a premises licence), consider whether it is appropriate to 

impose conditions on licences that require the licence holder to comply with the 

Portman Group’s Retailer Alert Bulletins. This condition should be considered on a case 

by case basis and in the context of the promotion of the licensing objectives. 

10.12 The Portman Group operates, on behalf of the alcohol industry, a Code of Practice on 

the Naming, Packaging and Promotion of Alcoholic Drinks. The Code seeks to ensure 

that drinks are packaged and promoted in a socially responsible manner and only to 

those who are 18 years old or older. Complaints about products under the Code are 

considered by an Independent Complaints Panel and the Panel’s decisions are 

published on the Portman Group’s website, in the trade press and in an annual report. If 

a product’s packaging or point-of-sale advertising is found to be in breach of the Code, 

Page 228

Agenda Item 10
Appendix 10



Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 I 79 

the Portman Group may issue a Retailer Alert Bulletin to notify retailers of the decision 

and ask them not to replenish stocks of any such product or to display such point-of-

sale material, until there has been compliance with the decision. 

Hours of trading 

10.13 The Government acknowledges that different licensing strategies may be appropriate 

for the promotion of the licensing objectives in different areas. The 2003 Act gives the 

licensing authority power to make decisions about the hours during which premises can 

conduct licensable activities as part of the implementation of its licensing policy 

statement. Licensing authorities are best placed to make decisions about appropriate 

opening hours in their areas based on their local knowledge and in consultation with 

responsible authorities. However, licensing authorities must always consider each 

application and must not impose predetermined licensed opening hours, without giving 

individual consideration to the merits of each application. 

10.14 Where there are objections to an application to extend the hours during which licensable 

activities are to be carried on and the licensing authority determines that this would 

undermine the licensing objectives, it may reject the application or grant it with 

appropriate conditions and/or different hours from those requested. 

10.15 Shops, stores and supermarkets should normally be free to provide sales of alcohol for 

consumption off the premises at any times when the retail outlet is open for shopping 

unless there are good reasons, based on the licensing objectives, for restricting those 

hours. 

The performance of plays 

10.16 The 2003 Act provides that other than for the purposes of public safety, conditions must 

not be attached to premises licences or club premises certificates authorising the 

performance of a play7 which attempt to censor or modify the content of plays in any 

way. Any such condition would be ultra vires the 2003 Act. 

Censorship 

10.17 In general, other than in the context of film classification for film exhibitions, licensing 

authorities should not use their powers under the 2003 Act to seek to impose conditions 

which censor the content of any form of regulated entertainment. This is not a proper 

function of licensing law and cannot be properly related to the licensing objectives. The 

content of regulated entertainment is a matter which is addressed by existing laws 

governing indecency and obscenity. Where the concern is about protecting children, 

their access should be restricted where appropriate. But no other limitation should 

normally be imposed. 

Major festivals and carnivals 

10.18 Licensing authorities should publicise the need for the organisers of major festivals and 

carnivals to approach them at the earliest opportunity to discuss arrangements for 

licensing activities falling under the 2003 Act. For some events, the organisers may 

seek a single premises licence to cover a wide range of activities at varied locations 

                                                
7
 See chapter 15 for when a performance of a play is licensable. 

Page 229

Agenda Item 10
Appendix 10



80 | Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 

within the premises. This would involve the preparation of a substantial operating 

schedule, and licensing authorities should offer advice and assistance about its 

preparation. 

10.19 For other events, applications for many connected premises licences may be made 

which in combination will represent a single festival. It is important that licensing 

authorities should publicise the need for proper co-ordination of such arrangements and 

will need to ensure that responsible authorities are aware of the connected nature of the 

individual applications. 

10.20 Local authorities should bear in mind their ability to seek premises licences from the 

licensing authority for land or buildings under public ownership within the community in 

their own name.8 This could include, for example, village greens, market squares, 

promenades, community halls, local authority owned art centres and similar public areas 

where festivals and carnivals might take place.9  Performers and entertainers would 

then have no need to obtain a licence or give a temporary event notice themselves to 

enable them to give performances in these places, although they would need the 

permission of the local authority to put on the event. 

Fixed prices 

10.21 Licensing authorities should not attach standardised blanket conditions promoting fixed 

prices for alcoholic drinks to premises licences or club licences or club premises 

certificates in an area. This may be unlawful under current law. However, it is important 

to note that the mandatory conditions made under sections 19A and 73B of the 2003 

Act prohibit a number of types of drinks promotions including where they give rise to a 

significant risk to any one of the four licensing objectives; the mandatory conditions also 

prohibit the sale of alcohol below the permitted price, as defined in paragraph 10.56. 

10.22 Where licensing authorities are asked by the police, other responsible authorities or 

other persons to impose restrictions on promotions in addition to those restricted by the 

mandatory conditions, they should consider each application on its individual merits, 

tailoring any conditions carefully to cover only irresponsible promotions in the particular 

and individual circumstances of any premises where these are appropriate for the 

promotion of the licensing objectives. In addition, when considering any relevant 

representations which demonstrate a clear causal link between sales promotions or 

price discounting and levels of crime and disorder on or near the premises, it would be 

appropriate for the licensing authority to consider the imposition of a new condition 

prohibiting irresponsible sales promotions or the discounting of prices of alcoholic 

beverages at those premises. However, before pursuing any form of restrictions at all, 

licensing authorities should take their own legal advice. 

  

                                                
8
 No licence is required for any entertainment provided by or on behalf of a local authority, see paragraphs 15.16-15.19 

9
 The register of public spaces: https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/licensed-spaces-register 

Page 230

Agenda Item 10
Appendix 10



Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 I 81 

Large capacity venues used exclusively or primarily for the 
“vertical” consumption of alcohol (HVVDs) 

10.23 Large capacity “vertical drinking” premises, sometimes called High Volume Vertical 

Drinking establishments (HVVDs), are premises with exceptionally high capacities, 

which are used primarily or exclusively for the sale and consumption of alcohol, and 

have little or no seating for patrons. Previous research has demonstrated that the 

environment within such establishments can have a significant bearing on the likelihood 

of crime and disorder. 

10.24 Where appropriate, conditions can be attached to premises licences for the promotion of 

the prevention of crime and disorder at such premises that require the premises to 

observe: 

•  a prescribed capacity; 

•  an appropriate ratio of tables and chairs to customers based on the capacity; and 

•  a requirement that security staff holding the appropriate SIA licence or exemption are 

present to control entry for the purpose of compliance with the capacity limit and to 

deny entry to individuals who appear drunk or disorderly or both. 

Mandatory conditions in relation to the supply of alcohol 
 

10.25 The 2003 Act provides for the following mandatory conditions to be included in every 

licence and/or club premises certificate in the circumstances specified. 

Designated premises supervisor 

10.26 The 2003 Act provides that, where a premises licence authorises the supply of alcohol, 

it must include a condition that no supply of alcohol may be made at a time when no 

designated premises supervisor has been specified in the licence or at a time when the 

designated premises supervisor does not hold a personal licence or the personal 

licence has been suspended. 

10.27 The main purpose of the ‘designated premises supervisor’ as defined in the 2003 Act is 

to ensure that there is always one specified individual among these personal licence 

holders who can be readily identified for the premises where a premises licence is in 

force. That person will normally have been given day to day responsibility for running 

the premises by the premises licence holder. The requirements set out in relation to the 

designated premises supervisor and authorisation of alcohol sales by a personal licence 

holder do not apply to community premises in respect of which a successful application 

has been made to disapply the usual mandatory conditions in sections 19(2) and 19(3) 

of the 2003 Act (see Chapter 4 of this Guidance). 

10.28 The 2003 Act does not require a designated premises supervisor or any other personal 

licence holder to be present on the premises at all times when alcohol is sold. However, 

the designated premises supervisor and the premises licence holder remain responsible 

for the premises at all times including compliance with the terms of the 2003 Act and 

conditions attached to the premises licence to promote the licensing objectives. 

  

Page 231

Agenda Item 10
Appendix 10



82 | Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 

Authorisation by personal licence holders 

10.29 In addition, every premises licence that authorises the sale of alcohol must require that 

every supply of alcohol under the premises licence must be made or authorised by a 

person who holds a personal licence. This in most instances will be the designated 

premises supervisor who must hold a valid personal licence. Any premises at which 

alcohol is sold or supplied may employ one or more personal licence holders. This does 

not mean that the condition should require the presence of the designated premises 

supervisor or any other personal licence holder on the premises at all times. 

10.30 Similarly, the fact that every supply of alcohol must be made under the authority of a 

personal licence holder does not mean that only personal licence holders can make 

sales or that they must be personally present at every transaction. A personal licence 

holder may authorise members of staff to make sales of alcohol but may be absent at 

times from the premises when a transaction takes place. However, the responsible 

personal licence holder may not be able to escape responsibility for the actions of 

anyone authorised to make sales. 

10.31 “Authorisation” does not imply direct supervision by a personal licence holder of each 

sale of alcohol. The question arises as to how sales can be authorised. Ultimately, 

whether an authorisation has been given is a question of fact that would have to be 

decided by the courts on the evidence before it in the course of a criminal prosecution. 

10.32 The following factors should be relevant in considering whether or not an authorisation 

has been given: 

•  the person(s) authorised to sell alcohol at any particular premises should be clearly 

identified; 

•  the authorisation should have specified the acts which may be carried out by the 

person who is authorised to supply alcohol; 

•  there should be an overt act of authorisation, for example, a specific written 

statement given to the individual who is authorised to supply alcohol; and 

•  there should be in place sensible arrangements for the personal licence holder to 

monitor the activity that they have authorised on a reasonably regular basis. 

10.33 It is strongly recommended that personal licence holders give specific written 

authorisations to individuals whom they are authorising to retail alcohol. A single written 

authorisation would be sufficient to cover multiple sales over an unlimited period. This 

would assist personal licence holders in demonstrating due diligence should issues 

arise with enforcement authorities; and would protect employees if they themselves are 

challenged in respect of their authority to sell alcohol. 

10.34 Written authorisation is not a requirement of the 2003 Act and its absence alone could 

not give rise to enforcement action. 

10.35 It must be remembered that while the designated premises supervisor or a personal 

licence holder may authorise other individuals to sell alcohol in their absence, they are 

responsible for any sales that may be made. Similarly, the premises licence holder 

remains responsible for ensuring that licensing law and licence conditions are observed 

at the premises. 

Page 232

Agenda Item 10
Appendix 10



Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 I 83 

Arrangements for the mandatory licence conditions 

10.36 The mandatory conditions made under sections 19A and 73B of the 2003 Act (the 

conditions governing irresponsible promotions, dispensing alcohol directly into the 

mouth, provision of free tap water, age verification, small measures and the prohibition 

on sales of alcohol below the permitted price) do not have to be physically included in 

the licence or certificate but nonetheless will apply to every licence and certificate 

authorising the sale and supply of alcohol for consumption on the premises. The 

mandatory conditions set out in section 19 of the 2003 Act (the requirement for a DPS 

and for all sales to be made or authorised by a personal licence holder) do, however, 

have to be physically included in the licence. The mandatory licence conditions do not 

apply to activities (including the supply of alcohol) authorised by a temporary event 

notice. 

10.37 Whereas the initial mandatory conditions in section 19 of the 2003 Act are set out in 

Annex 1 of the licence, the additional mandatory conditions made under section 19A of 

the 2003 Act are treated as if they were included in existing licences and certificates on 

the date that those conditions came into force. 

10.38 Following their commencement, the mandatory conditions overrode any pre-existing 

conditions already included in a licence or certificate insofar as the mandatory 

conditions were identical to, or inconsistent with or more onerous than, any pre-existing 

conditions. It is not necessary to record on the face of existing licences and certificates 

the impact that the introduction of the mandatory conditions has had on pre-existing 

conditions. 

Irresponsible promotions 

10.39 Under this condition, the “responsible person” (defined in the 2003 Act as the holder of a 

premises licence, designated premises supervisor, a person aged 18 or over who is 

authorised to allow the sale or supply of alcohol by an under 18 or a member or officer 

of a club present on the club premises who can oversee the supply of alcohol) should 

be able to demonstrate that they have ensured that staff do not carry out, arrange or 

participate in any irresponsible promotions. An irresponsible promotion is one that fits 

one of the descriptions below (or is substantially similar), is carried on for the purpose of 

encouraging the sale or supply of alcohol for consumption on the premises. The aim of 

the condition is to prohibit or restrict promotions which encourage people to drink more 

than they might ordinarily do and in a manner which undermines the licensing 

objectives. 

Drinking games 

10.40 Drinking games which require or encourage individuals to drink a quantity of alcohol 

within a time limit, or drink as much alcohol as possible within a time limit or otherwise, 

are prohibited. For example, this may include organised ‘drink downing’ competitions. 

This would not prevent the responsible person from requiring all drinks to be consumed 

or abandoned at, or before, the closing time of the premises. Nor does it necessarily 

prohibit ‘happy hours’ as long as these are not designed to encourage individuals to 

drink excessively or rapidly. 

  

Page 233

Agenda Item 10
Appendix 10



84 | Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 

Large quantities of alcohol for free or a fixed price 

10.41 Irresponsible promotions can include the provision of unlimited or unspecified quantities 

of alcohol free or for a fixed or discounted price, where there is a significant risk that 

such a promotion would undermine one or more of the licensing objectives. This 

includes alcohol provided to the public or to a group defined by a particular 

characteristic, for example, a promotion which offers women free drinks before a certain 

time or “all you can drink for £10”. Promotions can be designed with a particular group in 

mind (for example, over 65s). A common sense approach is encouraged, which may 

include specifying the quantity of alcohol included in it or not targeting a group which 

could become more vulnerable or present a greater risk of crime and disorder as a 

result of excessive alcohol consumption. 

Prizes and rewards 

10.42 The sale, supply or provision of free or discounted alcohol or any other item as a prize 

to encourage or reward the purchase and consumption of alcohol can be within the 

definition of an irresponsible promotion, where there is a significant risk that such a 

promotion would undermine one or more of the licensing objectives. This may include 

promotions under which free or discounted alcohol is offered as a part of the sale of 

alcohol, for example, “Buy one and get two free” and “Buy one cocktail and get a 

second cocktail for 25p”. This includes promotions which involve the provision of free or 

discounted alcohol within the same 24 hour period. 

Posters and flyers 

10.43 Irresponsible promotions can also include the sale or supply of alcohol in association 

with promotional materials on display in or around the premises, which can either be 

reasonably considered to condone, encourage or glamorise anti social behaviour or 

refer to the effects of drunkenness in any favourable manner. 

Dispensing alcohol directly into the mouth 

10.44 The responsible person (see paragraph 10.39) must ensure that no alcohol is dispensed 

directly into the mouth of a customer. For example, this may include drinking games 

such as the ‘dentist’s chair’ where a drink is poured continuously into the mouth of 

another individual and may also prevent a premises from allowing another body to 

promote its products by employing someone to dispense alcohol directly into customers’ 

mouths. An exception to this condition would be when an individual is unable to drink 

without assistance due to a disability. 

Free potable water 

10.45 The responsible person (see paragraph 10.39) must ensure that free potable water is 

provided on request to customers where it is reasonably available on the premises. 

What is meant by reasonably available is a question of fact; for example, it would not be 

reasonable to expect free tap water to be available in premises for which the water 

supply had temporarily been lost because of a broken mains water supply. However, it 

may be reasonable to expect bottled water to be provided in such circumstances. 

  

Page 234

Agenda Item 10
Appendix 10



Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 I 85 

Age verification 

10.46 The premises licence holder or club premises certificate holder must ensure that an age 

verification policy applies to the premises in relation to the sale or supply of alcohol. This 

must as a minimum require individuals who appear to the responsible person (see 

paragraph 10.39) to be under the age of 18 years of age to produce on request, before 

being served alcohol, identification bearing their photograph, date of birth, and either a 

holographic mark or ultraviolet feature. The Home Office encourages licensed premises 

to accept cards bearing the Proof of Age Standards Scheme (PASS) hologram as their 

preferred proof of age, while acknowledging that many other forms of identification meet 

the requirements of the mandatory condition. 

10.47 The premises licence holder or club premises certificate holder must ensure that staff 

(in particular, staff who are involved in the supply of alcohol) are made aware of the 

existence and content of the age verification policy which applies by the premises. 

10.48 The designated premises supervisor (where there is one) must ensure that the supply of 

alcohol at the premises is carried on in accordance with the age verification policy. This 

means that the DPS has personal responsibility for ensuring that staff are not only 

aware of, but are also applying, the age verification policy. 

10.49 It is acceptable, and indeed encouraged, for premises to have an age verification policy 

which requires individuals who appear to the responsible person to be under an age 

greater than 18 to produce such identification on request. For example, if premises have 

a policy that requires any individual that appears to be under the age of 21 to produce 

identification that meets the criteria listed above, this is perfectly acceptable under the 

mandatory code. 

10.50 Licence holders should consider carefully what steps they are required to take to comply 

with the age verification requirements under the 2003 Act in relation to sales of alcohol 

made remotely. These include sales made online, by telephone and mail order sales, 

and alcohol delivery services. Each of these sales must comply with the requirements of 

the 2003 Act. The mandatory condition requires that age verification takes place before 

a person is served alcohol. Where alcohol is sold remotely (for example, online) or 

through a telephone transaction, the sale is made at this point but the alcohol is not 

actually served until it is delivered to the customer. Age verification measures (for 

example, online age verification) should be used to ensure that alcohol is not sold to any 

person under the age of 18. However, licence holders should also consider carefully 

what steps are appropriate to ensure that age verification takes place before the alcohol 

is served (i.e. physically delivered) to the customer to be satisfied that the customer is 

aged 18 or over. It is, therefore, the responsibility of the person serving or delivering the 

alcohol to ensure that age verification has taken place and that photo ID has been 

checked if the person appears to be less than 18 years of age. 

Smaller measures 

10.51 The responsible person (see paragraph 10.39) shall ensure that the following drinks, if 

sold or supplied on the premises, are available in the following measures: 

•  Beer or cider: ½ pint 

•  Gin, rum, vodka or whisky: 25ml or 35ml 

•  Still wine in a glass: 125ml 

Page 235

Agenda Item 10
Appendix 10



86 | Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 

10.52 As well as making the drinks available in the above measures, the responsible person 

must also make customers aware of the availability of these measures by displaying 

them on printed materials available to customers on the premises. This can include 

making their availability clear on menus and price lists, and ensuring that these are 

displayed in a prominent and conspicuous place in the relevant premises (for example, 

at the bar). Moreover, staff must make customers aware of the availability of small 

measures when customers do not request that they be sold alcohol in a particular 

measure. 

10.53 This condition does not apply if the drinks in question are sold or supplied having been 

made up in advance ready for sale or supply in a securely closed container. For 

example, if beer is only available in pre-sealed bottles the requirement to make it 

available in 1/2 pints does not apply. 

10.54 The premises licence holder or club premises certificate holder must ensure that staff 

are made aware of the application of this condition. 

Ban on sales of alcohol below the permitted price 

10.55 The relevant person (the holder of the premises licence, the designated premises 

supervisor (if any) in respect of such a licence, the personal licence holder who makes 

or authorises a supply of alcohol under such a licence, or any member or officer of a 

club present on the premises in a capacity which enables the member or officer to 

prevent the supply in question) shall ensure that no alcohol is sold or supplied for 

consumption on or off the premises for a price which is less than the permitted price. 

10.56 The permitted price is defined as the aggregate of the duty chargeable in relation to the 

alcohol on the date of its sale or supply and the amount of that duty multiplied by a 

percentage which represents the rate of VAT chargeable in relation to the alcohol on the 

date of its sale or supply. Detailed guidance on how to make this calculation and a 

calculator to determine permitted prices for each product are available on the Home 

Office website. 

10.57 Where there is a change to the rate of duty or VAT applying to alcohol (for instance, 

following a Budget), the relevant person should ensure that the permitted price reflects 

the new rates within fourteen days of the introduction of the new rate. 

10.58 It is still permitted to sell alcohol using promotions (as long as they are compatible with 

any other licensing condition that may be in force), and the relevant person should 

ensure that the price of the alcohol is not less than the permitted price. Detailed 

guidance on the use of promotions is given in the guidance document available on the 

Gov.uk website. 

Exhibition of films 

10.59 The 2003 Act provides that where a premises licence or club premises certificate 

authorises the exhibition of a film, it must include a condition requiring the admission of 

children to films to be restricted in accordance with recommendations given either by a 

body designated under section 4 of the Video Recordings Act 1984 specified in the 

licence (currently only the British Board of Film Classification (BBFC)) or by the 

licensing authority itself. 

10.60 The effect of paragraph 5 of Schedule 1 to the 2003 Act is to exempt adverts from the 

Page 236

Agenda Item 10
Appendix 10



Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 I 87 

definition of regulated entertainment, but not exempt them from the definition of 

exhibition of a film. Since the above mandatory condition applies to ‘any film’, it is 

therefore applicable to the exhibition of adverts. 

Door supervision 

10.61 Under section 21 of the 2003 Act, when a condition is included in a premises licence 

that at specified times an individual must be present at the premises to carry out a 

security activity (as defined in section 21(3)(a) by reference to the Private Security 

Industry Act 2001 (“the 2001 Act”)), the licence must include a condition requiring that 

individual to be licensed by the Security Industry Authority (“the SIA”) under the 2001 

Act, or be entitled to carry out that activity by virtue of section 4 of the 2001 Act. 

10.62 A premises licence need not require a person to hold a licence granted by the SIA if that 

person benefits from an exemption under section 4 of the 2001 Act. For example, 

certain employees benefit from an exemption when carrying out conduct in connection 

with a certified sports ground (section 4(6) to (12)). Furthermore, in certain 

circumstances persons benefit from an exemption where they operate under the SIA’s 

Approved Contractor Scheme (section 15). 

10.63 Conditions under section 21 of the 2003 Act should only relate to individuals carrying 

out security activities defined by section 21(3)(a) of the 2003 Act. Therefore, they should 

only relate to an activity to which paragraph 2(1)(a) of Schedule 2 to the 2001 Act 

applies (certain manned guarding activities) and which is licensable conduct within the 

meaning of section 3(2) of that Act. The requirement does not relate to individuals 

performing non-security related activities, and section 21 should not be used in relation 

to any such activities. 

10.64 Section 21 of the 2003 Act continues to ensure that a premises licence need not impose 

such a requirement in relation to those licensed premises which the 2001 Act treats as 

unlicensed premises. Those are: 

•  premises in respect of which there is in force a premises licence authorising a 

performance of a play or an exhibition of a film; 

•  casinos or bingo halls licensed under the Gambling Act 2005; 

•  premises where a club certificate is in force when activities are being carried on 

under the authority of that certificate. 

See paragraph 8(3) of Schedule 2 to the 2001 Act for full details. 

10.65 It should be noted, however, that the 2001 Act will require contractors and a small 

number of employees (those managing/supervising and those supplied under contract) 

to be licensed as manned guards (rather than door supervisors) when undertaking 

licensable conduct on premises to which paragraph 8(3) of Schedule 2 to the 2001 Act 

applies. 

10.66 It is therefore important that if a licensing authority intends that individuals must be 

present to carry out security activities (as defined by section 21(3)(a) of the 2003 Act) 

this should be explicit, as should the mandatory condition for those individuals to hold 

an SIA licence or be entitled to carry out that activity by virtue of section 4 of the 2001 

Act. On the other hand, where a licensing authority intends that individuals must be 

present to carry out other activities (for example, activities related to safety or steward 

activities to organise, advise and direct members of the public), no mandatory condition 

Page 237

Agenda Item 10
Appendix 10



88 | Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 

should be imposed under section 21 of the 2003 Act. In all cases it is important when 

determining whether or not a condition is to be imposed under section 21 of the 2003 

Act to consider whether the activities of any individual working in licensed premises fall 

within the definition of security activities in section 21(3)(a) of the 2003 Act. (Regardless 

of whether a condition is imposed under section 21 of the 2003 Act, under the 2001 Act 

the appropriate SIA licence must be held by any individual performing an activity for 

which they are licensable under that Act.) 

 

Page 238

Agenda Item 10
Appendix 10



PART ONE
Barrow Borough Council 
Licensing Sub-Committee

20th October 2020
Application to vary a Premises Licence

 
Report from:  Senior Licensing Officer
Report Author: Katherine Benson 
Wards:  Hindpool

1.0 Summary and Conclusions 

1.1 This report sets out details of an application to vary a premises licence under 
section 34(1) of the Licensing Act 2003 for Broadway Sports Bar, 45-53 
Cavendish Street, Barrow in Furness, Cumbria, LA14 1QD. The applicant is 
Zelina Jones.

1.2 The application is the subject of two valid representations therefore a hearing is 
required.  

1.3 The applicant and the party making the representations have been notified of the 
hearing in accordance with the Licensing Act 2003 (Hearings) Regulations 2005 
and Licensing Act 2003 (Hearings) (Amendment) Regulations 2005 “the 
Regulations”. Information to accompany the notice of hearing was provided to the 
applicant and the party making representations in accordance with “the 
Regulations”.

1.4 Appendix 1 to this report provides details of this application.

2.0 Recommendation 
2.1       It is recommended that Licensing Sub-Committee:- 
2.2 Determine whether the application, in accordance with the ‘Guide to Licensing 

Sub-Committee Hearings Procedure’, to vary the licence should be granted, with 
or without changes/conditions, or refused, based on the information in this report 
and as presented at the hearing.

3.0 Background and Proposals 

Background

3.1 The supply of alcohol, provision of regulated entertainment, and sale of late night 
refreshment are licensable activities under s.1 Licensing Act 2003 (“the Act”). 

Page 239

Agenda Item 11



Authorisation from the Council, in its role as the licensing authority, is required in 
order to carry on any of these activities at premises within the Borough.

3.2 The Licensing Act 2003 provides a clear focus on the promotion of four statutory 
objectives which must be addressed when licensing functions are undertaken. 
The licensing objectives are:

 The prevention of crime and disorder;
 Public safety;
 The prevention of public nuisance; and
 The protection of children from harm.

Each objective is of equal importance. There are no other statutory licensing 
objectives, so that the promotion of the four objectives is a paramount 
consideration at all times.

3.3 Under s. 34(1) an application to vary a premises licence must be made to the 
relevant Licensing Authority subject to ss.54 and 55 (form of application and fees 
to accompany an application). Barrow Borough Council is the licensing authority 
for the Borough of Barrow-in-Furness.

3.4 Where a premises licence holder wishes to amend the licence, the 2003 Act in 
most cases permits an application to vary to be made rather than requiring a new 
application for a premises licence.

3.5 Under the scheme of delegation adopted by the Council, the Licensing Sub-
Committee (“the Sub-Committee”) is responsible for the exercise of many of the 
functions of the licensing authority, including determination of premises licence 
applications where representations have been received.

3.6 The Health Protection (Coronavirus, Restrictions) (No.2) (England) (Amendment) 
(No.5) Regulations 2020 4A(1) currently require licensed premises to close 
between 22.00 and 05.00. If this application is granted, the new opening hours 
will not take effect until the Regulations have been amended/removed.

3.7 Although the Licensing Act 2003 contains no statutory definition of a nightclub, 
Broadway Sports Bar is a nightclub used for vertical drinking and dancing 
purposes. The Health Protection (Coronavirus, Restrictions)(No.2)(England) 
Regulations 2020 Schedule 2, 1 currently mandate nightclubs to remain closed, 
however a business may re-open provided it is repurposed for customers to 
remain seated. They must still remain closed between 22.00 and 05.00. 
Broadway Sports Bar has recently re-opened to the public repurposed to allow 
customers to be seated.

The Application

3.8 On 10th August 2020, under s.34(1) of the Act, an application was made to the 
Licensing Authority by Zelina Jones, in relation to premises Broadway Sports Bar, 
45-53 Cavendish Street, Barrow in Furness, Cumbria, LA14 1QD to vary their 
premises licence. 

Page 240

Agenda Item 11



3.9 The applicant is seeking:

 To vary their hours for supply of alcohol, recorded music, performances of 
dance to add an extra hour Monday – Saturday and an extra two hours on 
Sunday.

 To vary their licence to add off sales of alcohol.
 Opening hours are therefore also being updated, with some seasonal 

variations.

3.10 A copy of their existing licence is attached at Appendix 2. Tabulated below 
summarises the variation requested and the existing provisions.

*Section 11 of the Business and Planning Act 2020 has made amendments to the 2003 
Act providing automatic permission for premises with on sales only to provide off 
sales without seeking additional permission from the Licensing Authority, until 30 
September 2021. Using this automatic permission is subject to a cut off time of 11pm.

Licensable 
activity:

Variation requested: Existing licensable activity 
hours:

Supply of Alcohol
(on the premises)

Monday – Wednesday
2am – 3am
Thursday - Sunday
3am – 4am

Sunday – Wednesday
11am – 2am
Thursday – Saturday
11am – 3am

Add off sales of 
alcohol*

Monday – Wednesday
11am – 3am
Thursday - Sunday
11am – 4am

No current provision for off sales

Recorded music Monday – Wednesday
2am – 3am
Thursday - Sunday
3am – 4am

Sunday – Wednesday
11am – 2am
Thursday – Saturday
11am – 3am

Performances of 
dance

Monday – Wednesday
2am – 3am
Thursday - Sunday
3am – 4am

Sunday – Wednesday
11am – 2am
Thursday – Saturday
11am – 3am

Opening Hours of 
the Premises

Monday – Wednesday
2am – 3am
Thursday - Saturday
3am – 4am 
Sunday 
2am – 4am
New Years Eve – 24 hours
Boxing Night 11am – 4am

Sunday – Wednesday
11am – 2am
Thursday – Saturday
11am – 3am

Page 241

Agenda Item 11



3.11 In accordance with s.17(5) the Applicant advertised the application within the 
prescribed period however the content was incorrect so it was republished on 4th 
September. This extended the consultation date to 23rd September 2020. A 
notice has been displayed on the premises about the application to vary the 
licence.

3.12 Additionally notice of application has been given by the Applicant through service 
of a copy of the application to the specified responsible authorities (this obligation 
is fulfilled by officers where the application was given electronically, sent on 17th 
August 2020), satisfying s 17(6) of the Act. 

3.13 Failure to comply with these requirements would render an application invalid.  

3.14 Promotion of Licensing Objectives 
The applicant provides details on Page 16 of their variation application of the 
steps they intend to take to meet the four licensing objectives. These steps would 
in turn, where applicable, be made into conditions to be attached to the premises 
licence, if the variation application is granted.

3.15 Members can only lawfully consider the matters which are being requested as 
part of the variation application. It is not within the Licensing Sub-Committees 
remit to consider their current licence permissions.

3.16 Representations 

3.17 Section 18(3) of the Act states that where relevant representations are made, the 
authority must hold a hearing to consider them, unless the authority, the applicant 
and each person who has made representations agree that a hearing is 
unnecessary.

3.18 The Licensing Authority has received relevant representations and therefore has 
given notice of the hearing to the Applicant an those persons who have made 
relevant representations (as defined by s. 18(6)) as required by Sch 2 and 
regulation 6 Licensing Act 2003 (Hearings) Regulations 2005.

3.19 The Council has consulted with the following responsible authorities:-  

 Licensing Authority (Barrow Borough Council*) (s.13(4)(g))
 The Local Planning Authority (s.13(4)(d))
 Environmental Protection Team (s.13(4)(e))
 Chief Officer of Police (s.13(4)(a))
 Health and Safety Officer (s.13(4)(c))
 Divisional Officer, Cumbria Fire and Rescue (s.13(4)(b))
 Trading Standards (s.13(4)(f)(ii))
 Public Health (s.13(4)(e))
 Safeguarding and Review, Child Protection (s.13(4)(f)(i)); and

Page 242

Agenda Item 11



 Home Office Immigration Enforcement (The Immigration Act 2016 
made the Secretary of State a responsible authority in respect of 
premises licensed to sell alcohol)

*A licensing authority must carry out its function under the act with a view to 
promoting the licensing objectives and its licensing statement (s.4).

3.20 Representations from responsible authorities 

There have been no representations from Responsible Authorities.

3.21 Representations from other parties

3.22 There have been two representations from other parties, which are summarised 
below.

Appendix Name/organisation Concerns raised Licensing 
objective(s)

3 Mr Simon Crompton – The 
Lounge Group

- Violent incidents
- Alcohol 

intoxication – 
after 1:30am

- Alcohol related 
problems in the 
area

Public safety

Prevention of 
crime and 
disorder

4 Mr Brian White – on behalf 
of Coastal Cars/taxi trade

- Visible disorder
- Alcohol related 

social, domestic 
and violence

- Amount of 
incidents 
unreported and 
unseen

- Rise in noise
- Drink and drugs
- Extended hours 

could leave the 
public stranded 
in town

Prevention of 
crime and 
disorder

Public safety

Prevention of 
public 
nuisance

3.23 For members information, below summarises nearby licensed premises and their 
licensable hours for supply of alcohol on the premises. Please note that although 
premises are licensed to supply alcohol until a certain time, they may choose not 
to remain open until this time. Some licences also have seasonal variations, for 
example to supply alcohol for a longer period on bank holidays, at Christmas etc.

Page 243

Agenda Item 11



Name of Premises Licensable hours for supply of 
alcohol

Theatre Bar, Cavendish Street 10:00 – 04:00 Monday - Sunday
Barrow Labour Club, Cavendish Street 10:00 – 01:00 Monday - Sunday
Mexicana’s, Cavendish Street 11:00 – 03:00 Monday - Sunday
Wrapport, Cavendish Street 08:00 – 03:00 Monday - Sunday
Manhattans, Cavendish Street 11:00 – 04:00 Monday - Sunday
Hollywood Rock Café, Cavendish 
Street

11:00 – 03:00 Monday - Sunday

Cross Keys, William Street 09:00 – 04:00 Monday - Sunday
The Lounge and Cloud 9, Dalkeith 
Street

10:00 – 04:00 Monday - Sunday

Tailors, Dalton Road 09:00 – 00:30 Sunday – Wednesday
09:00 – 03:00 Thursday – Saturday 

The Townhouse, Dalton Road 08:00 – 03:00 Monday - Sunday
Barrow Arms, Cavendish Street 11:00 – 02:00 Sunday

10:30 – 02:00 Monday – Thursday
10:30 - 03:00 Friday - Saturday

Salvana’s, Cavendish Street 12:00 – 00:00 Monday – Saturday
12:00 – 23:30 Sunday

Barrow Indian Cuisine, Cavendish 
Street

17:00 – 00:00 Monday - Sunday

Izgara Restaurant, Cavendish Street 11:00 – 23:00 Monday - Sunday
Barrow Fiesta, Cavendish Street 10:00 – 23:00 Monday – Saturday

12:00 – 22:30 Sunday

3.24 Borough of Barrow in Furness, Statement of Licensing Policy 2015

3.25 Applications

3.26 The Statement of Licensing Policy makes clear to applicants and persons who have 
made representations the considerations that will be taken into account when 
determining applications. It is also intended to guide the Sub-Committee when 
considering licensing applications; however, the Sub-Committee may depart from 
either the Statement of Licensing Policy or the statutory guidance where the 
circumstances of the application justify it and if there are good reasons for doing so.  
Full reasons must be given and Sub-Committees should be aware that such 
departures could give rise to an appeal or judicial review.

When considering applications, the Licensing Authority will have regard to: 

• The Licensing Act and licensing objectives 

• Government guidance issued under Section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003

• Any supporting regulations 

• The Statement of Licensing Policy

Page 244

Agenda Item 11



7.4 When considering applications where representations have been made, the 
Licensing Authority will seek to balance those factors against its duty to promote 
the four licensing objectives and the rights of residents to peace and quiet. 

3.27 The Licensing Objectives 

The Sub-Committee must ensure that all licensing decisions have a direct 
relationship to the promotion of one or more of the licensing objectives. Every 
application should be considered on its merits, and there must not be a 'blanket 
policy' to the extent that it is applied so rigidly that an exercise of discretion in 
each individual case is precluded. Applications must be considered with regard to 
the principles of fair process and the Human Rights Act.

3.28 National Guidance

3.29 Revised guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003.

Section 2 – The Licensing Objectives is attached at Appendix 5.
Section 8 – Applications for Premises Licences is attached at Appendix 6.
Section 9 – Determining applications is attached at Appendix 7.

3.30 The provisions of chapter 10 (Appendix 8) of the statutory guidance highlight that 
only precise, appropriate and proportionate conditions, which promote one or 
more of the licensing objectives, should be attached to the licence or certificate. 
The Sub-Committee should only impose such conditions as are necessary to 
promote the licensing objectives arising out of the consideration of the 
representations received, and should avoid straying into undisputed areas. 
Conditions duplicating other statutory provisions are not considered to be 
appropriate.

3.31 Determination of application for premises licence

3.32 When the Licensing Authority receives an application for a premises licence 
made in accordance with s.34 and it is satisfied that the applicant has complied 
with the requirements imposed under s.17(5) the Licensing Authority must grant 
the licence in accordance with the application subject only to:-

a) Such conditions as are consistent with the operating schedule accompanying the 
application; and

b) Any conditions which must, under ss. 19, 20, 21 be included in the licence 
(mandatory conditions).

3.33 The application must be determined having regard to any relevant 
representations made take such of the steps mentioned below as it considers 
necessary for the promotion of the licensing objectives.

3.34 The steps are:

Page 245

Agenda Item 11



a) To grant the licence subject to:-

(i) Conditions which are consistent with the Operating 
Schedule, modified to such extent as the Licensing 
Authority considers necessary for the promotion of the 
licensing objectives

(ii) Any applicable mandatory conditions

b) Refuse to grant the premises licence.

3.35 Options

The options available to members are:

1. Grant the application to vary the licence for Broadway Sports Bar as applied 
for;

2. Grant the application to vary the licence for Broadway Sports Bar, with 
additional conditions and/or changes as deemed appropriate, taking into 
account Chapter 10 of the statutory guidance ‘Conditions attached to 
premises licences and club premises certificates’ (Appendix 8);

3. Refuse the application to vary the licence.

4.0 Consultation 
4.1 This is a legislation led process; details of the statutory consultation are detailed 

above.

5.0 Alternative Options 
5.1 The requirements of the legislation place restrictions around the options available 

to the Licensing Sub-Committee. The options available are detailed above.

6.0 Contribution to Council Plan Priorities 
6.1 The effective implementation of the Licensing Act 2003 will contribute to an 

improved environment for local residents and other stakeholders. 

7.0 Implications 
7.1 Financial, Resources and Procurement 
7.2 There are no direct financial implications associated with this report, subject to 

the risks set out at paragraph 7.10. 
This application is being processed as part of normal duties and therefore the 
work associated with it is contained within the departmental budget.

7.3 Legal
7.4 The sub-committee must determine the application, taking into account relevant 

representations, the Licensing Act 2003, the regulations made thereunder 
statutory guidance and the Council’s own licensing policy.

7.5 The application meets the requirements of The Licensing Act 2003.

Page 246

Agenda Item 11



7.6 Human Rights

7.7 The Human Rights 1998 (HRA) requires public bodies to ensure everything they 
do is compatible with Convention Rights and makes it unlawful for a public 
authority to act incompatibly with those Rights. Article 6 (A6) of the European 
Convention on Human Rights (ECHR) is the right to a fair trial. The key elements 
of this include: 

 The right to a fair hearing; 
 The right to a public hearing;
 The right to a hearing before an independent and impartial tribunal;
 The right to a hearing within a reasonable time. 1

7.8 When hearing an application, the proceedings of a non-judicial body such as the 
Licensing Sub Committee, as opposed to an actual Court, need not meet the full 
requirements of A6 where there is a right of appeal from the Licensing Sub 
Committee to a Court that does meet the full A6 standards and can consider all 
aspects of the case (even if that does not include a full re-hearing of the facts). 

7.9 While it is good practice to make a hearing before the Licensing Sub Committee 
as A6 compliant as possible, it will not be a breach of the HRA if it is not. Further, 
the hearing of all applications is subject to the principles of Natural Justice and 
the requirement for decisions to be ‘Wednesbury reasonable’.

7.10 Risks 

7.11 An appeal against a decision of the Sub-Committee or a Judicial Review of the 
application process may present financial risks to the Council with regard to any 
award of costs against it.

Any party to an application (that being an applicant or someone who made a 
representation has a right of appeal to the Magistrates Court.

8.0 Equality and Diversity
The arrangements for the Licensing Hearings seek to ensure that all applicants 
and other interested parties receive a fair hearing and that the process is 
accessible to all groups within the community. 

Contact Officers 
Katherine Benson kbenson@barrowbc.gov.uk 

Page 247

Agenda Item 11

mailto:kbenson@barrowbc.gov.uk


Appendices Attached to this Report 
Appendix No. Name of Appendix 
1 Application to vary a premises licence under the Licensing Act 

2003
2 Existing Premises Licence for Broadway Sports Bar

3 Representation from Simon Crompton

4 Representation from Brian White

5 Revised guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 
2003 – Licensing Objectives

6 Revised guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 
2003 – Applications for premises licences

7 Revised guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 
2003 – Determining applications 

8 Revised guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 
2003 – Conditions attached to premises licences and club 
premises certificates

Background Documents Available
Name of Background 
document 

Where it is available 

1 Revised Guidance issued 
under section 182 of the 
Licensing Act 2003

2 Licensing Act 2003

3 Alcohol licensing: guidance 
on new temporary off-sales 
permissions

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/explanatory-
memorandum-revised-guidance-issued-under-s-182-of-
licensing-act-2003

https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2003/17/contents 

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/guidance-
for-temporary-alcohol-licensing-provisions-in-the-
business-and-planning-bill/alcohol-licensing-guidance-
on-new-temporary-off-sales-permissions 

 

Page 248

Agenda Item 11

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/explanatory-memorandum-revised-guidance-issued-under-s-182-of-licensing-act-2003
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/explanatory-memorandum-revised-guidance-issued-under-s-182-of-licensing-act-2003
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/explanatory-memorandum-revised-guidance-issued-under-s-182-of-licensing-act-2003
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2003/17/contents
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/guidance-for-temporary-alcohol-licensing-provisions-in-the-business-and-planning-bill/alcohol-licensing-guidance-on-new-temporary-off-sales-permissions
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/guidance-for-temporary-alcohol-licensing-provisions-in-the-business-and-planning-bill/alcohol-licensing-guidance-on-new-temporary-off-sales-permissions
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/guidance-for-temporary-alcohol-licensing-provisions-in-the-business-and-planning-bill/alcohol-licensing-guidance-on-new-temporary-off-sales-permissions
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/guidance-for-temporary-alcohol-licensing-provisions-in-the-business-and-planning-bill/alcohol-licensing-guidance-on-new-temporary-off-sales-permissions


��������	
���������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������	���������

������������������������������������������������ �����!���������������"������#�������������$%%&�� '#(�)(�*(�+�,-(��.##./012�01),*3�,0.1)��0*),��4567�5�879��5:�;<�:=�>�67�9���5?>5��5?@�:=5�<A�@?;85�;7:5>�?:�:=5�5;@�76�:=5�67�9B��C6�D7A�?�5�879��5:�;<�:=�>�67�9�ED�=?;@���5?>5�F��:5��5<�E�D��;�E�78G�8?��:?�>B��C;�?���8?>5>�5;>A�5�:=?:�D7A��?;>F5�>�?�5��;>�@5�:=5�E7H5>�?;@�F��::5;��;�E�?8G��;GB��I>5�?@@�:�7;?��>=55:>��6�;585>>?�DB���J7A�9?D�F�>=�:7�G55��?�87�D�76�:=5�879��5:5@�67�9�67��D7A���587�@>B��0������K5��;?�L7;5>���������MNOPQRS�OTUQMPV�WX�TYYZ[\TOSV��]�����������!����������������"�̂����� ������ �����!���������������"����������&_��̀�����#�������������$%%&�̀��������!�����"����]�"����'���a�]������'�!���������������!]���bc��de��'���a�f�'�!�����+��������b7>:?��?@@�5>>�76���59�>5>�7�g��6�;7;5g�7�@;?;85�>A�h5D�9?���565�5;85�7��@5>8���:�7;�4ij�kl�J�mbjinm�4�i�4�mopoqn�rs�t�sr�u�voqkCmw�mnioon�b7>:�:7F;�4�iijl�Cq�xIiqomm� b7>:87@5� c�	r�	yk��n5�5�=7;5�;A9E5��?:���59�>5>�z�6�?;D{� ��������q7;|@795>:�8��?:5?E�5�h?�A5�76���59�>5>� }	
g�s�B����'���$�f�����������"��������k?D:�95�87;:?8:��:5�5�=7;5�;A9E5�� �
sed	~ed
��o|9?���?@@�5>>�z7�:�7;?�{� K5��;?��
�9>;B879�uA��5;:��7>:?��?@@�5>>��6�@�665�5;:�6�79���59�>5>�?@@�5>>� dd�lomn�mwjio�ij�k���b7>:�:7F;�4�iijl�Cq�xIiqomm� b7>:87@5� c�	r��Ik�

Page 249

Agenda Item 11
Appendix 1



��������	
�������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������

������������������������������������������������������ �!���"���������#�$�������!����"�$���%%����������!���������&��'���������(����������� �)���*%�!��+�%��,� "���#����#������ �!���"��$�������!����������%%���'� ������������-�����-���(��(����(����(������� � � � � � � �
�������� �!���"���������#�$�������!����"�$���%%�����!��������!�����"���!���#�����!��%��"�������!�."����$�'�/�����������.��#�!���!����	0����� (��� ���������� �)�����12�32�4235�62�6�2718��92����:2��7��92�;�;�324�<��������/�����������.��#�!���!������0�=�������!��!�"������%�����"����������!#����!�!.�"����>�

�*%�������������#�$�������!� ���#�,��!��"���?+�������,����������������@�����#��������!#��"�����,���������!���!����,�+���������������"��!�,&����@�����#��������!#A� ��������

Page 250

Agenda Item 11
Appendix 1



��������	
�������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������

������������������������� ������ ��!"#���$��$%" �����$ �"&�$%��'����$�()�*!%�+,���-��".�.%�!%�.",�+�-�� ,-/�!$�$"�!%�()���&�$%� ������!�$�"(�$"�0��1�� � ,!!�  &,�2����34�5�3��36������������������7����8���5��5������������3���9:� ���������5�����;������������������������<��=����1 �>�&�$�!?�()�1� @�&�����(�-"A��=� �-=�&��# �>�&�$�!?�()�1� @�&�����(�-"A�B=� �!=��(+""�� �"�$�()��0�($ �>�&�$�!?�()�1� @�&�����(�-"A�C=� �+=�-"A�()�"��.�� $��()��($��$��(#�($�>�&�$�!?�()�1� @�&�����(�-"A�D=� ��=���0��#, �!�>�&�$�!?�()�1� @�&�����(�-"A�E=� �&=� ��!"�+�+�#, �!�>�&�$�!?�()�1� @�&�����(�-"A�F=� �)=����&"�#�(!� �"&�+�(!��>�&�$�!?�()�1� @�&�����(�-"A�G=� �%=��(1$%�()�"&��� �#�����+� !���$�"(�$"�$%�$�&����()�.�$%�(�>�=@�>&=�"��>)=��>�&�$�!?�()�1� @�&�����(�-"A�H=� ��� � �� � �� � ���34�5�3��36�������������6��5�7����>�&�$�!?�()�1� @�&�����(�-"A�I=�� ������<�36���3�3��>�&�$�!?�()�1� @�&�����(�-"A�J=� �K������5�5��37������L3M�5�NO�P����Q��

Page 251

Agenda Item 11
Appendix 1



��������	
�������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������

���������������������������������������������������������� ����������������������������� ������������������������������!����"���������� ������������������������������� #������� �$�������� �%�� ����� &������ '���� �(��� ������ ��������������)����������������������������������������������*�������������� ������+��� ������ ������������ ���������������� ���������������������)����������������������������������������������������,�������������� ������+���� ������ ������������ ������&��� ������ ������-�����������������.�����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������/������������������������������������
�������������� ��������� ������ ������������ ���������� ������ ������������ �������

Page 252

Agenda Item 11
Appendix 1



��������	
�������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������

����������������������������������������������������������������� ���������� ��!�������"�"�������#�������������������������������!����$�����������#����������������������������%���� &������� �'�������� �(��� ������ ������ ����� �)��� ������ ������*��������+��"�������������������������������������������������������������� ������,��� ������ ������������ ���������������� �������������������������+����������"�������� ��!�������"�"��������������������������������-�������������� ������,���� ������ ������������ ��������� ������ ������.�������������������/���������������������������������������"�������� ��!�������"�"����������""���������������������������������������������������"�0����������������������������������������
�������������� ���������� ������ ������������ ���������� ������ ������������ �������

Page 253

Agenda Item 11
Appendix 1



��������	
�������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������

���������������������������������������������������������������������������������� ������������ ���!��������������������������������������"��������#��� ������ $����!�%��� ������ ������������ ������&��� ������ ������������������������������������ �������������������������������������������������������������������� ������'��������� ������������ ������&!��� ������ ������(�������������������)��'!�����������������������!����������� �������������������������������  ����������������!���������������!�������������!���� �*����������������������������������������
�������������� ������$��� ������ ������������ ���������� ������ ������������ ���������� ������ ������������ ������� �

Page 254

Agenda Item 11
Appendix 1



��������	
���������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
���������

�������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������� ������ ��!���������������������������������"������������������������!� �#�����������"���������������������������$����� %����� �&������ ����� ������ '���� � �� � �(�� ������ ������)��������*��+��� ����������� ������������������������������,�������������� ������-��� ������ ������������ ���������������� ������������������������*���������+��!���������������������������������������������������������.�������������� ������- ��� ������ ������������ ������'��� ������ ������/������������������0��� ��������������������� �����������+��!������������������������������������++��������������� �������������� ����������� ����+�1���������������������������������������
�������������� ���������� ������ ������������ ���������� ������ ������������ �������

Page 255

Agenda Item 11
Appendix 1



��������	
�������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������

���������������������������������������������������������������������� ������������ ��������� ��������������!�������������������������������"����#�����������!����������������������������$����� %������� �&�������� �'��� ������ (������ )���� �*��� ������ ������+����������� �����������������������������������������������,�������������� ������-��� ������ ������������ ���������������� ������������������������������������ ���������� ��������� ���������������������������������������.�������������� ������-���� ������ ������������ ������(��� ������ ������/�������������������0��������������������������������������� ���������� ��������� �����������������  ��������������������������������������������������� �1����������������������������������������
�������������� ���������� ������ ������������ ���������� ������ ������������ �������

Page 256

Agenda Item 11
Appendix 1



��������	
�������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������

�������������������������������������������������������������������������� ������������������ ������������������!�������������������������������"����#�����������!����������������������������$����� %������� �&�������� �'��� ������ ������� (���� �)��� 		*����+*���,��������-�� �����������������������������������������������.�������������� ������/��� 		*����+*��������� ����������		*����+*����������������������-���������� ���������������� �������������������������������������������0��12��32���242��$�5&6�(&7%18�1%85/�		*���#��$*��������� ������/���� 		*����$*��������� ���������� 		*����$*���1�������������������*��������������������������������������� ���������������� ���������������������  ��������������������������������������������������� �9����������������������������������������
�������������� ���������� 		*����$*��������� ���������� 		*����$*��������� �������

Page 257

Agenda Item 11
Appendix 1



��������	
���������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������	����������

������������������������������������������������ ��!��!��!����"����#!��$�!�%&� '())�*+�,�����������������*�-�,)���(�����������.*���������/�*+�0�,)���*(�-� ��!��!��!����"����#!��$�!�1&���� 2��$$��� �3"��$$��� �4��� ������ 5����6� 7$�6� �8$�� 		9����:9����)���;(<��.�*+���*�()��+�� ��!��!��!����"����#!��$�!�=&������������� ������>"!� 		9����:9��������� ������?!��		9����:9���@*�*���A�������)�<��(�*(��������*+�,����������������� ��!��!��!����"����#!��$�!�B&�CD?�ED�F��DGD��1�H3IF�73J2C��C2�H>�		9���K��19��������� ������>6"�� 		9����19��������� ������5��� 		9����19���L����*�������*(�(�;�M��'+��A�.�(�*���*��.��*+�,��(�������*+�,������������������*��(����*�*(���*��*+���)(�*��(��*+���).������*+�)�*N�,)���)(�*� ��!��!��!����"����#!��$�!�
&������������� ���������� 		9����19��������� �������"�� 		9����19��������� �������

Page 258

Agenda Item 11
Appendix 1



��������	
���������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������		���������

��������������������������������������������������������� !��� ������ �"#$%&$�&�&$'(�$%&�#�)�%*(�+��,$(,��,$&�*-�&$%.,�%/#,�01� 2�,$(,�*�3,�$�&,(.���#�/%�/4�#5,�#'�,�/4�,%#,�#$�%),%#�'/-�6����7,���/3�&�%*�������8$'� "#$�#� 9�%�(5� :����������������������;�������������������<����������=����>�����������;�+��,$(,��,$&�*-�&$%.,�%/#,�?1�� @%&//�(� �A/%� ������ ������ B-#&//�(� ������� ������ C/#5� �D-,� ������ ������E��������F���<�������������������+��,$(,��,$&�*-�&$%.,�%/#,�G1������������� ������H,&������� ������������ ������D5-�� ������ ������I����������������F����������������������������������������������������������������������� !��� ������ ��+��,$(,��,$&�*-�&$%.,�%/#,�J1������������� ������9��� ������ ������������ ������"$#� ������ ������K����������������L��:�������<���������<���������������������������������������������������������������������������������� !��� ������ ��������������������������������������������<������������!�������������+��,$(,��,$&�*-�&$%.,�%/#,�
1������������� ������"-%� ������ ������������ �������

Page 259

Agenda Item 11
Appendix 1



��������	
���������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������	����������

������������������������������������������������� ��!��"��"��"��� #����$"��%�"�&'� (�))�����*�+,���+��+��)����������������������-��*).����/++���+��+0�/++���+��1+���2�*)������.-�!��"��"��"��� #����$"��%�"�3'���� ���%%��� �4#��%%��� �5��� ������ 6����7� 8%�7� �9%�� ������ ������:)������,���0������/���)�������!��"��"��"��� #����$"��%�"�;'������������� ������<#"� ������ ������������ ������="�������� ������>�����?����+�)�,����+����+������*�+,���+��+��)���������������������!��"��"��"��� #����$"��%�"�@'������������� ������<7#�� ������ ������������ ������6��� ������ ������A+�����/�/��������B��(�����?+0������/��+�0�������*���������+������*�+,���+��+��)�����������������������/��������������C��+���+���)����/��������.+)0���+������)���C�*)����)����!��"��"��"��� #����$"��%�"�
'������������� ���������� ������ ������������ �������#�� ������ ������������ �������

Page 260

Agenda Item 11
Appendix 1



��������	
���������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������	����������

���������������������������������������������� ��!��!��!����"����#!��$�!�%&� '(���)�*�+�����������������,*���-���.+�/�)(�.�0���*�+*�)(�1�� ��!��!��!����"����#!��$�!�2&���� 3���4!���!���!�� �355��4!���!���!�� �6��� ������ 7����4� 8$�4� �9$�� 		:�����:���)�)*��.��+*�+�.���;�-(�)(�.+���-�)�*�+����������������� ��!��!��!����"����#!��$�!�<&�=>?�@>�A��>B>��C�D3EA�83FG=H�=GHDI�		:���J��C:��������� ������I"!� 		:�����:��������� ������?!��		:�����:��������� ������I4"�� 		:����C:���K�.L+)�.M�-M�)(/(.N+O��'�*-*�����(.)*.M�)���+*�)�*��-*/(+*+���-�)�*�+������������������)�M(��*-*.)�)(/*+�)��)��+*��(+)*M�(.�)�*�����/.��.�)�*��*�)P���*�+*��(+)� ��!��!��!����"����#!��$�!�
&������������� ������7��� 		:����C:��������� ���������� 		:����C:��������� �������"�� 		:����C:��������� �������Q�
�����
R�*�+*��(N��(N�)��.���M��)�*.)*-)�(./*.)��-�+*-;(�*+P���)(;()(*+P��)�*-�*.)*-)�(./*.)��-�/�))*-+��.�(���-��)��)�*��+*����)�*��-*/(+*+�)��)�/���N(;*�-(+*�)����.�*-.�(.�-*+�*�)����#4����!�� ��!��!��!����"����#!��$�!�	�&:�������

Page 261

Agenda Item 11
Appendix 1



��������	
���������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������	����������

������������������������������������������� !��!�!�"#�� !���$� %#�&��'�#'��'�!�%(�!� )'� *�'�+,� -�������.����������/����������&��'�#'��'�!�%(�!� )'� *�'�0,�123�42�5��262����7895�:8;<1=�1<=7>�		?���@���?���A�"� ������ B� �#C�D* � 		?����E?��������� ������>('� 		?����E?��������� ������3'!�		?����E?��������� ������F�������G��G������H�I��J�����.��������G������������������������������������������G�KK������������K���������������G������������������������K�L�������������&��'�#'��'�!�%(�!� )'� *�'�
,�������>C(�� 		?�����?��������� ������B��� 		?�����?��������� ���������� 		?�����?��������� �������( � 		?�����?��������� �������M�'�#'��!' ��N"��C*#'�)* !���* #�)(��' ��"��$�*#'!�* ��C'���)' )'�OC�)C�"*(�P'��'Q'�)*(�!�P'��'$*Q'!��#���)* #'R(' )'�*N��C'���*�*#'!�Q������* �"*(���'�#''S� %?�������

Page 262

Agenda Item 11
Appendix 1



��������	
���������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������	����������

�� �������������������������� ����������������������������� �� ����������������������������������������������� ��������������������������������������������������������������������������� ���������������������������!��"������!������������������������������������������������������������������#��������
Page 263

Agenda Item 11
Appendix 1



��������	
���������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������	����������

�������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������� ��!"�#$%$&!'�(�!''�)*+&�',-$%.,%/�*01$-2,3$.�405�-5�6�!%6�$"�47'$!.$�&$!6�/+,6!%-$�%*2$�88"�9:;<��;;=;>=?@;�A=�B@A��?�;�C=@D�EFB:GD��0"�HI$�7&$3$%2,*%�*)�-&,J$�!%6�6,.*&6$&�;:��9=K:;@=9=�FF9�;LE=9M:;F9;�GG@M�NF@A�:?@=9?�BBD��?�=O@=9?�BBD�9=GF9:?K��?�:>�K=;�;�M=�CF9�?F�B=;;�@A�?�	P��D;�Q=9F�@FB=9=?G=�9LK;��EFB:GD�� ��;=�9GA�EFB:GD�� ���>:;;:F?�EFB:GD�R:@A�FM=9�	S�F?BD��BGFAFB�EL9GA�;=� �GA�BB=?K=��T�:�EFB:GD� �=M�GL�@:F?�EFB:GD� �:;E=9;�B�EFB:GD� �?F��BGFAFB�:?�L?;=�B=�GF?@�:?=9;�@F�B=�M=�E9=>:;=;U���-"�V+0',-�.!)$2W�BFG�B��L@AF9:@D�X�EFB:G=�B:�:;F?�CL?G@:F?:?K�:K:@�B�GG@M�9=GF9:?K�=O@=9:F9�B:KA@:?K�=?@9�?G=��?�C:9=�=O:@�ELNB:G�;�C=@D�9:;<��;;=;;>=?@�=>=9K=?GD�B:KA@:?K�CF9�EFR=9�C�:BL9=��6"�HI$�7&$3$%2,*%�*)�7+0',-�%+,.!%-$�:;E=9;�B�>F?:@F9=�ND�FF9�;@�CC�@F�=?;L9=�YL:=@��?�YL:G<�>FM=>=?@�C9F>��9=��=?@9�?G=�F?�G�M=?:;A�;@9==@�@F�E9=M=?@�?L:;�?G=�@F��B<=:@A�;@9==@�9=;:=?@;U�>L;:G�B=M=B;�<=E@�BFR�@F�E9=M=?@�EFBBL@:F?��9FL?�=O@=9:F9�FC�E9=>:;=;���$"�HI$�7&*2$-2,*%�*)�-I,'6&$%�)&*J�I!&J�VZ[H[�\]�V[̂ \_̀ �abHc̀ �8de�f[c�gHhb]hc]�Hch]\b#��ib]ac�8d�Vc\jhHa�fib_H\[bg�[b̂ �̀�_Zĥ âb#a�kl�\]�V[̂ \_̀ ����

Page 264

Agenda Item 11
Appendix 1



��������	
���������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������	
���������

���������� �������������������������� ��!������ "��#$�%#&�'��(��'�&��#)%(��'*����*+�'���"��#$�('��%#&�'��(��'�&��#)%(��'*����*�,�#-�������#�����#��'(��#��,(�%#&��(���#��'(��'�����(��'&-���'(�'*�����#��(�.����$)/� ����� "��#$��(���'����'*������#�����#��'(�#(&������#(��'����'(��,��#-��'������#(&�'�����0���#�����#,�/� �� "�-(&���#(&���#��"�%-���('0�#&$�����%)�#�����#��'(/� �� "��#$�(��'�&������%�������(��'����$#(���#���'*����'��1��#(#��'(/� �� "�-(&���#(&���#���*�"�&'�('���'%��)�0�������#,'$��2-��%(���%)�#�����#��'(�0����,��3��&/�� ��45�46�78�9::;8<;=�>8?;@�6;<5498�ABC�9:�5D;�E4<;8648F�7<5�GHHI=�59�J7K;�7�:7E6;�6575;J;85�48�9@�48�<988;<5498�L45D�5D46�7��E4<75498M�5D96;�LD9�J7K;�7�:7E6;�6575;J;85�J7N�O;�E47OE;�98�6>JJ7@N�<98P4<5498�59�7�:48;�9:�78N�7J9>85M������ ��B�Q�6�����R �����S��#���#&�.-�&#(��('��	�T��UVWXYZ[\]�̂_�Ỳ àVbYXZ�cZd]�b[\\]XZ�̀\]eVf]f�aVb]Xb]�d̂ag]\h�̂\�Ỳ àVbYXZif��������� �� ���j� ��R�k��R�j� �����������S��#���#&�.-�&#(��('��	lTM��4m������������n�j��m��m��j���oo������=�o���������������pj�����o����kM��q�.(#�-�� rstuvw�xyvsz�{#�� �|}�|}������#�#���)� ~(�#��%#(#.���Lj� ���j��o �!����������������������k�j���=�������R ���m�G����oo���������j���R  ����\̀]eVf]f�aVb]Xb]�d̂ag]\h�̂\��Xg�Ỳ àVbYXZif�f̂aVbVẐ\�̂\�̂Zd]\�Y[Zd̂\Vf]g�YW]XZ�S��#���#&�.-�&#(��('��	�TM��4m������������n�j��m��m��j���oo������=�o���������������pj�����o����kM���q�.(#�-�� �{#�� �������#�#���)� �������<���������!���pj� ������o ����R��k��������������� ����m� ���  ��o�������������������p��j��j����oo���������S��#���#&�.-�&#(��('��	�T��������������p�������� ����������������5���oj�����R!n� ���m���k�� ������4m�k�R�p�R���o �m� �R�������  ��o����p��j�k�R�nk���!���=�k�R ���!������� ������o��������������

Page 265

Agenda Item 11
Appendix 1



��������	
���������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������	����������

���������������������������������������������������� ���������������������!������������������"����������������������������������� ������������� ��������#�������"���������������$�%�� ��"������#�&�������� ���������'�����������#������������(� ��������#�&������"����#�������������������������������������)*�������+�������'�,���-../$�� 	0�123�42�526�789:�62��8;�8�<::��<�67:�25�;��3��2=:�2<�67:�98��86�25�<2��>7�?7�;23�8�:�8���;�5@��=�62�892�4�A:?2B�5@���8A�:�<2��67:��86:�5�@76��:9;��0�C:=?��A:�67:���:B�=:=0�D2��:E8B��:F�67:�6;�:�2<���:B�=:=F��6=�@:5:�8��=�6386�25�854��8;236�854�85;�267:���5<2�B86�25�>7�?7�?23�4�A:��:�:9856�62�67:���?:5=�5@�2AG:?6�9:=0�H7:�:�;23��8����?86�25��5?�34:=�2<<I=3����:=�2<�8�?272��854�;23��56:54�62���29�4:�8���8?:�2<�?25=3B�6�25�2<�67:=:�2<<I=3����:=�2<�8�?272�F�;23�B3=6��5?�34:�8�4:=?���6�25�2<�>7:�:�67:���8?:�>����A:�854��6=���2E�B�6;�62�67:���:B�=:=0�J0�K5�6:�B=�2<�=�:?�<�?��:@3�86:4�:56:�68�5B:56=���:8=:�526:�6786L���M�8;=L�52���?:5?:��=��:N3��:4�<2���:�<2�B85?:=�A:6>::5���0���854��J0���25�85;�48;F���29�4:4�6786�67:�834�:5?:�42:=�526�:E?::4�O��0��PQRSTU�VW�RQXYVXY�QT�ZY[\QZY]�̂WZ�_VẀI<2�IaZŴQ̀b�̂QRS�YcdQeQ̀QWV�dYR]�QV�XWSS\VQ̀f���:B�=:=��A:6>::5���0���854��J0���25�85;�48;���29�4:4�6786�67:�834�:5?:�42:=�526�:E?::4�O���854�67:�2�@85�=:��g8h�@:6=�?25=:56�62�67:�=?�::5�5@�<�2B�8��:�=25�>72��=��:=�25=�A�:�<2��67:���:B�=:=i�854�gAh�:5=3�:=�6786�:8?7�=3?7�=?�::5�5@�8A�4:=�A;�8@:�?�8==�<�?86�25��86�5@=0��K5422��=�2�6�5@�:9:56=L�52���?:5?:��=��:N3��:4�<2���:�<2�B85?:=�A:6>::5���0���854��J0���25�85;�48;F���29�4:4�6786�67:�834�:5?:�42:=�526�:E?::4�	���0������j2E�5@�2��H�:=6��5@�k56:�68�5B:56L��52���?:5?:��=��:N3��:4�<2��8�?256:=6F�:E7�A�6�25�2��4�=��8;�2<�l�:?2Im2B85�>�:=6��5@F�2��<�::=6;�:�>�:=6��5@�A:6>::5���0���854��J0���25�85;�48;F���29�4:4�6786�67:�834�:5?:�42:=�526�:E?::4�	���0�n2BA�5:4�<�@76�5@�=�2�6=�o�4:<�5:4�8=�8�?256:=6F�:E7�A�6�25�2��4�=��8;�>7�?7�?2BA�5:=�A2E�5@�2��>�:=6��5@�>�67�25:�2��B2�:�B8�6�8��8�6=�o�8�:���?:5=8A�:�8=�8�A2E�5@�2��>�:=6��5@�:56:�68�5B:56��867:��6785�85��5422��=�2�6�5@�:9:560��p�9:�B3=�?L�52���?:5?:��:�B�==�25��=��:N3��:4�<2�L�q�8��:�<2�B85?:�2<�358B���<�:4���9:�B3=�?�A:6>::5���0���854��J0���25�85;�48;F�25�85;���:B�=:=0�q�8��:�<2�B85?:�2<�8B���<�:4���9:�B3=�?�A:6>::5���0���854��J0���25�85;�48;�25���:B�=:=�83672��=:4�62�=:���8�?272��<2��?25=3B�6�25�25�672=:���:B�=:=F���29�4:4�6786�67:�834�:5?:�42:=�526�:E?::4�O��0�q�8��:�<2�B85?:�2<�8B���<�:4���9:�B3=�?�A:6>::5���0���854��J0���25�85;�48;F��5�8�>2�r��8?:�6786��=�526���?:5=:4�62�=:���8�?272��25�672=:���:B�=:=F���29�4:4�6786�67:�834�:5?:�42:=�526�:E?::4�O��0��q�8��:�<2�B85?:�2<�8B���<�:4���9:�B3=�?�A:6>::5���0���854��J0���25�85;�48;F��5�8�?73�?7�78��F�9���8@:�78��F�?2BB35�6;�78��F�2��267:��=�B��8��?2BB35�6;���:B�=:=F�6786��=�526���?:5=:4�A;�8���:B�=:=���?:5?:�62�=:���8�?272�F���29�4:4�6786�g8h�67:�834�:5?:�42:=�526�:E?::4�O��F�854�gAh�67:�2�@85�=:��@:6=�?25=:56�<2��67:��:�<2�B85?:�<�2B�8��:�=25�>72��=��:=�25=�A�:�<2��67:���:B�=:=0�q�8��:�<2�B85?:�2<�8B���<�:4���9:�B3=�?�A:6>::5���0���854��J0���25�85;�48;F�86�67:�525I�:=�4:56�8����:B�=:=�2<�g�h�8��2?8��83672��6;F�2��g��h�8�=?722�F�2��g���h�8�72=��68�F���29�4:4�6786�g8h�67:�834�:5?:�42:=�526�:E?::4�O��F�854�gAh�67:�2�@85�=:��@:6=�?25=:56�<2��67:��:�<2�B85?:�25�67:��:�:9856���:B�=:=�<�2BL�g�h�67:��2?8��83672��6;�?25?:�5:4F�2��g��h�67:�=?722��2��g���h�67:�7:8�67�?8�:���29�4:��<2��67:�72=��68�0��m:?2�4:4�s3=�?L�52���?:5?:��:�B�==�25��=��:N3��:4�<2�L�q�85;���8;�5@�2<��:?2�4:4�B3=�?�A:6>::5���0���854��J0���25�85;�48;�25���:B�=:=�83672��=:4�62�=:���8�?272��<2��?25=3B�6�25�25�672=:���:B�=:=F���29�4:4�6786�67:�834�:5?:�42:=�526�:E?::4�O��0�q�85;���8;�5@�2<��:?2�4:4�B3=�?�A:6>::5���0���854��J0���25�85;�48;F��5�8�?73�?7�78��F�9���8@:�78��F�?2BB35�6;�78��F�2��267:��=�B��8��?2BB35�6;�

Page 266

Agenda Item 11
Appendix 1



��������	
���������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������	����������

����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������� ���������� ������� ������������!������������������ ��������������"�#�������������� ������������������!�����$"��������%"�������������������������&��������������������� ������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������ ���������� ������������������������������� ��'���������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������� ���������������"���(����'�����������������)������ ������ �����������!�����$"��������%"�������������������������������������������������������������"�*�!����������� �������!���������������������������������������������������"�+�,�����������������������'�����������������)���������!�����$"��������%"���������������!��������������������������-�� ��'����#��������������������.�������������������������� ���������������������!������������������������������������������������ �� ��������������������/��#��������������������.����������������������������������� ��������������������������!������������������������������������������������ �� �������������������������/��#��������������������.�������������������������� ������������!������������������������������������������������ �� ����������������������/�����#����������������������������� ��������������������!�������������������������.���������������������������������������������������������.���������!�������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������� �������������$�����������������"�0"�1�������.�����������������������������������������������������.�������������������������������������������"��"�2���������������������� ����������������������������� ��������������������������������������� ���������������� ��������������������������������!�������������������!����������� ������������� ���"�3"�2���������������������������������!������������������!��������������������������������������������������"�
"�2���������������������������������!���������!������������������������������������������������������"�"�,��������4��"�$"�5����������������������0����������.���"�"�	3"�������������������������� ������������� �����!��.�!�������������������������������������� ���������������"��"�67�89:�;<=>�?@9?A@�B9�C@�DCA@�B9�E9F=:G@�DAE9>9A�9F�B>@�?H@G<=@=I�?A@D=@�B<EJ�K9F�B>@�?H@G<=@=LM�67�89:�;<=>�?@9����������������������������������������������!��� �������?H@G<=@=I�?A@D=@�B<EJ�K977�B>@�?H@G<=@=LM�67�89:�;<=>�?@9?A@�B9�C@�DCA@�B9�N9�C9B>I�?A@D=@�B<EJ�KC9B>LM�	�"�5������������� ��������������������������������������������������������������������������������� �������������!����������������������������������������� ���������������������� �!���������������������������������������������������������� ���������������������������������������������&�������� ���� ������������������������������������������ ��������������"�		"�5��������������������������!������.���������������� ����������������O����������������"�	�"�P��������������� ����������������"�	%"�QF�D??A<EDFBL=�DR@FB�S79H�@TDG?A@�=9A<E<B9HU�GD8�=<RF�B>@�79HG�9F�B>@<H�C@>DA7�?H9V<N@N�����������������������������������������"�	0"�1�������������������������������������������� �������������������������������������������������������������������� ��"�	�"�P�������������������!�����!��������������������������!������������������������������"���

Page 267

Agenda Item 11
Appendix 1



This page is intentionally left blank



�

�

������������������������������������������������������ � ����������	
������������������������� ���������� �!�"##$����%&�'�������������� �� %�#"()�*+&,�-&+./0.1�234.&��25+&!��-.&�-.��'��!6�78987�:.;��/��<�2!&��!6�-.&&+0�=��*4&����6�:4'>&.6�� ?7�?@A�� ��=��4�/�+�,�� BCDEFG�:+''�����,�BCDEFG��H�I�J��KL��M���N����OLPMN�Q�RI��S�TNM�M�UNO��O��N���MK�OR�PV�RI���WPJ��K�TNM�MX��SL��M����Y�RI��LNO��O��Y�R�NLM�O��V�LLZ���Y�N�VPT��M�[NRIN���	�Y�ZM�PV���Z�N�VPT�RNP��RI�R�ZP��W�LN�J��RP�W��N�OP�ORX��\IP�LY�ZP��LPPM��RI��LNO��O����Y��]�N�����KL�O�T��R̂�KL��M���PR����V���T�Z�W���]��MR�Y�RP�OPJ��RI��OPMRX��_P�M�MN�O��LẐ������

Page 269

Agenda Item 11
Appendix 2



� �������������	�
������������������������������������������ �!����"�  #�$�%&�'(�&&(�������)��)*���&++���,-����������./01�2.$�!& 3�40225�67891:�*�;�40225�678100�<,�� 3���,,&���� =-�����-�>��?>�%����>-�����-�>��?>�%@ ��&�+�����.��&�+����/�(�244:�A��B������������ � A�CDEF�� �

� � G��&�2��H�00�

G��(�0�I�G�&,�+&+�$&(�� +���AJ�KL��LMMNO���JP�ANOQR�O�S�JN�RP�TJTOS�JNMTLT
O��UNVOW�QLA�NOPONOT
O�JN�MO�
NRAKRJT������X��Y��Z������[����������� �� �� �� K���T��������B���S�\]̂]\�
�_��X�	�������S��������R��P������S�
�B �̀�S��La\�abM�� ��cdONO�KdO��R
OT
O�R��KRQO��RQRKOM�KdO�MLKO���e�(��ff ���- &�����R
OT�L��O�L
KRVRKRO��LUKdJNR�OM��W�KdO��R
OT
O�����KdO�KRQO��KdO��R
OT
O�LUKdJNR�O��KdO�
LNNWRTg�JUK�JP��R
OT�L��O�L
KRVRKRO���/�(�?�(h����������������������������������������!�,&+��*� ,+)i�j���+�� k��j�h�)�'��j�h�)�00344�(��42344#�k�h-&��&l���&j�(��?�&��H� ,+����� ����+�������!m�+��&&�+�i�j����'f��(����<?&�(+�� '��j�h�)�00344�(��42344�� !���+j�h�)�'�(��j�h�)�00344�(��4:344�� ���%�"� �j�h�)�00344�(��4:344�� k��j�h�)�n&j�&+j�h�)�00344�(��42344#�G��?�j����f�� #�+���%&�#�j��(+�� &l��f,&�(�H�����+(�,&���+&���;���@n�&+( ���)i�j���+�� k��j�h�)�'��j�h�)�00344�(��42344#�k�h��������+����-&����&j�H���-�;����� �����&+( ����&?&�(+�.�?&�k�+��)i�j���+�� k��j�h�)�'��j�h�)�00344�(��42344#�k�h��������+����-&��+&j�H��� �?&�,�+���o&���j&j�k�+��)i�j���+�� '��j�h�)�00344�(��42344�� !���+j�h�)�'�(��j�h�)�00344�(��4:344�� k��j�h�)�n&j�&+j�h�)�00344�(��42344#����%�����j�,�+���$���&)i�j���+�� ���%�"� �j�h�)�00344�(��4:344�� k��j�h�)�n&j�&+j�h�)�00344�(��42344�� !���+j�h�)�'�(��j�h�)�00344�(��4:344�� '��j�h�)�00344�(��42344�

Page 270

Agenda Item 11
Appendix 2



� �������������	�
������������������������������������������ �!����"�  #�$�%&�'(�&&(�������)��)*���&++���,-����������./01�2.$�!& 3�40225�67891:�*�;�40225�678100�<,�� 3���,,&���� =-�����-�>��?>�%����>-�����-�>��?>�%@ ��&�+�����.��&�+����/�(�244:�A��B������������ � A�CDEF�� �

� � G��&�:��H�00�

/ ���� )I��(�&�J�&,�+&+� '��K�L�)�00344�(��42344�� M��K�L�)�N&K�&+K�L�)�00344�(��42344�� !���+K�L�)�'�(��K�L�)�00344�(��4:344�� ���%�"� �K�L�)�00344�(��4:344������OAPQRQS�TOUV��OW�XTP�AVPYR�P���"���+��H�IJ&����� M��K�L�)�N&K�&+K�L�)�00344�(��42344�� !���+K�L�)�'�(��K�L�)�00344�(��4:344�� '��K�L�)�00344�(��42344�� ��ZTPVP�XTP��R
PQ
P�[UXTOVR�P���UAA�RP��OW�[�
OTO��ZTPXTPV�XTP�P�[VP�OQ�[Q\]OV�OWW��UAA�RP����/ ���� )I��(�&�J�&,�+&+�� � A����D��Q[YP̂�_VPSR�XPVP\̀�[\\VP��̂�XP�PATOQP�QUY�PV�[Q\�PY[R��_ZTPVP�VP�Pa[QX̀�OW�TO�\PV�OW�AVPYR�P���R
PQ
P��Y���b�����X����c�d�����EE�Z�����	����V��ê�Z����ĉ�������fR�fW������̂�
�Bg��̂��[hi�jU\�� ���VPSR�XPVP\�QUY�PV�OW�TO�\PV̂�WOV�Pk[YA�P�
OYA[Ql�QUY�PV̂�
T[VRXl�QUY�PV�_ZTPVP�[AA�R
[��P̀������K��L�'m���&�'J��(+����� �� �� �� ���

Page 271

Agenda Item 11
Appendix 2



� �������������	�
������������������������������������������ �!����"�  #�$�%&�'(�&&(�������)��)*���&++���,-����������./01�2.$�!& 3�40225�67891:�*�;�40225�678100�<,�� 3���,,&���� =-�����-�>��?>�%����>-�����-�>��?>�%@ ��&�+�����.��&�+����/�(�244:�A��B������������ � A�CDEF�� �

� � G��&�1��H�00�

�IJKLM�JNNOL���JIN�PL�LAQRIL�ISK�LO�RT�NL�UVIJPLN�AOLKU�L���SALOWU�RO�XQLOL�PQL�AOLKU�L���U
LI
L��JSPQROU�L��PQL��SAA�Y�RT�J�
RQR����Z�++�'�����.���+� �85�'(��%���[�/?&��&#�������)\�)*���&++#���,-���#�./0:�5"]�40225�620757� �� ��ALO�RIJ���U
LI
L�ISK�LO�JIN�U��SUIV�JSPQROUPY�RT�ALO�RIJ���U
LI
L�QL�N��Y�NL�UVIJPLN�AOLKU�L����SALOWU�RO�XQLOL�PQL�AOLKU�L���U
LI
L�JSPQROU�L��TRO�PQL��SAA�Y�RT�J�
RQR���̂_̀ab̀a�cde��G/4020� fgghai�jke��������)��)*���&++�� ���JIILlL��JIILl�m��PQL��U
LI�UIV�J
P�DCCn�oKJINJPROY�
RINUPURI�p�K��q����r����q������	��������������	��������ss�r��t�����	�����u0v�w�&�&���x�&,�+&+� ��&��&���(����+&+�(�&�+�xx y��H�� ���� #�(�&� ��&��&�,�+(���� �[&�(�&�H�  ���������[�(���+>��u2v�!�&�H��+(����[�(�����+�(��(����+�xx y��H�� ���� �,�y�-&�,�[&���[&��(�&�x�&,�+&+� ��&��&)��u�v��(���(�,&���&��(�&�&��+����[&+����(&[�x�&,�+&+�+�x&�?�+�������&+x&�(��H�(�&�x�&,�+&+� ��&��&#�����u-v��(���(�,&���&��(�&�[&+����(&[�x�&,�+&+�+�x&�?�+���[�&+���(��� [���x&�+��� � ��&��&������+�x&�+��� � ��&��&��+�+�+x&�[&[>��u:v�!�&�+&���[����[�(�����+�(��(�&?&�y�+�xx y��H�� ���� ���[&��(�&�x�&,�+&+� ��&��&�,�+(�-&�,�[&������(����+&[�-y���x&�+��������� [+���x&�+��� � ��&��&>���K��q����r����q���z��{	|�����t�t�B����u0v�w�&�&���x�&,�+&+� ��&��&���(����+&+�(�&�&;��-�(�����H�H� ,+#�(�&� ��&��&�,�+(���� �[&������[�(�����&}�������(�&��[,�++�����H���� [�&��(��(�&�&;��-�(�����H���y�H� ,�(��-&��&+(���(&[���������[���&���(��(��+�+&�(���>��u2v�w�&�&�(�&�H� ,�� �++�H���(����-�[y��+�+x&��H�&[����(�&� ��&��&#��� &++�+�-+&�(����u:vu-v��xx �&+#��[,�++�����H���� [�&��,�+(�-&��&+(���(&[���������[���&���(����y��&��,,&�[�(����,�[&�-y�(��(�-�[y>���

Page 272

Agenda Item 11
Appendix 2



� �������������	�
������������������������������������������ �!����"�  #�$�%&�'(�&&(�������)��)*���&++���,-����������./01�2.$�!& 3�40225�67891:�*�;�40225�678100�<,�� 3���,,&���� =-�����-�>��?>�%����>-�����-�>��?>�%@ ��&�+�����.��&�+����/�(�244:�A��B������������ � A�CDEF�� �

� � G��&�9��H�00�

I:J�K�&�&)��I�J�(�&�H� ,�� �++�H���(����-�LM��+���(�+N&��H�&L����(�&� ��&��&#�����I-J�(�&��& &?��(� ��&�+������(����(M���+���(�H�&L�(�&��� L&���H�(�&� ��&��&�(��(�(��+�+�-+&�(�����NN �&+�(��(�&�H� ,����O�&+(���#���L,�++�����H���� L�&��,�+(�-&��&+(���(&L���������L���&���(����M��&��,,&�L�(����,�L&�-M�(��(� ��&�+������(����(M>�I1J�P��(��+�+&�(���)��QRSTUVWXYZ�[X\Y]�̂XW]_Y]�\̀XV�aYVXW�bcd�\YV�QeTU[�RU\]]TeTR\fT_Y�g_VhZ�[X\Y]�fSX�̂XW]_Y�_W�̂XW]_Y]�VX]T̀Y\fXV�\]�fSX�\afS_WTfh�aYVXW�]XRfT_Y�i��H�(�&�j�L&��k&���L���+�/�(�0561�I�>�:5J�I��(����(M�(��L&(&�,��&�+��(�-� �(M��H�?�L&�����%+�H���� �++�H���(���J>��l��m����n����m���o�m������p��q������I0J�K�&�&���N�&,�+&+� ��&��&���� �L&+������L�(����(��(��(�+N&��H�&L�(�,&+���&����,��&���L�?�L�� +�,�+(�-&��(�(�&�N�&,�+&+�(������M���(���+&����(M���(�?�(M#�(�&� ��&��&�,�+(���� �L&������L�(����(��(�&����+������L�?�L�� �,�+(�-&� ��&�+&L�-M�(�&�'&����(M�P�L�+(�M�/�(����(M>��I2J���(���(��������+�-+&�(����I0J��&O���&+�+���������L�(����(��-&��,N�+&L)��I�J�����&+N&�(��H�N�&,�+&+���(����N������N��6I:JI�J��H�'��&L� &�2�(��(�&�G��?�(&�'&����(M�P�L�+(�M�/�(�2440IN�&,�+&+���(��N�&,�+&+� ��&��&+���(����+����N �M+����H� ,+J#�����I-J�����&+N&�(��H�N�&,�+&+�����& �(����(�)��I�J���M�����+����,&�(���&L����N������N��6I:JI-J����I�J��H�(��(�'��&L� &�IN�&,�+&+�-&�����+&L�&;� �+�?& M�-M�� �-���(��� �-�N�&,�+&+��&�(�H���(&#���L&����(&,N����M�&?&�(���(��&���(����+����N �M+����H� ,+������L&������,���� ��&��&J#�����I��J���M�����+������(����N������N��6I:JILJ��H�(��(�'��&L� &�I����+���+�N�&+���-&L�-M��&�� �(���+���L&��(��(�/�(J>��I:J�*���(�&�N��N�+&+��H�(��+�+&�(���)��r\s�Q]XRaWTfh�\RfTtTfhZ�[X\Y]�\Y�\RfTtTfh�f_�uSTRS�̂\W\̀W\̂S�vrbsr\s�_e�fS\f�wRSXVaUX�\̂ ÛTX]x�\YV��I-J�N������N��6I9J��H�(��(�'��&L� &�I��(&�N�&(�(�����H��&H&�&��&+�(���������+���J��NN �&+��+��(��NN �&+�����& �(����(��N������N��6��H�(��(�'��&L� &>���A��	y��m����m����o�p��n����I0J�P���& �(����(����N�&,�+&+� ��&��&���������(����+&+�(�&�N&�H��,���&��H�N �M+#�������L�(����,�M�-&��((���&L�(��(�&� ��&��&��+�(��(�&���(��&��H�(�&�N �M+�������,�M�-&�N&�H��,&L#����(�&�,���&���H�N&�H��,����N �M+#���L&��(�&� ��&��&>��I2J���(�+�-+&�(����I0J�L�&+���(�N�&?&�(��� ��&�+������(����(M��,N�+���#���������L���&���(��+&�(����06I2JI�J����I:JI-J#�:9I:JI-J����92I:J#���M����L�(�����������(����+�L&�+��&�&++��M����(�&������L+��H�N�- ���+�H&(M>�

Page 273

Agenda Item 11
Appendix 2



� �������������	�
������������������������������������������ �!����"�  #�$�%&�'(�&&(�������)��)*���&++���,-����������./01�2.$�!& 3�40225�67891:�*�;�40225�678100�<,�� 3���,,&���� =-�����-�>��?>�%����>-�����-�>��?>�%@ ��&�+�����.��&�+����/�(�244:�A��B������������ � A�CDEF�� �

� � G��&�8��H�00�

� �IJIKILMN�OP�IMKQRPI�DCSC�P�T�EFC��O
RP
R��JPU��O
RP�OPV�IWR��O
RP�OPV�J
I�DCCX�YQJPUJILMN��O
RP�OPV�
LPUOIOLP�Z�LMURM�DCSC��!�&�H�  ������[������[�+���,&���(��H���&����8(��/[�� �24043��0>\]0̂�!�&��&+[��+�- &�[&�+���+��  �(�%&��  ��&�+���- &�+(&[+�(��&�+��&�(��(�+(�HH�����& &?��(�[�&,�+&+�_����(�����̀���(#�������&����[��(���[�(&������̀����&+[��+�- &�[��,�(���+�����& �(����(��(�&�[�&,�+&+>��]2̂�a��(��+�[������[�#�������&+[��+�- &�[��,�(����,&��+���̀���&����,��&��H�(�&�H�  ��������(�?�(�&+#����+�-+(��(��  ̀�+�,� �����(�?�(�&+#������&_����H���(�&�[��[�+&��H�&�����������(�&�+� &����+�[[ ̀��H�� ���� �H������+�,[(�������(�&�[�&,�+&+������,���&�������������&+���+����H����(���+%��H� &�_����������(��-�(����(�����,&���_�_�+��_&�#�[�&b�_��&�(��[�- ���+�H&(̀#�[�- ������+���&#�������,�(����� _�&�c�]�̂���,&+�����(�&����(�?�(�&+��������&d���&����&�������&#������&�_&+���&_�(���&d���&�����&�������&#���_�?�_�� +�(�c�]�̂�_���%���d���(�(̀��H�� ���� ���(������(�,&� �,�(�]�(�&��(����(��_���%�� ���� �+� _����+�[[ �&_����(�&�[�&,�+&+�-&H��&�(�&��&++�(�����H�(�&�[&���_����������(�&��&+[��+�- &�[&�+����+���(����+&_�(��+&  ����+�[[ ̀�� ���� ̂#����]��̂�_���%��+�,����� ���� ��+�[�++�- &�]��&(�&����(������(�,&� �,�(�����(�&���+&̂e��]-̂�[��?�+�����H��� �,�(&_������+[&��H�&_�d���(�(�&+��H�� ���� �H�&&����H�����H�;&_����_�+����(&_�H&&�(��(�&�[�- ������(��������[�_&H��&_�-̀���[��(��� ���������(&��+(���]�(�&��(������̀�[��,�(�������_�+����(��?�� �- &�(�������_�?�_�� �����&+[&�(��H�� ���� �H������+�,[(�����(���(�- &�,&� #��+�_&H��&_����+&�(����095��H�(�&�/�(̂e��]�̂�[��?�+�����H�H�&&����_�+����(&_�� ���� ������̀��(�&��(������+���[��f&�(��&�������&�����&���_�(�&�[�����+&���_����+�,[(�����H�� ���� ��?&����[&���_��H�21�����+���� &++e��]_̂�[��?�+�����H�H�&&����_�+����(&_�� ���� �����& �(����(��(�&�?�&��������(�&�[�&,�+&+��H���+[��(����&?&�(#���&�&�(��(�[��?�+�����+�_&[&�_&�(���c�]�̂�(�&���(��,&��H������&#���,[&(�(��������(�&��&?&�(����[���&++#����]��̂�(�&� �%& ����_��H���̀(��������������������(����������e��]&̂�+&  �������+�[[ ̀����� ���� �����++����(������(��[��,�(���� �[�+(&�+����H ̀&�+���#�������(�&�?�����(̀��H#�(�&�[�&,�+&+������������&�+���- ̀�-&����+�_&�&_�(�����_��&#�&�������&����� �,���+&���(�)+���� �-&��?��������(���&H&��(��(�&�&HH&�(+��H�_���%&��&++������̀�H�?����- &�,���&�>�

Page 274

Agenda Item 11
Appendix 2



� �������������	�
������������������������������������������ �!����"�  #�$�%&�'(�&&(�������)��)*���&++���,-����������./01�2.$�!& 3�40225�67891:�*�;�40225�678100�<,�� 3���,,&���� =-�����-�>��?>�%����>-�����-�>��?>�%@ ��&�+�����.��&�+����/�(�244:�A��B������������ � A�CDEF�� �

� � G��&�7��H�00�

�2>�!�&��&+I��+�- &�I&�+���+��  �&�+��&�(��(����� ���� ��+�J�+I&�+&J�J��&�( K�-K���&�I&�+�����(��(�&�,��(���H����(�&��L�(�&��(������&�&�(��(��(�&��I&�+����+����- &�(��J���%���(���(��++�+(���&�-K��&�+����H���J�+�-� �(KM>��:>�!�&��&+I��+�- &�I&�+���+��  �&�+��&�(��(�H�&&�(�I���(&���+�I��?�J&J�����&N�&+(�(����+(�,&�+���&�&��(��+��&�+���- K��?�� �- &>��!�&�H�  ������I������I�+���,&���(��H���&����0+(�O�(�-&��24043��1>PL0M�!�&�I�&,�+&+� ��&��&��� J&������ �-�I�&,�+&+��&�(�H���(&��� J&��+��  �&�+��&�(��(������&�?&��H���(����I� ��K��II �&+�(��(�&�I�&,�+&+�����& �(����(��(�&�+� &����+�II K��H�� ���� >��L2M�!�&�I� ��K�,�+(��&N���&���J�?�J�� +������II&���(��(�&��&+I��+�- &�I&�+���(��-&���J&��06�K&��+��H���&�L���+����� J&����&��+�,�K�-&�+I&��H�&J����(�&�I� ��KM�(��I��J��&�����&N�&+(#�-&H��&�-&����+&�?&J�� ���� #��J&�(�H���(����-&������(�&���I��(����I�#�J�(&��H�-��(����J����� ����I����,��%>���9>�!�&��&+I��+�- &�I&�+���+��  �&�+��&�(��(Q�L�M���&�&���K��H�(�&�H�  ������� ���� ���J���%+��+�+� J����+�II �&J�H������+�,I(�������(�&�I�&,�+&+�L�(�&��(����� ���� ���J���%+�+� J����+�II �&J���?����-&&��,�J&��I�����J?���&��&�JK�H���+� &����+�II K������+&���& K�� �+&J����(���&�M��(��+��?�� �- &�(����+(�,&�+����(�&�H�  ������,&�+��&+Q�L�M�-&&�������J&�3�R�I��(S�L��M����#���,#�?�J%��������+%K3�29�, ����:9�, S���J�L���M�+(�  ����&������� �++3�029�, S���J�L-M���+(�,&�+���&�,�J&�����&��H�(�&��?�� �-� �(K��H�(�&+&�,&�+��&+>�TUUVW�D�X�
YUZ[\[YU��
YU�[�\VU\�][\̂ �\̂ V�YAV_T\[Ù ��
̂ VZa�V��V̀UV_T��b��&���\̂ V�A_VcVU\[YU�Yd�
_[eV�TUZ�Z[�Y_ZV_��*�  K�H���(���������J�,���(���&J���!f�21�����&���J>��������(���,&,-&�+��I���J�+�II��(�.��� �/�(����(K���J�G� ��&� ���+�����!�&�.��&��&�"� J&����J����$&+����(&J�G�&,�+&+�'�I&�?�+�����  ���+%��++&++�(�&��&&J�H���'&����(K�g�J�+(�K�/�(����(K�����&J�(&J�J����+&����(K�+(�HH�������&&% K�-�+�+#���J�,�+(���?&�'&����(K�g�J�+(�K�/�(����(K�����&J�(&J�J����+(�HH��?�� �- &�&?&�K�*��J�K���J�'�(��J�K#���J�&�������%�"� �J�K��&&%&�J#�H��,�20>44�����+�(���������(� �� �+����(�,&>�$��������K�+I��(����&?&�(�(��(��+�&�(�&��-���J��+(&J����I&�H��,&J��(�(�&�I�&,�+&+S�J����+(�HH���  �-&�I��?�J&J��+����&&J���(��(�&�G� ��&�g�+I&�(���������+��&+I��+�-� �(K�H���(�&���&�>�h�&�&�+&����(K�+(�HH���&��+&J����(�&�I�&,�+&+���J�� K� �����  �-&�,���(���&J��(�(�&�I�&,�+&+�+�������(�&�H�  ���,&#�J�(&��H�-��(����J�'&����(K�g�J�+(�K�/�(����(K�-�J�&���,-&���H�(�&�$����'&����(K�'(�HH����

Page 275

Agenda Item 11
Appendix 2



� �������������	�
������������������������������������������ �!����"�  #�$�%&�'(�&&(�������)��)*���&++���,-����������./01�2.$�!& 3�40225�67891:�*�;�40225�678100�<,�� 3���,,&���� =-�����-�>��?>�%����>-�����-�>��?>�%@ ��&�+�����.��&�+����/�(�244:�A��B������������ � A�CDEF�� �

� � G��&�6��H�00�

I�(J#�(�&�(�,&���&��(�&J�+(��(&I���I�&�I&I�(�&���+��H(���I�(�&�I&(�� +��H���J�����I&�(+�(��(�(�%&�K ��&�(����� �I&�����I&�(+���&����,&,-&���H�(�&�K�- ����+��&H�+&I�&�(�J�(��(�&�K�&,�+&+>�!�&� ����+�(��-&�,�I&��?�� �- &�(��(�&�G� ��&#�(��'&����(J�L�I�+(�J�/�(����(J���+K&�(��+���I�(��/�(����+&I�MHH��&�+��H�(�&�.��&��+����/�(����(J�����&N�&+(>���/�(�,K&��K���H���!O�+J+(&,�+��  �-&���+(�  &I��(�(�&�K�&,�+&+���� ���+�����(����I�(��(�&�+�(�+H��(�����H�(�&���,-����G� ��&�.��&�+������I���,,���(J�'�H&(J�MHH��&�+���I�+��  �-&��+&I�(���&���I�I�������  �����+�(��(��� ��&�+�- &����(�?�(J�(�%&+�K ��&����(�&�K�&,�+&+>�P�&�&���!O�&N��K,&�(��+�H�((&I#��(�+��  �-&�,���(���&I�������I����%������I&����������I���&���(��(�&�,���H��(��&�+���+(���(���+>�!�&��,��&+��&���I&I�-J�(�&���!O�+J+(&,�+��  �-&��&(���&I������&I�(&I�H��,�H�����K&���I��H����(� &++�(����01�I�J+>�/(��  �(�,&+���&��(�&�K�&,�+&+��+��K&��(�&�&�+��  �-&�K�&+&�(����(�&�K�&,�+&+���,&,-&���H�+(�HH������+�(����&I����(�&��K&��(�����H�(�&���!O���+(�  &I��(�(�&�K�&,�+&+���I�I��� ��I�����H�I�(���,��&+���(�����&���I����H��,�(>�/�J��,��&+��&N���&I�H���K� ��&���?&+(���(������  �-&�+�KK �&I�(��G� ��&�MHH��&�+����I&,��I����-J�� �+&��H�-�+��&++�������&?&���+�&�� �&+(>��/I&N��(&�&;(&��� � ���(�����H�(�&�K�&,�+&+���  �-&�,���(���&I�+���+�(��-&���,K�(�- &���(��(�&��&N���&,&�(+��H�(�&���!O�+J+(&,�����K ��&>��!�&�&�+��  �-&����H���&�H���(�&�K�&,�+&+���$���+�+&�����K� ��J�H���K��+K&�(�?&���+(�,&�+�������+��  �-&�I&?& �K&I���� ���+�����(����I�(��(�&�+�(�+H��(�����H�(�&�G� ��&�.��&�+�����HH��&��H���(�&���&������&��&I>�!�&�&�+��  �-&�I�+K �J&I�(���������(�(�&�K�&,�+&+�����(��&���H��,����K��+K&�(�?&���+(�,&�+��H�(�&�+&�����K� ��J>�!�&���(��&�+��  �-&�+&���& J�H�;&I���I�?�+�- &�(��,&,-&�+��H�(�&�K�- ��>���Q��K&�+������K�++&++�����H����� ���� ���I���%������+&� &I������+&� &I����(���&��+��  �-&��  ��&I�(��&�(&���(�&�K�&,�+&+�&;�&K(�H���(�&�K��K�+&+��H�I& �?&�J>�Q��I���%�+��  �-&��&,�?&I�H��,�(�&�K�&,�+&+���������+&� &I����(���&�>���!�&� ��&��&��� I&����I@���(�&�I&+����(&I�K�&,�+&+�+�K&�?�+��������K&�+�����,���(&I�-J�(�&,�+��  ���(�?& J�K��(���K�(&���I�-&���,&,-&����H���G�-���I�� �-���(���+��&,&�H���(�&���&����(����������(�&�K�&,�+&+��+� ���(&I>�L���I&�(+��H����,&���I�I�+��I&���������������������&���(��(�&�K�&,�+&+������#����+&�����&���(��$G'�����(�&��&,K �J&&+��H�(�&�?&��&���  �-&��&���I&I�������(������I��&K��(&I�(��(�&������(�����,,�((&&���� ��&���(��(�&������(������+(�(�(���>���AR��S
��TUVWX��.��� �/�(����(J���I�G� ��&� ���+���*���(�������21���I���(� ���!O��&���I������<;(&����� ���(�����(�&�(����&���I�H��&�&;�(+�G�- ���+�H&(J���+%��++&++,&�(+�<,&��&��J� ���(����������+&��H�K��&��H�� ��&��WYV�AZV[V\WS]\�]U�AR��S
�\RS�T\
V��&̂+(���(&I�����+�(���&I��&� �(&�����(����+���&�_�+��� &?& +� ���(��&�+��&�������+&�K�  �(�������

Page 276

Agenda Item 11
Appendix 2



� �������������	�
������������������������������������������ �!����"�  #�$�%&�'(�&&(�������)��)*���&++���,-����������./01�2.$�!& 3�40225�67891:�*�;�40225�678100�<,�� 3���,,&���� =-�����-�>��?>�%����>-�����-�>��?>�%@ ��&�+�����.��&�+����/�(�244:�A��B������������ � A�CDEF�� �

� � G��&�5��H�00�

IJK�ALMIK
INMO�MP�
JN�QLKO�PLMR�JSLR��T�U&��08�����,V���&U�-W��U� (>�G��(��X$�� ���� �+&�?����V� ��W�20Y��SOOKZ�[�\�
MOQNINMO��SIIS
JKQ�SPIKL�S�JKSLNO]��̂ �IJK��N
KO�NO]�S_IJMLNÎ�����U�(���+�W&(�(��-&�&�(&�&U>�SOOKZ�̀�\�A�SO��'�-,�((&U�01>5>00���
Page 277

Agenda Item 11
Appendix 2



� �������������	�
������������������������������������������ �!����"�  #�$�%&�'(�&&(�������)��)*���&++���,-����������./01�2.$�!& 3�40225�67891:�*�;�40225�678100�<,�� 3���,,&���� =-�����-�>��?>�%����>-�����-�>��?>�%@ ��&�+�����.��&�+����/�(�244:�A��B�������������BB��C� A�DEFG�� �

� � H��&�0��I�00�

H�&,�+&+�$&(�� +���AJ�KL��LMMNO���JP�ANOQR�O�S�JN�RP�TJTOS�JNMTLT
O��UNVOW�QLA�NOPONOT
O�JN�MO�
NRAKRJT������X��C��Y������Z��������������B���S�[\]\[�
�̂��X�	�������S��������R��P������S�
�B_��S��L̀[�̀aM�K���T�����bcONO�KcO��R
OT
O�R��KRQO��RQRKOM�KcO�MLKO��d�(��ee ���- &�����R
OT�L��O�L
KRVRKRO��LUKcJNR�OM��W�KcO��R
OT
O���� ��KcO�KRQO��KcO��R
OT
O�LUKcJNR�O��KcO�
LNNWRTf�JUK�JP��R
OT�L��O�L
KRVRKRO���/�(�?�(g� !�,&+��*� ,+)h�i���+�� j��i�g�)�'��i�g�)�00344�(��42344#�j�g-&��&k���&i�(��?�&��I� ,+����� ����+�������!l�+��&&�+�h�i����'e��(����<?&�(+�� '��i�g�)�00344�(��42344�� !���+i�g�)�'�(��i�g�)�00344�(��4:344�� ���%�"� �i�g�)�00344�(��4:344�� j��i�g�)�m&i�&+i�g�)�00344�(��42344#�H��?�i����e�� #�+���%&�#�i��(+�� &k��e,&�(�I�����+(�,&���+&���;���@m�&+( ���)h�i���+�� j��i�g�)�'��i�g�)�00344�(��42344#�j�g��������+����-&����&i�I���-�;���������&+( ����&?&�(+�.�?&�j�+��)h�i���+�� j��i�g�)�'��i�g�)�00344�(��42344#�j�g��������+����-&��+&i�I��� �?&�,�+���n&���i&i�j�+��)h�i���+�� '��i�g�)�00344�(��42344�� !���+i�g�)�'�(��i�g�)�00344�(��4:344�� j��i�g�)�m&i�&+i�g�)�00344�(��42344#����%�����i�,�+���$���&)h�i���+�� ���%�"� �i�g�)�00344�(��4:344�� j��i�g�)�m&i�&+i�g�)�00344�(��42344�� !���+i�g�)�'�(��i�g�)�00344�(��4:344�� '��i�g�)�00344�(��42344�/ ���� )o��(�&�e�&,�+&+�� '��i�g�)�00344�(��42344�� j��i�g�)�m&i�&+i�g�)�00344�(��42344�� !���+i�g�)�'�(��i�g�)�00344�(��4:344�� ���%�"� �i�g�)�00344�(��4:344�

Page 278

Agenda Item 11
Appendix 2



� �������������	�
������������������������������������������ �!����"�  #�$�%&�'(�&&(�������)��)*���&++���,-����������./01�2.$�!& 3�40225�67891:�*�;�40225�678100�<,�� 3���,,&���� =-�����-�>��?>�%����>-�����-�>��?>�%@ ��&�+�����.��&�+����/�(�244:�A��B�������������BB��C� A�DEFG�� �

� � H��&�2��I�00�

�� ��JAKLMLN�OJPQ��JR�SOK�AQKTM�K���"���+��I�UV&������ W��X�Y�)�Z&X�&+X�Y�)�00344�(��42344�� !���+X�Y�)�'�(��X�Y�)�00344�(��4:344�� '��X�Y�)�00344�(��42344����[OKQK�SOK��M
KL
K�\PSOJQM�K���PAA�MK��JR�\�
JOJ��[OKSOKQ�SOK�K�\QK�JL�\L]̂JQ�JRR��PAA�MK����/ ���� )U��(�&�V�&,�+&+�� ��L\TK_�̀QKNM�SKQK]a�\]]QK���JR�OJ�]KQ�JR�AQKTM�K���M
KL
K��T���b�����S����C�c�����FF�[�����	����Q��d_�[����C_�������eM�eR������_�
�Bf��_��\gh�iP]�� ��QKNM�SKQK]�LPT�KQ�JR�OJ�]KQ_�RJQ�Kj\TA�K�
JTA\Lk�LPT�KQ_�
O\QMSk�LPT�KQ�̀[OKQK�\AA�M
\��Kl������X��Y�'m���&�'V��(+����� �� ���L\TK�JR�]K�MNL\SK]�AQKTM�K���PAKQnM�JQ�[OKQK�SOK�AQKTM�K���M
KL
K�\PSOJQM�K��SOK��PAA�k�JR�\�
JOJ����W�++�'�����.���+� ����S\SK�[OKSOKQ�\

K���SJ�SOK�AQKTM�K���k�
OM�]QKL�M��QK�SQM
SK]�JQ�AQJOM�MSK]��� ��

Page 279

Agenda Item 11
Appendix 2



This page is intentionally left blank



Simon Crompton 
Director at The Lounge Group 

5-15 Dalkeith Street 
Barrow in Furness 

 

28th August 2020 

 

Planning / Licencing Dept 
Barrow Borough Council 
Town Hall, Duke St 
Barrow in Furness 
 

To whom it may concern,  

My name is Simon Crompton, Director at The Lounge Group, and I am writing to log my 
objections / concerns to the application made by Broadway, Hollywood, Broadway and 
Manhattans, licence premises located in Cavendish Street, Barrow in Furness. 

As the owner of a licence premises in Barrow in Furness for the last 3 years I have already 
expressed in different occasions my concerns about the current closing times of different licence 
premises in Cavendish Street.  

My personal experience is most of the violent incidents and/or alcohol intoxications that 
require ambulance and/or police intervention, are taking place after 01:30 am.  

I have expressed in numerous occasions, during Bar Watch meetings, that the closing 
times should be reviewed and brought back to 2 am. This would be, in my opinion, help with the 
prevention of crime and disorder and with the prevention of public nuisance, two of the 
licencing objectives. My personal commitment with this idea is applied to my business by 
choosing, although we hold a licence to open until 4 am and a 24 hrs licence in special 
circumstances, to close at 2 am  as we feel this is the right thing to do to protect our staff, 
customer and business. As a direct result of this policy we have a history of ZERO police incidents 
within our premises or related with our premises. 

To finish, I have had different conversations with nigh time economy business 
owners/operators that have the same concerns I do and feel that this will have a significant 
negative impact in sector. With the current alcohol related problems in the area and incidents 
and disorder with the Barrow town centre area, we feel this extension of opening hours would 
not support the licencing objectives. I am happy to discuss this in person with yourself or the 
planning/licencing committee as I feel very strongly about this matter.  

 

 

Sincerely,  

Simon Crompton 

 

Page 281

Agenda Item 11
Appendix 3



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 283

Agenda Item 11
Appendix 4



Page 284

Agenda Item 11
Appendix 4



Page 285

Agenda Item 11
Appendix 4



Page 286

Agenda Item 11
Appendix 4



6 | Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 

2. The licensing objectives 

Crime and disorder 

2.1 Licensing authorities should look to the police as the main source of advice on crime 

and disorder. They should also seek to involve the local Community Safety Partnership 

(CSP). 

2.2 In the exercise of their functions, licensing authorities should seek to co-operate with the 

Security Industry Authority (“SIA”) as far as possible and consider adding relevant 

conditions to licences where appropriate. The SIA also plays an important role in 

preventing crime and disorder by ensuring that door supervisors are properly licensed 

and, in partnership with police and other agencies, that security companies are not 

being used as fronts for serious and organised criminal activity. This may include 

making specific enquiries or visiting premises through intelligence led operations in 

conjunction with the police, local authorities and other partner agencies. Similarly, the 

provision of requirements for door supervision may be appropriate to ensure that people 

who are drunk, drug dealers or people carrying firearms do not enter the premises and 

ensuring that the police are kept informed. 

2.3 Conditions should be targeted on deterrence and preventing crime and disorder 

including the prevention of illegal working in licensed premises (see paragraph 10.10). 

For example, where there is good reason to suppose that disorder may take place, the 

presence of closed-circuit television (CCTV) cameras both inside and immediately 

outside the premises can actively deter disorder, nuisance, anti-social behaviour and 

crime generally. Some licence holders may wish to have cameras on their premises for 

the prevention of crime directed against the business itself, its staff, or its customers. 

But any condition may require a broader approach, and it may be appropriate to ensure 

that the precise location of cameras is set out on plans to ensure that certain areas are 

properly covered and there is no subsequent dispute over the terms of the condition. 

2.4 The inclusion of radio links and ring-round phone systems should be considered an 

appropriate condition for public houses, bars and nightclubs operating in city and town 

centre leisure areas with a high density of licensed premises. These systems allow 

managers of licensed premises to communicate instantly with the police and facilitate a 

rapid response to any disorder which may be endangering the customers and staff on 

the premises. 

2.5 Conditions relating to the management competency of designated premises supervisors 

should not normally be attached to premises licences. It will normally be the 

responsibility of the premises licence holder as an employer, and not the licensing 

authority, to ensure that the managers appointed at the premises are competent and 

appropriately trained. The designated premises supervisor is the key person who will 

usually be responsible for the day to day management of the premises by the premises 

licence holder, including the prevention of disorder. A condition of this kind may only be 

justified as appropriate in rare circumstances where it can be demonstrated that, in the 

circumstances associated with particular premises, poor management competency 

could give rise to issues of crime and disorder and public safety. 

  

Page 287

Agenda Item 11
Appendix 5



Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 I 7 

2.6 The prevention of crime includes the prevention of immigration crime including the 

prevention of illegal working in licensed premises. Licensing authorities should work with 

Home Office Immigration Enforcement, as well as the police, in respect of these 

matters. Licence conditions that are considered appropriate for the prevention of illegal 

working in licensed premises might include requiring a premises licence holder to 

undertake right to work checks on all staff employed at the licensed premises or 

requiring that a copy of any document checked as part of a right to work check are 

retained at the licensed premises.  

Public safety 

2.7 Licence holders have a responsibility to ensure the safety of those using their premises, 

as a part of their duties under the 2003 Act. This concerns the safety of people using the 

relevant premises rather than public health which is addressed in other legislation. 

Physical safety includes the prevention of accidents and injuries and other immediate 

harms that can result from alcohol consumption such as unconsciousness or alcohol 

poisoning. Conditions relating to public safety may also promote the crime and disorder 

objective as noted above. There will of course be occasions when a public safety 

condition could incidentally benefit a person’s health more generally, but it should not be 

the purpose of the condition as this would be outside the licensing authority’s powers 

(be ultra vires) under the 2003 Act. Conditions should not be imposed on a premises 

licence or club premises certificate which relate to cleanliness or hygiene. 

2.8 A number of matters should be considered in relation to public safety. These may 

include: 

•  Fire safety; 

•  Ensuring appropriate access for emergency services such as ambulances; 

•  Good communication with local authorities and emergency services, for example 

communications networks with the police and signing up for local incident alerts (see 

paragraph 2.4 above); 

•  Ensuring the presence of trained first aiders on the premises and appropriate first aid 

kits; 

•  Ensuring the safety of people when leaving the premises (for example, through the 

provision of information on late-night transportation); 

•  Ensuring appropriate and frequent waste disposal, particularly of glass bottles; 

•  Ensuring appropriate limits on the maximum capacity of the premises (see 

paragraphs 2.12-2.13, and Chapter 10; and 

•  Considering the use of CCTV in and around the premises (as noted in paragraph 2.3 

above, this may also assist with promoting the crime and disorder objective). 

2.9 The measures that are appropriate to promote public safety will vary between premises 

and the matters listed above may not apply in all cases. As set out in Chapter 8 (8.38-

8.46), applicants should consider when making their application which steps it is 

appropriate to take to promote the public safety objective and demonstrate how they 

achieve that. 

  

Page 288

Agenda Item 11
Appendix 5



8 | Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 

Ensuring safe departure of those using the premises 

2.10 Licence holders should make provision to ensure that premises users safely leave their 

premises. Measures that may assist include: 

•  Providing information on the premises of local taxi companies who can provide safe 

transportation home; and 

•  Ensuring adequate lighting outside the premises, particularly on paths leading to and 

from the premises and in car parks. 

Maintenance and repair 

2.11 Where there is a requirement in other legislation for premises open to the public or for 

employers to possess certificates attesting to the safety or satisfactory nature of certain 

equipment or fixtures on the premises, it would be inappropriate for a licensing condition 

to require possession of such a certificate. However, it would be permissible to require 

as a condition of a licence or certificate, if appropriate, checks on this equipment to be 

conducted at specified intervals and for evidence of these checks to be retained by the 

premises licence holder or club provided this does not duplicate or gold-plate a 

requirement in other legislation. Similarly, it would be permissible for licensing 

authorities, if they receive relevant representations from responsible authorities or any 

other persons, to attach conditions which require equipment of particular standards to 

be maintained on the premises. Responsible authorities – such as health and safety 

authorities – should therefore make their expectations clear in this respect to enable 

prospective licence holders or clubs to prepare effective operating schedules and club 

operating schedules. 

Safe capacities 

2.12 “Safe capacities” should only be imposed where appropriate for the promotion of public 

safety or the prevention of disorder on the relevant premises. For example, if a capacity 

has been imposed through other legislation, it would be inappropriate to reproduce it in 

a premises licence. Indeed, it would also be wrong to lay down conditions which conflict 

with other legal requirements. However, if no safe capacity has been imposed through 

other legislation, a responsible authority may consider it appropriate for a new capacity 

to be attached to the premises which would apply at any material time when the 

licensable activities are taking place and make representations to that effect. For 

example, in certain circumstances, capacity limits may be appropriate in preventing 

disorder, as overcrowded venues can increase the risks of crowds becoming frustrated 

and hostile. 

2.13 The permitted capacity is a limit on the number of persons who may be on the premises 

at any time, following a recommendation by the relevant fire and rescue authority under 

the Regulatory Reform (Fire Safety) Order 2005. For any application for a premises 

licence or club premises certificate for premises without an existing permitted capacity 

where the applicant wishes to take advantage of the special provisions set out in section 

177 of the 2003 Act1, the applicant should conduct their own risk assessment as to the 

appropriate capacity of the premises. They should send their recommendation to the fire 

and rescue authority which will consider it and decide what the “permitted capacity” of 

                                                
1
 S 177 of the 2003 Act now only applies to performances of dance. 

Page 289

Agenda Item 11
Appendix 5



Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 I 9 

those premises should be. 

2.14 Public safety may include the safety of performers appearing at any premises, but does 

not extend to the prevention of injury from participation in a boxing or wrestling 

entertainment. 

Public nuisance 

2.15 The 2003 Act enables licensing authorities and responsible authorities, through 

representations, to consider what constitutes public nuisance and what is appropriate to 

prevent it in terms of conditions attached to specific premises licences and club 

premises certificates. It is therefore important that in considering the promotion of this 

licensing objective, licensing authorities and responsible authorities focus on the effect 

of the licensable activities at the specific premises on persons living and working 

(including those carrying on business) in the area around the premises which may be 

disproportionate and unreasonable. The issues will mainly concern noise nuisance, light 

pollution, noxious smells and litter. 

2.16 Public nuisance is given a statutory meaning in many pieces of legislation. It is however 

not narrowly defined in the 2003 Act and retains its broad common law meaning. It may 

include in appropriate circumstances the reduction of the living and working amenity and 

environment of other persons living and working in the area of the licensed premises. 

Public nuisance may also arise as a result of the adverse effects of artificial light, dust, 

odour and insects or where its effect is prejudicial to health. 

2.17 Conditions relating to noise nuisance will usually concern steps appropriate to control 

the levels of noise emanating from premises. This might be achieved by a simple 

measure such as ensuring that doors and windows are kept closed after a particular 

time, or persons are not permitted in garden areas of the premises after a certain time. 

More sophisticated measures like the installation of acoustic curtains or rubber speaker 

mounts to mitigate sound escape from the premises may be appropriate. However, 

conditions in relation to live or recorded music may not be enforceable in circumstances 

where the entertainment activity itself is not licensable (see chapter 16). Any conditions 

appropriate to promote the prevention of public nuisance should be tailored to the type, 

nature and characteristics of the specific premises and its licensable activities. Licensing 

authorities should avoid inappropriate or disproportionate measures that could deter 

events that are valuable to the community, such as live music. Noise limiters, for 

example, are expensive to purchase and install and are likely to be a considerable 

burden for smaller venues. 

2.18 As with all conditions, those relating to noise nuisance may not be appropriate in certain 

circumstances where provisions in other legislation adequately protect those living in the 

area of the premises. But as stated earlier in this Guidance, the approach of licensing 

authorities and responsible authorities should be one of prevention and when their 

powers are engaged, licensing authorities should be aware of the fact that other 

legislation may not adequately cover concerns raised in relevant representations and 

additional conditions may be appropriate. 

2.19 Where applications have given rise to representations, any appropriate conditions 

should normally focus on the most sensitive periods. For example, the most sensitive 

period for people being disturbed by unreasonably loud music is at night and into the 

Page 290

Agenda Item 11
Appendix 5



10 | Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 

early morning when residents in adjacent properties may be attempting to go to sleep or 

are sleeping. This is why there is still a need for a licence for performances of live music 

between 11 pm and 8 am. In certain circumstances, conditions relating to noise 

emanating from the premises may also be appropriate to address any disturbance 

anticipated as customers enter and leave. 

2.20 Measures to control light pollution will also require careful thought. Bright lighting 

outside premises which is considered appropriate to prevent crime and disorder may 

itself give rise to light pollution for some neighbours. Applicants, licensing authorities 

and responsible authorities will need to balance these issues. 

2.21 Beyond the immediate area surrounding the premises, these are matters for the 

personal responsibility of individuals under the law. An individual who engages in anti-

social behaviour is accountable in their own right. However, it would be perfectly 

reasonable for a licensing authority to impose a condition, following relevant 

representations, that requires the licence holder or club to place signs at the exits from 

the building encouraging patrons to be quiet until they leave the area, or that, if they 

wish to smoke, to do so at designated places on the premises instead of outside, and to 

respect the rights of people living nearby to a peaceful night. 

Protection of children from harm 

2.22 The protection of children from harm includes the protection of children from moral, 

psychological and physical harm. This includes not only protecting children from the 

harms associated directly with alcohol consumption but also wider harms such as 

exposure to strong language and sexual expletives (for example, in the context of 

exposure to certain films or adult entertainment). Licensing authorities must also 

consider the need to protect children from sexual exploitation when undertaking 

licensing functions. 

2.23 The Government believes that it is completely unacceptable to sell alcohol to children. 

Conditions relating to the access of children where alcohol is sold and which are 

appropriate to protect them from harm should be carefully considered. Moreover, 

conditions restricting the access of children to premises should be strongly considered 

in circumstances where: 

•  adult entertainment is provided; 

•  a member or members of the current management have been convicted for serving 

alcohol to minors or with a reputation for allowing underage drinking (other than in the 

context of the exemption in the 2003 Act relating to 16 and 17 year olds consuming 

beer, wine and cider when accompanied by an adult during a table meal); 

•  it is known that unaccompanied children have been allowed access; 

•  there is a known association with drug taking or dealing; or 

•  in some cases, the premises are used exclusively or primarily for the sale of alcohol 

for consumption on the premises. 

2.24 It is also possible that activities, such as adult entertainment, may take place at certain 

times on premises but not at other times. For example, premises may operate as a café 

bar during the day providing meals for families but also provide entertainment with a 

sexual content after 8.00pm. It is not possible to give an exhaustive list of what amounts 

to entertainment or services of an adult or sexual nature. Applicants, responsible 

Page 291

Agenda Item 11
Appendix 5



Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 I 11 

authorities and licensing authorities will need to consider this point carefully. This would 

broadly include topless bar staff, striptease, lap-, table- or pole-dancing, performances 

involving feigned violence or horrific incidents, feigned or actual sexual acts or fetishism, 

or entertainment involving strong and offensive language. 

2.25 Applicants must be clear in their operating schedules about the activities and times at 

which the events would take place to help determine when it is not appropriate for 

children to enter the premises. Consideration should also be given to the proximity of 

premises to schools and youth clubs so that applicants take appropriate steps to ensure 

that advertising relating to their premises, or relating to events at their premises, is not 

displayed at a time when children are likely to be near the premises. 

2.26 Licensing authorities and responsible authorities should expect applicants, when 

preparing an operating schedule or club operating schedule, to set out the steps to be 

taken to protect children from harm when on the premises. 

2.27 Conditions, where they are appropriate, should reflect the licensable activities taking 

place on the premises. In addition to the mandatory condition regarding age verification, 

other conditions relating to the protection of children from harm can include: 

•  restrictions on the hours when children may be present; 

•  restrictions or exclusions on the presence of children under certain ages when 

particular specified activities are taking place; 

•  restrictions on the parts of the premises to which children may have access; 

•  age restrictions (below 18); 

•  restrictions or exclusions when certain activities are taking place; 

•  requirements for an accompanying adult (including for example, a combination of 

requirements which provide that children under a particular age must be 

accompanied by an adult); and 

•  full exclusion of people under 18 from the premises when any licensable activities are 

taking place. 

2.28 Please see also Chapter 10 for details about the Licensing Act 2003 (Mandatory 

Licensing Conditions) Order 2010. 

2.29 Licensing authorities should give considerable weight to representations about child 

protection matters. In addition to the responsible authority whose functions relate 

directly to child protection, the Director of Public Health may also have access to 

relevant evidence to inform such representations. These representations may include, 

amongst other things, the use of health data about the harms that alcohol can cause to 

underage drinkers. Where a responsible authority, or other person, presents evidence to 

the licensing authority linking specific premises with harms to children (such as 

ambulance data or emergency department attendances by persons under 18 years old 

with alcohol- related illnesses or injuries) this evidence should be considered, and the 

licensing authority should also consider what action is appropriate to ensure this 

licensing objective is effectively enforced. In relation to applications for the grant of a 

licence in areas where evidence is presented on high levels of alcohol-related harms in 

persons aged under 18, it is recommended that the licensing authority considers what 

conditions may be appropriate to ensure that this objective is promoted effectively. 

2.30 The 2003 Act provides that, where a premises licence or club premises certificate 

Page 292

Agenda Item 11
Appendix 5



12 | Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 

authorises the exhibition of a film, it must include a condition requiring the admission of 

children to films to be restricted in accordance with recommendations given either by a 

body designated under section 4 of the Video Recordings Act 1984 specified in the 

licence (the British Board of Film Classification is currently the only body which has 

been so designated) or by the licensing authority itself. Further details are given in 

Chapter 10. 

2.31 Theatres may present a range of diverse activities and entertainment including, for 

example, variety shows incorporating adult entertainment. It is appropriate in these 

cases for a licensing authority to consider restricting the admission of children in such 

circumstances. Entertainments may also be presented at theatres specifically for 

children. It will be appropriate to consider whether a condition should be attached to a 

premises licence or club premises certificate which requires the presence of a sufficient 

number of adult staff on the premises to ensure the wellbeing of the children during any 

emergency. 

Offences relating to the sale and supply of alcohol to children 

2.32 Licensing authorities are expected to maintain close contact with the police, young 

offenders’ teams and trading standards officers (who can carry out test purchases under 

section 154 of the 2003 Act) about the extent of unlawful sales and consumption of 

alcohol by minors and to be involved in the development of any strategies to control or 

prevent these unlawful activities and to pursue prosecutions. Licensing authorities, 

alongside the police, are prosecuting authorities for the purposes of these offences, 

except for the offences under section 147A (persistently selling alcohol to children). 

Where, as a matter of policy, warnings are given to retailers prior to any decision to 

prosecute in respect of an offence, it is important that each of the enforcement arms 

should be aware of the warnings each of them has given. 

  

Page 293

Agenda Item 11
Appendix 5



This page is intentionally left blank



Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 I 49 

8. Applications for premises licences 

Relevant licensing authority 

8.1 Premises licences are issued by the licensing authority in which the premises are 

situated or, in the case of premises straddling an area boundary, the licensing authority 

where the greater part of the premises is situated. Where the premises is located 

equally in two or more areas, the applicant may choose but, in these rare cases, it is 

important that each of the licensing authorities involved maintain close contact. 

8.2 Section 13 of the 2003 Act defines the parties holding important roles in the context of 

applications, inspection, monitoring and reviews of premises licences. 

Authorised persons 

8.3 The first group –“authorised persons”– are bodies empowered by the 2003 Act to carry 

out inspection and enforcement roles. The police and immigration officers are not 

included because they are separately empowered by the 2003 Act to carry out their 

duties. 

8.4 For all premises, the authorised persons include: 

•  officers of the licensing authority; 

•  fire inspectors; 

•  inspectors with responsibility in the licensing authority’s area for the enforcement of 

the Health and Safety at Work etc Act 1974;  

•  officers of the local authority exercising environmental health functions 

8.5 Local authority officers will most commonly have responsibility for the enforcement of 

health and safety legislation, but the Health and Safety Executive is responsible for 

certain premises. In relation to vessels, authorised persons also include an inspector or 

a surveyor of ships appointed under section 256 of the Merchant Shipping Act 1995. 

These would normally be officers acting on behalf of the Maritime and Coastguard 

Agency. The Secretary of State may prescribe other authorised persons by means of 

regulations, but has not currently prescribed any additional bodies. If any are 

prescribed, details will be made available on the GOV.UK website. 

8.6 Where an immigration officer has reason to believe that any premises are being used 

for a licensable activity, the officer may enter the premises with a view to seeing 

whether an offence under any of the Immigration Acts is being committed in connection 

with the licensable activity.  

Responsible authorities 

8.7 The second group –“responsible authorities”– are public bodies that must be fully 

notified of applications and that are entitled to make representations to the licensing 

authority in relation to the application for the grant, variation or review of a premises 

licence. These representations must still be considered ‘relevant’ by the licensing 

authority and relate to one or more of the licensing objectives. For all premises, 

responsible authorities include: 

•  the relevant licensing authority and any other licensing authority in whose area part of 

Page 295

Agenda Item 11
Appendix 6



50 | Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 

the premises is situated; 

•  the chief officer of police; 

•  the local fire and rescue authority; 

•  the relevant enforcing authority under the Health and Safety at Work etc Act 1974; 

•  the local authority with responsibility for environmental health; 

•  the local planning authority; 

•  a body that represents those who are responsible for, or interested in, matters 

relating to the protection of children from harm; 

•  each local authority’s Director of Public Health (DPH) in England4 and Local Health 

Boards (in Wales);  

•  the local weights and measures authority (trading standards); and 

•   Home Office Immigration Enforcement (on behalf of the Secretary of State). 

8.8 The licensing authority should indicate in its statement of licensing policy which body it 

recognises to be competent to advise it on the protection of children from harm. This 

may be the local authority social services department, the Local Safeguarding Children 

Board or another competent body. This is important as applications for premises 

licences have to be copied to the responsible authorities in order for them to make any 

representations they think are relevant. 

8.9 In relation to a vessel, responsible authorities also include navigation authorities within 

the meaning of section 221(1) of the Water Resources Act 1991 that have statutory 

functions in relation to the waters where the vessel is usually moored or berthed, or any 

waters where it is proposed to be navigated when being used for licensable activities; 

the Environment Agency; the Canal and River Trust; and the Secretary of State (who in 

practice acts through the Maritime and Coastguard Agency (MCA)). In practice, the 

Environment Agency and the Canal and River Trust only have responsibility in relation 

to vessels on waters for which they are the navigation statutory authority. 

8.10 The MCA is the lead responsible authority for public safety, including fire safety, 

affecting passenger ships (those carrying more than 12 passengers) wherever they 

operate and small commercial vessels (carrying no more than 12 passengers) which go 

to sea. The safety regime for passenger ships is enforced under the Merchant Shipping 

Acts by the MCA which operates certification schemes for these vessels. Fire and 

rescue authorities, the Health and Safety Executive and local authority health and safety 

inspectors should normally be able to make “nil” returns in relation to such vessels and 

rely on the MCA to make any appropriate representations in respect of this licensing 

objective. 

8.11 Merchant Shipping legislation does not, however, apply to permanently moored vessels. 

So, for example, restaurant ships moored on the Thames Embankment, with permanent 

shore connections should be considered by the other responsible authorities concerned 

with public safety, including fire safety. Vessels carrying no more than 12 passengers 

which do not go to sea are not subject to MCA survey and certification, but may be 

licensed by the local port or navigation authority. 

                                                
4
 This change was made as a result of the commencement of measures in the Health and Social Care Act 2012 which amended 

the 2003 Act and further provision in the NHS Bodies and Local Authorities (Partnership Arrangements, Care Trusts, Public 
Health and Local Healthwatch) Regulations 2012. 

Page 296

Agenda Item 11
Appendix 6



Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 I 51 

8.12 The Secretary of State may prescribe other responsible authorities by means of 

regulations. Any such regulations are published on the Government’s legislation 

website: www.legislation.gov.uk. 

Other persons 

8.13 As well as responsible authorities, any other person can play a role in a number of 

licensing processes under the 2003 Act. This includes any individual, body or business 

entitled to make representations to licensing authorities in relation to applications for the 

grant, variation, minor variation or review of premises licences and club premises 

certificates, regardless of their geographic proximity to the premises. In addition, these 

persons may themselves seek a review of a premises licence. Any representations 

made by these persons must be ‘relevant’, in that the representation relates to one or 

more of the licensing objectives. It must also not be considered by the licensing 

authority to be frivolous or vexatious. In the case of applications for reviews, there is an 

additional requirement that the grounds for the review should not be considered by the 

licensing authority to be repetitious. Chapter 9 of this guidance (paragraphs 9.4 to 9.10) 

provides more detail on the definition of relevant, frivolous and vexatious 

representations. 

8.14 While any of these persons may act in their own right, they may also request that a 

representative makes the representation to the licensing authority on their behalf. A 

representative may include a legal representative, a friend, a Member of Parliament, a 

Member of the Welsh Government, or a local ward or parish councillor who can all act in 

such a capacity. 

Who can apply for a premises licence? 

8.15 Any person (if an individual aged 18 or over) who is carrying on or who proposes to 

carry on a business which involves the use of premises (any place including one in the 

open air) for licensable activities may apply for a premises licence either on a 

permanent basis or for a time-limited period. 

8.16 “A person” in this context includes, for example, a business or a partnership. Licensing 

authorities should not require the nomination of an individual to hold the licence or 

determine the identity of the most appropriate person to hold the licence. 

8.17 In considering joint applications (which is likely to be a rare occurrence), it must be 

stressed that under section 16(1)(a) of the 2003 Act each applicant must be carrying on 

a business which involves the use of the premises for licensable activities. In the case of 

public houses, this would be easier for a tenant to demonstrate than for a pub owning 

company that is not itself carrying on licensable activities. Where licences are to be held 

by businesses, it is desirable that this should be a single business to avoid any lack of 

clarity in accountability. 

8.18 A public house may be owned, or a tenancy held, jointly by a husband and wife, civil 

partners or other partnerships of a similar nature, and both may be actively involved in 

carrying on the licensable activities. In these cases, it is entirely possible for the 

husband and wife or the partners to apply jointly as applicant for the premises licence, 

even if they are not formally partners in business terms. This is unlikely to lead to the 

same issues of clouded accountability that could arise where two separate businesses 

Page 297

Agenda Item 11
Appendix 6



52 | Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 

apply jointly for the licence. If the application is granted, the premises licence would 

identify the holder as comprising both names and any subsequent applications, for 

example for a variation of the licence, would need to be made jointly. 

8.19 A wide range of other individuals and bodies set out in section 16 of the 2003 Act may 

apply for premises licences. They include, for example, Government Departments, local 

authorities, hospitals, schools, charities or police forces. In addition to the bodies listed 

in section 16, the Secretary of State may prescribe by regulations other bodies that may 

apply and any such regulations are published on the Government’s legislation website. 

There is nothing in the 2003 Act which prevents an application being made for a 

premises licence at premises where a premises licence is already held. 

Application forms 

8.20 The Provision of Services Regulations 2009 require local authorities to ensure that all 

procedures relating to access to, or the exercise of, a service activity may be easily 

completed, at a distance and by electronic means. Electronic application facilities for 

premises licences may be found either on GOV.UK or the licensing authority’s own 

website. It remains acceptable to make an application in writing. 

Electronic applications 

8.21 Applicants may apply using the licence application forms available on GOV.UK, or will 

be re-directed from GOV.UK to the licensing authority’s own electronic facility if one is 

available. Applicants may also apply directly to the licensing authority’s facility without 

going through GOV.UK. 

Electronic applications using forms on gov.uk 

8.22 GOV.UK will send a notification to the licensing authority when a completed application 

form is available for it to download from GOV.UK. This is the day that the application is 

taken to be ‘given’ to the licensing authority, even if it is downloaded at a later stage, 

and the application must be advertised from the day after that day (as for a written 

application). The licensing authority must acknowledge the application as quickly as 

possible, specifying the statutory time period and giving details of the appeal procedure. 

8.23 The period of 28 consecutive days during which the application must be advertised on a 

notice outside the premises is, effectively, the statutory timescale by which the 

application must be determined (unless representations are made). This will be 

published on GOV.UK and must also be published on the licensing authority’s own 

electronic facility if one exists. If no representations are made during this period, the 

licensing authority must notify the applicant as quickly as possible that the licence has 

been granted. The licensing authority must send the licence to the applicant as soon as 

possible after this, but the applicant may start the licensed activity as soon as they have 

been notified that the application is granted (subject to compliance with the conditions of 

the licence). The licence may be supplied in electronic or written format as long as the 

applicant is aware which document constitutes ‘the licence’. If representations are 

made, the guidance in Chapter 9 applies. 

Requirement to copy application to responsible authorities 

8.24 The licensing authority must copy electronic applications, made via GOV.UK or its own 

facility, to responsible authorities no later than the first working day after the application 

Page 298

Agenda Item 11
Appendix 6



Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 I 53 

is given. However, if an applicant submits any part of their application in writing, the 

applicant will remain responsible for copying it to responsible authorities. 

Applications via the local authority electronic application facility 

8.25 Where applications are made on the licensing authority’s own electronic facility, the 

application will be taken to be ‘given’ when the applicant has submitted a complete 

application form and paid the fee. The application is given at the point at which it 

becomes accessible to the authority by means of the facility. The licensing authority 

must acknowledge the application as quickly as possible, specifying the statutory time 

period and giving details of the appeal procedure. 

‘Holding’ and ‘deferring’ electronic applications 

8.26 The Government recommends (as for written applications) that electronic applications 

should not be returned if they contain obvious and minor errors such as typing mistakes, 

or small errors that can be rectified with information already in the authority’s 

possession. However, if this is not the case and required information is missing or 

incorrect, the licensing authority may ‘hold’ the application until the applicant has 

supplied all the required information. This effectively resets the 28 day period for 

determining an application and may be done any number of times until the application 

form is complete. Licensing authorities must ensure that they notify the applicant as 

quickly as possible of any missing (or incorrect) information, and explain how this will 

affect the statutory timescale and advertising requirements. 

8.27 If an application has been given at the weekend, the notice advertising the application 

(where applicable) may already be displayed outside the premises by the time that the 

licensing authority downloads the application. It is therefore recommended that, if a 

licensing authority holds an application, it should inform the applicant that the original (or 

if necessary, amended) notice must be displayed until the end of the revised period. The 

licensing authority should also advise the applicant that they should not advertise the 

application in a local newspaper until they have received confirmation from the licensing 

authority that the application includes all the required information. To ensure clarity for 

applicants, the Government recommends that licensing authorities include similar 

advice on their electronic application facilities (where these exist) to ensure that 

applicants do not incur any unnecessary costs. 

8.28 If an applicant persistently fails to supply the required information, the licensing authority 

may refuse the application and the applicant must submit a new application. 

8.29 Licensing authorities may also ‘defer’ electronic applications once if the application is 

particularly complicated, for example if representations are received and a hearing is 

required. This allows the licensing authority to extend the statutory time period for the 

determination of the application by such time as is necessary, including, if required, 

arranging and holding a hearing. Licensing authorities must ensure that applicants are 

informed as quickly as possible of a decision to defer, and the reasons for the deferral, 

before the original 28 days has expired. 

Written applications 

8.30 A written application for a premises licence must be made in the prescribed form to the 

relevant licensing authority and be copied to each of the appropriate responsible 

authorities. For example, it would not be appropriate to send an application for premises 

Page 299

Agenda Item 11
Appendix 6



54 | Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 

which was not a vessel to the Maritime and Coastguard Agency. The application must 

be accompanied by: 

•  the required fee (details of fees may be viewed on the GOV.UK website); 

•  an operating schedule (see below); 

•  a plan of the premises in a prescribed form; and 

•  if the application involves the supply of alcohol, a form of consent from the individual 

who is to be specified in the licence as the designated premises supervisor (DPS). 

8.31 If the application is being made by an individual it should be accompanied by acceptable 

evidence of entitlement to work in the UK (this includes where the application is 

submitted electronically), as set out in the application form (see paragraph 4.8). 

8.32 If the application is being made in respect of a community premises, it may be 

accompanied by the form of application to apply the alternative licence condition. 

8.33 Guidance on completing premises licence, club premises certificate and minor variation 

forms can be found on the GOV.UK website. The Licensing Act 2003 (Premises 

licences and club premises certificates) Regulations 2005 contain provision about the 

prescribed form of applications, operating schedules and plans and are published on the 

legislation.gov.uk website. 

Plans 

8.34 Plans, for written and electronic applications, will not be required to be submitted in any 

particular scale, but they must be in a format which is “clear and legible in all material 

respects”, i.e. they must be accessible and provides sufficient detail for the licensing 

authority to be able to determine the application, including the relative size of any 

features relevant to the application. There is no requirement for plans to be 

professionally drawn as long as they clearly show all the prescribed information. 

Beer gardens or other outdoor spaces 

8.35 Applicants will want to consider whether they might want to use a garden or other 

outdoor space as a location from which alcohol will be consumed. The sale of alcohol is 

to be treated as taking place where the alcohol is appropriated to the contract. In 

scenarios where drink orders are taken by a member of staff in the garden or outdoor 

space and the member of staff then collects the drinks from the licensed premises and 

returns to deliver them to the customer this would be treated as an off-sale and any 

conditions that relate to off-sales would apply. 

8.36 In such cases it will be not necessary to include the garden or other outdoor space on 

the plan as part of the area covered by the premises licence. However, it will be 

necessary for the applicant to include the garden or other outdoor space on the plan as 

part of the area covered by the premises licence if the intention is to provide a service 

whereby drinks are available for sale and consumption directly from that area (i.e. the 

provision of on-sales). This would apply in the case of an outdoor bar or a service 

whereby a member of staff who is in the garden or outdoor space carries with them 

drinks that are available for sale (without the need for the staff member to return to the 

licensed premises to collect them). 

8.37 If the beer garden or other outdoor area is to be used for the consumption of off-sales 

only, there is no requirement to show it on the plan of the premises, but the prescribed 

Page 300

Agenda Item 11
Appendix 6



Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 I 55 

application form requires the applicant to provide a description of where the place is and 

its proximity to the premises. 

Entitlement to work in the UK 

8.38 Individuals applying for a premises licence for the sale of alcohol or late night 

refreshment must be entitled to work in the UK. From 6 April 2017 licensing authorities 

must be satisfied that an individual who applies for a premises licence is entitled to work 

in the UK. This includes applications made by more than one individual applicant. An 

application made by an individual without the entitlement to work in the UK must be 

rejected. This applies to applications which include the sale of alcohol and the 

provisions of late night refreshment, but does not include applications which apply to 

regulated entertainment only. For example, a person applying for a licence for a music 

venue who does not intend to sell alcohol or late night refreshment is not prohibited from 

applying for a licence on grounds of immigration status. However, they will commit a 

criminal offence if they work illegally.   

8.39 The documents which may be relied on in support of an application demonstrating an 

entitlement to work in the UK are the same as for personal licence applicants see 

paragraph 4.8. Where there is sufficient evidence that the applicant is not resident in the 

UK there is no requirement that the applicant has an entitlement to work in the UK. 

8.40 Where an applicant’s permission to work in the UK is time-limited the licensing authority 

may issue a premises licence for an indefinite period, but the licence will become invalid 

when the immigration permission expires. The individual’s entitlement to work in the UK 

may be extended or made permanent by the Home Office, and granting the licence for 

an indefinite period prevents the licensee from having to re-apply for a new licence.  In 

the event that the Home Office cuts short or ends a person’s immigration permission 

(referred to a curtailment or revocation), any licence issued on or after 6 April 2017 

which authorises the sale of alcohol or provision of late night refreshment will 

automatically lapse. As with personal licences, the licensing authority is under no duty to 

carry out on going immigration checks to see whether a licence holder’s permission to 

be in the UK has been brought to an end. For further details on entitlement to work see 

paragraphs 4.8 to 4.18.    

Steps to promote the licensing objectives 

8.41 In completing an operating schedule, applicants are expected to have regard to the 

statement of licensing policy for their area. They must also be aware of the expectations 

of the licensing authority and the responsible authorities as to the steps that are 

appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives, and to demonstrate knowledge 

of their local area when describing the steps they propose to take to promote the 

licensing objectives. Licensing authorities and responsible authorities are expected to 

publish information about what is meant by the promotion of the licensing objectives and 

to ensure that applicants can readily access advice about these matters. However, 

applicants are also expected to undertake their own enquiries about the area in which 

the premises are situated to inform the content of the application. 

8.42 Applicants are, in particular, expected to obtain sufficient information to enable them to 

demonstrate, when setting out the steps they propose to take to promote the licensing 

objectives, that they understand: 

Page 301

Agenda Item 11
Appendix 6



56 | Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 

•  the layout of the local area and physical environment including crime and disorder 

hotspots, proximity to residential premises and proximity to areas where children may 

congregate; 

•  any risk posed to the local area by the applicants’ proposed licensable activities; and 

•  any local initiatives (for example, local crime reduction initiatives or voluntary 

schemes including local taxi-marshalling schemes, street pastors and other 

schemes) which may help to mitigate potential risks. 

8.43 Applicants are expected to include positive proposals in their application on how they 

will manage any potential risks. Where specific policies apply in the area (for example, a 

cumulative impact policy), applicants are also expected to demonstrate an 

understanding of how the policy impacts on their application; any measures they will 

take to mitigate the impact; and why they consider the application should be an 

exception to the policy. 

8.44 It is expected that enquiries about the locality will assist applicants when determining 

the steps that are appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives. For example, 

premises with close proximity to residential premises should consider what effect this 

will have on their smoking, noise management and dispersal policies to ensure the 

promotion of the public nuisance objective. Applicants must consider all factors which 

may be relevant to the promotion of the licensing objectives, and where there are no 

known concerns, acknowledge this in their application. 

8.45 The majority of information which applicants will require should be available in the 

licensing policy statement in the area. Other publicly available sources which may be of 

use to applicants include: 

•  the Crime Mapping website; 

•  Neighbourhood Statistics websites; 

•  websites or publications by local responsible authorities; 

•  websites or publications by local voluntary schemes and initiatives; and 

•  on-line mapping tools. 

8.46 While applicants are not required to seek the views of responsible authorities before 

formally submitting their application, they may find them to be a useful source of expert 

advice on local issues that should be taken into consideration when making an 

application. Licensing authorities may wish to encourage co-operation between 

applicants, responsible authorities and, where relevant, local residents and businesses 

before applications are submitted in order to minimise the scope for disputes to arise. 

8.47 Applicants are expected to provide licensing authorities with sufficient information in this 

section to determine the extent to which their proposed steps are appropriate to 

promote the licensing objectives in the local area. Applications must not be based on 

providing a set of standard conditions to promote the licensing objectives and applicants 

are expected to make it clear why the steps they are proposing are appropriate for the 

premises. 

8.48 All parties are expected to work together in partnership to ensure that the licensing 

objectives are promoted collectively. Where there are no disputes, the steps that 

applicants propose to take to promote the licensing objectives, as set out in the 

operating schedule, will very often translate directly into conditions that will be attached 

Page 302

Agenda Item 11
Appendix 6



Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 I 57 

to premises licences with the minimum of fuss. 

8.49 For some premises, it is possible that no measures will be appropriate to promote one 

or more of the licensing objectives, for example, because they are adequately covered 

by other existing legislation. It is however important that all operating schedules should 

be precise and clear about the measures that are proposed to promote each of the 

licensing objectives. 

Variations 

Introduction 

8.50 Where a premises licence holder wishes to amend the licence, the 2003 Act in most 

cases permits an application to vary to be made rather than requiring an application for 

a new premises licence. The process to be followed will depend on the nature of the 

variation and its potential impact on the licensing objectives. Applications to vary can be 

made electronically via GOV.UK or by means of the licensing authority’s own electronic 

facility following the procedures set out in Chapter 8 above. 

Simplified processes 

8.51 There are simplified processes for making applications, or notifying changes, in the 

following cases: 

•  a change of the name or address of someone named in the licence (section 33); 

•  an application to vary the licence to specify a new individual as the designated 

premises supervisor (DPS) (section 37); 

•  a request to be removed as the designated premises supervisor (section 41); 

•  an application by a licence holder in relation to community premises authorised to sell 

alcohol to remove the usual mandatory conditions set out in sections 19(2) and 19(3) 

of the 2003 Act concerning the supervision of alcohol sales by a personal licence 

holder and the need for a DPS who holds a personal licence (sections 25A and 41D); 

and 

•  an application for minor variation of a premises licence (sections 41A to 41C) or club 

premises certificate (sections 86A to 86C). 

8.52 If an application to specify a new DPS or to remove the mandatory conditions 

concerning the supervision of alcohol sales is made electronically via GOV.UK or the 

licensing authority’s own electronic facility, the authority must notify the police no later 

than the first working day after the application is given. 

8.53 Where a simplified process requires the applicant (if they are not also the personal 

licence holder) to copy the application to the licence holder for information, this will 

apply regardless of whether the application is made in writing or electronically. 

Otherwise the general guidance set out above (paragraphs 8.21 to 8.28) on electronic 

applications applies. 

Minor variations process 

8.54 Variations to premises licences or club premises certificates that could not impact 

adversely on the licensing objectives are subject to a simplified ‘minor variations’ 

process. Under this process, the applicant is not required to advertise the variation in a 

newspaper or circular, or copy it to responsible authorities. However, they must display 

Page 303

Agenda Item 11
Appendix 6



58 | Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 

it on a white notice (to distinguish it from the blue notice used for full variations and new 

applications). The notice must comply with the requirements set out in regulation 26A of 

the Licensing Act 2003 (Premises licences and club premises certificates) Regulations 

2005. In accordance with those regulations, the notice must be displayed for a period of 

ten working days starting on the working day after the minor variation application was 

given to the licensing authority. 

8.55 On receipt of an application for a minor variation, the licensing authority must consider 

whether the variation could impact adversely on the licensing objectives. It is recommended 

that decisions on minor variations should be delegated to licensing officers. 

8.56 In considering the application, the licensing authority must consult relevant responsible 

authorities (whether the application is made in writing or electronically) if there is any 

doubt about the impact of the variation on the licensing objectives and they need 

specialist advice, and take their views into account in reaching a decision. The 

application is unlikely to be relevant to all responsible authorities.  

8.57 The licensing authority must also consider any relevant representations received from 

other persons within the time limit referred to below. As stated earlier in this Guidance, 

representations are only relevant if they clearly relate to the likely effect of the grant of 

the variation on the promotion of at least one of the licensing objectives; representations 

must be confined to the subject matter of the variation. In the case of minor variations, 

there is no right to a hearing (as for a full variation or new application), but licensing 

authorities must take any representations into account in arriving at a decision. 

8.58 Other persons have ten working days from the ‘initial day’, that is to say, the day after 

the application is received by the licensing authority, to submit representations. The 

licensing authority must therefore wait until this period has elapsed before determining 

the application, but must do so at the latest within 15 working days, beginning on the 

first working day after the authority received the application, with effect either that the 

minor variation is granted or the application is refused. 

8.59 If the licensing authority fails to respond to the applicant within 15 working days (see 

section 193 of the 2003 Act for the definition of working day), the application will be 

treated as refused and the authority must return the fee to the applicant forthwith. 

However, the licensing authority and the applicant may agree instead that the 

undetermined application should be treated as a new application and that the fee 

originally submitted will be treated as a fee for the new application. 

8.60 Where an application is refused and is then re-submitted through the full variation 

process, the full 28 day notification period will apply from the date the new application is 

received and applicants should advertise the application and copy it to all responsible 

authorities (in accordance with the regulations applicable to full variations). 

8.61 Minor variations will generally fall into four categories: minor changes to the structure or 

layout of premises; small adjustments to licensing hours; the removal of out of date, 

irrelevant or unenforceable conditions or addition of volunteered conditions; and the 

addition of certain licensable activities. In all cases the overall test is whether the 

proposed variation could impact adversely on any of the four licensing objectives. 

Changes to structure/layout 

8.62 Many small variations to layout will have no adverse impact on the licensing objectives. 

Page 304

Agenda Item 11
Appendix 6



Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 I 59 

However, changes to layout should be referred to the full variation process if they could 

potentially have an adverse impact on the promotion of the licensing objectives, for 

example by: 

•  increasing the capacity for drinking on the premises; 

•  affecting access between the public part of the premises and the rest of the premises 

or the street or public way, for instance, block emergency exits or routes to 

emergency exits; or 

•  impeding the effective operation of a noise reduction measure such as an acoustic 

lobby. 

8.63 Licensing authorities will also need to consider the combined effect of a series of 

applications for successive small layout changes (for example, as part of a rolling 

refurbishment of premises) which in themselves may not be significant, but which 

cumulatively may impact adversely on the licensing objectives. This emphasises the 

importance of having an up-to-date copy of the premises plan available. 

8.64 An application to remove a licensable activity should normally be approved as a minor 

variation. Variations to add the sale by retail or supply of alcohol to a licence are 

excluded from the minor variations process and must be treated as full variations in all 

cases. 

8.65 For other licensable activities, licensing authorities will need to consider each 

application on a case by case basis and in light of any licence conditions put forward by 

the applicant. 

Licensing hours 

8.66 Variations to the following are excluded from the minor variations process and must be 

treated as full variations in all cases: 

•  to extend licensing hours for the sale or supply of alcohol for consumption on or off 

the premises between the hours of 23.00 and 07.00; or 

•  to increase the amount of time on any day during which alcohol may be sold or 

supplied for consumption on or off the premises. 

8.67 Applications to reduce licensing hours for the sale or supply of alcohol or, in some 

cases, to move (without increasing) the licensed hours between 07.00 and 23.00 will 

normally be processed as minor variations. 

8.68 Applications to vary the time during which other licensable activities take place should 

be considered on a case-by-case basis with reference to the likely impact on the 

licensing objectives. 

Licensing conditions  

a) Imposed conditions 

8.69 Licensing authorities cannot impose their own conditions on the licence through the 

minor variations process. If the licensing officer considers that the proposed variation 

would impact adversely on the licensing objectives unless conditions are imposed, they 

should refuse it. 

Page 305

Agenda Item 11
Appendix 6



60 | Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 

b) Volunteered conditions 

8.70 Applicants may volunteer conditions as part of the minor variation process. These 

conditions may arise from their own risk assessment of the variation, or from informal 

discussions with responsible authorities or the licensing authority. 

8.71 For instance, there may be circumstances when the licence holder and a responsible 

authority such as the police or environmental health authority, agree that a new condition 

should be added to the licence (for example, that a nightclub adds the provision of late 

night refreshment to its licence to ensure a longer period of dispersal). Such a change 

would not normally impact adversely on the licensing objectives and could be expected to 

promote them by preventing crime and disorder or public nuisance. In these 

circumstances, the minor variation process may provide a less costly and onerous means 

of amending the licence than a review, with no risk to the licensing objectives. However, 

this route should only be used where the agreed variations are minor and the licence 

holder and the responsible authority have come to a genuine agreement. The licensing 

authority should be alive to any attempts to pressure licence or certificate holders into 

agreeing to new conditions where there is no evidence of a problem at the premises and, 

if there is any doubt, should discuss this with the relevant parties. 

c) Amending or removing existing conditions 

8.72 However, there may be some circumstances when the minor variation process is 

appropriate. Premises may change over time and the circumstances that originally led 

to the condition being attached or volunteered may no longer apply. For example, there 

may be no need for door supervision if a bar has been converted into a restaurant. 

Equally some embedded conditions may no longer apply.  

8.73 Changes in legislation may invalidate certain conditions. Although the conditions do not 

have to be removed from the licence, licence holders and licensing authorities may 

agree that this is desirable to clarify the licence holder’s legal obligations. There may 

also be cases where it is appropriate to revise the wording of a condition that is unclear 

or unenforceable. This would be acceptable as a minor variation as long as the purpose 

of the condition and its intended effect remain unchanged. Such a change could be 

expected to promote the licensing objectives by making it easier for the licence holder to 

understand and comply with the condition and easier for the licensing authority to 

enforce it. 

Full variations process 

8.74 Any other changes to the licence or certificate require an application to vary under 

sections 34 or 84 of the 2003 Act. 

8.75 Licensing authorities may wish to consider whether there is any likely impact on the 

promotion of the licensing objectives in deciding whether there is a need for an 

application to vary in relation to features which are not required to be shown on the plan 

under section 17 of the 2003 Act, but have nevertheless been included, for example, 

moveable furniture (altering the position of tables and chairs) or beer gardens 

(installation of a smoking shelter that will not affect the use of exits or escape routes). 

8.76 However, it should be noted that a section 34 application cannot be used to vary a 

licence so as to: 

Page 306

Agenda Item 11
Appendix 6



Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 I 61 

•  extend a time limited licence; 

•  transfer the licence from one holder to another; or 

•  transfer the licence from one premises to another. 

8.77 If an applicant wishes to make these types of changes to the premises licence, the 

applicant should make a new premises licence application under section 17 of the 2003 

Act; or, to transfer the licence to another holder, an application under section 42 of the 

2003 Act. 

Relaxation of opening hours for local, national and international 
occasions 

8.78 It should normally be possible for applicants for premises licences and club premises 

certificates to anticipate special occasions which occur regularly each year – such as 

bank holidays and St. George’s or St. Patrick’s Day – and to include appropriate 

opening hours in their operating schedules. Similarly, temporary event notices should be 

sufficient to cover other events which take place at premises that do not have a 

premises licence or club certificate. 

8.79 However, exceptional events of local, national or international significance may arise 

which could not have been anticipated when the application was first made. In these 

circumstances, the Secretary of State may make a licensing hours order to allow 

premises to open for specified, generally extended, hours on these special occasions. 

This avoids the need for large numbers of applications to vary premises licences and 

club premises certificates. Typical events might include a one-off local festival or a 

Royal Jubilee. 

Advertising applications 

8.80  The requirements governing the advertisement of applications for the grant, variation or 

review of premises licences and club premises certificates are contained in Regulations 

25 and 26 of the Licensing Act 2003 (Premises licences and club premises certificates) 

Regulations 2005 which are published on the Government’s legislation website. 

8.80 Applicants are required to: 

•  publish a notice in a local newspaper or, if there is none, in a local newsletter, circular 

or similar document circulating in the area in which the premises are situated; and 

•  display a brief summary of the application on an A4 (or larger) size notice, on pale 

blue paper in a prominent position immediately on or outside the premises for at least 

28 consecutive days (starting on the day after the day on which the application was 

given to the relevant licensing authority). The notice must be printed legibly in black 

ink or typed in black in size 16 font or larger. 

•  ensure that the above notices contain the name of the applicant, postal addresses of 

the premises (or if there is no postal address a description of the premises sufficient 

to enable the location to be identified), relevant licensing authority and the date by 

which any representations in relation to the application need to be made to the 

licensing authority. They should also contain a statement of the relevant licensable 

activities or relevant qualifying club activities that it is proposed will be carried on at 

the premises, or in the case of an application to vary a premises licence or a club 

premises certificate the notices shall briefly describe the proposed variation. 

Page 307

Agenda Item 11
Appendix 6



62 | Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 

8.81 It is the responsibility of the applicant for putting the notice up, however licensing 

authorities should consider where the signs should be placed and advise the applicant 

where appropriate, to ensure people will see them, in particular if an application is likely 

to be of interest to the public. As prescribed in regulations, licensing authorities must 

also place a notice on their website outlining key details of the application as set out in 

regulations, including: 

•  the name of the applicant or club; 

•  the postal address of the premises or club premises; 

•  the postal address and, where applicable, the internet address where the relevant 

licensing authority’s register is kept and where and when the record of the application 

may be inspected; 

•  the date by which representations from responsible authorities or other persons 

should be received and how these representations should be made; and 

•  that it is an offence knowingly or recklessly to make a false statement in connection 

with an application and the maximum fine for which a person is liable on summary 

conviction for the offence. 

8.82 The summary of the application should set out matters such as the proposed licensable 

activities and the proposed hours of opening and should be clearly displayed for the 

period during which representations may be made, together with information about 

where the details of the application may be viewed. 

8.83 Licensing authorities in Wales should consider encouraging applicants to provide details 

in the alternative language (Welsh or English) to that of the main advertisement itself 

where the application may be viewed. Therefore, if an applicant publishes a notice in 

English they should be encouraged to provide a statement in Welsh as to where the 

application may be viewed, and vice versa. This would allow the reader of the notice to 

make enquiries to the licensing authority and find out the nature of the application. 

8.84 Licensing authorities in Wales are also required to publish key information from licence 

applications in Welsh on their websites. 

8.85 In the case of applications for premises licences involving internet or mail order sales, 

notices should be conspicuously displayed at the place where the alcohol is 

appropriated to the contract. 

8.86 A vessel which is not permanently moored or berthed is treated as if it were a premises 

situated in a place where it is usually moored or berthed. The newspaper advertisement 

notice for such a vessel would need to be in relation to this place (where it is usually 

moored or berthed) and there is no provision requiring such advertising in other areas, 

for instance, if the vessel journeys through other licensing authority areas. 

8.87 Arrangements should be put in place by the licensing authority for other parties to view 

a record of the application in the licensing register as described in Schedule 3 to the 

2003 Act. Charges made for copies of the register should not exceed the cost of 

preparing such copies. Licensing authorities may wish to conduct random and 

unannounced visits to premises to confirm that notices have been clearly displayed and 

include relevant and accurate information. 

Page 308

Agenda Item 11
Appendix 6



Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 I 63 

Applications to change the designated premises supervisors 

8.88 Chapter 4 covers designated premises supervisors and applications to vary a premises 

licence covering sales of alcohol by specifying a new designated premises supervisor. 

Chapter 4 covers applications by community premises to disapply the usual mandatory 

conditions in sections 19(2) and 19(3) of the 2003 Act concerning the authorisation of 

alcohol sales by a personal licence holder and the need for a designated premises 

supervisor who holds a personal licence. 

Provisional statements 

8.89 Where premises are being or are about to be constructed, extended or otherwise 

altered for the purpose of being used for one or more licensable activities, investors may 

be unwilling to commit funds unless they have some assurance that a premises licence 

covering the desired licensable activities would be granted for the premises when the 

building work is completed. 

8.90 The 2003 Act does not define the words “otherwise altered”, but the alteration must 

relate to the purpose of being used for one or more licensable activities. 

8.91 Any person falling within section 16 of the 2003 Act can apply for a premises licence 

before new premises are constructed, extended or changed. This would be possible 

where clear plans of the proposed structure exist and the applicant is in a position to 

complete an operating schedule including details of: 

•  the activities to take place there; 

•  the time at which such activities will take place; 

•  the proposed hours of opening; 

•  where the applicant wishes the licence to have effect for a limited period, that period; 

•  the steps to be taken to promote the licensing objectives; and 

•  where the sale of alcohol is involved, whether supplies are proposed to be for 

consumption on or off the premises (or both) and the name of the designated 

premises supervisor the applicant wishes to specify. 

8.92 In such cases, the licensing authority would include in the licence the date upon which it 

would come into effect. A provisional statement will normally only be required when the 

information described above is not available. 

8.93 The 2003 Act therefore provides for a person, if an individual aged 18 or over, who has 

an interest in the premises to apply for a “provisional statement”. This will not be time 

limited, but the longer the delay before an application for a premises licence is made, 

the more likely it is that there will be material changes and that the licensing authority 

will accept representations. “Person” in this context includes a business. 

8.94 When a hearing is held, the licensing authority must decide whether, if the premises 

were constructed or altered in the way proposed in the schedule of works and if a 

premises licence was sought for those premises, it would consider it appropriate for the 

promotion of the licensing objectives to: 

•  attach conditions to the licence; 

•  rule out any of the licensable activities applied for; 

•  refuse to specify the person nominated as premises supervisor; or 

Page 309

Agenda Item 11
Appendix 6



64 | Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 

•  reject the application. 

It will then issue the applicant with a provisional statement setting out the details of that 

decision together with its reasons. 

8.95 The licensing authority must copy the provisional statement to each person who made 

relevant representations, and the chief officer of police for the area in which the premises 

is situated. The licensing authority should give full and comprehensive reasons for its 

decision. This is important in anticipation of an appeal by any aggrieved party. 

8.96 When a person applies for a premises licence in respect of premises (or part of the 

premises or premises which are substantially the same) for which a provisional 

statement has been made, representations by responsible authorities and other persons 

will be excluded in certain circumstances. These are where: 

•  the application for a licence is in the same form as the licence described in the 

provisional statement; 

•  the work in the schedule of works has been satisfactorily completed; 

•  given the information provided in the application for a provisional statement, the 

responsible authority or other person could have made the same, or substantially the 

same, representations about the application then but failed to do so without 

reasonable excuse; and 

•  there has been no material change in the circumstances relating either to the 

premises or to the area in the proximity of those premises since the provisional 

statement was made. 

8.97 Any decision of the licensing authority on an application for a provisional statement will 

not relieve an applicant of the need to apply for planning permission, building control 

approval of the building work, or in some cases both planning permission and building 

control. 

8.98 A provisional statement may not be sought or given for a vessel, a vehicle or a 

moveable structure (see section 189 of the 2003 Act). 

Transfers of premises licences 

8.99 The 2003 Act provides for any person who may apply for a premises licence, which 

includes a business, to apply for a premises licence to be transferred to them. Where 

the application is made in writing, the applicant must give notice of the application to the 

chief officer of police in all cases, and the Home Office (Immigration Enforcement) if the 

licence authorises the sale of alcohol or provision of late night refreshment. Where it is 

made electronically via GOV.UK or the licensing authority’s electronic facility, the 

licensing authority must notify the police and the Home Office (Immigration 

Enforcement) no later than the first working day after the application is given. However, 

the responsibility to notify the DPS remains with the applicant. Otherwise the general 

guidance on electronic applications set out in paragraphs 8.21 to 8.28 applies. 

8.100 In the vast majority of cases, it is expected that a transfer will be a very simple 

administrative process. Section 43 of the 2003 Act provides a mechanism which allows 

the transfer to come into immediate interim effect as soon as the licensing authority 

receives it, until it is formally determined or withdrawn. This is to ensure that there should 

be no interruption to normal business at the premises. If the police or the Home Office 

Page 310

Agenda Item 11
Appendix 6



Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 I 65 

(Immigration Enforcement) raise no objection about the application, the licensing authority 

must transfer the licence in accordance with the application, amend the licence 

accordingly and return it to the new holder. 

8.101 In exceptional circumstances where the chief officer of police believes the transfer may 

undermine the crime prevention objective, the police may object to the transfer. The 

Home Office (Immigration Enforcement) may object if it considers that granting the 

transfer would be prejudicial to the prevention of illegal working in licensed premises. 

Such objections are expected to be rare and arise because the police or the Home 

Office (Immigration Enforcement) have evidence that the business or individuals 

seeking to hold the licence, or businesses or individuals linked to such persons, are 

involved in crime (or disorder) or employing illegal workers. 

8.102 Such objections (and therefore such hearings) should only arise in truly exceptional 

circumstances. If the licensing authority believes that the police or the Home Office 

(Immigration Enforcement) are using this mechanism to vet transfer applicants routinely 

and to seek hearings as a fishing expedition to inquire into applicants’ backgrounds, it is 

expected that it would raise the matter immediately with the chief officer of police or the 

Home Office (Immigration Enforcement). 

Interim authorities 

8.103 The 2003 Act provides special arrangements for the continuation of permissions under a 

premises licence when the holder of a licence dies suddenly, becomes bankrupt, 

mentally incapable or ceases to be entitled to work in the UK. In the normal course of 

events, the licence would lapse in such circumstances. However, there may also be 

some time before, for example, the deceased person’s estate can be dealt with or an 

administrative receiver appointed. This could have a damaging effect on those with 

interests in the premises, such as an owner, lessor or employees working at the 

premises in question; and could bring unnecessary disruption to customers’ plans. The 

2003 Act therefore provides for the licence to be capable of being reinstated in a 

discrete period of time in certain circumstances. 

8.104 These circumstances arise only where a premises licence has lapsed owing to the 

death, incapacity or insolvency of the holder or where the holder ceases to be entitled to 

work in the UK. In such circumstances, an “interim authority” notice may be given to the 

licensing authority within 28 consecutive days beginning the day after the licence 

lapsed. Where applications are made in writing, the applicant must give notice of the 

application to the chief officer of police in all cases, and the Home Office (Immigration 

Enforcement) if the licence authorises the sale of alcohol or provision of late night 

refreshment. If an application is made electronically via GOV.UK or the licensing 

authority’s electronic facility, the licensing authority must notify the police and the Home 

Office (Immigration Enforcement) no later than the first working day after the notice is 

given. 

8.105 An interim notice may only be given either by a person with a prescribed interest in the 

premises as set out in the regulations made under the 2003 Act (which may be viewed 

on www.legislation.gov.uk, the Government’s legislation website); or by a person 

connected to the former holder of the licence (normally a personal representative of the 

former holder; or a person with power of attorney; or where someone has become 

Page 311

Agenda Item 11
Appendix 6



66 | Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 

insolvent, that person’s insolvency practitioner). The person giving the interim authority 

notice must be entitled to work in the UK. 

8.106 The effect of giving the notice is to reinstate the premises licence as if the person giving 

the notice is the holder of the licence and thereby allow licensable activities to continue 

to take place pending a formal application for transfer. The maximum period for which 

an interim authority notice may have effect is three months. 

8.107 The interim authority notice ceases to have effect unless, by the end of the initial period 

of 28 consecutive days, a copy of the notice has been given to the chief officer of police 

and the Home Office (Immigration Enforcement). Within two working days of receiving 

the copy, and if satisfied that in the exceptional circumstances of the case failure to 

cancel the interim authority would undermine the crime prevention objective, the police 

may give a notice to that effect to the licensing authority. Similarly, the Home Office 

(Immigration Enforcement) may give a notice to the licensing authority if satisfied that 

the exceptional circumstances of the case are such that failure to cancel the interim 

authority would undermine the prevention of illegal working in licensed premises.  In 

such circumstances, the licensing authority must hold a hearing to consider the 

objection notice and cancel the interim authority notice if it decides that it is appropriate 

to do so for the promotion of the crime prevention objective. 

8.108 Licensing authorities should be alert to the need to consider the objection quickly. Under 

section 50 of the 2003 Act, where the premises licence lapses (because of death, 

incapacity or insolvency of the holder or because the holder is no longer entitled to work 

in the UK) or by its surrender, but no interim authority notice has effect, a person who 

may apply for the grant of a premises licence under section 16(1) may apply within 28 

consecutive days of the lapse for the transfer of the licence to them with immediate effect 

pending the determination of the application. This will result in the licence being reinstated 

from the point at which the transfer application was received by the licensing authority. 

Where the application is made in writing, the person applying for the transfer must copy 

their application to the chief officer of police and the Home Office (Immigration 

Enforcement). If the application is made electronically the licensing authority must copy 

the application to the police and the Home Office (Immigration Enforcement). 

Right of freeholders etc to be notified of licensing matters 

8.109 A person (which will include a business or company) with a property interest in any 

premises situated in the licensing authority’s area may give notice of their interest to the 

authority using a prescribed form and on payment of the relevant fee. The application 

may be made in writing or electronically via GOV.UK or the licensing authority’s own 

facility, in which case the guidance at paragraphs 8.21 to 8.28 applies. Details of fees 

and forms are available on the GOV.UK website. It is entirely at the discretion of such 

persons whether they choose to register or not. It is not a legal requirement. Those who 

may take advantage of this arrangement include the freeholder or leaseholder, a legal 

mortgagee in respect of the premises, a person in occupation of the premises or any 

other person prescribed by the Secretary of State. 

8.110 The notice will have effect for 12 months but a new notice can be given every year. 

While the notice has effect, if any change relating to the premises concerned has been 

made to the licensing register (which the licensing authority has a duty to keep under 

Page 312

Agenda Item 11
Appendix 6



Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 I 67 

section 8 of the 2003 Act), the licensing authority must notify the person who registered 

an interest of the matter to which the change relates. The person will also be notified of 

their right under section 8 to request a copy of the information contained in any entry in 

the register. In cases relating to interim authority notices (see above), it is important that 

such communications are dealt with promptly. 

 

Page 313

Agenda Item 11
Appendix 6



This page is intentionally left blank



68 | Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 

9. Determining applications 

General 

9.1 When a licensing authority receives an application for a new premises licence or an 

application to vary an existing premises licence, it must determine whether the 

application has been made in accordance with section 17 of the 2003 Act, and in 

accordance with regulations made under sections 17(3) to (6), 34, 42, 54 and 55 of the 

2003 Act. It must similarly determine applications for the grant of club premises 

certificates made in accordance with section 71 of the 2003 Act, and in accordance with 

regulations made under sections 71(4) to (7), 84, 91 and 92 of the 2003 Act. This 

means that the licensing authority must consider among other things whether the 

application has been properly advertised in accordance with those regulations. 

Where no representations are made 

9.2 A hearing is not required where an application has been properly made and no 

responsible authority or other person has made a relevant representation or where 

representations are made and subsequently withdrawn. In these cases, the licensing 

authority must grant the application in the terms sought, subject only to conditions which 

are consistent with the operating schedule and relevant mandatory conditions under the 

2003 Act. This should be undertaken as a simple administrative process by the licensing 

authority’s officials who should replicate the proposals contained in the operating 

schedule to promote the licensing objectives in the form of clear and enforceable licence 

conditions. Licensing authorities should not hold hearings for uncontested applications, 

for example in situations where representations have been made and conditions have 

subsequently been agreed. 

Where representations are made 

9.3 Where a representation concerning the licensing objectives is made by a responsible 

authority about a proposed operating schedule and it is relevant (see paragraphs 9.4 to 

9.10 below), the licensing authority’s discretion will be engaged. It will also be engaged 

if another person makes relevant representations to the licensing authority, which are 

also not frivolous or vexatious (see paragraphs 9.4 to 9.10 below). Relevant 

representations can be made in opposition to, or in support of, an application and can 

be made by any individual, body or business that has grounds to do so. 

Relevant, vexatious and frivolous representations 

9.4 A representation is “relevant” if it relates to the likely effect of the grant of the licence on 

the promotion of at least one of the licensing objectives. For example, a representation 

from a local businessperson about the commercial damage caused by competition from 

new licensed premises would not be relevant. On the other hand, a representation by a 

businessperson that nuisance caused by new premises would deter customers from 

entering the local area, and the steps proposed by the applicant to prevent that 

nuisance were inadequate, would be relevant. In other words, representations should 

relate to the impact of licensable activities carried on from premises on the objectives. 

For representations in relation to variations to be relevant, they should be confined to 

Page 315

Agenda Item 11
Appendix 7



Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 I 69 

the subject matter of the variation. There is no requirement for a responsible authority or 

other person to produce a recorded history of problems at premises to support their 

representations, and in fact this would not be possible for new premises. 

9.5 It is for the licensing authority to determine whether a representation (other than a 

representation from responsible authority) is frivolous or vexatious on the basis of what 

might ordinarily be considered to be vexatious or frivolous. A representation may be 

considered to be vexatious if it appears to be intended to cause aggravation or 

annoyance, whether to a competitor or other person, without reasonable cause or 

justification. Vexatious circumstances may arise because of disputes between rival 

businesses and local knowledge will therefore be invaluable in considering such 

matters. Licensing authorities can consider the main effect of the representation, and 

whether any inconvenience or expense caused by it could reasonably be considered to 

be proportionate. 

9.6 Frivolous representations would be essentially categorised by a lack of seriousness. 

Frivolous representations would concern issues which, at most, are minor and in 

relation to which no remedial steps would be warranted or proportionate. 

9.7 Any person who is aggrieved by a rejection of their representations on either of these 

grounds may lodge a complaint through the local authority’s corporate complaints 

procedure. A person may also challenge the authority’s decision by way of judicial 

review. 

9.8 Licensing authorities should not take decisions about whether representations are 

frivolous, vexatious or relevant to the licensing objectives on the basis of any political 

judgement. This may be difficult for councillors who receive complaints from residents 

within their own wards. If consideration is not to be delegated, contrary to the 

recommendation in this Guidance, an assessment should be prepared by officials for 

consideration by the sub- committee before any decision is taken that necessitates a 

hearing. Any councillor who considers that their own interests are such that they are 

unable to consider the matter independently should disqualify themselves. 

9.9 It is recommended that, in borderline cases, the benefit of the doubt about any aspect of 

a representation should be given to the person making that representation. The 

subsequent hearing would then provide an opportunity for the person or body making 

the representation to amplify and clarify it. 

9.10 Licensing authorities should consider providing advice on their websites about how any 

person can make representations to them. 

The role of responsible authorities 

9.11 Responsible authorities under the 2003 Act are automatically notified of all new 

applications. While all responsible authorities may make representations regarding 

applications for licences and club premises certificates and full variation applications, it 

is the responsibility of each responsible authority to determine when they have 

appropriate grounds to do so. 

  

Page 316

Agenda Item 11
Appendix 7



70 | Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 

9.12 Each responsible authority will be an expert in their respective field, and in some cases 

it is likely that a particular responsible authority will be the licensing authority’s main 

source of advice in relation to a particular licensing objective. For example, the police 

have a key role in managing the night-time economy and should have good working 

relationships with those operating in their local area5. The police should usually 

therefore be the licensing authority’s main source of advice on matters relating to the 

promotion of the crime and disorder licensing objective. However, any responsible 

authority under the 2003 Act may make representations with regard to any of the 

licensing objectives if they have evidence to support such representations. Licensing 

authorities must therefore consider all relevant representations from responsible 

authorities carefully, even where the reason for a particular responsible authority’s 

interest or expertise in the promotion of a particular objective may not be immediately 

apparent. However, it remains incumbent on all responsible authorities to ensure that 

their representations can withstand the scrutiny to which they would be subject at a 

hearing. 

Licensing authorities acting as responsible authorities 

9.13 Licensing authorities are included in the list of responsible authorities. A similar 

framework exists in the Gambling Act 2005. The 2003 Act does not require responsible 

authorities to make representations about applications for the grant of premises licences 

or to take any other steps in respect of different licensing processes. It is, therefore, for 

the licensing authority to determine when it considers it appropriate to act in its capacity 

as a responsible authority; the licensing authority should make this decision in 

accordance with its duties under section 4 of the 2003 Act. 

9.14 Licensing authorities are not expected to act as responsible authorities on behalf of 

other parties (for example, local residents, local councillors or community groups) 

although there are occasions where the authority may decide to do so. Such parties can 

make relevant representations to the licensing authority in their own right, and it is 

reasonable for the licensing authority to expect them to make representations 

themselves where they are reasonably able to do so. However, if these parties have 

failed to take action and the licensing authority is aware of relevant grounds to make a 

representation, it may choose to act in its capacity as responsible authority. 

9.15 It is also reasonable for licensing authorities to expect that other responsible authorities 

should intervene where the basis for the intervention falls within the remit of that other 

responsible authority. For example, the police should make representations where the 

representations are based on concerns about crime and disorder. Likewise, it is 

reasonable to expect the local authority exercising environmental health functions to 

make representations where there are concerns about noise nuisance. Each 

responsible authority has equal standing under the 2003 Act and may act independently 

without waiting for representations from any other responsible authority. 

9.16 The 2003 Act enables licensing authorities to act as responsible authorities as a means 

of early intervention; they may do so where they consider it appropriate without having 

to wait for representations from other responsible authorities. For example, the licensing 

                                                
5
 Police and Crime Commissioners are expected to have a central role working in partnership with local authorities, enforcement 

bodies and other local partners to decide on what action is needed to tackle alcohol- related crime and disorder in their areas. 
However, the Chief Officer of Police remains the named responsible authority under the 2003 Act. 

Page 317

Agenda Item 11
Appendix 7



Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 I 71 

authority may (in a case where it has applied a cumulative impact policy) consider that 

granting a new licence application will add to the cumulative impact of licensed 

premises in its area and therefore decide to make representations to that effect, without 

waiting for any other person to do so. 

9.17 In cases where a licensing authority is also acting as responsible authority in relation to 

the same process, it is important to achieve a separation of responsibilities within the 

authority to ensure procedural fairness and eliminate conflicts of interest. In such cases 

licensing determinations will be made by the licensing committee or sub committee 

comprising elected members of the authority (although they are advised by a licensing 

officer). Therefore, a separation is achieved by allocating distinct functions (i.e. those of 

licensing authority and responsible authority) to different officials within the authority. 

9.18 In these cases, licensing authorities should allocate the different responsibilities to 

different licensing officers or other officers within the local authority to ensure a proper 

separation of responsibilities. The officer advising the licensing committee (i.e. the 

authority acting in its capacity as the licensing authority) must be a different person from 

the officer who is acting for the responsible authority. The officer acting for the 

responsible authority should not be involved in the licensing decision process and 

should not discuss the merits of the case with those involved in making the 

determination by the licensing authority. For example, discussion should not take place 

between the officer acting as responsible authority and the officer handling the licence 

application regarding the merits of the case. Communication between these officers in 

relation to the case should remain professional and consistent with communication with 

other responsible authorities. Representations, subject to limited exceptions, must be 

made in writing. It is for the licensing authority to determine how the separate roles are 

divided to ensure an appropriate separation of responsibilities. This approach may not 

be appropriate for all licensing authorities and many authorities may already have 

processes in place to effectively achieve the same outcome. 

9.19 Smaller licensing authorities, where such a separation of responsibilities is more 

difficult, may wish to involve officials from outside the licensing department to ensure a 

separation of responsibilities. However, these officials should still be officials employed 

by the authority. 

Health bodies acting as responsible authorities 

9.20 Where a local authority’s Director of Public Health in England (DPH)6 or Local Health 

Board (LHB) (in Wales) exercises its functions as a responsible authority, it should have 

sufficient knowledge of the licensing policy and health issues to ensure it is able to fulfil 

those functions. If the authority wishes to make representations, the DPH or LHB will 

need to decide how best to gather and coordinate evidence from other bodies which 

exercise health functions in the area, such as emergency departments and ambulance 

services. 

9.21 Health bodies may hold information which other responsible authorities do not, but 

which would assist a licensing authority in exercising its functions. This information may 

                                                
6
 This change was made as a result of the commencement of measures in the Health and Social Care Act 2012 which amended 

the 2003 Act and further provision in the NHS Bodies and Local Authorities (Partnership Arrangements, Care Trusts, Public 
Health and Local Healthwatch) Regulations 2012. 

Page 318

Agenda Item 11
Appendix 7



72 | Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 

be used by the health body to make representations in its own right or to support 

representations by other responsible authorities, such as the police. Such 

representations can potentially be made on the grounds of all four licensing objectives. 

Perhaps the most obvious example is where drunkenness leads to accidents and 

injuries from violence, resulting in attendances at emergency departments and the use 

of ambulance services. Some of these incidents will be reported to the police, but many 

will not. Such information will often be relevant to the public safety and crime and 

disorder objectives. 

9.22 However, health bodies are encouraged to make representations in respect of any of 

the four licensing objectives without necessarily seeking views from other responsible 

authorities where they have appropriate evidence to do so. There is also potential for 

health bodies to participate in the licensing process in relation to the protection of 

children from harm. This objective not only concerns the physical safety of children, but 

also their moral and psychological well being. 

9.23 Evidence relating to under 18s alcohol-related emergency department attendance, 

hospital admissions and underage sales of alcohol, could potentially have implications 

for both the protection of children from harm and the crime and disorder objectives. 

Health bodies can provide evidence to lead or support representations in relation to this 

objective. In relation to proxy purchases, data collected by health bodies could be used 

to inform other responsible authorities, including the police and licensing authorities, 

about a prevalence of proxy purchasing in a particular area. For example, the police 

could use this data to tackle instances of ‘shoulder tapping’ (where under 18s approach 

adults to buy alcohol on their behalf) and to suggest measures which retailers might be 

able to take to ensure, as far as possible, that they are not knowingly selling alcohol to 

an adult who is buying on behalf of a person aged under 18. Although less obvious, 

health bodies may also have a role to play in the prevention of public nuisance where its 

effect is prejudicial to health and where they hold relevant data. 

9.24 DPHs and LHBs will need to consider how to collect anonymised information about 

incidents that relate to specific premises or premises in a particular area (for example, a 

cumulative impact zone). Many areas have already developed procedures for local 

information sharing to tackle violence, which could provide useful evidence to support 

representations. The College of Emergency Medicine has issued guidelines for 

information sharing to reduce community violence which recommends that data about 

assault victims should be collected upon admission to emergency departments, 

including the date, time and location of the assault – i.e. the name of the pub, club or 

street where the incident occurred. Sometimes, it may be possible to link ambulance 

callouts or attendances at emergency departments to irresponsible practices at specific 

premises, such as serving alcohol to people who are intoxicated or targeting promotions 

involving unlimited or unspecified quantities of alcohol at particular groups. 

  

Page 319

Agenda Item 11
Appendix 7



Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 I 73 

Home Office Immigration Enforcement acting as a responsible 
authority   

9.25 The Immigration Act 2016 made the Secretary of State a responsible authority in 

respect of premises licensed to sell alcohol or late night refreshment with effect from 6 

April 2017. In effect this conveys the role of responsible authority to Home Office 

Immigration Enforcement who exercises the powers on the Secretary of State’s behalf. 

When Immigration Enforcement exercises its powers as a responsible authority it will do 

so in respect of the prevention of crime and disorder licensing objective because it is 

concerned with the prevention of illegal working or immigration offences more broadly.  

Disclosure of personal details of persons making representations 

9.26 Where a notice of a hearing is given to an applicant, the licensing authority is required 

under the Licensing Act 2003 (Hearings) Regulations 2005 to provide the applicant with 

copies of the relevant representations that have been made. 

9.27 In exceptional circumstances, persons making representations to the licensing authority 

may be reluctant to do so because of fears of intimidation or violence if their personal 

details, such as name and address, are divulged to the applicant. 

9.28 Where licensing authorities consider that the person has a genuine and well-founded 

fear of intimidation and may be deterred from making a representation on this basis, 

they may wish to consider alternative approaches. 

9.29 For instance, they could advise the persons to provide the relevant responsible authority 

with details of how they consider that the licensing objectives are being undermined so 

that the responsible authority can make representations if appropriate and justified. 

9.30 The licensing authority may also decide to withhold some or all of the person’s personal 

details from the applicant, giving only minimal details (such as street name or general 

location within a street). However, withholding such details should only be considered 

where the circumstances justify such action. 

Hearings 

9.31 The Licensing Act 2003 (Hearings) Regulations 2005 governing hearings may be found 

on the www.legislation.gov.uk website. If the licensing authority decides that 

representations are relevant, it must hold a hearing to consider them. The need for a 

hearing can only be avoided with the agreement of the licensing authority, where the 

applicant and all of the persons who made relevant representations have given notice to 

the authority that they consider a hearing to be unnecessary. Where this is the case and 

the authority agrees that a hearing is unnecessary, it must forthwith give notice to the 

parties that the hearing has been dispensed with. Notwithstanding those regulatory 

provisions, in cases where the licensing authority believes that a hearing is still 

necessary, it is recommended that the authority should, as soon as possible, provide 

the parties with reasons in writing for the need to hold the hearing. In cases where only 

‘positive’ representations are received, without qualifications, the licensing authority 

should consider whether a hearing is required. To this end, it may wish to notify the 

persons who made representations and give them the opportunity to withdraw those 

representations. This would need to be done in sufficient time before the hearing to 

ensure that parties were not put to unnecessary inconvenience. 

Page 320

Agenda Item 11
Appendix 7



74 | Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 

9.32 Responsible authorities should try to conclude any discussions with the applicant in 

good time before the hearing. The 2005 Hearings Regulations permit licensing 

authorities to extend a time limit provided for by those Regulations for a specified period 

where it considers this to be necessary in the public interest. For example, if the 

application is amended at the last moment, the licensing committee should consider 

giving other persons time to address the revised application before the hearing 

commences. Where the authority has extended a time limit it must forthwith give a 

notice to the parties involved stating the period of the extension and the reasons for it. 

9.33 The 2005 Hearings Regulations require that representations must be withdrawn 24 

hours before the first day of any hearing. If they are withdrawn after this time, the 

hearing must proceed and the representations may be withdrawn orally at that hearing. 

However, where discussions between an applicant and those making representations 

are taking place and it is likely that all parties are on the point of reaching agreement, 

the licensing authority may wish to use the power given within the hearings regulations 

to extend time limits, if it considers this to be in the public interest. 

9.34 Applicants should be encouraged to contact responsible authorities and others, such as 

local residents, who may be affected by the application before formulating their 

applications so that the mediation process may begin before the statutory time limits 

come into effect after submission of an application. The hearing process must meet the 

requirements of regulations made under the 2003 Act. Where matters arise which are 

not covered by the regulations, licensing authorities may make arrangements as they 

see fit as long as they are lawful. 

9.35 There is no requirement in the 2003 Act for responsible authorities that have made 

representations to attend, but it is generally good practice and assists committees in 

reaching more informed decisions. Where several responsible authorities within a local 

authority have made representations on an application, a single local authority officer 

may represent them at the hearing if the responsible authorities and the licensing 

authority agree. This local authority officer representing other responsible authorities 

may be a licensing officer, but only if this licensing officer is acting as a responsible 

authority on behalf of the licensing authority and has had no role in the licensing 

determination process. This is to ensure that the responsible authorities are represented 

by an independent officer separate from the licensing determination process. 

9.36 As noted in paragraphs 9.13 to 9.19 above, where the licensing officer is acting as a 

responsible authority the relevant steps should be followed to ensure that this individual 

has no role in the decision making process regarding the licensing determination. 

9.37 As a matter of practice, licensing authorities should seek to focus the hearing on the 

steps considered appropriate to promote the particular licensing objective or objectives 

that have given rise to the specific representation and avoid straying into undisputed 

areas. A responsible authority or other person may choose to rely on their written 

representation. They may not add further representations to those disclosed to the 

applicant prior to the hearing, but they may expand on their existing representation and 

should be allowed sufficient time to do so, within reasonable and practicable limits.  

9.38 In determining the application with a view to promoting the licensing objectives in the 

overall interests of the local community, the licensing authority must give appropriate 

weight to: 

Page 321

Agenda Item 11
Appendix 7



Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 I 75 

•  the steps that are appropriate to promote the licensing objectives; 

•  the representations (including supporting information) presented by all the parties; 

•  this Guidance; 

•  its own statement of licensing policy. 

9.39 The licensing authority should give its decision within five working days of the 

conclusion of the hearing (or immediately in certain specified cases) and provide 

reasons to support it. This will be important if there is an appeal by any of the parties. 

Notification of a decision must be accompanied by information on the right of the party 

to appeal. After considering all the relevant issues, the licensing authority may grant the 

application subject to such conditions that are consistent with the operating schedule. 

Any conditions imposed must be appropriate for the promotion of the licensing 

objectives; there is no power for the licensing authority to attach a condition that is 

merely aspirational. For example, conditions may not be attached which relate solely to 

the health of customers rather than their direct physical safety. Any conditions added to 

the licence must be those imposed at the hearing or those agreed when a hearing has 

not been necessary. 

9.40 Alternatively, the licensing authority may refuse the application on the grounds that this 

is appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives. It may also refuse to specify 

a designated premises supervisor and/or only allow certain requested licensable 

activities. In the interests of transparency, the licensing authority should publish 

hearings procedures in full on its website to ensure that those involved have the most 

current information. 

9.41 In the context of variations or minor variations, which may involve structural alteration to 

or change of use of a building, the decision of the licensing authority will not exempt an 

applicant from the need to apply for building control approval, planning permission or 

both of these where appropriate. 

Determining actions that are appropriate for the promotion of the 
licensing objectives 

9.42 Licensing authorities are best placed to determine what actions are appropriate for the 

promotion of the licensing objectives in their areas. All licensing determinations should 

be considered on a case-by-case basis. They should take into account any 

representations or objections that have been received from responsible authorities or 

other persons, and representations made by the applicant or premises user as the case 

may be. 

9.43 The authority’s determination should be evidence-based, justified as being appropriate 

for the promotion of the licensing objectives and proportionate to what it is intended to 

achieve. 

9.44 Determination of whether an action or step is appropriate for the promotion of the 

licensing objectives requires an assessment of what action or step would be suitable to 

achieve that end. While this does not therefore require a licensing authority to decide 

that no lesser step will achieve the aim, the authority should aim to consider the 

potential burden that the condition would impose on the premises licence holder (such 

as the financial burden due to restrictions on licensable activities) as well as the 

potential benefit in terms of the promotion of the licensing objectives. However, it is 

Page 322

Agenda Item 11
Appendix 7



76 | Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 

imperative that the authority ensures that the factors which form the basis of its 

determination are limited to consideration of the promotion of the objectives and nothing 

outside those parameters. As with the consideration of licence variations, the licensing 

authority should consider wider issues such as other conditions already in place to 

mitigate potential negative impact on the promotion of the licensing objectives and the 

track record of the business. Further advice on determining what is appropriate when 

imposing conditions on a licence or certificate is provided in Chapter 10. The licensing 

authority is expected to come to its determination based on an assessment of the 

evidence on both the risks and benefits either for or against making the determination. 

Considering cases where licensing and planning applications are 
made simultaneously 

9.45 Where businesses have indicated, when applying for a licence under the 2003 Act, that 

they have also applied for planning permission or that they intend to do so, licensing 

committees and officers should consider discussion with their planning counterparts 

prior to determination with the aim of agreeing mutually acceptable operating hours and 

scheme designs. 

 

Page 323

Agenda Item 11
Appendix 7



This page is intentionally left blank



Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 I 77 

10. Conditions attached to premises 
licences and club premises certificates 

General 

10.1 This chapter provides further guidance in relation to conditions attached to premises 

licences and club premises certificates. General principles on licence conditions are set 

out in Chapter 1 (see paragraph 1.16). 

10.2 Conditions include any limitations or restrictions attached to a licence or certificate and 

essentially are the steps or actions that the holder of the premises licence or the club 

premises certificate will be required to take or refrain from taking in relation to the 

carrying on of licensable activities at the premises in question. Failure to comply with 

any condition attached to a licence or certificate is a criminal offence, which on 

conviction is punishable by an unlimited fine or up to six months’ imprisonment. The 

courts have made clear that it is particularly important that conditions which are 

imprecise or difficult for a licence holder to observe should be avoided. 

10.3 There are three types of condition that may be attached to a licence or certificate: 

proposed, imposed and mandatory. Each of these categories is described in more detail 

below. 

Proposed conditions 

10.4 The conditions that are appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives should 

emerge initially from the risk assessment carried out by a prospective licence or 

certificate holder, which they should carry out before making their application for a 

premises licence or club premises certificate. This would be translated into the steps 

recorded in the operating schedule or club operating schedule, which must also set out 

the proposed hours during which licensable activities will be conducted and any other 

hours during which the premises will be open to the public. 

10.5 It is not acceptable for licensing authorities to simply replicate the wording from an 

applicant’s operating schedule. A condition should be interpreted in accordance with the 

applicant’s intention. 

Consistency with steps described in operating schedule 

10.6 The 2003 Act provides that where an operating schedule or club operating schedule has 

been submitted with an application and there have been no relevant representations made 

by responsible authorities or any other person, the licence or certificate must be granted 

subject only to such conditions as are consistent with the schedule accompanying the 

application and any mandatory conditions required under the 2003 Act. 

10.7 Consistency means that the effect of the condition should be substantially the same as 

that intended by the terms of the operating schedule. If conditions are broken, this may 

lead to a criminal prosecution or an application for a review and it is extremely important 

therefore that they should be expressed on the licence or certificate in unequivocal and 

unambiguous terms. The duty imposed by conditions on the licence holder or club must 

be clear to the licence holder, club, enforcement officers and the courts. 

Page 325

Agenda Item 11
Appendix 8



78 | Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 

Imposed conditions 

10.8 The licensing authority may not impose any conditions unless its discretion has been 

exercised following receipt of relevant representations and it is satisfied as a result of a 

hearing (unless all parties agree a hearing is not necessary) that it is appropriate to 

impose conditions to promote one or more of the four licensing objectives. In order to 

promote the crime prevention licensing objective conditions may be included that are 

aimed at preventing illegal working in licensed premises. This provision also applies to 

minor variations. 

10.9 It is possible that in some cases no additional conditions will be appropriate to promote 

the licensing objectives. 

Proportionality 

10.10 The 2003 Act requires that licensing conditions should be tailored to the size, type, 

location and characteristics and activities taking place at the premises concerned. 

Conditions should be determined on a case-by-case basis and standardised conditions 

which ignore these individual aspects should be avoided. For example, conditions 

should not be used to implement a general policy in a given area such as the use of 

CCTV, polycarbonate drinking vessels or identity scanners where they would not be 

appropriate to the specific premises. Conditions that are considered appropriate for the 

prevention of illegal working in premises licensed to sell alcohol or late night 

refreshment might include requiring a premises licence holder to undertake right to work 

checks on all staff employed at the licensed premises or requiring that a copy of any 

document checked as part of a right to work check is retained at the licensed premises. 

Licensing authorities and other responsible authorities should be alive to the indirect 

costs that can arise because of conditions. These could be a deterrent to holding events 

that are valuable to the community or for the funding of good and important causes. 

Licensing authorities should therefore ensure that any conditions they impose are only 

those which are appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives.  

Naming, packing and promotion in retail premises 

10.11 The Government acknowledges that the irresponsible naming, packing or promotion of 

alcoholic drinks may contribute to alcohol related harms. Where there is direct evidence 

of specific incidents of irresponsible naming, packing or promotion of alcoholic drinks 

linked to the undermining of one of the licensing objectives, licensing authorities should, 

in the exercise of their licensing functions (in particular, in relation to an application for 

the grant, variation or review of a premises licence), consider whether it is appropriate to 

impose conditions on licences that require the licence holder to comply with the 

Portman Group’s Retailer Alert Bulletins. This condition should be considered on a case 

by case basis and in the context of the promotion of the licensing objectives. 

10.12 The Portman Group operates, on behalf of the alcohol industry, a Code of Practice on 

the Naming, Packaging and Promotion of Alcoholic Drinks. The Code seeks to ensure 

that drinks are packaged and promoted in a socially responsible manner and only to 

those who are 18 years old or older. Complaints about products under the Code are 

considered by an Independent Complaints Panel and the Panel’s decisions are 

published on the Portman Group’s website, in the trade press and in an annual report. If 

a product’s packaging or point-of-sale advertising is found to be in breach of the Code, 

Page 326

Agenda Item 11
Appendix 8



Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 I 79 

the Portman Group may issue a Retailer Alert Bulletin to notify retailers of the decision 

and ask them not to replenish stocks of any such product or to display such point-of-

sale material, until there has been compliance with the decision. 

Hours of trading 

10.13 The Government acknowledges that different licensing strategies may be appropriate 

for the promotion of the licensing objectives in different areas. The 2003 Act gives the 

licensing authority power to make decisions about the hours during which premises can 

conduct licensable activities as part of the implementation of its licensing policy 

statement. Licensing authorities are best placed to make decisions about appropriate 

opening hours in their areas based on their local knowledge and in consultation with 

responsible authorities. However, licensing authorities must always consider each 

application and must not impose predetermined licensed opening hours, without giving 

individual consideration to the merits of each application. 

10.14 Where there are objections to an application to extend the hours during which licensable 

activities are to be carried on and the licensing authority determines that this would 

undermine the licensing objectives, it may reject the application or grant it with 

appropriate conditions and/or different hours from those requested. 

10.15 Shops, stores and supermarkets should normally be free to provide sales of alcohol for 

consumption off the premises at any times when the retail outlet is open for shopping 

unless there are good reasons, based on the licensing objectives, for restricting those 

hours. 

The performance of plays 

10.16 The 2003 Act provides that other than for the purposes of public safety, conditions must 

not be attached to premises licences or club premises certificates authorising the 

performance of a play7 which attempt to censor or modify the content of plays in any 

way. Any such condition would be ultra vires the 2003 Act. 

Censorship 

10.17 In general, other than in the context of film classification for film exhibitions, licensing 

authorities should not use their powers under the 2003 Act to seek to impose conditions 

which censor the content of any form of regulated entertainment. This is not a proper 

function of licensing law and cannot be properly related to the licensing objectives. The 

content of regulated entertainment is a matter which is addressed by existing laws 

governing indecency and obscenity. Where the concern is about protecting children, 

their access should be restricted where appropriate. But no other limitation should 

normally be imposed. 

Major festivals and carnivals 

10.18 Licensing authorities should publicise the need for the organisers of major festivals and 

carnivals to approach them at the earliest opportunity to discuss arrangements for 

licensing activities falling under the 2003 Act. For some events, the organisers may 

seek a single premises licence to cover a wide range of activities at varied locations 

                                                
7
 See chapter 15 for when a performance of a play is licensable. 

Page 327

Agenda Item 11
Appendix 8



80 | Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 

within the premises. This would involve the preparation of a substantial operating 

schedule, and licensing authorities should offer advice and assistance about its 

preparation. 

10.19 For other events, applications for many connected premises licences may be made 

which in combination will represent a single festival. It is important that licensing 

authorities should publicise the need for proper co-ordination of such arrangements and 

will need to ensure that responsible authorities are aware of the connected nature of the 

individual applications. 

10.20 Local authorities should bear in mind their ability to seek premises licences from the 

licensing authority for land or buildings under public ownership within the community in 

their own name.8 This could include, for example, village greens, market squares, 

promenades, community halls, local authority owned art centres and similar public areas 

where festivals and carnivals might take place.9  Performers and entertainers would 

then have no need to obtain a licence or give a temporary event notice themselves to 

enable them to give performances in these places, although they would need the 

permission of the local authority to put on the event. 

Fixed prices 

10.21 Licensing authorities should not attach standardised blanket conditions promoting fixed 

prices for alcoholic drinks to premises licences or club licences or club premises 

certificates in an area. This may be unlawful under current law. However, it is important 

to note that the mandatory conditions made under sections 19A and 73B of the 2003 

Act prohibit a number of types of drinks promotions including where they give rise to a 

significant risk to any one of the four licensing objectives; the mandatory conditions also 

prohibit the sale of alcohol below the permitted price, as defined in paragraph 10.56. 

10.22 Where licensing authorities are asked by the police, other responsible authorities or 

other persons to impose restrictions on promotions in addition to those restricted by the 

mandatory conditions, they should consider each application on its individual merits, 

tailoring any conditions carefully to cover only irresponsible promotions in the particular 

and individual circumstances of any premises where these are appropriate for the 

promotion of the licensing objectives. In addition, when considering any relevant 

representations which demonstrate a clear causal link between sales promotions or 

price discounting and levels of crime and disorder on or near the premises, it would be 

appropriate for the licensing authority to consider the imposition of a new condition 

prohibiting irresponsible sales promotions or the discounting of prices of alcoholic 

beverages at those premises. However, before pursuing any form of restrictions at all, 

licensing authorities should take their own legal advice. 

  

                                                
8
 No licence is required for any entertainment provided by or on behalf of a local authority, see paragraphs 15.16-15.19 

9
 The register of public spaces: https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/licensed-spaces-register 

Page 328

Agenda Item 11
Appendix 8



Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 I 81 

Large capacity venues used exclusively or primarily for the 
“vertical” consumption of alcohol (HVVDs) 

10.23 Large capacity “vertical drinking” premises, sometimes called High Volume Vertical 

Drinking establishments (HVVDs), are premises with exceptionally high capacities, 

which are used primarily or exclusively for the sale and consumption of alcohol, and 

have little or no seating for patrons. Previous research has demonstrated that the 

environment within such establishments can have a significant bearing on the likelihood 

of crime and disorder. 

10.24 Where appropriate, conditions can be attached to premises licences for the promotion of 

the prevention of crime and disorder at such premises that require the premises to 

observe: 

•  a prescribed capacity; 

•  an appropriate ratio of tables and chairs to customers based on the capacity; and 

•  a requirement that security staff holding the appropriate SIA licence or exemption are 

present to control entry for the purpose of compliance with the capacity limit and to 

deny entry to individuals who appear drunk or disorderly or both. 

Mandatory conditions in relation to the supply of alcohol 
 

10.25 The 2003 Act provides for the following mandatory conditions to be included in every 

licence and/or club premises certificate in the circumstances specified. 

Designated premises supervisor 

10.26 The 2003 Act provides that, where a premises licence authorises the supply of alcohol, 

it must include a condition that no supply of alcohol may be made at a time when no 

designated premises supervisor has been specified in the licence or at a time when the 

designated premises supervisor does not hold a personal licence or the personal 

licence has been suspended. 

10.27 The main purpose of the ‘designated premises supervisor’ as defined in the 2003 Act is 

to ensure that there is always one specified individual among these personal licence 

holders who can be readily identified for the premises where a premises licence is in 

force. That person will normally have been given day to day responsibility for running 

the premises by the premises licence holder. The requirements set out in relation to the 

designated premises supervisor and authorisation of alcohol sales by a personal licence 

holder do not apply to community premises in respect of which a successful application 

has been made to disapply the usual mandatory conditions in sections 19(2) and 19(3) 

of the 2003 Act (see Chapter 4 of this Guidance). 

10.28 The 2003 Act does not require a designated premises supervisor or any other personal 

licence holder to be present on the premises at all times when alcohol is sold. However, 

the designated premises supervisor and the premises licence holder remain responsible 

for the premises at all times including compliance with the terms of the 2003 Act and 

conditions attached to the premises licence to promote the licensing objectives. 

  

Page 329

Agenda Item 11
Appendix 8



82 | Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 

Authorisation by personal licence holders 

10.29 In addition, every premises licence that authorises the sale of alcohol must require that 

every supply of alcohol under the premises licence must be made or authorised by a 

person who holds a personal licence. This in most instances will be the designated 

premises supervisor who must hold a valid personal licence. Any premises at which 

alcohol is sold or supplied may employ one or more personal licence holders. This does 

not mean that the condition should require the presence of the designated premises 

supervisor or any other personal licence holder on the premises at all times. 

10.30 Similarly, the fact that every supply of alcohol must be made under the authority of a 

personal licence holder does not mean that only personal licence holders can make 

sales or that they must be personally present at every transaction. A personal licence 

holder may authorise members of staff to make sales of alcohol but may be absent at 

times from the premises when a transaction takes place. However, the responsible 

personal licence holder may not be able to escape responsibility for the actions of 

anyone authorised to make sales. 

10.31 “Authorisation” does not imply direct supervision by a personal licence holder of each 

sale of alcohol. The question arises as to how sales can be authorised. Ultimately, 

whether an authorisation has been given is a question of fact that would have to be 

decided by the courts on the evidence before it in the course of a criminal prosecution. 

10.32 The following factors should be relevant in considering whether or not an authorisation 

has been given: 

•  the person(s) authorised to sell alcohol at any particular premises should be clearly 

identified; 

•  the authorisation should have specified the acts which may be carried out by the 

person who is authorised to supply alcohol; 

•  there should be an overt act of authorisation, for example, a specific written 

statement given to the individual who is authorised to supply alcohol; and 

•  there should be in place sensible arrangements for the personal licence holder to 

monitor the activity that they have authorised on a reasonably regular basis. 

10.33 It is strongly recommended that personal licence holders give specific written 

authorisations to individuals whom they are authorising to retail alcohol. A single written 

authorisation would be sufficient to cover multiple sales over an unlimited period. This 

would assist personal licence holders in demonstrating due diligence should issues 

arise with enforcement authorities; and would protect employees if they themselves are 

challenged in respect of their authority to sell alcohol. 

10.34 Written authorisation is not a requirement of the 2003 Act and its absence alone could 

not give rise to enforcement action. 

10.35 It must be remembered that while the designated premises supervisor or a personal 

licence holder may authorise other individuals to sell alcohol in their absence, they are 

responsible for any sales that may be made. Similarly, the premises licence holder 

remains responsible for ensuring that licensing law and licence conditions are observed 

at the premises. 

Page 330

Agenda Item 11
Appendix 8



Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 I 83 

Arrangements for the mandatory licence conditions 

10.36 The mandatory conditions made under sections 19A and 73B of the 2003 Act (the 

conditions governing irresponsible promotions, dispensing alcohol directly into the 

mouth, provision of free tap water, age verification, small measures and the prohibition 

on sales of alcohol below the permitted price) do not have to be physically included in 

the licence or certificate but nonetheless will apply to every licence and certificate 

authorising the sale and supply of alcohol for consumption on the premises. The 

mandatory conditions set out in section 19 of the 2003 Act (the requirement for a DPS 

and for all sales to be made or authorised by a personal licence holder) do, however, 

have to be physically included in the licence. The mandatory licence conditions do not 

apply to activities (including the supply of alcohol) authorised by a temporary event 

notice. 

10.37 Whereas the initial mandatory conditions in section 19 of the 2003 Act are set out in 

Annex 1 of the licence, the additional mandatory conditions made under section 19A of 

the 2003 Act are treated as if they were included in existing licences and certificates on 

the date that those conditions came into force. 

10.38 Following their commencement, the mandatory conditions overrode any pre-existing 

conditions already included in a licence or certificate insofar as the mandatory 

conditions were identical to, or inconsistent with or more onerous than, any pre-existing 

conditions. It is not necessary to record on the face of existing licences and certificates 

the impact that the introduction of the mandatory conditions has had on pre-existing 

conditions. 

Irresponsible promotions 

10.39 Under this condition, the “responsible person” (defined in the 2003 Act as the holder of a 

premises licence, designated premises supervisor, a person aged 18 or over who is 

authorised to allow the sale or supply of alcohol by an under 18 or a member or officer 

of a club present on the club premises who can oversee the supply of alcohol) should 

be able to demonstrate that they have ensured that staff do not carry out, arrange or 

participate in any irresponsible promotions. An irresponsible promotion is one that fits 

one of the descriptions below (or is substantially similar), is carried on for the purpose of 

encouraging the sale or supply of alcohol for consumption on the premises. The aim of 

the condition is to prohibit or restrict promotions which encourage people to drink more 

than they might ordinarily do and in a manner which undermines the licensing 

objectives. 

Drinking games 

10.40 Drinking games which require or encourage individuals to drink a quantity of alcohol 

within a time limit, or drink as much alcohol as possible within a time limit or otherwise, 

are prohibited. For example, this may include organised ‘drink downing’ competitions. 

This would not prevent the responsible person from requiring all drinks to be consumed 

or abandoned at, or before, the closing time of the premises. Nor does it necessarily 

prohibit ‘happy hours’ as long as these are not designed to encourage individuals to 

drink excessively or rapidly. 

  

Page 331

Agenda Item 11
Appendix 8



84 | Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 

Large quantities of alcohol for free or a fixed price 

10.41 Irresponsible promotions can include the provision of unlimited or unspecified quantities 

of alcohol free or for a fixed or discounted price, where there is a significant risk that 

such a promotion would undermine one or more of the licensing objectives. This 

includes alcohol provided to the public or to a group defined by a particular 

characteristic, for example, a promotion which offers women free drinks before a certain 

time or “all you can drink for £10”. Promotions can be designed with a particular group in 

mind (for example, over 65s). A common sense approach is encouraged, which may 

include specifying the quantity of alcohol included in it or not targeting a group which 

could become more vulnerable or present a greater risk of crime and disorder as a 

result of excessive alcohol consumption. 

Prizes and rewards 

10.42 The sale, supply or provision of free or discounted alcohol or any other item as a prize 

to encourage or reward the purchase and consumption of alcohol can be within the 

definition of an irresponsible promotion, where there is a significant risk that such a 

promotion would undermine one or more of the licensing objectives. This may include 

promotions under which free or discounted alcohol is offered as a part of the sale of 

alcohol, for example, “Buy one and get two free” and “Buy one cocktail and get a 

second cocktail for 25p”. This includes promotions which involve the provision of free or 

discounted alcohol within the same 24 hour period. 

Posters and flyers 

10.43 Irresponsible promotions can also include the sale or supply of alcohol in association 

with promotional materials on display in or around the premises, which can either be 

reasonably considered to condone, encourage or glamorise anti social behaviour or 

refer to the effects of drunkenness in any favourable manner. 

Dispensing alcohol directly into the mouth 

10.44 The responsible person (see paragraph 10.39) must ensure that no alcohol is dispensed 

directly into the mouth of a customer. For example, this may include drinking games 

such as the ‘dentist’s chair’ where a drink is poured continuously into the mouth of 

another individual and may also prevent a premises from allowing another body to 

promote its products by employing someone to dispense alcohol directly into customers’ 

mouths. An exception to this condition would be when an individual is unable to drink 

without assistance due to a disability. 

Free potable water 

10.45 The responsible person (see paragraph 10.39) must ensure that free potable water is 

provided on request to customers where it is reasonably available on the premises. 

What is meant by reasonably available is a question of fact; for example, it would not be 

reasonable to expect free tap water to be available in premises for which the water 

supply had temporarily been lost because of a broken mains water supply. However, it 

may be reasonable to expect bottled water to be provided in such circumstances. 

  

Page 332

Agenda Item 11
Appendix 8



Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 I 85 

Age verification 

10.46 The premises licence holder or club premises certificate holder must ensure that an age 

verification policy applies to the premises in relation to the sale or supply of alcohol. This 

must as a minimum require individuals who appear to the responsible person (see 

paragraph 10.39) to be under the age of 18 years of age to produce on request, before 

being served alcohol, identification bearing their photograph, date of birth, and either a 

holographic mark or ultraviolet feature. The Home Office encourages licensed premises 

to accept cards bearing the Proof of Age Standards Scheme (PASS) hologram as their 

preferred proof of age, while acknowledging that many other forms of identification meet 

the requirements of the mandatory condition. 

10.47 The premises licence holder or club premises certificate holder must ensure that staff 

(in particular, staff who are involved in the supply of alcohol) are made aware of the 

existence and content of the age verification policy which applies by the premises. 

10.48 The designated premises supervisor (where there is one) must ensure that the supply of 

alcohol at the premises is carried on in accordance with the age verification policy. This 

means that the DPS has personal responsibility for ensuring that staff are not only 

aware of, but are also applying, the age verification policy. 

10.49 It is acceptable, and indeed encouraged, for premises to have an age verification policy 

which requires individuals who appear to the responsible person to be under an age 

greater than 18 to produce such identification on request. For example, if premises have 

a policy that requires any individual that appears to be under the age of 21 to produce 

identification that meets the criteria listed above, this is perfectly acceptable under the 

mandatory code. 

10.50 Licence holders should consider carefully what steps they are required to take to comply 

with the age verification requirements under the 2003 Act in relation to sales of alcohol 

made remotely. These include sales made online, by telephone and mail order sales, 

and alcohol delivery services. Each of these sales must comply with the requirements of 

the 2003 Act. The mandatory condition requires that age verification takes place before 

a person is served alcohol. Where alcohol is sold remotely (for example, online) or 

through a telephone transaction, the sale is made at this point but the alcohol is not 

actually served until it is delivered to the customer. Age verification measures (for 

example, online age verification) should be used to ensure that alcohol is not sold to any 

person under the age of 18. However, licence holders should also consider carefully 

what steps are appropriate to ensure that age verification takes place before the alcohol 

is served (i.e. physically delivered) to the customer to be satisfied that the customer is 

aged 18 or over. It is, therefore, the responsibility of the person serving or delivering the 

alcohol to ensure that age verification has taken place and that photo ID has been 

checked if the person appears to be less than 18 years of age. 

Smaller measures 

10.51 The responsible person (see paragraph 10.39) shall ensure that the following drinks, if 

sold or supplied on the premises, are available in the following measures: 

•  Beer or cider: ½ pint 

•  Gin, rum, vodka or whisky: 25ml or 35ml 

•  Still wine in a glass: 125ml 

Page 333

Agenda Item 11
Appendix 8



86 | Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 

10.52 As well as making the drinks available in the above measures, the responsible person 

must also make customers aware of the availability of these measures by displaying 

them on printed materials available to customers on the premises. This can include 

making their availability clear on menus and price lists, and ensuring that these are 

displayed in a prominent and conspicuous place in the relevant premises (for example, 

at the bar). Moreover, staff must make customers aware of the availability of small 

measures when customers do not request that they be sold alcohol in a particular 

measure. 

10.53 This condition does not apply if the drinks in question are sold or supplied having been 

made up in advance ready for sale or supply in a securely closed container. For 

example, if beer is only available in pre-sealed bottles the requirement to make it 

available in 1/2 pints does not apply. 

10.54 The premises licence holder or club premises certificate holder must ensure that staff 

are made aware of the application of this condition. 

Ban on sales of alcohol below the permitted price 

10.55 The relevant person (the holder of the premises licence, the designated premises 

supervisor (if any) in respect of such a licence, the personal licence holder who makes 

or authorises a supply of alcohol under such a licence, or any member or officer of a 

club present on the premises in a capacity which enables the member or officer to 

prevent the supply in question) shall ensure that no alcohol is sold or supplied for 

consumption on or off the premises for a price which is less than the permitted price. 

10.56 The permitted price is defined as the aggregate of the duty chargeable in relation to the 

alcohol on the date of its sale or supply and the amount of that duty multiplied by a 

percentage which represents the rate of VAT chargeable in relation to the alcohol on the 

date of its sale or supply. Detailed guidance on how to make this calculation and a 

calculator to determine permitted prices for each product are available on the Home 

Office website. 

10.57 Where there is a change to the rate of duty or VAT applying to alcohol (for instance, 

following a Budget), the relevant person should ensure that the permitted price reflects 

the new rates within fourteen days of the introduction of the new rate. 

10.58 It is still permitted to sell alcohol using promotions (as long as they are compatible with 

any other licensing condition that may be in force), and the relevant person should 

ensure that the price of the alcohol is not less than the permitted price. Detailed 

guidance on the use of promotions is given in the guidance document available on the 

Gov.uk website. 

Exhibition of films 

10.59 The 2003 Act provides that where a premises licence or club premises certificate 

authorises the exhibition of a film, it must include a condition requiring the admission of 

children to films to be restricted in accordance with recommendations given either by a 

body designated under section 4 of the Video Recordings Act 1984 specified in the 

licence (currently only the British Board of Film Classification (BBFC)) or by the 

licensing authority itself. 

10.60 The effect of paragraph 5 of Schedule 1 to the 2003 Act is to exempt adverts from the 

Page 334

Agenda Item 11
Appendix 8



Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 I 87 

definition of regulated entertainment, but not exempt them from the definition of 

exhibition of a film. Since the above mandatory condition applies to ‘any film’, it is 

therefore applicable to the exhibition of adverts. 

Door supervision 

10.61 Under section 21 of the 2003 Act, when a condition is included in a premises licence 

that at specified times an individual must be present at the premises to carry out a 

security activity (as defined in section 21(3)(a) by reference to the Private Security 

Industry Act 2001 (“the 2001 Act”)), the licence must include a condition requiring that 

individual to be licensed by the Security Industry Authority (“the SIA”) under the 2001 

Act, or be entitled to carry out that activity by virtue of section 4 of the 2001 Act. 

10.62 A premises licence need not require a person to hold a licence granted by the SIA if that 

person benefits from an exemption under section 4 of the 2001 Act. For example, 

certain employees benefit from an exemption when carrying out conduct in connection 

with a certified sports ground (section 4(6) to (12)). Furthermore, in certain 

circumstances persons benefit from an exemption where they operate under the SIA’s 

Approved Contractor Scheme (section 15). 

10.63 Conditions under section 21 of the 2003 Act should only relate to individuals carrying 

out security activities defined by section 21(3)(a) of the 2003 Act. Therefore, they should 

only relate to an activity to which paragraph 2(1)(a) of Schedule 2 to the 2001 Act 

applies (certain manned guarding activities) and which is licensable conduct within the 

meaning of section 3(2) of that Act. The requirement does not relate to individuals 

performing non-security related activities, and section 21 should not be used in relation 

to any such activities. 

10.64 Section 21 of the 2003 Act continues to ensure that a premises licence need not impose 

such a requirement in relation to those licensed premises which the 2001 Act treats as 

unlicensed premises. Those are: 

•  premises in respect of which there is in force a premises licence authorising a 

performance of a play or an exhibition of a film; 

•  casinos or bingo halls licensed under the Gambling Act 2005; 

•  premises where a club certificate is in force when activities are being carried on 

under the authority of that certificate. 

See paragraph 8(3) of Schedule 2 to the 2001 Act for full details. 

10.65 It should be noted, however, that the 2001 Act will require contractors and a small 

number of employees (those managing/supervising and those supplied under contract) 

to be licensed as manned guards (rather than door supervisors) when undertaking 

licensable conduct on premises to which paragraph 8(3) of Schedule 2 to the 2001 Act 

applies. 

10.66 It is therefore important that if a licensing authority intends that individuals must be 

present to carry out security activities (as defined by section 21(3)(a) of the 2003 Act) 

this should be explicit, as should the mandatory condition for those individuals to hold 

an SIA licence or be entitled to carry out that activity by virtue of section 4 of the 2001 

Act. On the other hand, where a licensing authority intends that individuals must be 

present to carry out other activities (for example, activities related to safety or steward 

activities to organise, advise and direct members of the public), no mandatory condition 

Page 335

Agenda Item 11
Appendix 8



88 | Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 

should be imposed under section 21 of the 2003 Act. In all cases it is important when 

determining whether or not a condition is to be imposed under section 21 of the 2003 

Act to consider whether the activities of any individual working in licensed premises fall 

within the definition of security activities in section 21(3)(a) of the 2003 Act. (Regardless 

of whether a condition is imposed under section 21 of the 2003 Act, under the 2001 Act 

the appropriate SIA licence must be held by any individual performing an activity for 

which they are licensable under that Act.) 

 

Page 336

Agenda Item 11
Appendix 8


	Agenda
	7 Confirmation of Minutes
	9 Application to vary a Premises Licence - Manhattans, 45-53 Cavendish Street, Barrow-in-Furness
	Appendix 1
	Appendix 2
	Appendix 3
	Appendix 4
	Appendix 5
	Appendix 6
	Appendix 7
	Appendix 8
	Appendix 9
	Appendix 10
	Appendix 11
	Appendix 12

	10 Application to vary a Premises Licence - Hollywood Rock Cafe, 45-53 Cavendish Street, Barrow-in-Furness
	Appendix 1
	Appendix 1.pdf (p.1-19)
	hollywood plan.pdf (p.20)

	Appendix 2
	Appendix 3
	Appendix 4
	Appendix 5
	Appendix 6
	Appendix 7
	Appendix 8
	Appendix 9
	Appendix 10

	11 Application to vary a Premises Licence - Broadway Sports Bar, 45-53 Cavendish Street, Barrow-in-Furness
	Appendix 1
	Appendix 2
	Appendix 3
	Appendix 4
	Appendix 5
	Appendix 6
	Appendix 7
	Appendix 8


